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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARB ECE IVE D
APPLICATION FOR PERMIT
JUN 19 2012

SECTION |. IDENTIFICATION, GENERAL INFORMATION, AND CERTIFICATION

HEALTH FACILITIES &

This Section must be completed for all projects. SERVICES REVIEW BOARD

Facility/Project Identification

Facility Name: U.S. Renal Care Lemont Dialysis

Street Address: 1096 South State Street

City and Zip Code: Lemont, 60439

County: Cook County Health Service Area7 Health Planning Area: 7

Applicant /Co-Appiicant Identification
[Provide for each co-applicant [refer to Part 1130.220].

Exact Legal Name: USRC Lemont, LLC

Address: 2400 Dallag Parkway, Suite 350, Plano, Texas 75093

Name of Registered Agent: CT Corporation System

Name of Chief Executive Officer. Stephen Pirri*

CEO Address: 2400 Dallas Parkway, Suite 350, Plano, Texas 75093

Telephone Number: 214.736.2700 ]

*Slephen Pir acts as President and Manager of this entlity.

pe of Ownership of Applicant/Co-Applicant

Ty
[
LJ
X

Non-profit Corporation ] Partnership
For-profit Carporation (] Governmental
Limited Liability Company OJ Sole Proprietorship | Other

Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an lllinois certificate of good
standing.

Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and address of
each panner specifying whether each is a general or limited pariner.

o

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-1 IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL"GRDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
| APPLICATION FORM. . T A o

o, e

Primary Contact

[Person to receive all correspondence or inquiries during the review period]

Name: Edward Clancy

Tifle: Attorney

Company Name: Ungaretti & Harris LLP

Address: 70 W. Madison, Suite 3500, Chicago, Winois 60602

Telephone Number: 312.977.4487

E-mail Address: eclancy@uhlaw.com

Fax Number: 312.977.4405

Additional Contact
[Person whe is also authorized to discuss the application for permit]

Name: Shawn Moon

Title: Attorney

Company Name: Ungaretti & Harris LLP

Address: 70 W. Madison, Suite 3500, Chicago, lllinois 60602

Telephone Number: 312.977.4342

E-mail Address: skmoon@uhlaw.com

Fax Number: 312.977.4405
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Applicant /Co-Applicant ldentification
[Provide for each co-applicant [refer to Part 1130.220].

Exact Legal Name: USRC Alliance, LLC

Address: 2400 Dallas Parkway Suite 350, Plano, Texas 75093
Name of Registered Agent: CT Corporation System

Name of Chief Executive Officer: Stephen Pirri*

CEOQ Address: 2400 Dallas Parkway Suite 350, Plano, Texas 75093
Telephone Number; 214.736.2700

*Stephen Pirri acls as President and Manager of this entity.

Type of Ownership of Applicant/Co-Applicant

OJ Non-profit Corporation | Partnership
] For-profit Corporation ] Governmental
Limited Liability Company [ Sole Proprietorship | Other

¢ Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an lllinois certificate of good
standing.

o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and address of
each panner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

APPEND DOCUMENTATlON AS ATTACHMENT-1 N NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE

| APPLICATION FORM. ___ o TEETRAGAM SR RIS e R | S e




Applicant /Co-Applicant ldentification
[Provide for each co-applicant [refer to Part 1130.220].

Exact Legal Name; U.S. Renal Care, Inc.

Address: 2400 Dallas Parkway Suite 350, Plano, Texas 75093

Name of Registered Agent: CT Corporation System

Name of Chief Executive Officer; Stephen Pirri*

CEO Address: 2400 Dallas Parkway Suite 350, Plano, Texas 75093

Telephone Number: 214.736.2700

*Siephen Pirri acts as President of this entity

Type of Ownership of Applicant/Co-Applicant

O Non-profit Corporation 0 Partnership
xi For-profit Corporation O Govemmental
[ Limited Liability Company ] Sole Proprigtorship | Other

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an lllinois certificate of good
standing.

o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and address of
each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

t APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-1 IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIA
[ APPLICATION FORM. S R T T Sy

mpsrpepmeideotS RN
ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE %g;THE» o




ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

Post Permit Contact
[Person to receive all correspondence subsequent to permit issuance-THIS PERSON MUST BE
EMPLOYED BY THE LICENSED HEALTH CARE FACILITY AS DEFINED AT 20 ILCS 3960

Name: Thomas L. Weinberg

Title: Senior Vice President and General Counsel

Company Name: U.S. Renal Care, Inc.

Address: 2400 Dallas Parkway, Suite 350, Plano, Texas 75083

Telephone Number: 214.736.2700

E-mail Address: Tweinberg@usrenalcare.com

Fax Number: 214.736.2701

Site Ownership
|Provide this information for each applicable site]

Exact Legal Name of Site Owner; Lemont Plaza Partners, L.L.C.

Address of Site Owner; 257 E. Main Street, Barrington, lllinois 60010

Street Address or Legal Description of Site:
Proof of ownership or control of the site is to be provided as Attachment 2. Examples of proof of ownership
are property tax statement, tax assessor's documentation, deed, notarized statement of the corporation

attesting to ownership, an option to lease, a letter of intent to lease ora lease.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-2, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM. R —

Operating ldentity/Licensee
[Provide this information for each applicable facility, and insert after this page.]

Exact Legal Name: USRC Lemont, LLC

Address: 2400 Dallas Parkway, Suite 350, Plano, Texas 75093

O Non-profit Corporation J Partnership
Cl For-profit Corporation ] Govemmental
x Limited Liability Company ] Sole Proprietorship O Other

o Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an lllinois Certificate of Good Standing.

o Partnerships must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and address of
each partner specifying whether each is a general or limited partner.

o Persons with 5 percent or greater interest in the licensee must be identified with the % of
ownershlp

EaTy o T —

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-3, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORBER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM. e e P

Organizational Relationships

Provide {for each co-applicant) an organizational chart containing the name and relationship of any
person or entity who is related (as defined in Part 1130.140). If the related perseor or entity is participating
in the development or funding of the project, describe the interest and the amount and type of any
financial contribution.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT4, (N NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM. . —

Page 2




ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

Flood Plain Requirements
|Refer to apptication instructions.)

Provide documentation that the project complies with the requirements of lllinois Executive Order #2005-5
pertaining to construction activities in special flood hazard areas. As part of the flood plain requirements
please provide a map of the proposed project location showing any identified floodplain areas. Floodplain
maps can be printed at www.FEMA.qov or www.illinpisfloodmaps.org. This map must be in a
readabie format ln addition please provide a statement attesiing that the project complies with the

L Chegs - W e REREER wPee s o
APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT .5, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM, _ _. e

Historic Resources Preservation Act Requirements
_|Refer to application instructions.]
Provide documentation regarding compliance with the requirements of the Historic Resources
Preservation Act.

s e e

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-S iN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM. @ - Y b o

DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT

1. Project Classification
{Check those applicable - refer to Part 1110.40 and Part 1120.20{b}]

Part 1120 Applicability or Classification:
Part 1110 Classification; [Check one enly.}
Substantive (1 Pan 1120 Not Applicable

[J Category A Project
O Nen-substantive Category B Project

[J DHS or DVA Project

Page 3




ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Editlon

2. Narrative Description
Provide in the space below, a brief narrative description of the project. Explain WHAT is to be done in State Board

defined terms, NOT WHY it is being done. If the project site does NOT have a street address, include a legal
description of the site. Include the rationale regarding the project’s classification as substantive or non-substantive.

USRC Lemont, LLC ("Applicant’) proposes to establish a thiteen {13} station in-center hemodialysis
facility at 1096 South State Street, Lemont, lllincis 60435 {the "Facility"} located in Health Service Area
("HSA") 7. The Facility will utilize leased space to be built out by Applicant. The facility wilt provide both
in-center hemodizalysis and periteneal dialysis for patients with End Stage Renal Disease ("ESRD").

This project is categorized as "substantive” under the lllinois Health Planning Act as it contemplates the
establishment of an in-center hemodialysis facility.

Page 4




ILLINQIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

Project Costs and Sources of Funds

Complete the following table listing all costs {refer to Part 1120.110) associated with the project. When a

project or any component of a project is to be accomplished by lease, donation, gift, or other means, the
fair market or dollar vatue (refer to Part 1130.140) of the component must be included in the estimated
project cost.  If the project contains non-reviewable components that are not related to the provision of
health care, complete the second column of the table below. Note, the use and sources of funds must

equal,

Project Costs and Sources of Funds

USE OF FUNDS CLINICAL NONCLINICAL TOTAL

Preptanning Costs

Site Survey and Soit Investigation

Site Preparation

Off Site Work

New Construction Contracts

Modermization Contracts $715,000 $715,000
Contingencies

Architectural/Engineering Fees 355,000 355,000
Consulting and Qther Fees $30,000 $30,000
Movable or Other Equipment {not in construction $82.555 $109,437 $191,092
cantracts)

Bond Issuance Expense (project related)

Net Interest Expense During Construction (project

related)

Fair Market Value of Leased Space or Equipment $1,285816 $1,285,816

Other Costs To Be Capitalized $50,542 $90,542

Acquisition of Building or Other Propenrty {excluding

land)

TOTAL USES OF FUNDS $2,258,9413 $109,437 $2,368,350
SQURCE OF FUNDS CLINICAL NONCLINICAL TOTAL

Cash and Securities $973,067 $109,437 $1,082,534

Piedges

Gifts and Beguests

Bond Issues {project related)

Mortgages

Leases {fair market value) $1,285,816 $1,285.816

Govemmental Appropriations

Grants

Other Funds and Sources

TOTAL SOURCES OF FUNDS $2,258,913 $109,437 $2,368,350

NOTE: ITEMIZATION OF EACH LINE ITEM MUST BE PROVIDED AT ATTACHMENT-7, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER
THE LAST PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM,

Page 5




ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

Related Project Costs
Pravide the following information, as applicable, with respect to any land related to the project that

will be or has been acquired during the last two calendar years:

Land acquisition is related to project (] Yes (m! No
Purchase Price:  $
Fair Market Value: $

The project involves the establishment of a new facility or a new category of service

@ Yes [C] No

If yes, provide the dollar amount of all non-capitalized operating start-up costs (including
operating deficits) through the first full fiscal year when the project achieves or exceeds the target

utilization specified in Part 1100,

Estimated start-up costs and operating deficit cost is §  {56,639)

Project Status and Completion Schedules
Indicate the stage of the project's architectural drawings:

[®] None or not applicable (J Preliminary

[ ] Schematics [] Final Working
Anticipated project completion date (refer to Part 1130.140): April 1, 2013

Indicate the following with respect to project expenditures or to obligation (refer to Part
1130.140):

[_L] Purchase orders, leases or contracts pertaining to the project have been executed.
[ Project obligation is contingent upon permit issuance. Provide a copy of the
contingent "certification of obligation” document, highlighting any language related to
CON Contingencies

(m} Project obligation will oceur after permit issuance.

v—

B ' T -
APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-8, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER TI-IEMLAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

State Agency Submittals
Are the following submittals up to date as applicable:
N/AL] Cancer Registry
N/A[] APCRS
N/AL ] All format document requests such as IDPH Questionnaires and Annual Bed Reports been
submitted

N/AL] Al reports regarding outstanding permits
Failure to be up to date with these requirements wili result in the application for permit being

deemed incomplete.

Page &




ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edlition

Cost Space Requirements

Provide in the following format, the departmentfarea DGSF or the building/area BGSF and cost. The type
of gross square footage, either DGSF or BGSF, must be identified. The sum of the department costs
MUST equal the total estimated project costs. Indicate if any space is being reallocated for a different
purpose. Include outside wall measurements plus the department's or area’s portion of the surrounding
circulation space. Explain the use of any vacated space.

Gross Square Feet Amount of Propose;lh'gtt)}:! Gross Square Feet

New | podemized | Asls | Vacated

Dept. / Area Cost | Existing | Proposed | . -~ Space

REVIEWABLE

Medical Surgical

Intensive Care

Diagnostic
Radiology

MRI

Total Clinical

NON
REVIEWABLE

Administrative

Parking

Gift Shop

Total Non-clinical

TOTAL _

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-9, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD

APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Editlon

Facility Bed Capacity and Utilization [Not Applicable

Complete the following chart, as applicable. Complete a separate chart for each facility that is a part of
the project and insert following this page. Provide the existing bed capacity and utilization data for the
latest Calendar Year for which the data are available. Include observation days in the patient day
Any bed capacity discrepancy from the Inventory will result in the

application being deemed incomplete.

totals for each bed service.

FACILITY NAME: CITY:
REPORTING PERIOD DATES: From: to:
Category of Service Authorized Admissions | Patient Days | Bed Proposed
Beds Changes Beds
Medical/Surgical
Obstetrics
Pediatrics
Intensive Care
Comprehensive Physical
Rehabilitation
Acute/Chronic Mental lliness
Neonatal Intensive Care
General Long Term Care
Specialized Long Term Care
Long Term Acute Care
Other {(identify)
TOTALS:
Page 8
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD

CERTIFICATION

APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

authorized representative(s) are;

beneficiaries do not exist); and

The application must be signed by the authorized representative(s) of the applicant entity. The

o inthe case of a corporation, any two of its officers or members of its Board of Directors;,

o inthe case of a limited liability company, any two of its managers or members {or the sole
manger or member when two or more managers or members do not exist);

o inthe case of a partnership, two of its general partners (or the sole general partner, when two or
more general partners do not exist);

o inthe case of estates and trusts, two of its beneficiaries (or the sole beneficiary when two or more

o inthe case of a sole proprietor, the individual that is the proprietor.

This Application for Permit is filed on the behalf of U.S. Renal Care, Inc. *
in accordance with the requirements and procedures of the lllinois Health Facilities Planning Act.
The undersigned certifies that he or she has the authority to execute and file this application for
permit on behalf of the applicant entity. The undersigned further certifies that the data and
information provided herein, and appended hereto, are complete and correct to the best of his or
her knowledge and belief. The undersigned also certifies that the permit application fee required
for this application is sent herewith or will be paid upon request.

o [

SIGNATURE

Thomas L. Weinberg

~ SIGNATURE

Stephen M. Pirri

PRINTED NAME

Senior Vice President & General Counsel
PRINTED TITLE

Notarization:
Subscribed and sworn to before me
this 12th _ day of _June
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PRINTED NAME

President
PRINTED TITLE

Notarization:
Subscribed and sworn to before me
this 12th day o{ J
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD

CERTIFICATION

APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

autherized representative(s) are:

o

a]

The ap_pllcation must be signed by the authorized representative{s) of the applicant entity. The

in the case of a corporation, any two of its officers or members of its Board of Directors

in the case of a limited liability company, any two of its managers or members (or the sole
manger or member when two or more managers or members do not exist);

in the case of a partnership, two of its general partners {or the sole general partner, when two or
more general partners do not exist);

in the case of estates and trusts, two of its beneficiaries (or the sole beneficiary when two or more
beneficiaries do not exist); and

in the case of a sole proprietor, the individual that is the proprietor,

This Application for Permit is filed on the behalf of USRC Alliance, LLC

in accordance with the requirements and procedures of the lllinois Health Facilities Planning Act.
The undersigned certifies that he or she has the authority to execute and file this application for
permit on behalf of the applicant entity. The undersigned further certifies that the data and
information provided herein, and appended hereto, are complete and correct to the best of his or

her knowledge and belief. The undersigned also certifies that the permit application fee required
for this application is sent herewith or will be paid upon request

Thomas L. Weinberg

Stephen M. Pirri

JIGNATURE !

PRINTED NAME PRINTED NAME

Manager President & Manager
PRINTED TITLE PRINTED TITLE
Notarization: Notarization:
Subscribed and swom to before me

this _12th day of June

/

% o 7z
Signature of Notary®, R . 4”; Signature of ., %
-L"-..J. * = - .,g‘ . =
=3 » £ 23S L =
Seal E%gg % 1z Seal 4 e i =
FAm - : = = 3 §OF
2 % TV e 2y V&S

2 N, sREPS %, " RGeS

*Insert EXACT le amne.cht icant IR &“
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-1 w 4\(; et un.

Subscribed and sworn to before me
this 12th day of _June
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

CERTIFICATION

The appilication must be signed by the authorized representative(s) of the applicant entity. The
authorized representative(s) are:

o in the case of a corporation, any two of its officers or members of its Beard of Directors;

o inthe case of a limited liability company, any two of its managers or members (or the sole
manger or member when two or more managers or members do not exist);

o inthe case of a partnership, two of its general partners (or the sole general partner, when two or
more general partners do nat exist);

o inthe case of estates and trusts, two of its beneficiaries (or the sole beneficiary when two or more
beneficiaries do not exist); and

o in the case of a sole proprietor, the individual that is the proprietor,

This Application for Permit is filed on the behalf of USRC Lemont, LLC *
in accordance with the requirements and procedures of the lllinois Health Facilities Planning Act.
The undersigned certifies that he or she has the autherity to execute and file this application for
permit on behalf of the applicant entity. The undersigned further certifies that the data and
information provided herein, and appended hereto, are complete and correct to the best of his or
her knowledge and belief. The undersigned also certifies that the permit application fee required
for this application is sent herewith or will be paid upon request.

ol gl

SIGNATURE ~ SIBNATURE
Thomas L. Weinberg Stephen M. Pirri
PRINTED NAME PRINTED NAME
Manager President & Manager
PRINTED TITLE PRINTED TITLE
Notarization: Notarization:
Subsqg?ed and sworn to before me Subscribed and swczfn to before me
this 1€ day of _June this 12th_day of

SNerewanr iy,

Sy, %,
By % “\uuumm,,,
. 2
y i = SI nature of N '
RN Y o R
- [] ‘c 5 = .. . =
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Ty, SR

e

Page 9




ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

SECTION Ill - BACKGROUND, PURPOSE OF THE PROJECT, AND ALTERNATIVES -
INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS

This Section is applicable to all projects except those that are solely for discontinuation with ne project
cosls.

Criterion 1110.230 - Background, Purpose of the Project, and Alternatives

READ THE REVIEW CRITERION and provide the following required information:

BACKGROUND QOF APPLICANT

1. Alisting of 2ll health care facilities owned or operated by the applicant, including licensing, and cerification if
applicable,

2. A certified listing of any adverse action taken against any facility owned andfor cperated by the applicant
during the three years prior to the filing of the application.

3. Authorization permitting HFSRB and DPH access to any documents necessary to verify the information
submitted, including, but not limited to: official records of DPH or other State agencies; the licensing or
certification records of other states, when applicable; and the records of nationally recognized accreditation
organizations. Failure to provide such authorization shall constitute an abandonment or withdrawal
of the application without any further action by HFSRB.

4. If, during a given calendar year, an applicant submits more than one application for permit, the
documentation provided wilh the pdor applications may be utilized to fulfill the information reguirements of
this criterion. In such instances, the applicant shall attest the information has been previously provided, cite
the project number of the prior application, and certify that no changes have occurred regarding the
information that has been previcusly provided. The applicant is able to submit amendments to previously
submitted information, as needed, to update and/or clarify data.

et Rt DR T
APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 11, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST
PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM. EACH ITEM {1-4) MUST BE IDENTIFIED IN AT&ACHMENT 11. T

é-Msv‘

o

PURPOSE OF PROJECT

1. Document that the project will provide health services that improve the health care or well-being of the
market area population to be served.

2. Define the planning area or market area, or other, per the applicant's definition.

3. ldentify the existing problems or issues that need tc be addressed, as applicable and appropriate for the
project. [See 1110.230(b) for examples of documentation.]

4, Cite the sources of the infermaticn provided as docurmentation.

5. Detail how the project will address or improve the previousty referenced issues, as well as the population's
health status and well-being.

6. Provide geals with quantified and measurable objectives, with specific timeframes that relate fo achieving
the stated goals as appropriate.

For projects involving modernization, descrbe the conditions being upgraded if any. For facility projects, include
statements of age and condition and regulatory citations if any. For equipment being replaced, include repair and
maintenance records,

NOTE: Information regarding the “Purpose of the Projechwui be mcluded in the Stale Agency Report.
APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-12, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST
PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM. EACH ITEM {1-6) MUST BE |DENT|FIED IN AT‘I‘ACHMENT 12.

SRR e s

Page 11
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW EOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

ALTERNATIVES

1) Identify ALL of the alternatives to the proposed project:

Alternative options must include:

A) Proposing a project of greater or lesser scope and cost;

B} Pursuing a joint venture or similar arrangement with one or more providers or
entities to meet all or a porfion of the project's intended purposes; developing
alternative settings to meet all or a porticn of the project's intended purposes;

C) Utilizing other health care resources that are available to serve all or a portion of
the population proposed to be served by the project, and
D) Provide the reasons why the chosen alternative was selected.
2) Documentation shall consist of a comparison of the project to alternative options, The

comparison shall address issues of total costs, patient access, quality and financial
benefits in both the short term (within one to three years after project completion) and long
term. This may vary by project or situation. FOR EVERY ALTERNATIVE IDENTIFIED
THE TOTAL PROJECT COST AND THE REASONS WHY THE ALTERNATIVE WAS
REJECTED MUST BE PROVIDED.

3) The applicant shall provide empirical evidence, including quantified outcome data that
verifies improved quality of care, as available.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-13, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST
PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM.

Page 12
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Editlon

SECTION IV - PROJECT SCOPE, UTILIZATION, AND UNFINISHED/SHELL SPACE
Criterion 1110.234 - Project Scope, Utilization, and UnfinishediShell Space

READ THE REVIEW CRITERICN and provide the following information:
SIZE OF PROJECT:

1. Documeni that the amount of physical space proposed for the proposed project is necessary and not
excessive. This must be a narrative.

2. If the gross square footage exceeds the BGSF/DGSF standards in Appendix B, justify the discrepancy by
documenting one of the following::

a. Additional space is needed due to the scope of services provided, justified by clinical or operaticnal
needs, as supported by published data or studies;

b. The existing facility'’s physical configuration has constraints or impediments and requires an
architectural design that results in a size exceeding the standards of Appendix B;

c. The project involves the conversion of existing space that results in excess square footage.,

Provide a narrative for any discrepancies from the State Standard. A table must be provided in the
following format with Attachment 14,

SIZE OF PROJECT |
DEPARTMENT/SERVICE PROPOSED STATE DIFFERENCE MET
BGSF/DGSF STANDARD STANDARD?

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-14, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM.

PROJECT SERVICES UTILIZATION:

This criterion is applicable only to projects or portions of projects that involve services, functions or equipment
for which HFSRB has established utilization standards or occupancy targets in 77 [Il. Adm. Code 1100.

Document that in the second year of operation, the annual utilization of the service or equipment shall meet or exceed the
utilization standards specified in 1110.Appendix B. A narrative of the rationale that supports the projections must be
provided.

A table must be provided in the following format with Aftachment 15.

| UTILIZATION
DEPT./ HISTORICAL PROJECTED STATE MET
SERVICE UTILIZATION UTILIZATION | STANDARD | STANDARD?
{PATIENT DAYS)
{TREATMENTS)
ETC.
YEAR 1
YEAR 2

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-15, IN NUMER]C SEQUENT]AL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE QF THE.
APPLICATION FORM.
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES AND SERVICES REVIEW BOARD APPLICATION FOR PERMIT- May 2010 Edition

G. Criterion 1110.1430 - In-Center Hemodialysis

1. Applicants proposing to establish, expand and/or modernize In-Center Hemedialysis
must submit the following information:

2. Indicate station capacity changes by Service: Indicate # of stations changed by
action(s):

# Existing # Proposed
Category of Service Statfons Stations

¥l In-Center Hemodialysis 1 3

3. READ the applicable review criteria outlined below and submit the required
documentation for the criteria:

APPLICABLE REVIEW CRITERIA Establish | Expand | Modernize
1110.1430(b})(1) - Planning Area Need - 77 lll. Adm. Code 1100 X
{formula calculation)
1110.1430(b){2} - Planning Area Need - Service to Planning Area X X
Residents
1110.1430(b){(3} - Plarning Area Need - Service Demand - X
Establishment of Category of Service
1110.1430(h)(4) - Planning Area Need - Service Demand - X
Expansion of Existing Category of Service
1110.1430(b}5) - Planning Area Need - Service Accessibility X
1110.1430{c){1) - Unnecessary Duplication of Services X
1110 1430{c){2) - Maldistribution X
1110.1430{c)}3) - Impact of Project on Other Area Providers X
1110.1430(d}(1) - Deteriorated Facilities X
1110.1430(d}{2) - Documentation X
1110.1420{d)(3) - Documentation Relaied to Cited Problems X
1110.1430(e) -  Staffing Availability X X
1110.1430(f) - Suppaort Services X X X
1110.1430(g) -  Minimum Number of Stations X
1110 1430(h) -  Continuity of Care X
1110.1430() - Assurances X X X
— gea EE o == -
APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-26, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST
PAGE OF THE AFPPLICATION FORM. :‘%%gm o ERTE
4, Projects for relocation of a facility from one location in a planning area to another in the

same planning area must address the requirements listed in subsection (a){1) for the
“Establishment of Services or Facilities”, as well as the requirements in Section 1110.130 -
*Discontinuation” and subsection 1110.1430(i) - “Relocation of Facilities".
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The following Sections DO NOT need to be addressed by the applicants or co-applicants responsible for
funding or guaranteging the funding of the project if the applicant bas a bond rating of A- or better from
Fitch's or Standard and Poor's rating agencies, or A3 or better from Moody's (the rating shall be affimned
within the latest 18 month period prior to the submittal of the application):

s Section 1120.120 Availability of Funds - Review Criteria
s  Section 1120.120 Financial Viability - Review Criteria
« Section 1120.140 Economic Feasibility — Review Criteria, subsection {a)

VIl - 1120.120 - Availability of Funds

The applicant shal! document that financial resources shall be available and be equal to or exceed the estimated total
project cost plus any related project costs by providing evidence of sufficient financial resources from the following
sources, as applicable: Indicate the doliar amount to be provided from the following sources:

$1.082.534 a) Cash and Securilies - stalements {e.g., audiled financial slalements, Tetters from financial
+ ' instilutions, board resolutions) as to:

1) the amount of cash and securities available for the project, including the
identification of any security, its value and availability of such funds; and

2y inlerest to be earmed on depreciation account funds or to be earned on any
asset from the date of applicant's submission through project completion;

b} Pledges - for anticipated pledges, a summary of the anticipated pledges showing anficipated
receipts and discounied value, estimated time table of gross receipts and related fundraiging
expenses, and a discussion of pasl fundraising experience.

c) Gifis and Bequests - verification of the dollar ameunt, identification of any conditions of use, and
the estimated time table of receipts;

$1,285,816( o Debt - a statement of the eslimated terms and conditions (including the debt lime pericd, variable
I or permanent interest rales over the debt time period, and the anticipated repayment schedule) for
any interim and for ihe permanent financing proposed to fund the project, including:

1) For general obligation bonds, proof of passage of the required referendum or
evidence that the governmental unit has the authority to issue the bonds and
evidence of the dollar amount of the issue, including any discounting
anlicipated;

2) For revenue bonds, proof of ihe {easibility of securing the specified amount and
interest rate;

3) For morigages, a letter from the prospective lender attesting to the expectalion
of making the loan in the amouni and time indicated, including the anticipated
interest rate and any conditions associated with the mortgage, such as, but not
limited to, adjustable inlerest cates, baltloon payments, efc.;

4) For any lease, a copy of the lease, including all the terms and conditions,
including any purchase options, any capital improvements to the property and
provision of capital equipment;

5) For any oplion to lease, a copy of the option, including all terms and conditions.

e) Governmental Appropriations — a copy of the appropriation Act or ordinance accompanied by a
statement of funding availability from an official of the governmental unit. If funds are to be made
available from subsequent fiscal years, a copy of a resolulion or clher action of the governmental
unit attesting to this intent;

N Grants - a letier from lhe granting agency as to the availability of funds in terms of the amount and
time of receipt;

g} All Other Funds and Sources — verification of the amount and type of any other funds that will be
used for the project.

$2 368,350 TOTAL FUNDS AVAILABLE

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-39," IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE ™
APPLICATION FORM.
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IX. 1120.130 - Financial Viability

All the applicants and co-applicants shall be identified, specifying their roles in the project funding or
guaranteeing the funding (sole responsibility or shared) and percentage of participation in that funding.

Financial Vizbility Waiver

The applicant is not required to submit financial viability ratios if:

1. All of the projects capital expenditures are completely funded through internal sources

2. The applicant’s current debt financing or projected debt finrancing is insured or anticipated to he
insured by MBIA {Municipal Bond Insurance Association Inc.) or equivalent

3. The appficant provides a third party surety bond or performance bond letter of credit from an A

rated guarantor.

See Section 1120.130 Financial Waiver for information to be provided

APPEND DOGCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT-4Q, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST
PAGE OF THE APPLICATION FORM. o

The applicant or co-applicant that is responsible for funding or guaranteeing funding of the project shall provide
viability ratios for the latest three years for which audited financial statements are available and for the first full
fiscal year at target utilization, but no more than two years following project completion. When the applicant's
facility dees not have facility specific financial statements and the facifity is a member of a health care system that
has combined or consolidated financial statements, the system's viability ratios shall be provided. H the health care
system includes one or more hospitals, the system's viability ratios shall be evaluated for conformance with the
applicable hospital standards.

Provide Data for Pro;ects Classmed

T [N
ategory A or Category B {last three years) Category B
I L R m{\P_?gfeéted} -

Enter Historical andfor Projected

. ety
Years: 3\%« A

Current Ratio

Not Applicable - Applicant qualifies for the financial
viability waiver as all of the project's capital

expenditures are completely funded through internal
Projected Debt Service Coverage SOUrces

Net Margin Percentage

Percent Debt to Total Capitalization

Days Cash on Hand

Cushion Ratio

Provide the methodology and worksheets utilized in determining the ratios detailing the calculation
and applicable line item amounts from the financial statements. Complete a separate table for each
co-applicant and provide worksheets for each.

2. Vanance

Applicants not in compliance with any of the viability ratios shall document that another organization,
public or private, shall assume the legal responsibility to meet the debt obligations should the
applicant default.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 41, IN NUMERICAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE
APPLICATION FORM. i
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)

X. 1120.140 - Economic Feasibility

This section is applicable to all projects subject to Part 1120.

A. Reasonableness of Financing Arrangements

The applicant shall document the reasonableness of financing arrangements by submitting a
notarized statement signed by an authorized representative that attests to one of the following:

1) That the total estimated project ¢osts and related costs will be funded in total with cash
and equivalents, including investment securities, unrestricted funds, received pledge
receipts and funded depreciation; or

2) That the total estimated project costs and related costs will be funded in total or in part by
bomowing because:

A) A portion or all of the cash and equivalents must be retained in the balance sheet
asset accounts 1n order to maintain a current ratio of at least 2.0 times for
hospitals and 1 5 times for all other faciiities; or

B} Borrawing is less costly than the liquidation of existing investments, and the
existing investments being retained may be converted to cash or used to retire
debt within a 60-day penod.

B. Conditions of Debt Financing

This criterion is applicable only to projects that involve debt financing. The applicant shall
document that the conditions of debt financing are reasonable by submitting a notarized statement
signed by an authorized representative that attests to the following, as applicable:

1) That the selected form of debt financing for the project will be at the lowest net cost
available;
2) That the selected form of debt financing will not be at the lowest net cost available, but is

more advantageous due to such terms as prepayment privileges, no required mortgage,
access to additional indebtedness, tern (years), financing costs and other factors;

3) That the project involves {in total or in part) the leasing of equipment or facilities and that
the expenses incurred with leasing a facility or equipment are less costly than constructing
a new facility or purchasing new equipment.

C. Reasonableness of Project and Related Costs
Read the critenion and provide the following:

1. Identify each department or area impacted by the proposed project and provide a cost
and square footage allocation for new construction andfor modernization using the
following format {insert after this page).

COST AND GROSS SQUARE FEET BY DEPARTMENT OR SERVICE

A | s CJD E F G M

Department Totat
{list below) Cost/Square Foot Gross Sq. Ft. Gross 5q Ft. Const. $ Mod. $ Cost
New Mod. New Circ.* | Mod. Circ.* (AxC) (BxE) ({G+H)

Contingency

TOTALS

* Include the percentage {%) of space for circulation
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D. Projected Operating Costs

The applicant shall provide the projected direct annual operating ¢costs {in current dollars per equivalent
patient day or unit of service) for the first full fiscal year at target utilization but ne meore than two years
following project completion. Direct cost means the fully allocated costs of salaries, beneftts and supplies
for the service.

.. Total Effect of the Project on Capital Costs

The applicant shall provide the total projected annual capital costs (in current dollars per equivalent
patient day) for the first full fiscal year at target utilization but no more than two years following project
completion.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT 42, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDER AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THE -
APPLICATION FORM,

XL Safety Net Impact Statement

SAFETY NET IMPACT STATEMENT that describes all of the fellowing must be submitted for ALL SUBSTANTIVE AND
DISCONTINUATION PROJECTS:

1. The project's material impact, if any, on essential safety nel senvices in the community, to the extent that it is feasible for an
applicant to have such knowledge.

2. The project's impact on the ability of another provider or health care system to cross-subsidize safety net services, if reasonably
knewn to the applicant.

3. How the discontinuation of a facility or service mighl impact the remaining safely net providers in a given community, if
reasonably known by the applicant.

Safoty Net Impact Statements shall aiso include ail of the following:

1. For the 3 fiscal years prior to the application, a cerlification describing the amouni of charity care provided by the applicant. The
amount calculaled by hospital applicants shalt be in accordance with the reparting requirements far charity care reporting in the
linois Community Benefits Ad. Non-hospita! applicants shall report charity care, at cost, in accordance with an appropriate
methodelogy specified by the Board.

2. For the 3 fiscal years prior to the application, a certification of the amount of care provided 1o Medicaidpatients. Hospital and non-
hospital applicants shall provide Medicaid information in a manner consistent with the information reported each year to the Illinois
Department of Public Health regarding "Inpatients and Outpatients Served by Payor Scurce” and "Inpatient and Outpatient Net
Revenue by Payor Source" as required by the Board under Section 13 of this Act and published in the Annual Hospital Profile.

3. Any information the applicant believes is directly relevant to safety net services, including information regarding teaching,
research, and any other service.

A table in the following format must be provided as part of Attachment 43.

Safety Net Information per PA 96-0031
CHARITY CARE
Charity {(# of patlents} Year Year Year
Inpatient
Qutpatient
Total
Charity {cost In dollars)
Inpatient '
QOuipatient
Total
MEDICAID
Medicald (# of patients) Year Year Vear
Inpatient
Qutpatient
Total

Page §3
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Medicaid {revenue)

Inpatient

Qutpatient

Total

2 aw&%

R s

APPLICATION FORM.

. .y e ey

o A e

XIL Charity Care Information

Charity Care information MUST be furnished for ALL projects.

1. All applicants and co-applicants shall indicate the amount of charity care for the latest three audited fiscal years, the cost
of charity care and the ratio of that chanty care cost to net patient revenue.

2. If the applicant owns or operates one or more facilities, the reporting shall be for each individual facility located in lliinofs. If
charity care costs are reported on a consolidated basis, the applicant shall provide documentation as to the cost of charity
care; the ratio of that charity care to the net patient revenue for the cansclidated financial statement; the allocation of
charity care costs; and the ratic of chanty care cost to net patient revenue for the facility under review,

3. If the applicant is not an existing facility, it shall submit the facility's projected patient mix by payer source, anticipated
charity care expense and projected ratio of charity care to net patient revenue by the end of its second year of operation.

Charity care” means care provided by a health care facifity for which the provider does not expect to receive payment from
the patient or a third-party payer. (20 ILCS 3960/3) Charity Care must be provided at cost.

A table in the following format must be provided for all facilities as part of Attachment 44.

CHARITY CARE
Year Year Year

Met Patient Revenue

Amount of Charity Care (charges)
Cost of Charity Care

T = - -
R PR

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENTM, IN NUMERIC SEQUENTIAL ORDE;

THE LAST PAGE OF THE
§ APPLICATION FORM, ity ~ | 2 .

o »%
. rﬁ’&-‘g\k
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After paginating the entire, completed application, indicate in the chart below, the page numbers for the
attachments included as part of the project's application for permit.

INDEX OF ATTACHMENTS

ATTACHMENT

NO. PAGES
1 | Applicant’/Coapplicant Identification including Certificate of Good

Standing

2 | Site Ownership

3 | Persons with 5 percent or greater interest in the {icensee must be

identified with the % of ownership.

4 | Organizational Relationships {Organizational Chart) Certificate of

Good Standing Ete.

5 | Flood Plain Requirements

6 | Histeric Preservation Act Requirements

7

8

Project and Sources of Funds ltemization
Obligation Decument if required
9 | Cost Space Requirements
10 | Discontinuation
11 | Background of the Applicant
12 | Purpose of the Project
13 | Alternatives to the Project
14 | Size of the Project
15 | Project Service Utilization
16 | Unfinished or Shell Space
17 | Assurances for Unfinished/Shell Space
18 | Master Design Project
19 | Mergers, Consolidations and Acquisitions

Service Specific:

20 | Medical Surgical Pediatrics, Obstetrics, ICU

21 | Comprehensive Physical Rehabilitation

22 | Acute Mental lliness

23 | Neonatal Intensive Care

24 | Open Heart Surgery

25 | Cardiac Catheterization

26 | In-Center Hemodizlysis

27 | Non-Hospital Based Ambulatory Surgery

28 | General Long Term Care

29 | Specialized Long Term Care

30 | Selected Organ Transplantation

31 | Kidney Transplantation

32 | Subacute Care Hospital Model

33 | Post Surgical Recovery Care Center

34 | Children's Community-Based Health Care Center
35 | Community-Based Residential Rehabilitation Center
36 | Ltong Tern Acute Care Hospital

37 | Clinical Service Areas Cther than Categories of Service
38 | Freestanding Emergency Center Medical Services

Financial and Economic Feasibility:
39 | Availability of Funds

40 | Financial Waiver

41 | Financial Viability

42 | Ecenomic Feasibility

43 | Safety Net Impact Statement

44 | Charity Care Information
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TYPE OF OWNERSHIP — CERTIFICATE OF GOOD
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File Number 6788-501-5

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

I, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do
hereby certify that

U.S. RENAL CARE, INC,, INCORPORATED IN DELAWARE AND LICENSED TO
TRANSACT BUSINESS IN THIS STATE ON MAY 17, 2011, APPEARS TO HAVE COMPLIED
WITH ALL THE PROVISIONS OF THE BUSINESS CORPORATION ACT OF THIS STATE
RELATING TO THE PAYMENT OF FRANCHISE TAXES, AND AS OF THIS DATE, 1S A

FOREIGN CORPORATION IN GOOD STANDING AND AUTHORIZED TO TRANSACT
BUSINESS IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS.

In Testimony Whereof, 1 hercto set

my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 23TH

day of FEBRUARY A.D. 2012

A S I. ™ g 2 ;_:” :
Authentication #: 1205402196 M

Authenticate at. hitp:hwww.cyberdriveillinois,com

SECRETARY OF STATE
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File Number 0345096-1

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

1, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do
hereby certify that

USRC ALLIANCE, LLC, A DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY HAVING
OBTAINED ADMISSION TO TRANSACT BUSINESS IN ILLINOIS ON FEBRUARY 28, 2011,
APPEARS TO HAVE COMPLIED WITH ALL PROVISIONS OF THE LIMITED LIABILITY
COMPANY ACT OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE IS IN GOOD STANDING AS A

FOREIGN LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY ADMITTED TO TRANSACT BUSINESS IN THE
STATE OF ILLINOIS,

In Testimony Whereof, 1 hereto set

my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 23TH

dayof ~ FEBRUARY  AD. 2012

e ce Wt 7t

SECRETARY OF STATE

Authenticate al. http:fiwww.cyberdriveillinois.com
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File Number 0393055-6

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

I, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do
hereby certify that

USRC LEMONT, LLC, HAVING ORGANIZED IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS ON MAY 186,
2012, APPEARS TO HAVE COMPLIED WITH ALL PROVISIONS OF THE LIMITED
LIABILITY COMPANY ACT OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE IS IN GOOD

STANDING AS A DOMESTIC LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY IN THE STATE OF
ILLINOIS, ‘

In Testimony Whereof, I hereto set

my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 11TH

day of JUNE AD. 2012

Iz _.‘_ SN I,
Gg Ly L
Authentication #: 1216302068 Mw

Authenticate at: hitp-twww.cyberdrivelllinols.com

SECRETARY OF STATE

Attachment 1
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gO?tl ggah,&g Vallsy Road

u

TRANSWESTERN Cotas,Toas 52ss
Fax; 214-446-4571

Letter of Intent to Lease Space
May 18, 2012

Ms. Amy Levin

GK Development, Inc,
257 East Main Street
Suite 100

Barrington, 11, 60010

RE: REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL FOR PROPERTY LOCATED AT:
LEMONT PLAZA - 1096 STATE STREET, LEMONT, H. (“BUILDING™)
END CAP OF BUILDING ¥R - SUITE #TBD (THE “PREMISES”)

Dear Amy:

An Undisclosed Medical User (“Tenant”) has determined that the above referenced space meets its criteria for a possible
clinic location. This proposed location will serve as a dialysis ¢linic for the Lemont, IL area.

Pigase reply by providing the requested information in the right column. If you are in agreement with the terms, please
state“Agreed” {a the column to the right

PEMISES / 1LEASE Tenant will require approximately 6,500 | 6,500 sq. ft. . North side of Space R,
TERM: square feet. Please propost an address, | 1096 S, State Sirezt

dedicated suite number and rentgble square { Lemont, llinois

foctage.

Please propose a ten {10) year termn with the | t0 year term.
right to {emninate at any time after 60
months with 120-days written notice.

BUILIING: I. Please provide the street address of the | See above
Building.

2. Please indicate the total rentable square | 116,869 total rentable square feat
footage of the Building,

OWNERSHIP Please provide the full legal name, mailing | Lemont Plaza Partoers, LLC
address and social security nwmber/federal | ¢/o GK Development, Inc.
tax identification nerber of the legal owner | 257 E. Main Sueet

of the Building, If the owner is not en | Bamington, lilinois 60010
individual, please describe the fype of entity
(e.g. "an Ohio corporation...”).

Atlachment 2 29
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RENTAL RATE/
CONCESSIONS:

Please provide an aggressive, market
sensitive  rate  with  corresponding
concessions on a tew (10) year term. Please
indicate the structure of the rental rate (net,
gross or full service) and all costs andfor
services not included in the rent.

Base Minimum Rent
Years 1-3 § 17.00pst
Years 4-7 $18,50 psf
Years 8-10 $19,50 psf

Estimated NNN costs are $5.46 psf

** Tenant will pay full NNN charges
on 6,500 sq. ft. starting at Rent
Commencement,

** Base Rent abatment of § months
from rent commeccment,

LEASE
COMMENCEMENT:

1. Landlord must deliver the Premises in
warm  shell condition  per mutually
acceptable spees within thirty (30) days of
lease execution,

2. Rent will commence one hundred twenly
(120) days after igsuance of a Cenificate of
Need by the Hlinois State Depariment of
Health.

LL will deliver the Premises per
Tenants work letter within 90 days of
Tenant receiving CON.

Rent will commence one hundred
twenty days after LL delivery of space
or opening for husiness whichever
comes first.

Tennal will pay LL 35,000 per month
from lease signing while waiting for
the issuance of CON,

If Tenant does not receive CON, then
50% of the deposit will be reimbursed
to Tenant immediately,
If Tenant receives CON, all of the
deposit will be applied towards the
imtial rent increments.

RENEWAL OPTION:

Please propose lwo (2) consecutive, five (5)
year Jease renewal options a1 fixed rates.

Agreed.

Option 1-BMR

Year 1-3 $21.50 psf

Option 2-BMR

Year 1-3 $23.65 psf

Tenant will deliver a renewal notice Io
LL 180 dzys before the option period
begins.

The Performance Advantage in Real Estate

Attachment 2
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TENANT
IMPROYEMENT
ALLOWANCE (TENANT
PERFORMSY):

1. Landlord shall deliver the Premises in
warm shell condition per Tenant's specs
which have been listed in the section below.

2. Please provide a market sensitve Tenant
Improvement Allowance for a ten (10) year
term.

3. After delivery of the Premises, Tenant
shall complete all necessary tenant
improvements to the Premises pursuant to a
space plan and specifications to be prepared
by Tenant, approved by Landlord.

4, Tenant shall not be required to pay
Landlord any construction management or
supervisocy fee  for any  tenant
unprovements.

Landlord will provide a T1 allowance
not to exceed $35.00per SF.

Tenant shall provide final lien waivers
for all work prior o money being
released.

Guaranior will be US Renal Care, Ine.

RELQCATION

Landlord will agree not to relocate Tenant
with the property.

Agreed

The Performance Advantage in Real Estate
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TENANT SPECS:

Tenant will require certain specifications
listed below. If the specifications are not
part of the base building package, please
¢laborate on how the specifications can
be met.

1. 2" diameter iscoming water line brought
to the Premises that is dedicated,
independent, and scparately metered.

2. The presence of sewer service with no
less than 2 4" jine into the premises of
sufficeint invert depth that will allow Tenant
to install toilet fixtures at the farthest
distance from the sewer line,

3. 208V 3Phase power paoel with 600 amps
with panel inside the Premises,

4, (as line with separate meter running to
the Premises.

5. HYAC to be installed per Tenant's
engineered specifications,

&. Landlord will provide a smooth and clean
concrete floor.

7. Current asbestos survey,

8. Fully engineered as built drawings of the
Preruises.

9. The subject property shall not be located
within 2 100 year floed plain.

10, The property shall not be located within
150 feet of casernent boundaries or sethacks
of hazardous underground  localions
inciuding but not limited to liquid tutane or
propang, liquid petroleum or natural gas
fransmission lines, high pressure lines, and
net within 1he easement of high voltage
electrical hines,

11, Landlord grants Tepnant the right to
construct freight door and a freight drop off
areq.

Landlord will divide space and split
utilities per Tenant’s specs.

+.LL 1o provide

2. LL to orovide per Tenant's
réquirements.

3. LL 1w provide per Tenan’s
requirements.

4, LL is determining if gas can be
brought to premises

5. Bxisting — 2 12,5 ton umits in good
working condition.

6, Okay

7. Phase | environmental available,

8, Not available

9. Okay

10. Informed Tenant of jer fuel line
sasement.

11, Okay

The Performance Advantage in Real Estate

Attachment 2
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BASE YEAR /
OPERATING EXPENSES:

Please provide a break-down of costs for all
operating expenses for which Tenant will be
responsible.

2012 Estimated CAM =$1 82 psf
2012 Estimated RET = $3.64 psf

{itinies-separately metered to be paid
by Tenant.
Trash removal to be paid by Tenant.

SIGNAGE:

Please describe building standard signage
rights along with any opportunities for
Building signage and or monument signage.

Fagade signage to be approved by LL.
Specific requirements coniained in the
Lease,

PARKING:

Tenant will requite 5 marked reserved
handicapped spaces located at or neur the
entrance of the Premises, 10 marked
reserved vigiter spaces loacted near the
gntrance of the Premises, and 20 marked
spaces which will be located in the Building
parking area.

To be determined after the perking
area is reconfigured by Lacndiowd's
architect.

RIGHT OF FIRST
REFUSUAL:

1. Tenant shall have a Right ol First Refusal
on eny adjacent suite{s).

2. Tenant shall have 15 business days from
receipt of written notice from Landiord to
exercise its Right of First Refusal.

3. If Tenant exercises its Right of First
Refusal, Tenant shall lease the additional
space for a term that is coterrninons with its
Lease for the Premises and at the rental
rate(s) and other Lease terms in effect, with
a pro rated construction allowance.,

LL wall grant T the Right of First Offer
on any adjacent suite.

MISCELLANEOUS:

1. Tenant will require the right to allow a
tractor trasler (18 wheeler) o cleliver
suppligs in the delivery area located behiad
orin front of the Building,

2. If an awning doesn't currently exist,
Landiord will allow Tenant, at its own
expense Lo install an awning at the front of
the Premises tor a patient drop offf pick up
ares.

No overnight parking allowed.  For
delivery purposes only.

Per LL appraval.

The Performance Advantage in Real Estate

Attachment 2
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ASSIGNMENT OF
LEASE:

Landlord shall provide automatic consent to
an assignment if assignee has a net worth
greater than or equal (o assignor,

LL will not unreasonably withhold or
delay consent . The assignes must
have a net worth greater than or equal
to assignor AND have a similar
amount of debt.

If Assignee has equal or greater
creditworthingss, then LL will gram
autonKtic Consent, -

TERMINATION OPTION:

Tenant shall have the right to terminate the
Lease at any time after the fifth anniversary
of the rent commencement date by
providing written notice thereof at least 120
days prior to the date of termination.

Seventh anmiversary of the rent
caomimencenment.

HOLDOVER:

Tenant shall have the right 1o holdover for
three (3) months after lerm expiration at the
sarme rate as the last month of the lease
termn. After the third month, the holdover
rate shall increase 10 (25% of the rent for
the last month of the lease rerm.

Holdover rate shall incease by 150%
of the rent for the last imonth of the
leag termm,

HIPPA COMPLIANCE
PROVISION:

Landlord acknowledges that Tenamt is
subjcet to the provisions of the Health
Insurance  Porlabijity and  Accountabilify

Act of 19% and related regulations
(“HIPAA™), and that HIPAA requires
Tenant 10 ensure the safety  and

confidentiality of patient medical records,
Landlord further acknowledges that, in
crder for Tenant to comply with FHIPAA,
Tenant must restrict access (¢ the portions
of the Property where patient medical
records are kept or stored. Landlord hereby
agrees that, norwithstanding the rights
granted to Landlord, except when
accompanied by an authorized
representative of Tenant, nefther Landiord
nor its employees, agents, representatives or
contractors shall be permiited to enter those
areas of the Property designated by Tenant
as locations where patient medical records
are kept andfor stored or where such eatry is
prohibited by applicable state or federal
health care privacy laws.

Agreed

The Performance Advantage in Real Estate
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&8 TRANSWESTERN

BROKER / DISCLOSURE:

Both Landlord and Tesant recognize and
acknowledge that the Tenant is represented
by Howard Watkins with Transwestern as
procuring  Broker, in this transaction.
Landlord  agrees o pay a procuring
brokerage a commission of 4% per a
separate agreement,

Please provide a separale commission
agreement.

Nothing contained herein shall be binding on either party unless and unil actual lease documents ere fully executed and

exchanged by both parties.

PARTNERS, LLC

By:

Its:

USRC LEMONT, LLC

o

Servon V. £
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6/112

LEMONT PLAZA

Lemont, Hinois

AGREEMENT OF LEASE

LANDLORD

LEMONT PLAZA PARTNERS. LLC

TENANT
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LANDLORD:

LANDLORD'S ADDRESS
FOR NOTICES:

LANDLORIY’S ADDRESS
FOR RENT:

TENANT:

TENANT'S ADDRESS:

TENANT'S TRADE NAMI::

PREMISES:

USE:

DELIVERY DATE:

COMMENCEMENT DATE:

RENT COMMENCEMENT
DATE:

14539984y, £ 4241 5000055

LEASE
Reference Pages

Lemont Plaza
Lemont, Hlinots

L.ement Ilaza Partners, LLC
an Illinois limited Hability company

Lemont PMaza Partners, LLC
c/o GK Development, Inc.
257 [ast Main Strect

Suite 100

Barrington, I 60010

l.emont Plaza Partners, LILC
P. (3 Box 9
Barrington, 1L 60011-000%

,a corporation

Approximately  6.500 square feet (Sce Exhibit “B”
for “shaded” outline of Premises). a/k/a Space R (north side),
cammonly known as 1096 S. State Street, Lemont, L.

The Premises shall be used and occupied only for the
purpese of a medical clinic treating renal diseases and
providing dialysis services and for no other use or purpose
whatsoever.

The date the Premises arc delivered to Tenant, which will be
within 90 days of Tenant recciving a “Certificate of Need”
from the Nlinois State Department of Health. Between the
Effective Date, as hereafter defined. and the date of issuance
of the above Certificate of WNceed. Tenant shall pay to
Landiord $35,000.00/month, or fraction thereof. I Tenant
docs not reccive the Certificate of Need within one (1) year
aflter the Effective Date. and provides evidence it has used
best eflorts ta do so, or provides Landiord with evidence of
denial of the Cenificate of Need, Tenant may. within 15 days
thereafter. terminaie this lease, and one-halfl of the above
payments shall be refunded to Tenant and Landlord shall
retain the other halll If Tenant receives the Certificate of
Need. all of the above payments shall be applied to Annual
Fixed Rent.

The Delivery Daie.

The earlier of 120 days afler the Commencement Date or the
date Tenant opens for business in the Premises.

Attachment 2
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TERMINATION DATE: The last day of the 101k Lease Year.

LEASE TERM: 10 Lease Years, beginning on the Rent Commencement Date
and ending on the Termination Date (unless Ssooner
terminated pursuant to this Lease).

ANNUAL FIXED RENT: Lease Year 1...$110.500.00 per year (§17.00/s0)*
[ease Year 2....5110,500.00 per year ($17.00/sf)
Leasc Year 3....$110,500.00 per year ($17.00/sf)
Lease Year 4....$120,250.00 per year ($18.50/sf)
Lease Year 5...8120,250.00 per year ($18.50/sf)
Lease Year 6....3120.250.00 per year ($18.50/sf)
Lease Year 7....$120,250.00 per year ($18.50/sf)
Lease Year 8....$126,750.00 per year ($19.50/s0)
Lease Year 9...$126.750.00 per vear ($19.50/sf)
Lease Year 10..$126,750.00 per year ($19.50/sf)

MONTHLY INSTALLMENTS

OF FIXED} RENT: ) f.ease Year 1....$9,208.33 per month**
Lease Year 2....59,208.33 per month
Leasc Ycar 3....39.208.33 per month
Lease Year 4....310,020.83 per month
Lease Year 5....$10.020.83 per month
Lease Year 6....310,020.83 per month
Lease Year 7....$10,020.83 per month
Lease Year 8....810.562.50 per monih
Lease Year 9....$10,562.50 per month
Lease Ycar 10.$10.562.50 per month

PERCENTAGE RENT: N/A
GROSS SALES MINIMUM N/A
ANNUAL PROMOTIONAL

FUND COST: N/A
SECURITY DEPOSIT: $6.208.33

SIGN REMOVAL DEPOSIT
FOR REMOVAL OF SIGNS
PLACED ON FACADE OF THE  $500.00

BUILDING:

REAL ESTATE BROKER

DUE COMMISSION: Transwestcmn
RENEWAL OPTIONS: 2 option for 5 years cach

ANNUAL FIXED RENT:

(1st Option): Lease Year 11..5213.000.00 per vear ($21.50/sf)
Lease Year 12...8215.000.00 per year ($21.50/sf)
Leasc Year 13..8215,000.00 per vear {$21.50/s1)
Lease Year 14...3215.000.00 per year ($21.50/sf)
Lease Year 15..8215,000.00 per vear ($21.50/s0)

*Subject to 9 moenth abatement of Anpual Fixed Rent only beginning on the Rent
Commencement Date.

**Subject to & month abaterment of monthly installments of Fixed Rent only following the Rent
Commencement Date

14539984y, 1 £ 4241 3000055
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MONTHLY INSTALLMENTS
OF FIXED RENT:
{1st Option):

ANNUAL FIXED RENT:
(2nd Option):

MONTHLY INSTALLMENTS
OF FIXED RENT:
(2nd Option}:

RADIUS RESTRICTION:

GUARANTOR:

Leasc Year L)...
lLease Year 12
l.ease Year 13...
Lease Year 14,
lease Year 15...

Lease Year 16...
[.ease Year 17...
[.case Year 18...
$236.500.00 per year {$23.65/sf)
Lease Year 20...

lease Year 19..

Lease Year 16...
Lease Year 17...
lease Year 1R,
Leasc Year 19...
Lcase Year 20...

N/A

$17.916.67 per month
$17.916.67 per month
£17.916.67 per imonth
£17.916.67 per month
$17.916.67 per month

$236,500.00 per year ($23.65/sh
$236.500.00 per year ($23.65/s)
$236.500.00 per vear {$23.65/s1)

$236,500.00 per year ($23.65/s)

$19.708.33 per month
$£19.708.33 per month
$69.708.33 per month
$19,708.33 per month
$19,708.33 per month

U.8. Renal Care, Inc.

The terms and information sct forth on these Reference Pages is incorporaied and made a part of
the Lease between the parties indicated on Page | of the Lease. If there is a conflict between
this information and the remainder of the Lease, this inlormation shall control.
includes Exhibits “A™ through “G™, all of which are made a part of this Lease by this reference.
Unless otherwise provided. all capitalized terms contained in these Reference Pages shall have
the meaning ascribed 10 them in the remainder of the Lease,

14539984y, | { 42415000055
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THIS LEASE is made and enicred into on this day of . 2012
(the “Effective Date™), between Lemonl Plaza Partners, LLC. an 1llinois limited liability
company {“Landlord™), and . a corporation
(“Tenan{™). The attached Reference Pages are incorporated as part of this Lease. The lerms of
this Leasc shall be elfective as of the date written above.

For good and valuable consideration und the sum of $10.00. the adequacy and receipt of which
are hereby acknowledged, the parties agree:

PREMISES
SECTION |

{a) Landlord leases to Tenant and Tenanl rents from Landlerd the Premises shown on
Exhibit “B”. {All dimensions which may be shown on Exhibit “B™ are measured from center of
the wall 10 center of the wall for all party walls and from the outside face of all exterior walls and
storclronis.) The Premisces are located in the building (the “Building™) which is located in the
shopping center commonly known as l.emont Plaza, Lemont, [linois {the *Shopping Center™).

(b)  “Tenant’s Proportionate Share™ as used in this Lease shall mean a (raction, the numerator
of which is the gross leasable area of th¢ Prernises and the denominator of which is the
gross leasable arca of the Shopping Center from time to time, as either may be remeasured [rom
time to time by landlord 10 more accurately reflect the true gross leasable area. Notwithstanding
the foregoing, in connection with the calculation of Tenant’s Proportionate Share of Tax Cost.
Insurance Cost and Common Area Cost (as such terms are hereinafter defined in Scetion 6).
the denominator of such lraction shali be reduced by the gross leasable area of these portions of
the Shopping Cenier for which Landlord is not obligated te incur such Tax Cost, Insurance Cost
or Common Area Cost. The denominator in the above fraction shall increase or decrease with
the further increase or decrease in the size of the Shopping Center.  Gross leasable area of the
Shopping Center means all ground floor arca contained in the Shopping Cenler designated for
tenants’ or other occupants” exclusive occupancy.

{c) Landlord expressly rescrves {i) the use of the exterior rear and side walls and roof of the
Premiscs and the exclusive use of any space between the ceiling of the Premises and the Moor
above or the roof of the Building. (ii) the right 10 ins1all. maintain, use. repair, and replace the
pipes, ducts, conduits, and wires leading into or running through the Premises (in locations
which will not materially interfere with Tenant's use of the Premiscs). and (iii) the right in iis
sole and absolute discretion to expand, enlarge. delete, make alterations or additions to. and to
build additional stories on, the Shopping Center and to build other buildings or improvements on
the Common Areas {hereinafter defined in Section 7).

{d)  With respect to the adjacent space designaled as Space R {south side) on Exhibit “B™:

(i) Provided Fenant is not then in default under the 1erms. covenants and conditions
of the Lease, Tenant shall have the right of first offer. following the availability of
said space. to lease space “R™ (south side) as shown on Exhibit 3. which space is
approximaiely ten thousand nine hundred sixty three (10,963} square feet {such
space is relerred to ag the “Expansion Option Premises™ and the option is referred
10 as the “Expansion Option”). The Annval Rent for the Expansion Option
Premises shall be at the then rental rate for the Premises on a per square foot
hasis. Tenant shalt have a period of fifteen (15) days afler the date ol Landlord’s
nolice. in which to exercise Tenani’s nght 1o lease the Expansien Option Premises
pursuant to the tenns and conditions contained in the lease, [ailing which
Landlord may lease the Expansion Premises to any third party on whatever basis
Landlord desires. for at least ninety five percent (95%) of the annual rent offered
to Tenant, and Tenant shall have no further rights with respect to that Expansion
Option Premises. Without limiting the gencrality of the foregoing, if Landlord
leases the Expansion Option Space to a third party pursuant 1o the preceding
sentence and such Expansion Option Space is subscquently vacated apain during
the Term ol this Lease or any rencwal hereof, Tenant shall not have a new right of

1
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first offer o lease the Expansion Option Premises. If Tenant exercises the
expansion option hereunder, effective as of the date Landlord delivers the
Expansion Premises (the “Delivery Date™), the Expansion Premises shall
automatically be included within the Premises and subject 10 all the terms and
conditions of the Lease, except as set forth in Landlord’s notice. Tenant shall pay
Annual Rent for the Expansion Option Space as agreed to between Landierd and
Tenant.

(iiy  Should Tenant exercise its option 1o lease the Expansion Premiscs:
Tenant’s Proportionate Share shali be recalculaled, using the total square footage
of the Premises. as increased by the Expansion Option Premises. Tenant shall pay
Additional Rent on the Expansion Space in the same manner as Tenant pays
Additional Rent on the Premises.

{iii))  The Expansion Option Premises shall be feascd on an “as is™ basis and Landlerd
shall have no obligation to improve the Expansion Option Premises or grani
Tenant any improvemeat allowance thercon.

(iv)  If requested by Landlord, Tenant shall, prior to the beginning of the term for the
Expansion Option Premises, ¢xecute a written memorandurn confirming the
inclusion of the Expansion Option Premises and the Apnual Rent for the
Expansion Option Premises.

{v}  Should Tenant exercise its option to lease the Expansion Premises; the Expansion
Option Premiscs shall be coterminous with the term of the Premises. Tenant’s
exercise of its renewal option shall constitule a renewal of the Expansion Option
Premises as well.

TERM
SECTION 2

(a) The Lease Term and the Delivery Date are indicated on the Reference Pages.
Notwithstanding anvthing contained herein to the contrary, should Landlord be prevented from
delivering the Premises to Tenant due 10 the failure of Landlord 1o complete Landlord’s work
(hereinafter defined in Section 8) within the Premises, the Delivery Date shall be extended by
onc working day for each working day that delivery is se delayed. Tnno event shall Landlord be
liable or responsible to Tenant for any loss or damage suffered by Tenant resulting from a delay
in the Delivery Date.

(b)  Ifrcquested by Landlord, the partics shall enler inle a supplement to the Lease, prepared
by Landlord, stipulating the actual dates of the Delivery Date. Commencement Date and
Termination Date of the Term. The Form of l.ease Supplement is attached herete as
Exhibit “A”. Tenant's failure o exccute and deliver such supplement to Landlord within
ten (10} days of reccipt thereof” from Landlord shall constitule an acknowledgment by Tenant
that the Delivery Date, Commencement Date and Termination Date contained thergin are true
and correct without exception.

(c)  “Leasc Year™ means a period of twelve (12) consccutive calendar months: provided.
however, that the first Lease Year shall commence on the Delivery Date and expire twelve (12)
months afer the Rent Commencement Date. If the Commencement Date is not the first day of a
month, the Nrst Lease Year shall be extended to the last day of the twelfth (12th) full calendar
month following the Rent Commencement Date, and the first Lease Year shall include such
partial month.

(d) [Landlord grants Tenant the right and option to renew the Term for the option periods
indicated in the Rencwal Option Section of the Refercnce Pages (each a “Renewal Term™)
Tenant shall notify Landlord in writing of its ekection to rencw this Lease for cach Renewal Term
not less than six (6) months nor more than twelve (12) months prior 1o the expiration date of the
then existing Term. Tenant's failure 1o timely exercise any option hereunder shall cause the

2
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autornatic extinguishment thercof, time being of the essence. Each Renewal Term shall be upon
all of the terms, covenants, and conditions of this Lease except that the Annual Fixed Rent and
Percentage Rent payable during the Renewal Term shall be as set forth on the Reference Pages.
Notwithstanding the above, Tenant shall have no right to extend or renew this Lease if (i) it is in
default at the time of giving its notice of rencwal; (ii) Tenant is in default as of the first day of
the extended Term which was the subject of such molice; or (iii) Tenant is not occupying the
entire Premiscs.

FIXED RENT
SECTION 3

(a)  Tenant agrees, without notice or demand and without any deduction or setoff. to pay
Landlord, at Landlord’s Address shown on the Reference Pages, or at such other place that
Landlord may designate in writing, as a fixed minimum rent for the Premises per Lease Year,
the Annual Fixed Rent indicated on the Reference Pages for such Lease Year in fixed cqual
monthly instalimenis during each Lease Year equal to the Monthly Installments of Fixed Rent
indicated on the Reference Pages for such Lease Year. Lach Moenthly Installment of Fixed Rent
shall be payable in advance on the first day of cach month during the Term commencing with the
Commencement Date sct forth on the Reference Pages.  Tenant agrees 1o pay landlord,
if assgssed by the jurisdiction in which the Shopping Center is located, any sales or exgise tax
irmposed, assessed or levied in connection with Tenam’s payment of the Annual Fixed Rent.

(b}  Upon exccution of this Lease, Tenant shall deposit with Landlord the Security Deposit
indicated on the Reference Pages, which shall be held by Landlord during the Term pursuant to
the provisions of Section 39.

{c)  Tenant’s obligation to pay Additional Rent shall begin on the Rent Commencement Date
set forth on the Reference Pages. Rent (hereinafter defined in Section 6(e)} due for any period
which is less than a calendar month. whether at the beginning of the Term or after the
Termination Date. shatl be prorated on a daily basis and compuied on the basis of Tenant’s
monthly rental payments {utilizing a thirly (30) day month tor purposes of the computation).
Tenant shall pay to Landlord the rent for each such day (i) concurrently with the first monthly
installnent of any rent due, (ii) upon vacaling the Premiscs, or (iii) upon demand from Landlord,
as the case may be.

(d)  f Tenant cxercises its right 10 extend the Term for a Renewal Term, the Annual Fixed
Rent payable during the Renewal Term shall be equal 10 the amount indicated in the
Renewal Option Section of the Refercnee Pages for the Renewal Term in fixed equal monthly
installments equal 10 the Monthly Installment of Fixed Rent indicated in the Renewal Option
Section of the Reference Pages for the Renewal Term cach to be payable in advance on the
first day of each month during the Renewal Tenm.

{c) Tenant recognizes that fate payment of any remt or other sum due will result in
administrative expease to Landlord. the extent of which is extremely difftcult and economically
impractical io ascertain. Tenant thercfore agrees that if rent or any other sum is due and unpaid
in full ten (10) days after the amount is due, the amount shall be increased by an amount equat in
full to (ive percent (5%} of the unpaid amouat or. if less, the maximum amount allowed under
applicable Law (hereinafter defined in Section 9{d)). The increased amount shall be reassessed
and added 1o Tenant’s obligation for each successive monthly period until paid. The increased
amount shall be deemed to be liquidated damages for the additional expense incurred by
Landlord. The parties agree that the increased amount represents a fair and reasonable estimate
of the cost Landlord will incur by reasor of such latc payment. The provisions of this Section
shall not be in lieu of Landlord™s remedies pursuant to Section 20 of this Lease.

PERCENTAGE RENT
SECTION 4

INTENTIONALLY DELETED.
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ASSOCIATION
SECTION 5

It is understood and agreed that Landlord shall not be construed or held to be a pariner,
co-venturer or associate of Tenant in the conduct of Tenant’s business, nor shall Landlord be
liable for any debts incurred by Tenant in the conduct of Tenant's business. It is understood and
agreed that the relationship is and at all times shall remain that of Landlord and Tenant,

ADDITIONAL RENT
SECTION 6

(n) Tenant agrees to pay to Landlord. as additional rent (“Additional Rent™) for the Premises,
beginning on the Commencement Date and ending on the expiration of the Term, without
deduction or sctoft. the following amounts;

(i) Tenant’s Proportionate Share of the cost of operating and maintaining the
Common Arcas (the “Common Arca Cost”), including. without limitation,
the cost of the following: lighting, wilities, cleaning, snow and irash removal,
line painting. security (if provided), management fees, maintenance. materials,
labor costs, cquipment (including, without limitation, the cost of scrvice
agreements on equipment), loois, general repairs, emplovee benefits and payroli
taxes, accounting fees. legal fees, permits, license and inspection fees, sales, use
and service taxes. and the repair or replacement of paving, curbs, stations, first-aid
stations. comfort stations, stairways, truck ways, loading docks. package pick-up
stations, sidewalks, ramps, roofs, the parking lot. driveways, any garage,
landscaping. drainage facilities. and lighting facilities, including iraffic lights.
as may be necessary from time to time, and any other cost ol operation ol the
improvements on the Common Arcas. The Common Area Cost shall include the
testing of any sprinkler alarm system or other fire prevention or suppression
syslems required by any govermnmental entity or insurance company in conneclion
with the issuance of any permits or licenses or insurance policies. depreciation of
equipment acquired for use in maintenance of the Common Areas, but shall not
include the original cost of the equipment. Landlord has the right 10 inctude in
Common Area Cost, and to establish as a reserve, such amounts {and for such
periods of time) as Landlord deems reasonable for the maintenance, repair and
restoration of the roof and paving of the Shopping Center. The amount of such
reserve charged as & Common Area Cost for any Calendar Year shall not exceed
five percent (5%) of the total Common Area Cost for said vear. exclusive of Tax
Cost and Insurance Cost for the same period.

(ii)  Tenant’s Proportionate Share of any real cstate and ad valorem taxes and any
other assessments of any nature (1) which shall or may become 2 lien upon, or be
assessed. imposed. or levied by lawful taxing authorities against the land vpon
which the Shopping Center is located. the Building, and other improvements on or
for the benefit of the Shopping Center for the tax years (the years for which a lien
is imposcd) falling wholly or partially within the Term: (2) which arise in
connection with the use, occupancy. or possession of the Shopping Center or any
part of the Shopping Center or any land. the Building. casements or other
improvements on the Shopping Center including, but not Hmited to. thosc taxes
imposed. levied or assessed to increase 1ax increments to povernmental apencics
or for services such as, bul not limited to, fire protection, police protection. strect,
sidewalk and road maintenance, refuse removal, sewer, storm drain, grey or
recveled water facilities. or governmental services previously provided without
charge {or for a lesser charge) to property owners and occepants; (3) which are
allocable or measured by the area of the Premises or any remt payable hereunder
including, without limitation, any gross income tax or ¢xcise tax on the receipt of
such rent or upon the possession, leasing, operation, mairienance, repair or use or
occupancy by Tenanl or Landlord of the Premises: {4) which are atiributable to

4
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the transfer or transaction directly or indirectly represented by this Lease, by any
subleases or assignments hereunder or by other leases in the Shopping Center or
hy any document to which Tenant is a party creating or transferring {or reflecting
the creation or transfer) of any inierest or an estate in the Premises: (5) which are
in the form of any penaltics, fees or fines stemming from water usape which
become due and payable out of or for the Shopping Center, any part of the
Shopping Center, or any land, the Building, or other improvements on the
Shopping Center; or (6) which arc imposed. assessed. or levied in licu of,
in substitution for, or in addition to any or all of the foregoing (collectively,
the “Tax Cost™).  The Tax Cost shall include any fees, expenses or costs
(including attorney’s fees, expert fees and appraisal fees) incurred by Landlord in
protesting or contesting any assessments. levies or the tax rate, but shall not
include any charge (such as a water meter charge) which is measured by actual
user consumption. A real estate tax bill ar copy submitted by Landlord to Tenant
shall be conclusive evidence of the amount of any real estate taxes, assessments,
or installment. 1f Landlord is required under a mortgage to escrow taxcs,
Landlord may, but shall not be obligated 1o, vse the amount required to be
escrowed as a basis for its estimate of Tenant’s Proportionate Share. In addition,
Tenant shall pay all taxes levied against personal propery, fixtures and Tenant’s
improvements in the Premiscs. 1f taxes for which Tenant is liable are levied
against Landlord or Landlord’s property and if Landlord ¢lects 1o pay the same or
if the assessed value of Landlord’s property is increased by inclusion of any such
items and Landlord clects 1o pay the taxes based on such increase, Tenant shall
pay Landlord upon demand that part of the taxes for which Tenant is liable.

(iii)  Tenant’s Proportionate Share of all premiums for public liability, fire and
extended coverape or all risk, business income insurance, and rent loss, and any
other insurance policy which may be carried by Landiord insuring the Premiscs.
the Building, the Common Areas, the Shopping Center, or any improvements
{the *[nsurance Cost™).

{iv) A proportionate sharc of all utility services not measured by a separate meter for
the Premises and provided to Tenant and other tenants of 1the Shopping Center
(the *Utility Cos(™}. Tenant's share of the Utility Cost shall be determined on the
basis of the total square feel of floor area of the Premises as a percentage of the
total square feet of Moor area leased by all tenants provided such services.
Tenant shall pay its sharc of such cost within ten (10) days after demand.
Landlord shall not bill Tenant for such cost more often than monthly. 1f Landlord
determines that it is nol appropriate 1o base the utiity bills on Tenam's
Proportionate  Share due to ihe nature of Tenanl's business aclivitics,
Landtord may use its discretion in allocating such bills,

(b Tenant’s Proportionate Share of the Common Area Cost, Tax Cost, and Insurance Cosl
shall be estimated by Landlord prior to the first day of cach Calendar Year. Landlord shall notity
Tenant of the estimates which shall be paid by Tenant in advance, on the first day of each and
every calendar monih throughout the Calendar Year. At the end of the Calendar Year, when
Landlerd has calculated the exact amount of Tenant’s Proportionate Share of the costs, Landlord
shall notify  Tenant of the exact amount. Any deficiencics  in  the  paymenls
{inciuding administrative costs) made by Tenant shall be paid by Tenant to Landiord within
ten (10) days of demand therefor.  Any surplus paid by Tenant during the preceding Calendar
Year shall be applied against the next due monthiy instailments of the costs due from Tenant.
During any part of the Term less than a full Calendar Year. the costs shall be prorated on a daily
basis so that ‘T'enant shall only pay Tenant’s Proportionate Share of the costs atiributable to the
portion of the Calendar Year cecurring within the Term,

(c) The term “rent” shall include Annual Fixed Rent and Additional Rent.

{(dy  Any delay or failure of L.andlord in delivering any estimate or statement described in this
Section 6 or in computing or billing Tenant's Proportionate Share of the Foregoing costs shall not
constitute a waiver of Landlord’s right 10 require an increase in rent as provided herein or in any
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way impair the conlinuing obligations ol Tenant under this Section. Tenant shall be deemed to
have waived the right 10 dispute any maticr relating to the calculation of Common Area Cost,
Tax Cost, tnsurance Cost and Utility Cost and other rent if any claim or disputc is not asserted in
writing to Landlord within six (6) months of delivery to Tenant of (i) the billing statement setting
forth the exact amount of such costs incurred by Landlord for the period in question or (ii) the
claim for rent due. Tenant's obligations to pay rent as sct forth in this Lease shall survive the
cxpiration or earlier termination of this Lease.

(e}  Tenmant shall pay, when due and before any delinquency, all taxes and assessments
(1} levied against any personal property or trade fixtures of Tenant in or about the Premises;
(i1) based upon the gross or nct rent payable hercunder; und (iii) based upon this Lease or any
document to which Tenant is a party creating or transferring an interest in this Lease or an csiate
in all or any portion of the Premises. Tenant further agrees to pay Landlord, if assessed, by the
Jurisdiction in which the Shopping Center is located. any sales or excise tax imposed. assessed or
levied in connection with Tepant’s payment of rent hereunder.

COMMON AREAS
SECTION 7

(2}  Subjeet to the Rules and Repulations specifted in Section 11, Landlord’s rights under
Section l(c) and the other applicable provisions of this Lease. Landlord grants to Tenant and
Tenant's employees, agents. customers, and invitees the nonexclusive right, during the Term,
to use, subject to the rights of governmenial authorities, easements. public highways and other
restrictions of record, in common with others granted the use thereof, the Common Areas located
within or benefiting the Shopping Center. “Common Arcas” shall mean, as they may from time
to lime exist. those portions of the Shopping Center which are exclusive of gross Icasable arca
and other areas which are sel aside as the exclusive use areas of Landlord or its designees and
shall include, without limitation. the parking arcas. roadways, pedestrian sidewalks. roofs,
loading docks, delivery areas, landscaped arcas. and all other arcas or improvements which may
be provided by Landlord for the general use of tenants of the Building and the Shopping Center
and their agents, employees, and cusiomers whether within or without the Shopping Center.
Landlord shall be responsible for the operation, management, and maintenance of the
Common Arcas. The manner in which the Common Areas shall be maintained and expenditures
in connection therewith shall be al the sole discretion of Landlord. Landlord shall at all times
have the right to utilize the Common Areas for promotions, exhibils, camival type shows, rides,
outdoor shows, displays, automobile and other product shows. the leasing of kiosks and food
facilities, landscaping, decorative items, and any other use which, in Landlord’s sole judgment,
tends to attract customers to. or benefit the customers or tenants of the Shopping Center.
Landlord may temporarily close parts of the Common Areas for such periods of time as may be
necessary for (i) temporary use as a work area in connection with Lhe construction of buildings or
other improvements within the Shopping Center or contiguous property; (ii) repairs or alterations
in or to the Common Arcas or to any utility-type facilities; (iii} preventing the public from
obtaining prescriptive rights in or to the Common Areas; {iv) emcrgency or added safety reasons;
or {v} doing and performing such other acts as in the use of good business judgment Landlord
shall determine to be appropriale for the Shopping Cenier; provided. however, that Landlord
shall use reasonable effonts not to unduly interfere with or disrupt Tenant's business.

{b) Tenant agrees to keep the Common Arcas free and clear of any obstructions created or
permitted by Tenant or resulting from Tenant’s operation and to use the Commeon Arcas only for
normal activities:  parking, ingress and egress by Temant and its employees. agents,
representatives. licensees and invilees to and from the Premises and Shopping Center.

If, in the opinion of Landlord. unauthorized persons arc using the Common Arcas by rcason of

the presence of Tenant in the 'remises. Tenant. upon demand of Landbord. shall correet such
situation by appropriatc action and proceedings against all such unauthorized persons,
Nothing herein shall aflect the rights of Landlord at any time to remove any such unauthorized
persons from said areas or to prevent the use of said arcas by such unauthorized persons.
Landlord shall have and reserves the right at any time to redesignate, modify, expand. reduce and
change the Common Areas and {o use and permit such uses thereof as do not materialty and
adversely affect Tcnant™s use of the Premises.
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(c)  Landlord shall be the sole determinant of the type and amount of security services to be
provided 1o the Shopping Center, if any. In all events, L.andlord shall not be liable 1o Tenant, and
Tenant hereby waives any claim against Landlord, for (I} any unauthorized or criminal entry of
third parties into the Premises or the Shopping Center, (i) any damage 10 persons or property, or
(iif) any loss of property in and about the Premises or the Shopping Center, by and [rom any
unauthorized or criminal acts of third parties, regardless of any action, inaction, failure,
breakdown, mallunction or insufTiciency of the security services provided by Landlord.

(d)  If Landlord shall acquire or obtain the vuse of additional land not presently part of the
Common Areas, and shall clect 1o make the same available for parking and other purposes for
which the Common Areas are utilized, then all of the costs and expenses referred to in Section 6
which are incurred in connection with the additional land shall be included in Common Area
Cosl,

CONSTRUCTION OF PREMISES
SECTION 8

(a) Prior to the Delivery Date. Landlord shall complete the improvements to the Premiscs
described in Exhibit “C”. Tenant approves Exhibit “C” and all of the improvements, plans and
specifications described in Exhibit “C™. 1t is undersiood and agreed by Tenant that changes in
the improvernems, plans and specifications which de not materially interfere with Tenant’s use
of the Premises shall not affect, invalidate, or change this Lease or any of its terms and
provisions.

(b)  Landlord’s work in accordance with Exhibit “C" shall be deemed approved by Tenant in
all respects on the Delivery Date. unless prior to the Delivery Date Landlord receives written
notice from Tenant of a defect in the work. Any disagreement arising between Landlord and
Tenant about the work to be performed by Landiord shall be resolved by the decisions of
Landlord’s architect. Tenant releases Landlord and Landlord’s contractor and architect from any
claim for damages against Landlord or Landlord’s contractor or architect for any delay in the
date on which Landlord’s work is completed.

(¢)  Tenant shall complete the improvements 1o the Premises described in Exhibit “T¥F".
Tenant’s work shall be performed in accordance with the provisions of Section 12(a)(i); and
provided further than any change in the improvements, plans and specifications described in
Exhibit “D" shall be approved by Landlord in writing in accordance with the provisions of
Section 12(a)}(ii).  Temant shall, prior o construction (or any allerations, changes or
improvements pursuant to Section 12 hereaf), provide the additional insurance required under
Article 15 in such case, and alse all such assurances to Landlord including, but not limited to,
waivers of lien, surety company performance bonds and personal puaranties of individuals of
substance as Landlord shall require to assure payment of the costs, thercof and 1o protect
L.andlord and the Shopping Center and appurtenant land against any loss from any mechanic’s,
materinlmen’s or other liens. Upon completion of the improvements, Tenant shall submit to
Landlord the contractor’s original affidavit, the subcontractor’s original affidavits and original
notarized final waivers of licn, as well as such licn waivers as Landiord may require from all
contraclors. subconiractors, laborers, materialmen. and saterial suppliers. The documents must
be in form and detaii satisfactory 1o Landlord.

USE AND OPERATION
SECTION 9

(a) The Premises shall be occupied and used exclusively for the purposes described on the
Reference Pages and for no other usc or purpose whatsoever. Nothing contained in this Lease
shall be decmed to give Tenam an express or implied exclusive use in the Shopping Center,
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Lease, Tenant shall open for business
in the Premises on or before the Commencement Date  sct forth on the Reference Pages,
shall eperate one hundred percent {100%) of the Premises during the Term. Tenant shall conduoct
its business in the Premises on all business days during the hours which rom time (o time may
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be reasonably determined by Landlord, but in no event less than eight (8) hours in a business
day, six (6) days a week and sixty (60) hours a weck. Tenant may close the Premises during
reasenable periods for repairing. cleaning or decorating the Premises. with the prior written
consent of Landlord. Tenant shall pay Landlord as liquidated damages, in addition 10 and not in
lieu of Landlord’s other remedies, two hundred percent (200%}) of the daily Fixed Remt for cach
day, or fraction thereof, that Tenant fails to keep open and operate in the Premises as required
under this Lease.

(b) Tenant agrees to conduct its business in the Premises under Tenant’s Trade Name
indicated on (e Reference Pages.

(c) Tenant agrees to conduct its labor relations and its relations with its employees, agents
and contractors in such manner s to avoid all strikes, picketing and boycotts, of, on. or about the
Premises and the Shopping Center. Tenant funher agrees that if. during the period of initiat
construction of the Premises, any of its employees, agents or contractors strike, or if picket lines
or boycolls or other visible activities objectionable to Landlord are established or conducted or
carricd out against Tenant or its employees, agents or coniractors, or any of them. on or about the
Premises or the Shopping Center, Landlord shall have the right to require Tenant and, when so
required. Tenam shall immediately close the Premises to the public and remove all employees
therclrom until the dispule giving rise to such strike, picket line, boycoll, or objectionable
activity has been settled to Landlord’s satisfaction.

(d)  Tenant shali use and occupy the Premises in accordance with all applicable federal. state
and local laws, statutes. orders, ordinances, codes, rules and regulations (“Law™ or “Laws™)
and shall keep the Premises in a clean, careful, safe, and proper manner. Tenant shall not vse,
or allow the Premises to be used, for any purpose other than as specified in this Lease and shall
noi use or permit the Premises 1o be used for any unlawful. disreputable. or immoral purpese or
in any way that will injure the reputation of the Shopping Center. Tenant shall not permit any
activities in the Premiscs which may create or cause noise fevels which are audible outside the
Premises and disturbing to neighboring residences, other tenants or their cusiomers or
employees. Tenant shall not permit the Premises 1o be occupied in whole or in part by any other
person or entity. T'enant shall not cause or permit the nse or occupancy of the Premises to be or
remain & nuisance or disturbance, as determined by Landlord in its sole discretion, to
neighboring residences, other tenants, occupants, or users of the Shopping Center. Tenant agrees
1o comply with the regulations, rcquirements and recommendations of any insurance
underwriter, inspection bureav or similar agency. pertaining to the portion of the Premises
installed by Tenant. Tenant shall permit Landlord to comply with the regulations, requirements
and recommendations pertaining to the portion of the Premises installed by landlord.
Tenant shall give Landlord, upen Landlord’s request, any information within its knowledge or
possession regarding the environmental condition of the Premises for Landlord te determine if
l.andlord must comply with any Laws perfaining to the environmental condition of the Premises
or the Shopping Center, and for Landlord to accurately complete any form or otherwise provide
any information required under any such Laws. Tenamt shall, upon written notice from
Landiord. discontinue any usc or operation of the Premises which is declared by any
povernmental authority to be a violation of Law. Nong of the agreements of Tenant contained in
this subsection (d) or clsewhere in this Lease shall excuse ‘Femant from the performance of its
obligations under Subsection (g) immediately below. Landlord acknowledges that Tenant is
subject to the provisions of the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and
related regulations ("HIPAA™). and that 11IPAA requires Tenant to ensure the safety and
confidentiality of patient medical records. Landlord further acknowledges that, in order for
Tenant to comply with HIPAA. Tenant must restrict access to the portions of the Property where
patiem medical records are kept or stored, Landlord hereby agrees that, notwithstanding the
rights pranted to Landlord, except when accompanied by an authorized representative of Tenant.
neither Landlord nor its employees, agents, representatives or contractors shall be permitted (o
enter those areas af the Property designated by Tenant as locations where patient medical records
are kept and/or stered or where such entry is prohibited by applicable state or federal health care
privacy laws.

{¢)  Tenant shall not at any time use or occupy the Premises in violation of the certificates of
occupancy issued for the Shopping Center or the Premises. and in the cvent that any departiment
8
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af the state in which the Shopping Center is located or the city, town, vittage or county in which
the Shopping Center is located shall at any time contend or declare that the Premises are used or
occupied in violation of such certificate or certificates of occupancy, Tenant shall, upon five {5)
days notice from Landlord or any such governmental agency, immediately discontinue such use
of the Premises (and otherwisc remedy such violation). The failure by Tenant to discontinue
such use shall be considered a defaull under this Lease and Landlord shall have the right to
exercise any and all rights and remedies provided hercin or by Law, The statement in this Lease
of the nature of the business 1o be conducted by Tenant in the Premises shall not be deemed or
construed 1o constitete a representation or guaranty by Landlerd that such business will continue
to be lawful or permissible under any certificate of occupancy issved for the Shapping Center or
the Premises, or otherwise permitied by Law.

$); Tenant shall not use any Shopping Center system in excess of its capacity or in any other
manner which may damage such sysicm or the Shopping Center, Machinery and mechanical
equipment shall be placed and maintained by Tenant, at Tenant’s expense, in locations and in
settings sufficient in Landlord’s reasonable judgment 1o absorb and prevent vibration, noise and
annoyance.

(g) As used herein. the term “Hazardous Materiai” means any hazardous or toxic substance,
material or waste which is or becomes regulated by any local governmental authority. the state in
which the Shopping Center is locaied or the United States Government, including, without
limitation, any matcrial or substance which is (i) defined or listed as a “harardous waste™.
“extremely harzardous waste™, “restricied hazardous waste”, “hazardous substance™ or
“hazardous malerial™ under any applicable Law, (ii} petroleum. or (iii) asbestos.

(i) Tenant hereby aprees that all operations or aclivitics upon, or any use or
occupancy of the Premises, or any portion thereof, by Tenant, its assignees,
subtenants. and their respective agents. servants, emplovees, representatives and
contractors (collectively, “Tenant Affiliates™), throughoul the term of this Lease,
shall be tn all respects in compliance with alt Laws then governing or in any way
relaling to the generation, handling. manufacturing, treatment, storage, use,
transportation, release, spillage, leakage, dumping, discharge or disposat of any
Hazardous Material.

(ii)  Tenant agrees to indemnify. defend and hold Landlord and Landlord Affiliates
(hereinafler defined in Section 14) harmless from any and all claims, actions,
administrative proceedings  (including informal proceedings), judgments.
damages, punitive damages. penalties, fings, costs, liabilities, interest or losses,
including reasonable attorneys’ fees and expenses. consultant fees, and expert
fees, together with all other costs and expenses of any kind or nature that arise
during or after the Term of this Lease, directly or indirectly, from or in conneetion
with the presence. suspected presence, release or swspected release of any
Hazardous Material in or into the air, soil, surface waler or groundwater at, on,
about, under or within the Premiscs or the Shopping Cenler, or any portion of
cither thereof by Tenant or Tenant Affiliates. or from or in connection with the
failure of Tenant or Tenant Affiliates to comply with any laws or other
requirements regarding protection of the environment, public health, or safely.

{(iii)  In the event any investigation or monitoring of site conditions or any clean-up,
containment. festoration, removai or other remedial work (collectively.
the “Remedial Work™) is required under any applicable Law, by any judicial
order, or by any povernmental ¢ntity as the result of operations or activities upon,
or any use or occupancy of any portion of the Premises by Tenant or Tenant
Affiliates, then, a1 Landlord’s option, either Tenant shall perform or cause to be
performed the Remedial Work in compliance with such Law or Landlord may
cause the Remedial Werk to be performed and Tenant shall reimburse Landlord
within ten (10) days of demand therefor.  All Remedial Work performed by
Tenant shall be performed by one or more contractors, sclected by Tenant and
approved in advance in writing by Landlord. and under the supervision of a
constlting engincer selected by Tenant and approved in advance in writing by

9
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Landlord. All costs and expenses of such Remedial Work shall be paid by
Tenant, including, without lmitation, the charges of such contractor(s),
the consulting engineer. and Landlord’s reasonable attorneys™ fees and cosis
incurred in connection with menitoring or review ol such Remedial Work.
Nothing in this Subsection (g) (iii) shali affect any of Landlord’s rights
(ur Tenant’s obligations) pursuant 1o Subsection (g) (if) above or eisewhere in the
Lease.

(h)  Each of the covenants and agreements of Tenant set forth in this Section 9 shal! survive
the expiration or carlier lermination of this Lease.

UTILITIES
SECTION 10

(ay (i) Tenant shall duly and promptly pay to the supplier of any utilities, all bitls for
utilities consumed in the Premises measured by a separatc meter for the Premises.

(iiy  1f Tenant shall vse any utility service for any purpose in the Premises which is or
can be measured by a separate meter for the Premises and Landlord shalt elect to
supply that service, Tenant shall accept and use the same and pay Landlord at the
applicable rates filed by Landlord with the proper regulating authorities and in
cffect from time to time. Tenant shall not pay Landlord more for service than
would be chargeable to Tenant by the utility company providing the scrvice.
Payment for walcr, gas (if any), scwer, and electricity service used by “Tenant,
if furnished by Landlord, shali be made monthly as Additional Reml within
ten (10) days of the presentation by Landlord to Tenant ot a bill.

(iii)  Notwithstanding anything lo the contrary provided in this Section 10 or in
Subsection 6{a) (iv), Tenani acknowledges that waler service 1o the
Shopping Center shall be measured by a master meler and that Tenant’s charges
for service shall be allocated by Landlord, at Landlord’s option, either {1} on the
basis of the total square feet of Noor area at 1he Premises as a percentage of the
total square feet of floor area leased by all tenants in the Shopping Center
provided water service: or (ii) based upon readings taken from a water sub-meter
for the Premises, if Landlord elects 1o install a sub-meter.  All charges shall be
paid monthly to Landlord as Additional Rent within ten (10) days of the
presentation by Landlord to Tenant of a bill.

3] I Landlord supplies sanitary sewer facilities to the Premises, Tenant shall pay as
Additional Rent Tenant's Proportionate Share of the cost of operating and maintaining the
facilities, including, without limitation, the rental cost and/or amortization of the Tacilities.

(c) Landlorel shall have the right to c¢ut 0T and discontinue, without notice to Tenant. any
utitity or other service whenever and during any period for which bills for the same, rent. or
other obligations arc not promplly paid or performed by Tenant.

(d}  The obligations of Tenani to pay lor utility service shall begin on the carlier of the date
that Landlord delivers possession of the Premises to Tenant for performance of Tenant's work or
the Delivery Date. Landlord shall not be liable in damages or otherwise should the furnishing of
services 1o the Premises be interrupted by fire, accident, riot, strike. act of God, the making of
necessary repairs or improvements, or other causes bevond the cenirol of Landlord.

(c) Landlord shall not be liable for, and Tenani shall not be entitled to any dammages.
abatement or reduction in rent by reason of, an imcrruption in the supply of utilities.
Tenant agrees that it shall not install any equipment which exceeds or overloads the capacity of
the utility facilities serving the Premises, and that if equipment inslalled by Tenant requires
additional utility facilities, instaliation of the same shall be ai Tenant’s expense, but only after
Landlerd’s written approval of same. Landlord shall be entitled to cooperate with the energy and
water conscrvation efforts of governmenial agencies or viility suppliers. No failure. stoppage or
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interruption of any utility or service shall be construed as a eviction of Tenant nor shall it relieve
Tenant from any obligation 10 perform any covenant or agreement under this Eease.
No representation is made by Landlord with respeet o the adequacy or fitngss of the
Shopping Center’s ventilating, air conditioning or other systems o maintain temperatures as may
be required for the operation of any compuler, film processing or other special trade fixiures or
equipment of Tenant. Landlord reserves the right from time 1o time to make reasonable and
nondiscriminatery madifications to the utility standards including. without limitation, those
described on Exhibit “C™.

RULES AND REGULATIONS
SECTION 11

Tenant agrees that Landlord has the right. at any time and from time to time, to imposc
reasonable rules and regulations of gencral application governing the conduct of occupants of the
Shopping Center and their use of the Common Areas. Tenant agrees to comply with the rules
and regulations imposed by Landlord, including. without limitation, those rules and regulations
in Exhibit “E™.

CHANGE OF IMPROYEMENTS BY TENANT
SECTION (2

(a) (i) Upon the prior written approval of Landlord, Tenant shali have the right during
the Term 10 make interior alterations, changes and improvements in the Premises
(except structural or mechanical alterations. changes and improvements) that are
necessary for the conduct of Tenant's business and for full beneficial use of the
Premises, provided Tenant shall: (aa) pay all costs and expenses; (bh) make the
alterations, changes and improvements in a good and workmanlike manner, with
new matcriats of first-class quality, and in accordance with applicable Laws; and
{cc) provide Landlord reasonable assurances, prior 1o beginning the alterations,
changes and improvements, that payment for the same shall be made by Tenani.
Tenant shall not make any struciural or mcchanical allcrations, changes or
improvements to the Premises.

(iiy  Tenam shall submit to Landlord detailed plans and specifications describing the
design, materials, style. and appearance of alterations, changes and improvements,
Within fificen (15) days after receipt of the plans and specifications,
lLandlord shal! notify Tenant of Landlord’s objections. Tenant shall cure the
cause for the abjection within fiftecn (15) days after receipt of notice and shall
resubmit the plans and specifications for Landlord’s review and approval.
Prior to construction, Tenant shall provide such financial assurances as Landlord
shall require to assure payment of the costs and to protect Landlord against loss
from any mechanic’s, materialmen’s, or other liens. Tenant shall not be permitted
to enter upon the roofl of the Building without the prior consent of Landlord.

(b  Lxcepl as otherwise provided in Section 26, all signs, equiptnent, furnishings. and trade
fixtures instalied and paid for by Tenant. which are within but not permanently attached to the
Premises. shail remain the property of Tenant and shall be removed by Tenant, provided thal
Tenant shall. at Tenant's sole cxpense. repair any damage caused by their removal. The removal
shall be performed prior to the carlier of the end of the Term or the date Tenant is required to
vacate the Premiscs.

REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE

(a) Landlord shall maintain the foundation and the exterior structural walls of the Premiscs in
good repair.  Tenant shall reimburse Landlord for the cost of repair pursuant to Section 6{a){i)
or if occastoned by the act or negligence of Tenant. ils agents. emplovees. invitees or licensees.
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Landlord shall not be required to make any other improvements or repairs of any kind vpon the
Premises and appurlenances 1o the Premiscs, except as otherwise provided in this lease.
If the Premises should become in need of repairs required 1o be made by Landlord. Tenant shall
give immediate written notice to Landlord, and Landlord shall not be responsible in any way for
the failure to make repairs until a rcasonable time shall have elapsed afier the giving of the
written notice. Landlord’s sole liability shall be limited to the cost of the repair. Landlord shall
not be liable to Tenant for any interruption of Tenant’s business or inconvenience causcd to
Tenant or Tenant’s assigns. sublessces. customers. invitees, emplovees, licensees or
concessionaires in the Premises because of Landlord’s performance of repair, maintenance or
replacement in the Premises, any other work in the Premises or in the Shopping Center purseant
to Landlord’s rights or obligations under this Lease, so long as the work is being conducied by
Landlord in accordance with the terms of the Lease and without gross negligence or willful
misconduct. Unless othenwvise provided. there shall be no abalcment of rent and no liability of
Landlord because of injury to or interference with Tenant's business arising from the making of
repairs. alterations or improvements in or to any portion of the Shopping Center or the Premises
or in or to fixtures, appurtenances and equipment in the Premises.

{b) At the sole cost and expense of Tenant and throughout the Term, Tenant shall keep and
maintain the Premises in good order, condition and repair. in a clean. sanitary and safe condition
in accordance with the Laws of the siate in which the Premisces are localed, and in accordance
with all directions, rules, and regulations of the health officer, fire marshall, building inspector or
any other proper officer of the governmental agencies having jurisdiction over the Premiscs and
all other applicable Laws.  Withowl limiting the above, Tenamt shall be responsible for
maintenance, repair, and. with Landlord’s consent. replacement as needed of all electrical,
plumbing, heating, ventilating, afr conditioning, and utility systems located on the Premises,
all plate glass and windows, window fittings and sashes, interior and exterior doors, all fixtures
within the Premises. all interior wails, floors #nd ceilings, water heaters. lermite and pest
extermination and all of Tenant's improvements and trade fixtures. Tenant shall kecp and
maintain the Premises in accordance wilh the requirements of Law concerning the manner., usage
and condition of the Premiscs and appurtenances to the Premises, as the same shall be in effect
from time to time. Tenant shall permit no waste, damage. or injury to the Premises.
If at any time and from time to time during the Term, and any renewal, Tenant shall fail to make
any maintenance, repairs or replacemnents in and te the Premises required in this Lease. Landlord
shall have the right, but not the obligation, 10 enter the Premises and (o make the same lor and on
behalf of Tenant, and all sums expended by Landlord shall be deemed to be Additional Rent
payable to Landlord upon demand. Tenant shall keep in foree throughout the Term maintenance
contracts for the heating, ventilating and air conditioning sysiems rcasonably satisfactory to
Landlord.

WAIVER OF LIABILITY BY TENANT
SECTION 14

Landlord and Landlord’s agenis and employees shall not be liable for. and Tenant
unconditionally and abselutely waives any and all causes of action, rights, and c¢laims agninst
Landlord, its partners and their officers, directors, shareholders. agents and employees
{collectively, “Landlord Affiliates™) arising from any damage or injury 10 person or property,
regardless of cause. sustained by Tenant or any person claiming through or under Tenant,
resulting from any accident or occurrence in or upon the Premiscs or any other part of the
Buitding or the Shopping Center, unless the same shall be due to the pross nepligence of
Landlord or Landlord’s agents and employees.  This provision shall survive the termination or
expiration of this Lease.

INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE

SECTION 15

{a) Excluding gross negligence or willful misconduct on the part of the indcmnitee,
Tenant shall and will indemnify. defend and save hanmless Landlord and Landlord Affiliates
from and against any and all lizbility. claims, demands, expenscs, fees, fines, penalties, suits,
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proceedings. actions and, causes of action of any and every kind and nature arising or growing
out of or in any way connecied with Tenant’s usc, occupancy, management or contro! of the
Premises and Tenant's operations or activities in the Shopping Center whether or not occurring
or resulting in damage or injury within the Premises or the Shopping Center including,
without limitation, the Commen Areas. This obligation 1o indemnify shall include reasonable
legal and investigation costs and all other reasonable costs. expense and liabilities from the first
notice that any claim or demand is o be made or may be made. Tenant acknowledgpes that the
forcgoing provisions shall apply and become effective from and after the date Tenant or its
agents enter the Premises. Tenant’s obligation 1o observe and perform any of the provisions of
this Section 15 shall survive the expiration of the Term or the earlier 1crmination of this Lease,

{b)  Tepant agrees 10 carry during the entire Term, commencing as of the Delivery Date,
Worker's Compensation Insurance, Employer’s Liability Insurance, Commercial Gencral
Liability Insurance on the Premiscs, and, if Tenant vses vehicles, owned and non-owned. in any
way to carry out business on or about the Shopping Center. Tenant shall maintain Motor Vehicle
Liability Insurance. Tenant shall carry Employer’s Liability Insurance which shall be for limits
of not less than $500,000 for Bodily Injury per each accident and cach disease, per emplovee,
and a total combined limit for Bodity Injury In amounis not less than £500,000 per accident and
$500.000 per discase. The Commercial General Liability Insurance shalt be for limits of not less
than $2,000,000 Combined Single Limit for Personal Injury including Bodily Injury and Death
or Property Damage Liability and containing a Centracinal Liability endorsement. Tenant agrees
10 name Landlord, other Landlord AfTiiates and, if Landlord requests. Landlord's morigagee as
additional insured(s) on Tenant’s Commercial General Liability Insurance. The insurance policy
shall be on Service Office, Inc. (ISO) form CG 0001 0196 or an equivalent occurrence basis
commercial general liability insurance policy form that is reasonably satisfactory 1o Landlord.
The Moior Vehicle Liability [nsurance shall be for limits of not less than $1.000,000 combined
single limit for Bodily Injury and Properly Damage. In the cvent Tenant sells and/or serves
beer, wine or alcoholic beverages from the Premises, then Tenant shall maintain, at iis sole cost
and expense, customary dram-shop insurance (liquor liability insurance) in an amount reasonably
determined by Landlord. All insurance of whatever type shall be with companies having an
A.M. Best’s Key Rating Guide rating of A-VII or better for the year of the Commencement Date
or such other comparable publication if Best's is no longer published. Tn addition, the insurance
carrier shall be licensed to do busincss in the statc where the Shopping Center is Jocated.
All policies shall contain a provision that Landlord and Tenant will be given a minimum of
thirty (30) days written notice by regisicred mail by the insurance company prior 1o cancellation,
terminalion or change in insurance. Tenant also agrees 1o carry “All Risk™ [nsurance
(as understood in the insurance industry) including sprinkler leakage coverage for the full
replacement value covering all Tenant's goods and merchandise, trade fixtures, furniture, signs,
decorations, furnishings, wall covering, floor covering, draperies, equipment, and all other items
and personal property of Tenanl located on or within the Premises. Replacement value is
understood to mean the cost to replace without deduction for depreciation. A deductible of not
more than $1.000 will be permitted for “All Risk™ I[nsurance. Whenever, in landlord’s
reasonable judgment, good business practice or change in conditions indicate a nced for
additional or different types of insurance, Tenant shall upon request obtain the insurance at s
own expense. Tenant shall provide Landlord with copics of the insurance policies or certificates
evidencing that the insurance is in full force and effect and indicating the terms of the insurance.
Tenant further aprees lo obtain certificates of insurance evidencing Commercial General
Liability Insurance, including Completed Operations. Motor Vehicle Liability Insurance and
Workers' Compensation Insurance and Employer's Liability Insurance from any contractor or
subcontractor engaged for repairs or maintenance during the Term. Such [nsurance must be for
the minimum limits stated in the Exhibit emtitled Quiline of Tenant’s Work which is attached
hereto and expressly made a part of this Lease. Tenant shall be responsible for the maintenance

of the plate glass in or on the Premises and shait carry at its expense during the Term hereof

Platec Glass Insurance with a deductible of not more than $230. In no cvent shall Tenant be
permitied o self insure any of its ohtigations under this Section 15.

{c) Tenant shall not carry any stock of poods or do anything in or about the Premises which
shall in any way increase the insurance rates on the Premises. the Building or the Shopping
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Center.  Any increase shall be paid by Tenant to Landlord within ten (10) days after writien
demand.

(d}  Tenant shall carry all appropriate insurance required by Jaw or cusiomary in connection
with the operation of similar facilities such as the operation in the Premises. Tenant shall
comply with all laws in properly disposing of medical wastes.

(¢)  All caspalty coverage insurance carried by Landlord or Tenant shall provide for waiver of
subrogation against Landlord, and other Landlord Affiliates, Tenant and other 1cnanis in the
Shopping Center on the part of the insurance carrier. Evidence of the existence of the waiver
shall be furnished by either party to the other pary on request.

SIGNS

Prior to opening lor business, Tenant shall install an identification sign for the Premises at ils
cost and expense, which shall comply with Exhibit “F.” and “F-1", Upon execution of this
lLease. Tenant shall deposit with Landlerd the Sign Removal Depesit indicated on the Relerence
Pages, which shall be held by Landlord to insure Tenant’s removal of its fagade sign in
accordance with this Scetion. Tenant shall not erect or install any other signs except as expressly
permitted by Landlord. The signs shall comply with the requirements of applicable Law.
All permits or licenses shall be obtained by Tenant. Tenant shall maintain the signs in good
condition and repair and shall save Landlord harmless from injury to person or property ansing
from the ercction and maintenance of the signs. Upon vacating the Premises, Tenant shall
remove the signs and repair any damage caused by the removal, and when Tenant completes
such sign removal and repairs any such damage, then Landlord shall promptly retum the
Sign Removal Deposit to Tenant.  In the cvent Tenant does not comply with the removal
requirement set forth in the preceding sentence, then Landlord may retain the Sign Removal
Deposit.

ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLETTING
SECTION 17

(a)  Neither this Lease nor any inlerest in this Lease shall be sold. mongaged, pledged.
encumbered, assigned, transferred, or otherwise disposed of in any manner by Tenant,
voluntarily or involuntarily, by operation of law, or othenwise, nor shall the Premises or any part
of the Premises be sublet, used. or occupied for the conduct of any business by a third person,
firm, or corporation or for any purpose other than authorized in this Lease. except with
Landlord’s prior writtcn consent, nol to be unreasonably withheld or delayed. Should any
proposed assignee have a net worth greater than or equal to that of Tenant, Landlord shall not
withhold consent unreasonably. A sale or sales or transfer of fifty percent (50%) or more of the
capital stock of Tenant {if Tenant is a limiled liability company or a corporation) or of the
interest in capital, profits, or losses of Tenant (if Tenant is a partaership) shall be deemed to be a
prohibited assignment of this Lease within the meaning of this Section 17, 1f Tenan desires to
sublet the Premises, or any pottion of the Premiscs. or assign this Lease, Tenant shall give
writlen notice to Landlord at feast ninety ($0) days but not more than one hundred eighty (180)
days prior to the proposed commencement date of the subletting or assignment. The notice shall
set forth the foliowing: (i) the name of the proposed subtenant or assignee, {ii) the current
halance sheet and profit and loss statements for the proposed transferce or any other person to be
liable for Tenant's obligations under this Lease covering the prior thrce years (or for such shorer
period as the proposed transferce or other person may have been in existence), all certified as
true and comect by the proposed transferce. other person or an auihorized officer thereof,
(ii1) a full description of the terms and conditions of the proposed Transfer, including copies of
any and all documents and instruments, any purchase and sale agreements. sublease agreements,
assignment agreements and all other writings concerning the proposed transfer, (iv) a description
of the proposed use of the Premises by the proposed transferee. including any required or desired
alterations or improvements to the Premises that may be undertaken by such transferce in order
1o facilitate its proposed use, {v} a business plan for the proposed transferee’s operations af the
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Premises, including 2 statement of projected income. expense, and cash flow fer such operation
for the two years following the proposed effective date of the Transfer, (vi} a list of personal,
business and credit references of the proposed transferee, (vii) similar information for any
guarantor or other person who will be liable in any manner for the payment of any amounis
under the Lease, and (viii) any other information, documentation or evidence that may he
reasonably requested by Landlord.  Notwithslanding any permitted assignment or subletting.
Tenant shall a1 all times remain directly and primarily {iable for the payment of the rent and for
compliance with all of its other obligations under this Lease. Upon the occurrence of a default
under Section 20 of this Lcase, which is nol cured within any applicable grace period,
if the Premises ar any part of the Premises are then assigned or sublet, Landlord, in addition to
any other remedics provided in this Lease or by law, may collect directly from the assignee or
subtenant all rents due and becoming due to Tenant under the sublease and apply the rent against
sums due Landlord from Tenant. The collection dircetly [rom an assignee or subtenant shall not
be construed to constitute a novation or release of Tenant from the further performance of
Tcnant’s obligations. Any guaranty of Tenant’s performance executed as consideration for this
Lease shall remain in full force and cffect before and afier any assignment or subletting.
Landlord may require Tenant, and Tenant agrees. to execute a guaranty of this Lease before
Landlord consents to any assignment or sublease. Landlord may proceed directly against Tenant
without [irst cxhausting any remedics for default which Landlord may have against the assignee,
subtenant or transferee of Tenant.

()  Landlord shall have the option, in its sole discretion, in the cvent of any proposed
subletting or assignment, to terminate this Lease, or in the case of a proposed subletting of less
than the entire Premises, 10 recapture the portion of the Premises to be sublet. as of the date the
subictting or assignmemnt is to be effeclive. The option shall be exercised by Landlord giving
Tenant written notice within sixty (60) days following Landlord’s receipt of Tenant’s written
notice as required above. 11 this Lease shall be terminated with respect to the entire Premises.
the Term shall ¢nd on the date stated in Tenant’s notice as the effective date of the sublease or
assipnment as if that datc had been originally fixed in this Lease for the expiration of the Term.
IT Landlord recaptures only a portion of the Premises. the Annual Fixed Rent and Additional
Rent during the unexpired Term shall abate, proportionately, based on the Annuval Fixed Rent
and Addilional Rent due as of the date immediately prior to such recapture and Perceniage Rent
shall be calculaied using the adjusted Annual Fixed Rent. Tenant shall. at Tenant™s own cost and
expense. discharge in full any outstanding commission obligation with respect 10 this Lease and
any commissions which may be owing as a resuit of any proposcd assignment or sublctiing,
whether or not the Premises are rented by Landlerd to the proposed Yenant or any other tenant.

{¢)  Consent by Landlord to any assignment or subletting shall not include consent to a
subsequent assignment or sublctting of the Premises by Tenant or its assignee or sublessee or the
consent to the assignment or transferring of any Lease renewal option rights (and such privileges
shall be personal to the original Tenant under this Lease, shall not be assignable and shall
terminale upon such assignment), unless Landlord specifically grants in writing such opliens,
rights or privileges to the assignee or subtenunt.  Any sale, assignment, morigage or other
transfer of this Lease or subleting which does not comply with the provisions of this Scction
shall be void.

(dy  Notwithsianding Landlord’s consent, if Tenant sells, sublets, assigns. or transfers this
Leasc and al any time receives periodic rent or other consideration which exceeds that which
Tenant would al that time be obligated to pay Landlord. Tenant shall pay 1o lLandlord
one hundred percent {100%) of the gross increase in rent as the rent is received by Tenant and
one hundred percent { F00%4) of any other consideration received by Tepant from the subtenant or
the assignee. In no event may Tcnant subiet all or any portion of the Premises at a square foot
rental rate less than the greater of: (a) Landlord’s prevailing rental rate for comparable space in
the Shopping Center, as determined by Landlord, in its sole and absolute discretion: or
{b) the curremi Annual Fixed Rent under this Lease, as of the date of Tenant’s sublet request.

(c) Should Landiord consent to an assignment or sublease of this Lease. Tenant, its proposed
assignee or subtenant and Landlord shall execute an agreement prepared by or acceptable 1o
Landlord under which the propesed assignee or subtenant agrees to be bound by the terms and
conditions of this Lease. Tenant agrees to reimburse Landlord for attorney’s fees and
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administrative expcnse  involved with the review, processing or preparation of any
documentation in connection with an assignment, subletting or other transfer of this Lease or
Tenant’s interest in the Premiscs, whether or not Landlord’s consent Lo such fransfer is required
or obtained.

§3)] If Tenant reccives Landlord’s consent or if Landlord does not terminate this Lease,
the Annual Fixed Rent payvable thereafter shall be no tess than an amount equal to the highest
annual combined Annual Fixed Rent and Percentage Rent payable by Tenant during any
previous Lease Year since the Commencement Date.

(g)  Except as permitted in Section (a) above, notwithstanding any other provision hercofl
Tenant shall have no right to make (and Landlord shall have the absolute right in its sole
discretion, to refuse consent 10) any assignment of this Lease or sublease of any portion of the
Premises. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Landlord shall have the absalute
right, in its sole discretion, to refuse consent to any such assignment or sublease i, at the time of
¢ither Tenant’s notice of the proposed assignment or sublease or the proposed commencement
date thereof (i) there shall exist any uncured default of Tenant or matter which will become a
defauh of Tenant with passage of time unless cured; (ii) the proposed assignee or sublessec is an
entity (aa) with which Landlord is already in negotiation as evidenced by the issuance of a
written proposal; (bb) which is alrcady an occupant of the Shopping Center; (cc) which is
incompatible with the character or occupancy of the Shopping Center: (dd) which would subject
the Premises to a use which would (1) involve increased insurance, personnel or wear upon the
Shopping Center, {2) violate any exclusive right or restriction granted te another tenant or other
occupant of the Shopping Center. or contained in another leass or occupancy agreement of the
Shopping Center, (3) require any addition to or medification of the Premises, the Building or the
Shopping Center in order to comply with building code or other governmental requirements: (iii)
the proposed transferce’s financial condition is or may beceme insufficient to support all of the
financial and other obligations of the Lease; (iv) the nature of the proposed transferee’s proposed
or likely use of the Premises would involve any increase risk of the use, release or mishandling
of Hazardous Material: {v} the business reputation or characler of the proposed iransferce or the
business reputation or characier of any of its affiliates is not reasonably acceptable to Landlord:
{vi) Landlord has not received assurances acceplable to Landlord in its sole discretion that all
pasl duc amounis owing from Tenant to Landiord (if any) will be paid and all other defaults on
the part of Tenant (if any) will be cured prior 1o the effectiveness of the proposed Transfer: or
(vii} Landlord is not satisfied that the proposed transferee’s assets, businesses or inventory would
nol be suhject 10 scizure or forfeiture under any laws related to criminal or illegal activities.
Tenant cxpressly agrees that Landlord shall have the absolute right to refuse consent 1o any such
assignment or sublease and that for the purposes of any statutery or other requirement ol
reasonableness on the part of Landlord such refusal shall be reasonable.

(h)  Anything contained in this Lease to the contrary notwithstanding. and without prejudice
to Landlord’s right to require a writicn assumption from ecach assignee, any person or enlity (o
whom this Lease is assigned including, without limitation, assignees pursuant to the provisions
of the Bankrupicy Code. 11 U.S.C. Paragraph 101 ¢t seq. (the “Bankruptcy Code™)
shall automatically be deemed 10 have assumed all obligations of Tenant arising under this
Lease. Inthe event this Lease is assigned to any person or entity pursuant to the provisions of
the Bankrupicy Cede, any and all monies or other consideration payable or otherwise to be
delivered in connection with such assignment shall be paid or delivered to Landlord and shall
remain the exclusive propenty of Landlord and not constitute the property of Tenant or Tenant’s
estale within the meaning of the Bankruptcy Code. All such moncy ot other consideration not
paid or delivered to Landlord shall be held in trust for the benefit of Landlord and shall be
promptly paid or delivered to Landlord.

(] Tenant’s solc remedy in the event that Landiord shall wrongfuliy withhold consent to or
disapprove any sublease or assignment request shall be 1o obiain an order by a court of
competenm jurisdiction that Landlord grant such consent; in no event shall Landlord be 1able for
damages with respect 10 its withheld consent 1o any proposed transfer.

All of the other 1erms. covenants and conditions of this Lease shall continue in full force and
effect and unamended.
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REPAIR AFTER CASUALTY
SECTION 18

if the Premises arc damaged by fire or any other casualty which is insured under the coverage
that Landlord carrics, to the exteni of less than fifty percent {30%) of the cost of the replacement
of the Premises, the damage shall be repaired by Landlord at Landlord’s expense. Landlord shatl
nol. however, be obligated to expend an amount which is more than the insurance proceeds
received by Landlord. If damage occurs and (a) Landlord is not required to repair the Premiscs
as provided. or (b} the Premises shall be damaged 10 the extent of fifty percent (50%) or more of
the cost of replacement or (¢} the Building in which the Premises are a part is damaged to the
extent of twenty-five pereent (25%) or more of the cost of replacement, Landlord may elect
cither to repair or rebuild the Premises or the Building. or to terminate this Lease, upon giving
notice of its election in writing 1o Tenant within onc hundred twenty {120) days afier the
occurrence of the cvent causing the damage. If the casualty, repairing, or rebuilding shall render
the Premises untenantable, and the damage shall not have been due to the fault or neglect of
Tenant, a proportionate abatement of the Annual Fixed Rent shall be allowed from the daie when
the damage occurred until the date Landlord completes its work. The proration shall be
compuicd on the basis of the relation which the gross square foot arez of the space rendered
untenantable bears to the floor space of the Premises. [f Landlord is required or clects 1o repair
the Premises, Tenant shall repair or replace its inventory, fixtures, furniture, fumishings. signs,
equipment and other personal property; if Tenant has closed, it shall promptly reopen for
business.

CONDEMNATION
SECTION 19

(a) If the entire Premises shall be taken by condernnation or right of cminent domain, this
Leasc shall tcrminate as of the day possession shall be taken by the taking authority, and
Landlord and Tenant shall be released from any further lability.  If only a portion of the
Premises shall be taken by condemnation or right of eminent domain and the portion 1aken
renders the balance unsuitable for the purpose of this Lease, either Landlord or Tenant shall be
entitled to terminate this Lease, such termination to become effective as of the day possession of
the Premiscs shall be taken, provided notice of termination is given within thiny {30) days after
the datc of notice of the taking. 1, in that case, this Lease is not terminated, Landlord agrees to
restore the Premises with reasonable speed to an architectural unit as nearly like its condition
prior 10 the taking as shall be practicable (1o the extent permitted by Law and the covenants,
conditions and restrictions then applicable 1o the Shopping Center) and to the extent of the award
granted. 1f all or any porion of the Premises is the subject of a temporary taking, this Lease
shall remain in full force and effect, and Tenant shall continue to perform each of its obligations
under this Lease. If during or after restoration, Tenant shali be deprived of the use of all or any
portion of the Premises. a proportionate adjustment in the Annual Fixed Rent and
Additional Rent (except Tenant’s Proportionate Share due under Section 6{a)(ii} and (iii))
shall be made corresponding te the time during which and the portion of the Premises of which
Tenant is deprived. and Percentage Rent shall be calculated using the adjusted Annual Fixed
Rent in the formula specified in Scetion 4.

(b} All damages awarded in connection with the taking of the Premises. whether allowed as
compensation for diminution in value to the {easehold, to the fec ol the Premises, or otherwise,
shali belong to Landlord. Nowwithstanding the foregoing. Tenant shall be emtiticd to make a
scparate ¢laim to the condemning authority for the unamortized value of merchandise and
lixtures purchased and installed by Tenant. The rights contained in this Section 19 shall be the
Tenant’s sole and exclusive remedy in the event of a 1aking or condemnation.

(c}  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in Section 19(a) and 19(b), Landlord
may terminate this Lease with no further liability to Tenant if (i) fifty percent (50%%) or more of
the gross leasahle arca of the Shopping Center is tuken by condemnation or right of eminent
domain, or (ii) following any taking of the Premises or the Building by condemnation or right of
crminent domain, Landlord’s mortgagee elects to require Landlord 1o make advance payments
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upon or for any indebtedness secured by a mortgage on the Shopping Center or any portion of
the Shopping Center.

LANDLORD'S REMEDIES UPON DEFAULT

SECTION 20
(a)  The following shall constituie a default and breach of this Lease by Tenant:

(i) The failure to pay any installment of rent in whole or in part required to be made
by Tenant, and the default continues for five (5) davs after written notice by
Landlord to Tenant,

(i) The abandonment or vacation of the Premises or any part of the Premises by
Tenant;

(iii) A failure by Tenant 1o observe and perform any other provision of this Lease to
be observed or performed by Tenamt, and the failure coemtinues for ten (10) days
after written notice hy Landlord to Tenant; provided, however that if the nature of
the default is such thal it cannol reasonably be cured within the specified time,
Tenanl shall not be deemed to be in default if Tenant shall within the ten (10)
days begin to cure and shereafier diligently cure the default:

(iv)  The making by Tcnant of any general assignment for the benefit of creditors:
the filing by or against Fenant of a petition to have Tenant adjudged a bankrupt,
or the filing of a petition for reorganization or arrangement under any Law
relating to bankruptey (unless. in the case of a petition filed against Tenant,
the same is dismissed within sixty (60) days); the appointment of a trustee or
receiver to take possession of substantially all of Tenant's asscts located at the
Premises, or to take possession of Tenant’s interest in this Lease if possession is
nol restored to Tenant within thirly (30} days: or the attachment. exceution or
other judicial seizure of substantially all of Tenant's assets located at the Premises
or of Tenant's interest in this Lease, if the seizure is not discharged within thirty
(30} days: or

v} A default under Scction 20(a)(i) which occurs more than twice within a
twelve (12} month period. A default under this subscction {v) shall be a
non-curable defaull.

(b) If Tenant defaults, in addition to any other remedies available to Landtord at law or in
equity, Landlord shall have the immediate cplion te terminate this Lease and all rights of Tenant
by notifying Tenant in writing. !f Landlord elects to terminate this Lease. Landlord shall have
the right to recover from Tenant:

{i} The worth at the time of the award of any unpaid rent which had been eamned at
the time of the termination: plus

(il The worth at the time of the award of the amount by which the unpaid rent which
would have been enrned after iermination until the time of the award exceeds the
amount of the rent less Tenant proves could have been reasonably avoided: plus

(i)  The worth at the time of the award of the amount by which the unpaid rent for the
balance of the Term afier the time ol the award ¢xceeds the amount of the rent
less that Tenant proves could be reasonably avoided; plus

(ivi  Any other amount necessary to compensale Landlord for the detriment
proximately caused by Tenant’s failure 1o perform its obligations under the Lease
(including the costs and disbursements of recovering the Premises and reasonable
attorneys™ fees). or which in the ordinary course of cvents would he likely 10
resuil; plus
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(v} At Landlord’s election, other amounts in addition to or int lieu of the above as may
be permitted from time to time by applicable Law.

(c} All rent, other than the Annual Fixed Rent, shall be computed on the basis of the average
monthly amount accruing during the twenly-four {24) month period immedialely preceding the
default; if it becomes necessary, however, to compuie the rent before the twenty-four {24) month
period has occurred, then the rent shall be computed on the basis of the average monthly amount
accruing during the shorter period of time. The “worth at the time of 1the award™ under
Section 20(b)(i) and (ii), is compuled by allowing interest at the maximum lawful rale which is
allowed in the state in which the Shopping Center is locaied | however, if there is no maximum
lawful rate. then al the rate of twao percent (2%) above the prime rate of interest published by
The Wall Street Journal, or if such publication ceases to publish the prime rate of interest,
by another bank selected by Landlord and such interest shall be deemed Additional Rent.
The “worth at the time of the award” under Section 20(b){iti} is computed by discounting the
amount at the discount rate of the Federal Reserve Bank of Chicago. at the time of the award
plus one percent {1%).

(d) If Tenant defaults, Landlord shall also have the right to reenter the Premises and remove
all persons and property and to lerminaie Venant's right of possession of the Premises without
terminating the Lease. The properiy may be removed and stored in a public warchouse or
elsewhere at the cost of and for the account of Tenant. Landlord shall not be liable 1o Tenant for
any loss or damage resulting from an entry by Landlord, and Tenant shall pay as Additional Rent
upon demand the cxpenses and fees incurred or paid by Landlord. Tenant hereby waives notice
of reentry (or institution of legal proceedings), including the right 10 receive notice pursuant to
any scction of the Laws of the state.  Any notice other than the notice specifically set forth in
Section 2({a), even if notice is required by any Law now or hereafier in effect. is hereby waived
by Tenanl to the fullest exten! waivable under Law.

() If the Premises or any part of the Premises are vacaled or abandoned. or if Landlord
elects to reenter as provided in Seclion 20(d) or takes posscssion of the Premises pursuant 1o
legal proceedings or pursuant w any notice provided by Law, and il Landlord does not elect 1o
terminate this Lease as provided in Section 20(b), Landlord may from time to time.
without terminating this l.ease, ¢ither recover all rent as it becornes due or relet the Premises or
any part of the Premises upon such terms, at such rent, upon such conditions and for such a
period ol time as Landlord in its sole discrelion may deem advisable. Landlord shall also have
the right to make alterations and repairs to the Premises.

{f) If Landlord elects to relet, the rent received by Landlord from reletting shall be applied:
fiest, to the payment of indebtedness other than rent due Landlord; sccond, to the payment of the
cost of reletting: third, to the payment of the cost of alierations and repairs to Lhe Premises;
fourth, to the payment of rent due; and the remainder shall be held by Landlord and applied to
the payment of future rent that becomes due. 1f a portion of the rent received from reletling
which Is applied to the payment of rent during any month is less than the rent payable by Tenant
during that menth, Tenant shalt pay the deficiency to Landlord. The deficiency shall be
calculated and paid monthly. Tenant shall also pay Landlord upon demand the costs and
expenses incurred by Landlord in reletting or tn making alterations and repairs. which are nol
covered by the rent reccived from reletting the Premises,

{(g)  No action or inaction by Landlord including, without limitation, the reentry or taking
possession of the Premises by Landlord shall be constrized to be an election to terminate this
Lease. nor any such action or inaction cause forfeiture of rent due during the balance of the
Term, unless a written notice of that intention is given to Tenant {or unless the termination is
decreed by a court ol competent jurisdiction). Neotwithstanding the reletting without termination
by Landlord. Landlord may at any time afler reletting. clect to terminate this Lease for any
default.

{(h) 11, on account of any breach or default by Tenant in Tenant's obligations under the terms
and conditions of this Lcase, it shall become necessary or appropriate for Landlord to employ or
consult with an attorney or collection agency cencerning or 1o enforce or defend anv of
Landlord’s rights or remedics arising under this Lease or to collect any sums due frem Tenant,
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Tenant agrees to pay all costs and fees so incurred by Landlord, including. without limitation,
reasonable attomeys’ fees and costs (including court costs), expert witness’ and other
consultants® fec and costs, incurred in any legal action or proceeding brought by Landiord
against Tenant arising out of this Lease. Such amounts shall be included in any judgment
rendered in any such action or proceeding,

(i) LANDLORD AND TENANT, WITH ADVICE QF LEGAL COUNSEL OF THEIR
CHOICE., HEREBY KNOWINGLY., VOLUNTARILY AND INTENTIONALLY
IRREVOCABLY WAIVE THEIR RIGHT TO A TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY ACTION.
PROCEEDING OR CAUSE OF ACTION ARISING OUT OF, UNDER OR IN CONNECTION
WITH THIS LEASE, THE SHOPPING CENTER INCLUDING THE FREMISES, OR ANY
COURSE OF CONDUCT, COURSE OF DEALING, STATEMENTS OR ACCOUNTS OF
ANY PARTY HEREIN, THIS PROVISION IS A MATERIAL INDUCEMENT FCR EACH
OF LANDLORD AND TENANT ENTERING INTO THIS LIEASE.

() if Landlord decides to relet the Premises or a duty 1o relet is imposed upon Landlord by
law, Landlord and Tenant agree that Landlord shall onty be required to use the same efforts that
Landlord then uses to lease other propertics Landlord owns or manages {or if the Premises are
then managed for Landlord, then Landlord will instruct such manager to use the same efforis
such manager then uses to fease other space or properties which it owns or manages); provided,
however, that Landlord (or its manager) shall not be required to give any preference or priority 10
the showing or leasing of the Premiscs over any other space that Landlord (or its manager)
may be leasing or have available and may place a suitable prospective tenant in any such
available space regardless of when such allernative space becomes available; provided, further,
that Landlord shall not be required to observe any instruction given by Tenant about such
reletting or accept any tenant offercd by Tenant unless such offered tenant has a creditworthiness
acceptable to Landlord, leases the entire Premises. agrees to use the Premises in a manner
consistent with this Lease and leases the Premises at the same rent, for no more than the Term
and on the same other terms and conditions as in this Leasc withoul the commissions.
In any such case, Landlord may. but shall not be required 1o, make repairs, alterations and
additions in or to the 'remises and redecorate the same to the extent Landlord deems necessary
or desirable. and Tenant shall. upon demand, pav the cost thereof, together with Landlord's
expenses of reletting, including, without limitation. any broker's commission incurred by
Landlord.

(k) The stated term of the Leasc is deemed 1o have expired on the Landlord’s termination of
the Lease for a tenant deflault.

N To the cxtent permitted by law, actions seeking damages and/or possession of the
Premises may be brought in the Circuit Court of Cook County, [llinois, Municipal Department.
Fifth District.

DISCHARGE OF LIENS

SECTION 21

(1)  Tenant shall not cause, suffer or permit the Premises, the Building. or the
Shopping Center to be encumbered by any liens of mechanics, laborers or materialmen, any
security inieresi or any other fiens. Tenant shall. whenever and as often as liens are filed against
the Premises. the Building or the Shopping Center and are purported to be for tabor or material
furnished or 1o be furnished to Tenant. discharge without demand by Landlord the same of
rccord within ten (10) days after the date of filing by payment, bonding or otherwise, as provided
by Law. Tenant shall, epon reasonable notice and request in writing from Landlord, also defend
Landlord. at Tenant's sole cost and expensc. against any action, suit, or proceeding which may
be brought on or for the cnforcement of any such lien and shall pay any damages and satisty and
discharge any judgments entered in such action. suit, or proceeding and shalt save harmless
Landlord frem any liability. claim. or resuliing damages. [f Tenant defaults in procuring the
discharge of any lien, Landlord may, without further notice. procure the discharge by bonding or
payment or otherwise, and all costs and cxpenses (including, without limitation, reasonable
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attorneys” fees} which Landlord may incur in obtaining the discharge shall be paid by Tenant as
Additional Rent within ten (10) days of demand,

(b}  Nothing in this Lease. nor any approval by Landlord of any of Tenant’s alterations or
contraclors, shall be deemed or construed in any way as constituling consent by Landlord to the
making of any alicrations or additions by Tenant. or constituting a request by Landlord,
expressed or implied, o any contraclor, subcontractor, laborer or matcrialman for the
performance of any labor or the furnishing of any materials for the use or benelit of Landlord.
No review or approval of Tenant's plans and specifications or any changes or additions thereto
by Landlord shall constitute a representation or warranty that the same are in compliance with
applicable Laws, including. without limitation, building codes, or that the same shall be adequate
or fit for Tenant’s purposes and use or constitute the assumption of any liability, responsibility or
obligation on the part of Landlord. Tenant shall be solely responsible for procurement of ali
necessary building permits, inspections and other governmenial approvals applicable 10 any work
performed by or on behalf of Tenant pursuant to Section 12 and Exhibit “D™.

{¢)  Landlord shall have the right 10 post and keep posted in the Premises nolices of
non-responsibility or other notices that Landlord may decm 1o be proper for the protection of
Landlord’s interest in the Premises and Tenant shall, before beginning any work which might
result in any lien on the Shopping Center or any part of the Shopping Center, give Landlord prior
written notice of its intention to commence work in sufticient time 1o enable Landlord 1o fife and
record the notices.

LIABILITY OF LANDLORD
SECTION 22

If Landlord shall fail to perform any covepant, lerm or condition of this Lease, and if Tenant
shall recover a money judgment against Landlord. the judgment shall be satisfied only out of the
proceeds of sale received upon exccution of the judgment and levy against the right, title and
interest of 1.andlord in the Shopping Center as the same may then be cncumbered. and neither
Landlord nor any of its partners shall be liable for any deficiency. b is understood that in 1o
event sha!l Tenant have the right 10 levy execution against any property of Landlord other than
its inlerest in the Shopping Center. The right of execution shall be subordinate and subject to
any mortgage or other encumbrance upon the Shopping Center. No trustee, shareholder, officer,
member, dircctor, employee, parent or subsidiary company. Landlord Affiliate or partner of
Landlord shall in any event or at any time be personally liable for the payment or performance of
any obligation required or permitted of Landlord under this Leasc or under any document
executed in connection herewith. No attachment, execution, writ or other process shall be sought
or obtained, and no judicial proceeding shall be initiated by or on behalf of Tenant, against
Landlord personally or Landlord’s assets (other than Landlerd’s interest in the Shopping Center)
as a result of any such failure, breach or defzult and neither they nor Landlord nor any Landlord
Affiliate shall be liable for any deficiency.

RIGHTS OF LANDLORD
SECTION 23

() Landlord shall have the right, bul not the duty. a1 ali reasonable times, by itself or through
its duty authorized agents, to go upon and inspect all or any part of the Premises and,
at Landlord’s option, to make repairs. alterations and additions to the Premises. the Building or
any part of the Premises, or (o show the Premises or the Building to lenders or to praspective
purchasers or tenanis,

(b) In addition and without prejudice to any other right or remedy of Landlord, if Tenant
shall be in default under his Lecase, Landlord may cure the same at the expense of Tenant
(i} immediately and without notice in the case {aa) of emergency, (bb) where such default
unreasonably inlerferes with any other tenant in the Shopping Center, or (ce) where such default
will result in the violation of any Laws, or the cancellation of any insurance policy maintained by
Landlord and (ii) in any other case, i such default continues for ten (10) days from the receipt by
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Tenant of notice of such default from Landlord. All costs incurred by Landlord in curing such
default(s), including. without limitation, attorncys’ fees, shall be reimbursable by Tenant as
Additional Rent hereunder upon demand. together with interest thercon, from the date such costs
were incurred by Landlord, at the rate specified in Section 3(c).

{c) All rights of Landlord shall be deemed 10 acerue to the benefit of Landlord’s menigagee,
if any.

SUBORDINATION TO MORTGAGE
SECTION 24

{a) Tenant understands, acknowledges and agrees that this Lease is and shall be subordinate
to any mortgage (which for all purposes of this Lease shall be deemed to mean and include any
deed of trust). ground lease or ather lien or restriction of record now exisling or later placed on
or affecting the Premises, the Building, the Shopping Center or any part of the Shopping Center,
to any rencwals, refinancing or extensions thereef and to all advances made or later made upon
the security. This subordination provision shall be self-operative and no further instrumem of
subordination shall be required by any moertgagee or lender. However, Landlord is irrevocably
vested with full power and authority 10 subordinate this Lease to any monigage or other lien now
existing or fatcr placed upon the Premises, the Building or the Shopping Center. Tenant agrees,
upon the demand or request of any party in interest, to execute promptly further instruments or
certificates necessary to carry out the intent of this Section.

(b) Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 24(a), any morigagec, holder or beneficiary
thereof or ground lessor may at any time subordinate the lien of ils mortgage. ground lease or
other fien or restriction of record 1o the operation of Section 24(a) and effect of this Lease
without obtaining Tenant’s consent by giving Tenant writlen notice in which cvent this Lease
shall be deemed to be senior 10 the moerigage, ground fease or ather lien or restriction of record
without regard to their respective dates of execution, delivery or recordation ameng the land
records of the county in which the Shopping Center is lecated. and the mortgagee, holder or
beneficiary thercef or ground lessor shall have the same rights as 1o this Lease as it would have
had were this Lease executed and delivered before the execution of the mortgage, ground lease
or other lien or restriction of record.  In all cases, Tenant shall attorn 1o and, where applicable,
be the 1enant of such entity.

{©) Tenant shall, within ten {10) days from request by Landlord, exccute and deliver for the
benefit of Landlord and its lenders and proposed lenders the estoppel certificate deseribed in
Section 44,

(d)  If proceedings are brought for foreclosure, or upen the execution of a deed in licu of such
foreclosure in respect of such mortgage, or in the event of the exercise of the power of sale under
any mortgage. Tenanl shall attorn to mortgagee, or its adminisirative agent, and to the purchaser
in the foreclosure or sale and recognize the purchaser as the Landlord under this Lease.
[ requested, Tenant shall enter into a new lease with that suecessor on the same terms and
conditions as are contained in this ].casc {for the uncxpired portion of the Tenm then remaining).
IT requested. Tenant shall execute and deliver an instrument or instruments confirming its
attornment as provided herein; provided, however, that no successor-in-imerest shall be bound
by any payment of rent for morc than one {F} menth in advance. or any amendment ar
maodification of this Lease made without the express wrillen consent of the morigagee under such
morigage. Teoant shall accept Landlord’s lender's cure of any Landlord default at any time unti}
thirty (30} days afler both: (i) Landlord and such lender have received Tenant’s defaull notice;
and (i) Landlord’s cure period for Landlord default has expired.  [Usuch lender cannot
reasonably cure Landlord default within the period allowed to such lender under the preceding
sentence, such lender shall have such lurther time as it shall reasonably need so long as it
pruceeds with rcasonable diligence.
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NO WAIVER BY LANDLORD
SECTION 25

No waiver of any of the terms, covenants, provisions. conditions, rules and regulations imposed
by this Leasc, and no waiver of any legal or equitable relief or remedy, shall be implicd by the
failure of Landlord to assen any rights. declare any forfeiture, or for any other reason.
No waiver of any of the terms. provisions, covenants, conditions, rules and regulations shall be
valid unless it shall be in writing signed by Landlord. No waiver by Landbord or forgiveness of
performance by Landlord for one or more tenants of the Building shall constitule a waiver or
forgiveness of performance in respect to Tenant. Landlord’s consent 1o or approval of any act by
Tenant requiring Landlord’s consent or approval under this Lease shall not be deemed Lo render
unnecessary the obtaining of Landlord’s consent to or approval of any subsequent act of Tenant.
No¢ act or thing done by Landlord or Landlord’s agents during the Term of this Leasc shall be
deemecd an acceptance of a surrender of the Premises, unless in writing signed by Landlord.
The delivery of the keys to any employee or agent of Landlord shall not operate as a termination
of the Lease or a surrender of the Premiscs. The acceptance of any rent by Landlord lollowing a
breach of this Lease by Tenant shall not constitute a waiver by Landlord of such breach or any
other breach uniess such waiver is expressly stated in a writing signed by Landlord.

VACATION OF PREMISES
SECTION 26

Tenant shall deliver and surrender to Landlord possession of the Premises {including all of
Tenant’s permanent work upon and to the Premises). and all replacements. fixtures, furnishings
and improvements permancntly attached 1o the Premises immediately upon the expiration of the
Term or the (ermination of this Lease in as good condition and repair as the same were on the
Commencement Date or date of installation {oss by any insured casually and ordinary wear and
tear only cxcepted) and deliver the kevs at the office of Landlord or Landlord™s agent; provided.
however, that upon Landlord’s request made at least thirty (30) days prior to the end of the Term.
or the datc Tenant is otherwise required to vacate the Premises, Tenant shall remove all
replacements, fixtures, furnishings and improvements, permanently attached to the Premises by
Tenant, and repair and restore the Premises to their condition on the Commencement Date
{loss by any insured casualty and ordinary wear and tear only excepted). at Tenant's sole
expense. The removal shall be performed prior to the carlicr of the end of the Term or the date
Tenant is required to vacatc the Premises. Anything comained in this Lease to the contrary
notwithstanding, the HVAC Facilities. and related system shall at all times remain the property
of Landlord and shall not be removed by Tenant.

MEMORANDUM OF LEASE

SECTION 27

Tenant shall not record this Lease. Without the prior writlen consen of Landlerd, Tenant shall
not record any memorandum of this Lease. short form or other reference to this Lease.

RENT DEMAND

SECTION 28

Every demand for rent wherever and whenever made shall have the same effect as if made af the
time it falls duc and a1 the place of payment. After the scrvice of notice or the commencement of
a suit. or final judgment. Landlord may receive and collect the rent due, and the receipt
collections shall neither operate as a waiver of nor affect the notice, suit. or judgment.
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NOTICES
SECTION 29

Notices, requests, or consents required to be given by or on hehalf of Landlord or Tenant shall be
in writing and shall he sent by registered or certified United States mail, or by a nationally
recognized express mail couricr, return reccipt requested, postage prepaid, addressed to the
parties at the respective addresses set forth on the Reference Pages. or at such other address as
may be specified from time to time, in writing. Notice shall be deemed given when it is
deposited in an official United Statcs Post Office. postage prepaid. or with a nationally
recognized express mail courier.

APPLICABLE LAW AND CONSTRUCTION
SECTION 30

The Laws of Illinois (exclusive of principles relating to conflicts of law) shall govern the
validity, performance. interpretation, and enforcement of this Lease. The invalidity or
unenforceability of any provision of this Lease shall not affect or impair any other provision,
All negotiations, considerations. representations. and understandings between the panics arc
incorporated in this Lease. This Lease may be modified or alicred only by agreement in writing
hetween the partics.  Tenant shall have no right to quit the Premises or cancel or rescind this
Lease except as expressly granted in this Lease. This Lease has been negotiated by Landlord and
Tenant and this Lease, together with all of (he terms and provisions, shall not be deemed to have
been prepared by either Landlord or Tenant, but by both equally. [f any provision of this Lease
is held to be invalid or unenforceable, the validity and enforccability of the remaiader of this
Lease shall not be aflected.

FORCE MAJEURE
SECTION 3i

If either pany shall be delayed, hindered or prevented from performing any act required by
reason of strike, lockout, inabifity 10 procure materiais. failure of power, restriciive Laws, riot.
insurrection, war, terrorism or any other reason of a fike nature not the fault of the pany delayed
in performing the act, the performance of the act shall be excused for the peried of the delay and
the period allowed for the performance of the act shall be extended for a period equivalent to the
period of the detny,  Notwithstanding anything contained in 1his lease 10 the conirary,
Tenant shall not be excused from the payment of rent or other sums of money which may
become due under the Lease. Delays or failures to perform resulting from lack of funds shall not
be deemed to be delays not the fault of the party.

LANDLORD’S LIEN
SECTION 32

(a)  Tenant grants Landlord a Ticn on and security interest in the property of Tenant now or
later placed in or upon the Premises. The property shall be and remain subject 1o the lien and
security interest of Landlord for payment of all rent and other sums agreed to be paid by Tenant.
Landlord™s lien. however. shall not be superior 1o a Iien from a lending institution. supplier or
leasing company. if the lending institution. supplier or Icasing company has a perfected security
interest in the cquipment. furniture or other tangible personal property which originated in a
transaction in which Tenant acquired the same.

(b) The provisions of this Section relating to the lien and security interest shall constitute a
sccurity agreement under and subject 10 the Uniform Commercial Code of the state where the
Shopping Center is located. so that Landlord shall have and may ¢nforce a security interest on all
property of Tenani now or later placed in or on the Premises, in addition to and cumulative of
Landlord’s liens and righis provided by Law or by the other terms and provisions of this Lease.
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{¢)  Tenant agrees to execute. as debtor. a financing statement or stalements and any other
documents that Landlord may now or later request in order to protect or further perfect
Landlord’s security interest. Notwithstanding the above, Landlord shall neither sell nor withhold
from Tenant Tenant’s business records.

QUIET ENJOYMENT
SECTION 33

Upon Tenant’s paving the rent reserved hereunder and observing and performing all of the
covenants, conditions and provisions on Tenant’s part 1o be obscrved and performed hereunder.,
Tenanl shall have quiet possession of the Premises for the Term hercof without hindrance or
cjection by any person lawfully claiming under Landlord, subject 1o the provisions of this Lease
and 1o the provisions of any (a} covenants, conditions and restriclions of record, (b) master lease,
and (c) any mortgage, ground lease or other lien or restriction ol record to which this Lease is
subordinate or may be subordinated. At Landlord’s request, Tenant shall join in the execulion of
any of the aforementioned documenis.

HOLDING OVER
SECTION 34

[f, at the expiration of the Term or any renewal, Tenant continues te occupy the Premises, the
holding over shall not constitute a renewal of this Leasc. but Tenant shall be a tenant from meonth
to month upon all of the terms, provisions, covenaats, and agreements of this Lease, except that
Landlerd may in its sole discretion increase the amount of the Annual Fixed Rent then due to an
amount equal to the greater of {a) [50% of the Annual Fixed Rent being paid immediately prior
to such expiration or (b) the then market rental valve of the Premises as determined by Landlord
in its sole discretion. Notwithstanding any provision to the conirary contained herein,
(n) Landlord expressly reserves the right to require Tenant to surrender possession of the
Premises upon the expiration of the Term of this Lease or upon the carlier termination hereof]
the right to reenter the Premises. and the right 10 assert any remedy at law or in equity 1o evict
Tenant and collect damages in connection with anv such holding over and (b) Tenant shall
indemnify, defend and hold Landlord harmiess from and against any and all claims, demands,
actions, losses, damages, obligations, costs and expenses, including, without limitation,
attorneys’ fees incurred or suffered by Landlord by rcason of Tenant’s failure 1o surrender the
Premises on the expiration or earlier termination of this Lease in aceordance with the provisions
of this Lease.

BROKERS
SECTION 35

Tenant represents and warrants that it has not dealt with a real estate broker, agent or finder in
connection with this Lease with the exception of the broker named in the Reference Pages to this
Lease whose commission Landlord agrees to pay. ELandlord shali not pay a commission or fee
due any other brokers, agents or finders as a result of this Lease. Tenant agrees to indemnify,
defend and hold harmless Landlord against and from all liabilities, claims and damages arising
from any claim by any broker (other than said named broker). finder or agent claiming to have
dealt with Tenant in connection with this Lease.

CAPTIONS
SECTION 36

All paragraph titles or captions contained in this Lease are for convenience only and shall not be
deemed part of the content of this Lease.
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VARIATIONS IN PRONOUNS
SECTION 37

All of the terms and words used in this Lease, regardless of the number and gender in which they
are used, shall be deemed and construed 1o include any other number or gender, as the context or
sense of this Lease or any paragraph or clausec may require, as if the terms and words had been
fully and properly written in the appropriate number and gender.

LENDER'S APPROVAL
SECTION 38

Notwithstanding anything contained in this Lease to the contrary. Landlord’s obligations and
Tenant’s rights under this [.case are condilioned upon approval of this Lease by Landlord’s
construction lender and permanent lender, if any. If Landlord is unable 10 obtain the approvals,
Landlord shall notify Tenani of the reasen and Tenant shalt have thirty (30) days in which to
agree to changes requesied by the lender in order to make the Lease acceptable to the lender.
If Tenant fails to agree to the changes within the thirty {30) day period. Landlord may terminate
this Lease within the following thirty (30) days. In that cvent, both partics shall be released from
any further {iability under this Lease.

SECURITY DEPOSIT
SECTION 39

The Security Deposit and Sign Deposit shall be held by Landlord without liability for interest as
security for the performance by Tenant of Tenant’s covenants and obligations under this Lease,
it being expressly understood that the Security Deposit and Sign Deposit shall not be considered
an advance payment of reml or a measure of Tenant's damages in case of default by Tenant.
The Security Deposit shall be paid 10 Landlord upon execution of this Lease, Landlord may,
in 11s sole discretion. from time to time without prejudice to any other remedy, use the Security
Deposit to the extent necessary 1o remedy any default under 1his Lease or to satisfy any other
covenant or obligation of Tenant, provided. however, that no portion of the Security Deposit
shall be applied towards payment of the last month’s rent without the prior written consent of
Landlord and, if applicable, its mortgagee. Following any such application of the Security
Deposit, Tenant shall pay to Landlerd on demand the amount applied in order to restore the
Security Deposit to its original amount. 1T Tenant is not in default at the termination of this
Lease, the balance of the Sceurily Deposit and Sign Deposit remaining after the application shall
be returned by Landlord to Tenant (or, at Landlord’s option, to the last assignee of Tenant’s
interest hereunder) after deducting any unpaid obligation of Tenant 1o Landlord that may arise
under this Lease, including, without limitation. the obligation to restore the Premises pursuant to
Section 26. 1f Landlord transfers its interest in the Premises or this Lease during the Term,
Landlord may assign the Sccurity Deposit and Sign Deposit to the transferce in which event
Landlord shall have no further liability 10 Tenant for the retum of she Security Deposit and
Sign Deposit. and Tenant shall look solelv to the transferee {or return of the Security Deposit and
Sign Deposit. Landlord shall be entitled to commingle the Security Deposit and Sign Deposit
with Landlord’s other funds. Tenant shall pay to Landlord. upon exccution of this Lease,
the Sign Deposit for sign removal specified in the Reference Pages.

NO INCOME PARTICIPATION
SECTION 40

Neither Tenant nor any other person having an interest in the possession, use. occupancy or
utitization of the Premises shall enter into a Lease. sublease, license, concession or other
agreement for use, occupancy or utilization of the Premises which provides for rent or other
payment for the use. occupancy or utilization based in whole or in part en the net income or
profits derived by any person from the Premises or poriion of the Premises leased, used.
occupied or utilized {other than an amount bascd on a fixed percentage or percentages of receipts
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or sales), and that any such purported Lease, sublease, license, concession or other agreement
shall be void and incffective as a conveyance of any right or interest in the possession, use,
occupancy or ulitization of any parl of the Premises.

SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS
SECTION4]

Except as otherwise provided in this Lease. al) of the covenants. conditions and provisions of this
[.ease shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their
respective heirs. personal representatives, successors and assigns. 1f a sale or exchange of the
Premises by Landlord or an assignment by Landlord of this Lease occurs, Landlord shall be
entirely relieved of all liability under any and all of its covenants and obligations contained in or
derived from this Leasc. arising out of any act or omission relaling 10 the Shopping Center,
the Premises, or this Lease, which occurs after the consummation of the sale. exchange or
assignment. Tenant shall attom to each purchaser, stccessor or assignee of Landlord.

NO OTHER REPRESENTATIONS
SECTION 42

Tenant agrees that neither Landlord nor any other party acling on behalf of Landlord has made
any representations or covenants except those that are expressly set forth in this Lease.
Landlord shall not be liable, and Tenant shall not be entitled to any remedy including the
termination ¢f this Lease, for the breach of any representations or covenants which are not
expressly set forth in this Lease or for any implicd warranty or representation as to the condition
or suitability of the Premises for Tenant’s proposed use.

NO OPTION
SECTION 43

The submisgion of this Lease for examination does nol constilule a reservation of or option for
the Premises or any other space in the Shopping Center, and shall not vest any right in Tenant.
This Lease shall become efiective as a Lease only upon its execution and delivery by ihe partics.

ESTOPPLL
SECTION 44

At any time and from time 10 time, upon request of Landlord, Tenant shall, without charge,
exccutc, acknowledge and deliver to Landlord within ten {10) days after request, an instrument in
recordable form prepared by Landlord stating: the Delivery Date, Commencement Date and
Termination Date of this Lease; if the same be true. that this Lease is a true and exact copy of the
lease between the partics hereto, that there are no amendments thereol (ot stating what
amendmens there may be); that the Lease (as so amended. if applicable) is then in full force and
effect; the dates to which rent and other charges under this Lease have been paid: that, if the
same be truc., Tenant is net entitled to any concession. rebate. allowance or free rent for any
period afier the date of such certificate:; {or stating any concession. rebate. allowances or free rent
for any period after the date of such cenificate) thai. to the best of Tenant's knowledge, there are
then no offsets or selofTs, defenses or counterclaims with respect to the payment of rent reserved
hereunder or in the performance of the other terms, covenants and conditions hereof on the part
of Tenant lo be performed. and that as of such date no default has been declared hereunder by
either party hereto and that Tenamt at the time has no knowledge of any facts or circumstances
which it might reasonably believe would give risc to a default by cither party; and such other
matters as Landlord or its lenders or proposed purchasers shall reasonably require. Tenant
agrees that the forepoing certificate may be relied on by anyone holding or proposing to acquire
any imerest in the Shopping Center from or through Landlord or by anv mortgagee or lessor ot
prospective mortgagee or lessor of the Shopping Center or of any interest therein.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SECTION 45

(a}  Tenant acknowledges that it has provided Landlord with its {and, :f applicable,
its guarantor} financial statement(s} as a material inducement to Landlord’s agreement 1o lease
the Premiscs o Tenant, and that Landlord has relied on the accuracy of said financial
statement(s) in entering into this Lease. Tenant represents and warrants that the information
contained in said financial statement(s) is truc. complete and correct in all material aspects, and
agrees that the foregoing representation and warranty shall be a precondition 1o this Lease.

(b} At the request of Landlord, Tenant shall. not later than ninety (90) days following the
close of each fiscal year of Tenant during the Term. or in connection with a refinancing or
disposition of the Shopping Center, furmish to Landlord a balance shect of Tenant
{und, if applicable, its guarantor) as of the end of such fiscal year and a statement ol income and
cxpense for the year then ended, topether with an opinion of an independent certified public
accountant satisfactory to Landlord or, at the election of Landlord. a certificate of the chicf
financial officer, owner or pariner of Tenant to the effect that the financial statements have been
prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles consistently applied and
fairly presemt the financial conditien and results of operations of Tenant (and, if applicable,
ils guarantor's) as of and for the period covered.

(c) In addition 1o the above, Tenant hereby authorizes Landlord to obtain one or more credit
reports on Tenant andfor Guarantor, i’ any, at any time, and shall execute such further
authorizations as Landtord may reascnably require in order to obtain a credit report.

TIME OF ESSENCE

SECTION 46

Time is of the essence of this Lease and each and all of its provisions.
AUTHORITY AND LIABILITY OF TENANT

SECTION 47

(a) If Tenanl is a corporation or limited liability company, each individual executing this
Lease on behalf of Tenant hereby covenants and warrants that Tenant is a duly authorized and
existing corporation or limited liability company, that Tenant has and is gualified to do business
in the state in which the Shopping Center s located, that the Tenant entity has full right power
and authority 1o enter into this L.ease, and that each person signing on behalf of the Tenant entity
is authorized to do so. [f Tenant is a partnership or trust. each individual executing this Lease on
behalf of Tenant hereby covenants and warrants that he or she is duly authorized 1o execute and
deliver this Lease on behalf of Tenant in accordance with the 1erms of such entity’s partnership
or trust agreement. Tenant shall provide Landlord on demand with such evidence of such
authority as lLandlord shall reasonahly request, including, without limitation, rcsolutions,
certificates and opinions of counsel.

(b) I two or morc individuals, corporations. parinerships or other business associations
{or any combination of iwo or more thercof) shall sign this Lease as Tenant, the liability of each
such individual, corporation, partnership or other business association to pay rent and perform all
of the other obligations under this Lease shall be deemed to be joint and several, and all notices.
paymenis and agreements given or made hy, with or to any on¢ of such individuals, corporations,
parinerships or other business association shall be deemed to have been given or made by, with
or to all of them. [n like manner, il Tenant shall be a partnership or other business association.
the members of which are, by virtue of applicable Law. subject 1o personat liability. then the
liability of each such member shall be joint and several.
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LEASE GUARANTY
SECTION 48

Tenant acknowledges that the Guaranty of Lcase, attached hereto as Exhibit “G” and
incorporatcd herein by reference, is a material inducement to the execution of this Lease by
Landlord and that if the guarantor fails to perform or otherwise breaches any provision of the
guaranty, or if the guarantor is prevented from performing its obligations under the guaranty for
any reason, including operation of Law, then the same shall constitute a failure of the
consideration for the lease, and the Lease shall be voidable at any time during the Term at
Landlord’s solc option.

ENTIRE AGREEMENT
SECTION 49

This Lease and the Exhibits attached to this Leasc constitute the sole and exclusive agreement
between the parties with respect to the Premises. No amendment or supplements of this Lease
shall be effective unless in writing and exccuted by Landlord and Tenant.

BANKRUPTCY
SECTION 50

(a}y  If at any time on or before the Delivery Date there shall be filed by or against Tenant in
any court, tribunal, administrative agency or any other forum having jurisdiction, pursuant to any
applicable Law, a petition in bankruptcy or insolvency or for reorganization of or for the
appointment of a receiver, trustee or conservator of all or a portion of Tenant’s property, or if
Tenant makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors, this Lease shall ipso facto be cancelled
and terminated and in such ecvent neither Tenant, nor any person claiming by, through or under
Tenant by virtue of any applicable Law or by an order of any court. tribunal, administrative
agency or any other forum having jurisdiction, shall be cntitled to possession of the Premises and
Landlord, in addition (o the other rights and remedies given by Section 20 hereof or by virtue of
any other provision contained in this Lease or by virtue of any applicable l.aw, may retain as
damages any rent, Security Deposit or moneys received by it from Tenant or others on behalf of
Tenant.

(b If, after the Delivery Date. or if at any time during the Term, there shall be filed against
Tenant in any court, tribunal, administrative agency or any other forum having jurisdiction,
pursuant to any applicable Law, either of the United States or of any state, a petition in
bankruptcy or insolvency or for reorganization or for the appointment of a receiver, trustec or
conservator of all or a portion of Tenant’s property, and the same is not dismissed after sixty (60)
calendar days, or if Tenant makes an assignment for the bencfit of creditors, this Lease, at the
option of Landlord exercised within a reasonable time after notice of the happening of any one or
more of such events, may be cancelled and terminated and in such event neither Tenant nor any
person claiming through or under Tenant or by virtue of any stailute or of an order of any court
shall be entitled to possession or to remain in possession of the Premises. but shall forthwith quit
and surrender the Premises, and Landlord, in addition to the other rights and remedies granted by
Section 20 hercof or by virtue of any other provision contained in this Lease or by virtue of any
applicable Law. may rctain as damages any rent, Security Deposit or moneys received by it from
Tenant or others on behall of Tenant.

(c) In the cvent of the occurrence of any of those events specified in this Section 50,
if Landlord shail not choosc to excrcise, or by applicable Law shall not be able to exercise, its
rights hereunder 1o terminate this Lease upon the occurrence of such events, then. in addition to
any other rights of Landlord hereunder or by viriue of applicable Law, (i) Landlord shall not be
obligated to provide Tenant with any of the utilitics or services specified in Section 10, unless
Landlord has received compensation in advance for such utilitics or services, and the parlies
agree that Landlord’s reasonable estimate of the compensation required with respect to such
services shall control, and (i) neither Tenant, as debtor-in-possession, nor any trustee or olther
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person (hereinafier collectively referred to as the “Assuming Tenant™) shall be entitled te assume
this Lease unless on or before the date of such assumption, the Assuming Tenanl (x) cures,
or provides adequate assurance that the latter will prompily cure, any existing default under this
Lease, (v) compensates, or provides adequate assurance that the Assuming Tenant will promptly
compensate Landlord for any pecuniary loss (including, without limitation. atiomeys’ fecs and
disbursements) resulting from such defaull, and {z) provides adequate assurance of future
performance under this Lease, it being covenanted and agreed by the parties that. for such
purposcs, any cure or compensation shall be effected by the immediate pavment of any monctary
default or any required compensation, or the immediate correction or bonding of any
non-monetary default. For purposes of this Lease (i) any “adequate assurance™ of such curce or
compensation shall be effecied by the establishment of an escrow {und for the amount at issue or
by bonding with a bonding company, and upon such lerms and conditions, satisfactory 1o
Landlord in its sole discretion, and (ii) “adequate assurance™ of future performance shall be
effected by the establishment of an cscrow fund for the amount at issue or by bonding as
provided in the immediately preceding clause (i),

(d)  Tenant agrees that if Tenant files a petition for reorganization under the provisions of
b1 U.S.C. § 101 et seq. (the “Bankruptcy Code™), and if Tenant does not within sixty {60) days
from the entry of an order for relief by the Bankruptey Court assume or reject the Lease pursuant
to the terms of Section 365 of the Bankruptcy Code, then, effectively immediately, the Monthly
Rent due under the Lease shall increase at a rate of ten percemt {10%) per month. Tenant may
subscquently reduce the amount of Monthly Rent due 1o the amount of Monthly Rent in effect
prior (o any such cscalation under this clause by either: (i) assuming the Lease pursuani (o
Section 365 or (i) by assuming and assigning Tenant’s interest in the Lease to a third party
pursuant to Section 363.

(¢)  Tenanl expressly acknowledpes and agrees that the project in which the Premises are
located is a “shopping center” as such term is defined in the Federal Bankruptey Code.

{f Notwithstanding anything contained in this Lease to the contrary, if this Lease is rejected
in any bankruptcy action or procceding filed by or against Tenant. and the effective date of
rejection is on or after the date upon which the Monthly Installment of Fixed Rent is due and
owing, then the Rent owing under this Lease for the month during which the eftective date ol
such rejection occurs shail be due and payable in full and shall not be prorated.

CONSENTS
SECTION 51

Whenever Landlord has agreed or is legally required not to unreasonably withhold the granting
of its consent or approval to any specific request by Tenant pursuant to this Lease, Landlord and
Tenant specifically understand and agree that the remedy for the unreasonably withholding
thercol by Landlord shall be limited to specific performance of the matter in question and
maonetary damages shall in no event be available in any such instance.

CONSTRUCTION ALLOWANCE
SECTION 52

Within forty five (45) days after fulfillment of the requirements set forth below, Landlord agrees
to pay 1o Tenant $227 500.00 {$35.00/sF) as and for Landlord’s coniribution to Tenant’s Work
{“Construction Allowance™). Tenant’s FIEIN: . The requirements are:

(A)  Completion of Tenant’s Work in accordance with Exhibit D, in & manner
satisfactory 10 Landlord's Architect.

{B}  Presentation to Landlard of the following:

(i) General Contractor’s executed and notarized originals of Swom Statement
and final Waiver of Lien/Affidavit form listing all subcontractors and
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material suppliers and the amounts they were paid for work and materials
supplicd for the Premises;

(i)  Executed and notarized final Waiver of Lien/Affidavit form from every
subcontractor and material supplier, and other evidence satisfactory to
Landlord that the general contractor and every subcontractor and material
supplier has, in fact. been paid in full:

(iif)  Waivers/Affidavits must be satisfactory to Landlord.
(C)  Presentation to Landlord of a Cedificate of Occupancy.

(D)  Tenant shall have opened its store to the general public for business and shall
have paid io L.andlord the first Monthly Instatiment of Fixed Rent.

{E)  Tenant shall have not been in default under the terms and canditions of this Lease.

Unless Landlord receives verification that the general contractor and alf subcontractors and
material suppliers have been paid in full, Landlord may pay Tenant's general contracior,
subcontracters and material suppliers directly and deduct said amounts from the Construction
Allowance, or Landlord may issue joini checks for all or part of the Construction Allowance to
the general contractor and the subcontractors and material suppliers.

1f this Lease terminates for any reason prior to its stated expiration date. Tenant shall reimburse
Landlord for the unamortized amount of the Construction Allowance (based on a straight-line
amortization).

COUNTERPARTS
SECTION 53

This Lease, including the attached guaranty, if any, may be executed in one or more
counterparts, any one of which if originally executed, shall be binding upon each of the parties
signing thercon and alt ol which taken together shall constitute one and the same instrument.

CONFIDENTIALITY

SECTION 54

Tenant and any officer, dircetor, principal sharcholder, employee, agent, associate or affiliate of
Tenant shall not disclose ihe tenns of this Lease to any person, excepting only attorneys or
accouniants representing or assisting Tenant to the extent required in conjunction with proper

performance of their dutics. or as may be compelled by proper process in connection with any
Jjudicial or adminisirative proceedings.

31
14539984v, | 742415.00005%

Attachment 2

72




The parties have exceuted this Lease on the day and year first specified above, and this Lease
shall be deemed 10 have been executed and delivered in Lemeont, Mllinois.

If Tepant is a corporation, the authorized officers must sign on behalf of the corporation and
indicate the capacity in which they are gigning. This Lease must be executed by the president or
vice-president.

LANDLORD:

LEMONT PLAZA PARTNERS. LLLC,
an Minois limited liability company

Ry:  GK Development. Inc.
its manager

By:

TENANT:

By:
Its:
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EXHIBIT =A”
COMMENCEMENT DATE MEMORANDUM

THIS MEMORANDUM, made as of , 2012, by and between
{"“Landlord™) and {*Tenant™),
RECITALS:
Al Landlord and Tenant arc parties to that certain lLease, dated for reference
, 20__  (the “Lease™ for certain premises
(the “Premises™) consisting of approximately square feet at the

B.

C.

shopping center commonly known as

Tenant is in possession of the Premises and the Term of the lease has
commenced.

Landlord and Tenant desire to enter into this Memorandum confirming the
Commencement Date, Rent Commencement Date, the Termination Date and
other matters under the Lease,

NOW, THEREFORE, Landlord and Tenant agree as follows:

The actual Commencement Date is

The actual Rent Commencement Date is

The actual Termination Date is

Capitalized terms not defined herein shall have the same meaning
as sct forth in the Lease,

[N WITNESS WHEREOQF, the partics hereto have caused this Agreement 1o be executed
as ol the date and year first above written.

LANDLORD: TENANT:
LEMONT PLAZA PARTNERS, LLC,
an Illinois tmited liability company
By:  GK Development, Inc., By:
its manager
Name:
By: Title:
Dated: .20 Daied: .20
33
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EXHIBIT “B”

SITE PLAN/LEASING PLAN

Disclaimer:  This drawing is for general information purposcs only. Any and all features,
matters and other information depicted hereon or contained herein are for illustrative marketing
purposes onfy. are subject to modification without notice, are not intended to be relied upon by
any party and are not intended to constitute representations and warranties as to the sizc and

nature of improvernents to be constructed {or that any improvements will be constructed) or as to
the identity or nature of any occupants thereof.

T

Tomos

WEINER AVE.

i

,\@ EXPSTING BT DTV QPR NT PLAN
ETaT
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EXHIBIT =™

OUTLINE OF LANDLORD™S WORK

Except as otherwise set fonh in this Lease, Tenant acknowledges and agrees that the Premises
are being deiivered “AS 1S WHERE 1S” and 1hat Landlord shall have no obligation 1o perform
any work whatsoever.

Provided that Landlord, at ils sole cost and expense, shall construct and install in the Premises
the following work {“Base Work™) in conformance with Tenant’s plans approved by Landlord,

I

2.

Division. Landlord will divide space "R™ and split utilities per Tenant’s specs.

Electrical Service. Fumnish 2nd install 600 amp 280v 3-phase electrical service 1o a panel
box on the Premises.

Floor. Smooth and clean concrete floar.

HVAC. Two existing 12.5 ton HVAC units in good working condition. Distribution by
Tenant.

Water. Fumish 27 diamecier incoming waler line to the Premises that is dedicated.
independent and separaiely metered.

Sewer. The presence of sewer service with no less than a 4 line into the Premises of
sufficient inverl depth that will allow Tenant to install toilet fixtures at the farthest
distance from the scwer line.

Tenam shall promptly furnish Landlord or Landlord’s architect with any information required by
Landlord or Landlord’s architect to complete Landlord’s Plans.
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EXHIBIT “D”

OUTLINE OF TENANT'S WORK

Tenant at Tenant's expense shall perform all work, other than Landlord’s work set forth in
Exhibit “C* to put the Premises in condition to permit Tenant to conduct its business thercin.
The cost of any work performed by Landlord’s contractor at Tenant's expense shafl become due
and payable prior to commencement of such work. Tenant’s work shall be performed in strict
accordance with the provisions of the Lease and the Exhibits therete. TO THE EXTENT THE
WORK IS ALREADY IN PLACE, THE REQUIREMENT MAY BE IGNCGRLED.

A. CRITERIA, JURISDICTION AND CODES:

1. The criteria and outling specifications set forth herein represent minimum
standards for design. construction, finish and operation of the Premises by Tenant.
Landlord reserves the dght from time to time o revise these criteria and outline
specifications as Landlord in its sole discretion deems fit.

2. This Shopping Center is being developed in and under the jurisdiction of the
City of Lemont and the State of llinois. Al design and consiruction work shall
comply with all applicable statutes. ardinances, rules, regulations and codes of the
aforementioned  jurisdictions, and all other, applicable regulations and
requirements ol the Landlord’s fire insurance carriers, the requirements ol any
company or governmental body supplying utilities or services. all applicable
federal building and safety orders, stalutes. ordinances. rules regulations and
codes, the requirements and regulations of any environmental prolection agency.
firc protection district, or quasi-governmental authority having jurisdiction over
this retail development.

B. PERMITS AND APPROVALS:

1. Prior to commencement of construction by Tenant, Tenant shall obtain, at
Tenant's expense. all necessary permits and approvals (including Tenanl's
signage) and post same upon the Premises as required thereby with a copy of the
permit forwarded to Landlord.

2. Tenant shall be required 1o obtain a certificate of occupancy {CO) prior to
opening the store for busingss.

3. No construction within the Premises may commence without Landlord’s written
approval.

C. APPROVALS OF TENANT S PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS:

l. Tenant shall within 30 days from the date of this Lease, at Tenant's expense.
prepare and deliver 1o Landlord, and Landlord’s architect for approval, two sets of
complete plans and specifications (including all HVAC, plumbing, fire protection
and clectrical engineering as well as structural cngineering. i applicable)
covering all of Tenant's work conceming Lhe Premises. in such detail as Landlord
may require, in lull compliance with the Lease and the Exhibits attached thereto,
certified by a licensed and repistered architect and, M applicable. a licensed and
registcred professional engineer.

2. [n the event Landlord shall notify Tenant that Tenant's plans and specifications
are not approved, Tenant shall have 10 days from the daic of lLandlord’s
disapproval to revise the plans and specifications and resubmit themn to Landlord
for Landlord’s approval. Landlord’s written approval shall be obtained by Tenant
prior to the undertaking of any construction work which deviates [rom or modifies
in any way Tenant’s approved plans and specifications or any other work not
explicitly shown on said plans and specifications.
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D.

ARCHITECTURAL, MECHANICAL AND ELECTRICAL WORK:

I Design loads: The Tenant’s certified Architects and/or Engincers shall be
responsibie for all design live Joad calculations, peint load calculations, balance
reports, static testing. efc. io be within the limits of the allowable live loads or
limits for the existing building systems.

a. On-grade slabs: To be detcrmined by the Tenant's certified
Architect/Engineer,

b. Roof: Tenant shall not make any installation whatsoever on the roof
above the Premises or any other portion of the roof of the Shopping Center
without Landlord’s prior written authorization,

c. Ceiling: Point load calculation to be determined by the Tenant’s certified
Architect/Engineer.

2. Standard Project Details, as issued from time to time by Landlord’s architect and
as they pertain to Tenant's work. shall govern with respeci to such work.
Such details shall be incorporated iato the working drawings and specifications
for the Premises.

3. Only new, (irst class materials shall be used in the performance of Tenant’s work.
4. Architectural Work and Finishes to be Provided by Tenant.
5. Tenant to provide all insulation or other requirements to meet village regulations.

HOLD HARMLESS AGREEMENT:

Tenant shall save and hold Landlord, Landlord Affiliates, Landlord’s lender,
the architect. structural. mechanical. electrical. plumbing and fire protection engincers
harmless from and against all claims, damages, losses, expenses (including.
without limitation, court costs and attorney’s fees) and liabilities whatsoever arising out
of or connected with the performance of work by Tenant. the contractor and its
subcontractors. Tenant will defend at its own expense, any actions based thereon and
shall pay all charges of attorneys and ail costs and other expenses arising therefrom.
And further, Tenant shall cause each of Tenant's contractors, 10 the fullest extent
permitted under the Law, to protect, defend, save harmless, and indemnify Landlord,
Landlord’s lender, Landlord Affiliates, Landlord’s architect, siructural, mechanical,
electrical, plumbing and fire protection engineers against any and all liability, claims,
demands, or expenses incurred on account of any injury or damage, alleged or real,
arising out of or in any way connected with the performance of work by Tenant,
the contractor and its subcontractors and any act or omission to act on their part as
required pursuant to the terms of the Lease.

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT OF 1950:

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Lease, Tenant shall comply
with the Americans with [disabilitics Act of 1990 {(*ADA™), and any amendments to the
ADA, as well as all other applicable Laws regarding access to, employment ol and
service to individuals covered by the ADA. Tenant’s compliance will include but not be
lintited to the design, construction and alteration of the Premises and such other arcas
fe.g. path of travel} as Tenant may have to alter in order to he in compliance with
the ADA,

TENANT'S CONTRACTOR:
Adl Tenant's Work and all disbursements of money, shall be effectuated in accordance

with the following procedures and conditions:
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{1 Tenant’s contractor and Tenant shall prepare or cause to be prepared a contract
wherein the contractor shall agree to complete Tenant's Work in accordance with
the approved plans and specifications.

(2)  Said contract shall be in the form of the current edition of Document ALQ] or
Document A107 of the Amcrican Institute of Architects, shall be subject to
Landlord's prior written approval and shall provide, among other things,
as follows:

{a)  That notwithstanding anything contained in the contracl documents 1o the
contrary, the contractor will perform the work and furnish the materials
required therefor on the sole credit of Tenant; that no lien for labor or
materials will be filed or claimed by the contractor against the Premises or
the Shopping Center of which the Premises are a part;

{b)  That said contractor shall furnish a bond in compliance with the terms of
Section H of this Exhibit “I)", if required by Landlord.

{c)  That said contractor shall furnish Tenant and Landlord with certificates of
insurance evidencing (i) Statutory Workers™ Compensation limits and
Employer's Liability limits of $1.000.000.00 each accident, $1,000,000.00
diseasc-policy  limit,  $1,000,000.00  discase  c¢ach  employee;
(ii) Commercial General Liability including produces and completed
operations coverage, premises, liability, blanket contractual liability
including contractor’s indemnity agreements, personal injury employees
exclusion deleted. Limits of $2.000,000.00 per occurrence Bodily Injury
and Property Damage and $3,000.000.00 aggregate: (iii) All Risk builders
risk insurance in the full amount of the contract sum: and (iv) Commercial
Auto  Liability including owned, non-owned, or hired vehicles:
$2.000.000.00 Combined Single Limit. Al of said cenificates of
insurance shall name as additional named insured parties landlord and
other partics designated by Landlord, and shall carry an cndorsement
insuring the following conmractual liability, which shall be imposed upon
the contractor by the construction contracl.

H. PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BOND:

Prior to the commencement of Tenant's Work if Landlord shall so elect by written notice
to Tenant, Tenant shall fumish or cause its contracior to fumish to Landlord a
Performance and Labor and Material Payment Bond in the form of AIA Document A311.
Current Iidition or other form acceptable to Landlord, in an amount equal to double the
total cost of Tenant’s Work. Said bond shall name Landlord as an additional beneficiary
and shall be issucd bv a surety authorized to write bonds for the United States
Government for no Tess than $5.000.00. [n the event Tenant shull fail to furnish or fail to
cause its contraclor to furnish to Landlord said bond, Tenant and/or ils contractor will not
be given permission to start construction of the Premises. in addition to the same being a
default under the leasc.
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TENANT REQUIREMENTS

Tenant is responsible for compliance with all federal, state and local building codes,
ordinances and covenants.

Tenam is responsible for {ull compliance with all applicable federal, state, and local
Accessibility Standards and the A.ID.A., and for submittal to proper authorities for review
and inspection,

Tenant is responsible for compliance with all applicable federal. state and local codes for
construction finish-out of its space. This includes but may not be limited to, rooffceiling
insulation R values for roof assemblies and exterior walt assembly insulation R vatues,

Tenant's contractor is 10 take exireme care in construction, while working adjacent to
cxisting buildings and lease spaces, to prevent damage 1o existing structures. Provide all
required circulation, environmental and hazard protection for cxisting structures and
pedestrians. Tenant’s coniractor is to protect all existing befow gradefslab utilities.
Tenant’s contractor shali repair ail damaged items to existing condition.

Tenant is 1o show and coordinate all ¢xisting risers for sanilary sewer. domestic water,
fire water, roof drain, rool overflow drain. natural gas, etc.

Tenant is to coordinate and indicate new or existing roof access ladders (and O.S.H.A.
cages when bottom of roof deck is over 20°-07 above floor) and reof access scuttles,
within their space.

All yoof penctrations and patching are to be done in accordance with ihe Landlord's
requirements. Tenant shall obtain pre-approved roof penctration locations from the
Landlord. Patch back of all roof penctrations shall be per Landlord’s requirements,
bythe original shopping center roofer. and shall be installed as per the reofing
manulacturer’s specifications. There are no “pitch-pocket” roof penctrations allowed.
All penctrations must be through preformed boots, metal {lashed boots as per
S.M.CN.A., or through prefabricated curbs with watertight covers. In no case will the
Tenant be allowed to comipramise or void the Landlord’s Roofing Warrantee.

“Trenching” of the existing reinforced concrete floor slab should be kept 10 a minimum
quantity and widlh. Where codes permit group under floor utilities in single trenches.
The minimurm trench cut width is to be 12 inches.

Tenant is required to pour back the reinforced concrete floor slab utility leave-ouls to
mect the Shell Structural Engineer’s requirements and the Geotech Report for
subsurface/backfill requirements. The lecation shown for the existing utility stab
leave-out is approximate. Tenant is lo field verify exact configuration, size and location.

We recommend that interior wall furring. on existing conerete tilt walls. have full depth
true drywall control joints aligning with the existing wall panel joints. Contral joints
should be formed using two scparate metal studs (one cach side of panel joint) and a
standard pypsum bhoard control joint. This applics to both comer and intermediate
concrete panel joints.

No shading or pattern films or false muntins/mullions are te be applied Lo the storefront
glazing without submittal to and approval by Landlord.

Al exterior signage including building mounted, (if applicable-pylon sign and shopping
center pylon sign modules) are 1o be subimitted for review by the Landlord. Tenant shall
include an elevation showing all signage {including mounting heights) with submittal.
Tenant is to submil a complete signage drawing package as defined in the Tenanl Sign
Criteria Manual and the Tenant’s Lease Agrecment.
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20.

Tenant is 1o submit for review any proposed temporary signage that Tenant proposes to
exhibit for their grand opening. Submittal is to be as defined in the Tenant Sign Criteria
Manual and the Tenant’s Lease Agrcement.

“Coming Soon™ signage may be in place & maximum of thirty (30) days. Signage may
not attach to the building or impair the progress of the work to the Shell building.
Tenant shall coordinate location with the Landlord.

Tenant is not to suspend any items from the bottom of the roof deck or from the boltom
roof joist or joist girder chords. without written approval of the building Shell Structural
Engineer of record.  Tenant is to submit proposed details. Tor items suspended from (he
roof structure, for review by Shell Structural Engineer. In general, no duct work,
conduits. pipes. banners, signage. or curtain/suspended furrdowns or walls are to be
suspended from the bottom of the roof structure or roof deck. without specific approval,
No Tenant finish-out work is 10 be suspended from any work by another trade, from joist
brideing or from X-bracing. Suspended tee grid ceilings and light fixtures may be
suspended from the bottom roof joist and bottom joist girder chords in maximum weights
of 75 pounds at bottom chord joist panel points, without added steel angle reinforeing up
to top joist chords. Suspended ceilings and light fixtures are not to be suspended from
the bottom of the roof deck.

Tenant is responsible for any required modifications to the fire sprinkler grid (if existing).
for all new sprinkler head drops and for modifying cxisting drops to fit their space and
ceiling heights/types. Tenant is responsible for any required modifications of the existing
fire riscrs including the adding of exterior Fire Department conncctions serving their
space. Tenamt is responsible for adding any interior fire hoses and racks and fire
extinguishers as may be required by codes and the local Iire Marshall. Al main and
branch firc sprinkler grid lines are to be run within the roof struclure space wherever
possible.  When lines arc run below the reof structure, they are to be held as high as
possible to the bottom of the struciure. All lines are to be suspended from top chords of
joist and joist girders.

The Tenant is to provide for a minimum of %" vertical slab movemnent in their
construction of full height, floor 1o roef, partition walls. Either by use of a Flex Head top
stud track or a Friction Fit stud wall head in a deep leg top track. Tepant is to submit
details for approval,

When Tenant constructs the One-Hour U.L. Rated System demise partitions, the wall is
lo be constructed of 18ga. galvanized metal studs at 16™ o.c. with one (1) layer onty of
5/8" Type X gypsum board on Tenant’s side. 3 5/8” metal studs should be used up to
19°-07 AF.F. with 6 metal studs used up 1o 28-0" A.F.F. With continuous horizontal
latcral bracing of | /2" 16ga. galvanized steel CR channels at 8'-0" o.c. vertical,
clip attached to studs, for full wall height, starting at 4°-0” AF.l. Tenant is to provide
for a minimum of 3/4™ vertical slab movement in the constiraction of the demise partition
by using either a Flex Head or Friction Fit studs in a deep leg head track condition that
mects U.L. design requirements. Tenant is 10 tape, bed and finish gypsum board on lease
side. Tenant to provide fire rated 3 1/2™ batt insulation retained with clips. (Wall 10 meet
requirements of U.L.)

All penetrations through One-Hour ULL. denuse partitions above and below ceilings are
10 be fire stop sealed with an authorized 111, Fire Raled Sysiem. All joints in One-Hour
demise pariitions are to be a minimum of Fire Taped above ceilings.

Tenant is to maintain the inteprity of thé One-Hour Fire-Rated demising wall.
Any Tenant applicd finishes or modifications 1o the firc-rated partition
{Le.. wall standards, plywood, wood blocking and cleats. sfotwall. etc.) are not 1o impede
the integrity of the fire rating. Shelf standards are not to be recessed in the Cne-Hour
Rated demise partitions without submittal of U.L. approved details and system numbers
and or a letter of approval from the Village approving the installation.
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21.  Tenant is to verify that from all points on the site that all roof top equipment including
H.V.A.C. units. exhaust fans. ventilation fans. vent stacks and roof top antennas (pole and
dish) are all fully concealed behind roof parapets.

22, All horizontal conduit and piping support on top of rool musl meet reofing
manufacturer’s details for insialtation on roofing system installed.

23. Al of Tenant's roof top units are to be installed on level curbs; curb adaptors are not
acceptable. Curb is to be tapered to follow roof slope. so that top of curbs are level. Al
openings made in roof are 10 have steel angle frames, as indicated in the shell structural
details. Roof top equipment frames are to bear and auached to structure.  Openings
through existing roof are to be kept to a minimum with R.T.L. openings inside the roof
top frames limited to the ouiside size of the duct penctrations. Scal around all
penetrations through the existing roof. Tenant is to submit struciural drawings detailing
support for roof 1op frames, roof openings, stiffening of roof deck at frames and
anchorage of roof frames to structure,  All roof 1op cquipment is to be installed within the
designaled timits of the roof structure “Mechanical Zone™, as indicated on the Shell
structural drawings. Tenani is 10 have the roofing contractor provide cricketing in the
roof insulation board, on the high sides of R.T.U. curbs to facilitate surface drainage
around the curbs.

24.  Itisrequired that the Tenant provide a 30” wide walk board path around all roof top units
at no cost 10 the Landlord. 307 x 307 walk way pads arc required. The walk boards arc
to be of the type and installation recommended by the manutaclurer for the existing
roofing system installed. Walk board paths should he spaced 127 from the sides and duct
drop ends of the units, and 24" from the condenser end of the units,

25, Tenant is not 1o drain roof top roof top unit condensate drains onte the roof. Al RT.U.
condensale drain lines are 1o he extended and connected to the nearest sanilary/storm
SEWCT.

26.  Tenant’s coniractor is not 1o install any cquipment or vent or conduit penetrations
through existing slanding scam metal roofs or awnings, withoul prior Landlerd approval.
When cxisting sewer vent stacks are available, sewer vents are to be routed to an existing
remote location. Temant is to submit details and locations for proposed venting.
Tf scwer vents must penctrate existing standing seam roofs then Tenant is to submit
proposed locations and details for penctrations. Pencirtions through standing seam roofs
must meel all applicable codes and roofing manufacturer’s standards for venting and
ftashing through their standing seam roofing system.

27.  Any changes required in the existing hollow metal exit/service doors and hardware
including thresholds are to be by Tenant. at no cost to the Landiord. Any changes
required in the sidewalks, stoops or floor slabs a1 the existing doers are 10 be by Tenant,
at no cost to the Landlord. Al modifications arc to mect applicable codes
including ADA.

28, Tenant is to submit an electrical riser diagram, for their proposed connection to the
existing electrical bus gutter. 10 the Landlord for review. The “drawn to scale”™ drawing
is to include dimensions for the proposed length of bus gutter 10 be used, the Tenant shall
not use more than 187 of gutter length to mount their meler can and disconnect,
Electrical power capacity being provided for the Tenam will not exceed 20 Wans per
square foot of lease area.

29, Tenant is not W place any permanent or temporary furniture or site fixtures ouiside their
l.ease space. on sidewalk or landscape arcas. Unless Tenant has in their Lease
Agreement a designated “outdoor seating arca™. There are to be no exterior temporary
displays without Landlord approval.

30.  Tenant is to submit for review complete structurally enginecred drawings for all
Tenant-supplicd and installed awnings and canopies. Engineering is to include wind
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31.

32.

3.

34.

35.

36.

37.
38.

39.

49,

design and connections to existing building watls or columns. Submittal is to include
samples and colors of all materials proposed. Refer the Tenant Design Criteria Manual
for other requirements. No awning or canopy is allowed 1o be attached to the existing or
Tenant-supplied or modified aiuminum storefront system.

Concerning interior extension of power from exterior electrical service 1o Lease Spaces:
No exposed conduits serving a specific Lease Area are to be run exposed through an
adjacent Lease Space. All conduits are to be run concealed within interior furring on
exterior walls within struecture through adjacent lease spaces. Conduits are to be neatly
collected within specific wall furring areas as high as possible, in a location reviewed and
approved by the Landlord. Tenant must coordinate with the [.andlord on all work 10 be
performed in adjacent lease spaces.

Tenant is to verily dimensioned lease arcas from f{ixed building structural elements as
defined in their Lease Agreement for both dimensions and square footages. Dimensions
are to be indicated on Tenant’s finish-out drawings.

Where Tenant's added conduits, buss guiters, junction boxes, pancl boxes, meters, pipes
etc. are mounted exposed on rear service arca walls, all items are to be three (3)
coat painted by the Tenanl to match the color of the existing wall on which itlems are
mounted. All exposed conduits, pipes. junction boxes etc. added by Tenant, above the
roof bath in mid ficld arcas and on backs of parapets, are to be three (3) coat painted by
the Tenant in a color to be selecied by the Shell architects,

Exterior wall light sconces with decorative metat shrouds at each pilaster and at sclected
columms, are provided and instailed by the Landiord. Any required reworking of interior
conduits and wiring s 10 be done by the Tenant at ne cesi to the Landlord.

The structural inegrity of the Building shall not be compromised in any way shape or
form.

All Tenant improvements must be self-supporting. Storefront. interior materials, fixturcs
andfor equipment must nol be hung from landlord’s building structure, roof deck,
mechanical or other systems. Lateral bracing allowed upon approval only.

Nothing shall be anchored to the bottom of the deck or to the bottom of bar joists.

All new and existing electrical equipment, lighting and device loads as per approved
plans must be within the limits of the existing electrical panei capacity and/or within
limits stated in the Lease.

Mechanical HVAC unit must be serviced quarlerly or per the direction of the mall
management. A report from Tenant’s HVAC subcontractor must be supplied 1o the
Landlord.

Any modifications to any of the building systems must be approved by local authority
having jurisdiction and must be coordinated with the mall management.
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EXHIBIT “E”
RULES AN REGULATIONS

1. Landlord reserves the right 10 change from time to lime the format of the signs or
lettering on the sign and to requirc replaccment of any signs previously approved
pursuant to Section 16 10 conform to Landlord's new standard sign criteria established
pursuant to any remodeling of the Shopping Center.

2, Tenant shall not, without the priar writicn consent of Landlord (i) paint, decorate or make
any changes to the store front of the Premiscs: or (ii) install any exterior lighting, awning
or proirusions, signs, advertising matter, decoration or painting visibl from the exterior
ol the Premiscs or any coverings on exterior windows and doors, excepting only dignified
dispiays of customary type in store windows. [f Landlord objects in writing to any of the
loregoing, Tenant shall immediately discontinue such use.

3. Tenanl shall not (i) conduct or permit any fire, bankrupicy or auction sale {whether real
or fictitious) unless direcied by order of a court of competent jurisdiction, or conduct or
permit any legitimate or [ictitious “Going Out of Business™ sale nor represent or advertise
that it regularly or customarily sclls merchandise as a “manufacturer’s outiet™,
“distributor™, “wholcsaler™ or “warchouse”, but Tenant may represent and advertise that
it conducts business at “off-price™ or at “retail™; (ii} use, or permit to be used. the malls or
sidewalks adjacent to the Premises, or any other area outside the Premises for solicitation
or for the sale or display of any merchandise or for any other business, occupation or
undertaking. or for outdeor public meetings, circus or other crtertainment (except for
promotional activities in cooperation with the management of the Shopping Center or an
association of merchants within the Shopping Center); {iii) use or permit (o be used any
sound broadeasting or amplifying device which can be heard outside of the Premises or
any flickering lights: (iv) operaic or cause to be operated “elephant trains” or similar
transportation devices; or (v) use or permit to be used any portion of the Premiscs for any
unlawful purpose or otherwise contrary to Law, or nse or permil the use of any portion of
the Premises as regular living quarters, sleeping apartments or lodging rooms or for the
conducl of any manufacturing business.

4. Tenant shall at atl times keep the Premises at a temperature sufficientty high to prevent
freezing of water pipes and fixtures. Tenant shall not, nor shall Terant at any time,
permit any occupant of the Premises to: (i) use, operate or maintain the Premises in such
manner that any rates for any insurance carried by Landlord, or the occupant of any
premises within the Shopping Center, shall thereby be increased; or (i) commit wasle,
perform any acts or carry any practices which may injure the Shopping Center or be a
nuisance or menace to other tenants in the Shopping Center.

5. Tenant shall not obstruct any sidewalks, passages. exits, entrances. truck ways, loading
docks, package pick-up stations, pedestrian sidewalk and ramps, first aid and comfort
stations, or stairways of the Shopping Center. No tenant and no employee or invitee of
any tenant shall go upon the roof of the Shopping Center without notifying Landlord
prior thereto.

6. Landlord will turnish Tenant free of charge with two keys 1o cach door lock in the
Premises.  Landlord may make a reasonable charge for any additionat keys.
Tenant, upon the termination of its tenancy. shall deliver to Landlord the keys to all doors
of the Premises.

7. If Tenant requires telegraphic. elephonic, burglar alarm or similar services, it shall first
obtain and comply with Landlord’s instruction in their installation.

8 ‘Fenant shall not place a load upon any floor which exceeds the designed load per square
foot or the load permitted by Law. Landlord shail have the right to prescribe the weight,
size and position of all equipment, materials, furniture or other property brought into the
Premises. Heavy objects shall stand on such platforms as determingd by Landlord to be
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nccessary 1o properly distribute the weight.  Business machincs and mechanical
equipmenl belonging to Tenant which cause noise or vibration that may be transmitted to
the structure of Tenant’s store or 1o any other space to such a degree as o be
objectionable to Landlord or 1o any tenants shall be placed and maintained by Tenant,
at Tenant’s expense, on vibration eliminators or other similar devices. The persons
empioyed io move equipment in or out of Tenant's store must be acceplable to Landlord.
Landlord will not be responsible for loss of. or damage 10. any equipment or other
property from any cauose, and all damage done to the Shopping Center by maintaining or
moving such equipment or other property shall be repaired at the expense of Tenant.

9. The toilet rooms, loilets, urinals, wash bowls and other apparatus shall not he used for
any purpose other than that for which they were construcled. No foreign substance of
any kind whatsoever shall be thrown therein. and the expense of any breakage, stoppage
or damage resulting from the violation of this rule shall be borne by the tenant whe, or
whose cmployees or invitees, shall be the cause of such breakage, stoppage or damage.

10.  Tenant shall not install any radio or television antenna, loudspeaker, satellite dish. or
other device on the roof or exterior walls of Tenant's store. Tenant shall not interfere
with radio or television broadcasting or reception from or in the Shopping Center or
elsewhere.

11, Except as approved by Landlord, Tenant shall not damage partitions, woodwork or
plaster or in any way deface the Premises. Tenant shall not cut or bore holes for wires.
Tenant shall not affix any floor covering to the floor of the Premises in any manner
cxeept as approved by Landlord.  Tenant shall repair any damage resulting from
noncompliance with this rule.

[2.  Fenant shall not install, mainain or operate upon the Premises or in any Common Areas
under the exclusive contrel of Tenant any vending machine or video game without
l.andlord’s prior writlen consent.

13, Tenant shall comply with all Laws relating to solid waste management including, but not
limited to. recycling. Unless otherwise prohibited by applicable Law, Tenant shall store
all its trash and garbage in containers within its Premiscs and/or in the portion of the
Common Areas designated by Landlord. Tenant shall not place in any trash box or
receptacle any material which cannot be disposed of in the ordinary and customary
manner of trash and garbage disposal. All garbage and refuse disposal shall be made in
accordance with dircctions issued from time to time by Landlord.

14, No cooking shall be dong or permiticd by Tenant on the Premises without Landlerd’s
prior written consent, except for brewing coffee and similar beverages and use of a single
microwave oven by employees only, provided that such use is in accordance with all
applicable Laws. [n any event Tenant will not permit odors 10 emanate from the
Premises.

15, Tenant shall not use in any space any hand trucks except those equipped with rubber tires
und side guards or such other material-handling equipment as Landlord may approve.
Tenant shall not bring any other vehicles of any kind into Tenant’s store.

16.  Employees of Landlord shall not perform any work or do anything outside of their
regular duties untess under special instructions from Landlord.

17. All loading and unloading of goods shall he donc only at such times, in the arcas. and
through the entrances, thal may be designated for such purposes by Landlord.
The delivery or shipping of merchandise, supplics and fixtures to and from the 'remises
shall be subject to such rules and regulations as in the judgment of Landlord are
necessary for the proper operation of the Premises and the Shopping Center.

18.  Tenant and Tenant’s employees shall park their cars only in such portion of the parking
arca designated for those purposes by Landlord. Tenant shall fumish Landlord with
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20.

21.

2.

23

slate automobile license numbers assigned to Tenant’s employees within five (5) days
after taking possession of the Premises and shall thercafter notify Landlord of any
changes within five (5) days after changes occur. In the ¢vent that Tenant or its
employces fail 1o park their cars in designated parking areas as aforesaid, then Landlord,
al its option, shall charge the Tenant Ten Dollars ($10.00) per dayv or partial day per car
parked in any area other than that designated.

Landlord may waive any one or more of these Rules and Regulations for the benefit of
any particular tenant or tenanis, but no such waiver by Landlord shall be construed as a
waiver of such Rules and Regulations in favor or any other tenant or (enznls, nor prevent
Landiord from thercafier enforcing anv such Rules and Reguiations against any or all of
the tenants of the Shopping Center.

These Rules and Regulations are in addition to, and shall not be construed o in any way
modify or amend. in whole or in part, the terms, covenants, agreemnents and conditions of
the Lease to which these Rules and Regulations are attached or any other lease of
premises in the Shopping Center,

Tenant shali be responsibie for the observance of all of the foregoing rules by Tenant™s
employees, agents, clients, customers, invitees and guests.

Tenant shall use, at Tenant’s cost, such pest extermination contractor as Landlord may
direct and at such intervals as Landlord may require.

Trailers. trucks or cars shall not be permitted to remain parked overnight in any area of
the Shopping Center, whether Joaded, unloaded or partially loaded. No parking shaii be
permitted of any trailer, truck or other vehicle in any area of the Shopping Centcr at any
time for purposes of advenising or promotion without Landlord's prior writlen
permission.

Tenant agrees to comply with ail additional and supplemental rules and regulations upon notice
of same from Landlord.
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EXHIBIT “F"
GENERAL RETAIL SIGN CRITERIA

1. All Tenamt Identification Signage shall be subject to the approval of the Project Architeel
or Landlord. Two copies ol detailed sign drawings shall be submitled for approval.
Drawings 10 demonstrate placement of signage on complete building fagade and pertinent
storelront elevation, including all decals. open signs, etc. on the glazed storefront.
Submit plans to GK Development, Inc., 257 East Main Street, Suvite 100, Barrington,
Winois 60010,

ANY SIGNAGE THAT DISPLAYS THE NAME OF THE BUSINESS, SERVICES,
PRODUCTS, TPROMOTIONS, TEMPORARY, ETC. OTHER THAN THE
PREVIOUSLY APPROVED SIGNAGE BY LANDLORD NEEDS APPROVAL BY
LANDLORD. SHALL NOT EXCEED 25% OR 1/4™ OF THE BUSINESS WINDOW,
AND SUCH SIGNS SHALL NOT BE DISPLAYEID FOR NO MORE THAN 30 DAYS.

2. Tenant shall be limiled to Building Fagade Signage only.
3. Tenant signage shall be limited 10 store name only.
4. Sign permits must be obtained by the Tenant,

5. Any damage caused by Tenant’'s work by signage installation shall be repaired by the
Landlord and charged to the Tenant.

6. Building Facade Signage Design Criteria.

{2)  Signage will be composed of individually constructed illuminated letters mounted
on a conlinuows wireway painted to malch fascia and manulzctured to Landlord’s
specificalions,

(b Logos and logo panels will be subject to Landtord approval.

{c)  Maximum length of signage shall be 70% of the width of Tenant's demiscd
premises.

{d)  Maximum height of sign area shall be 2°6”. No individual letter height may
exceed 2'67. Variations to the aforesaid height limits may be permitted with
Landlord’s approval. Where 2 lincs of letiers are utilized. the overall height wili
still remain within the limits of (he sign band, but variations may be permitied
with Landlord's approval. There must be a minimum of 6™ between the two lines
of letters. Sign s to be centered on sign fagade both vertically and horizontally.

{¢)  On termination of leasc. Tenant shall repair damage to building fagade caused by
his signage installation and N1l in holes with same material to match existing
finish. Contractor selection, material and metheds for repair must be approved in
writing by the Landlord in advance of the work.

N Seven (7) day, calendar-type, time control device shall be provided by Tenant for
the control of the illumination of Tenant’s sign. storefront and show window
lighting during the required hours designated by Landlord.

7. l.andlord’s Signage Specification.

PLASTIC FACED LETTERS MOUNTED ON  WIREWAY WITH REMOTE
TRANSFORMER.
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LETTERS

Each letter shall be fabricated in channel block or log siyle having the body of the letter 57 deep.
Letter channels and faces shall be formed in exact shape of letters.

Material used for reverse of letter shall be .090 aluminum sheet and shall be cleaned free of oil
and grease, This channel will be primed with Matthews 3125-A wash primer or similar type.
Twao coats of white acrylic polyurethane wili be applied. Finished surfaces to be smooth and frec
of lint and dust.

Letter faces shall be cut frem 3/16" flat Rohm and Haas Plexiglas #2283, Lenses to be held to
metal channel with trip cap retainer of white held in place with sheet metal screws painted 1o
match trimeap.  Each letter to have a 1427 to | white outline on the face. The outline is to be
3M translucent high performance white vinyl.

The sign shall be designed so as not to allow light [caks outside the illuminated letter housing.

All signs shall be approved by Landlord prior to fabrication. Landlord’s approval of Tenant’s
Plans and Specifications shall not be deemed to constitule approval by Landlord of any of
Tenant’s sign work. Tenani must submit separate Sign Drawings and specifications, in
quadruplicate, including samples of materials and colors. for all its proposed sign work. The
drawings shall clearly show the location of all signs on the storelront elevation drawing,
graphics, color and construction and attachment details. Full information regarding cleclrical
load requirements and brightness in foot-candles or foot-lamberts shall also be included. Within
a reasonable time afler the receipt of such drawings and specifications, Landlord shall return one
(1) set thercof to Tenant with its approval and/or any suggested modifications thercof, and if
Tenamt fails to take exception therclo by written notice to Landlord with ten (10) days from
Tenant's receipt of the suggesied modifications from Landlord, Tenant shall be deemed to have
agreed to and approved ail suggested modifications. No sign shall be erected by Tenant except in
accordance with Sign Drawings bearing Landlord's approval.

HLUMINATION
Each lctter shal! be illuminated within letter channel by double stroke red neon tubing.

Neon tubing shail be formed in the shape of the letter and shall be individually gas filled at
10 M.M. pressure or those pressures which will result in essentially uniform life for cach section.
Electrodes shall be type 8C as manufactured by Engineering Glass Laboratory of Newark,
New Jersey.

Tube supperts shall be adjustable type (not less than 3/8™ diameler buttress threaded glass posts)
in which tubing shall be firmly attached by means of pure annealed copper tic wircs,
without strain on tubing so supportcd. Supports shall be fastened to metal letter with stainless
steel rivets.

WIREWAY

The wircway 1o be fabricated from 1235 aluminum sheet and shall be cleaned free of oil and
grease,  The wireway to be coated with Marthews 3123-A wash primer or similar type.
Two coats of acrylic, pelyurethane comparable 1o Matthews acrylic polyurethane will be applied.
Transformer lead wires only are to penctrale the brick walt arca through 3/87 sealtight or
1/2" conduit with the appropriate connectors at cach end. Transformers are to be enclosed in an
appropriate metal enclosure and located inside the store arca (not in canopy area).
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NOTE: Balance of Tenant signage criteria to follow upon final approval of building fagade and
sizc as approved by the City of Lemont. In any event, Tenant's signage shall comply with the
City of Lemont sign ordinances.

ACKNOWLEDGED AND RECEIVED:
TENANT:

Date:

Date:
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EXHIBIT “F-1"

TENANT SIGNAGE

To Be Approved By Landlord Prior To Installation
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EXHIBIT “*G”
GUARANTY
{Corporation)

IN CONSIDERATION OF and as a material inducement 10 Lemont Plaza Partners,
LI.C. an lllinois limited liability company (*Landlord™), executing the within lease dated of cven
date herewith (* Leasc“] with .a corporation, {'Tenant™),
for siore premises in Lemont Plaza, Lemomn, I]Im()ls {(the “Shopping Center™), and in further
consideration ol the sum of Ten Dollars {$10.00} and other good and valuable consideration. the
receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged by the undersigned, U.S. Renal Care,
Inc. (the *Guarantor™), Guarantor does hereby on behalf of itself, its successors and assigns,
unconditionally covenant and agree with Landlord, its successors and assigns, that Tenant is a
wholly owned subsidiary of Guarantor, and that i default shall at any time under the Lease be
made hy Tenant. its successors and assigns, in the payment of any monthly installment of rent, or
additional rent. or in the performance of any of the terms, covenants and conditions of the Leasc,
and il the default shall not have been cured within the time specified in the Lease for curing the
same, then Guarantor will well and truly pay on demand in cash the monthly installment of rent
and additional rent and cure such other default together with such costs and expenses (including,
without limitation, attorney’s fees) incurred by Landlord as a result of or arising out of the
defauit for which Tenant, its successors and assigns, are obligated to Landlord pursvant lo the
terms of the Lease. This Guaranty shall include any liability of Tenant which shall acerue under
the Lease for any period preceding as well as any period fellowing the Term of the Lease,

THIS GUARANTY is an absolute and unconditional guaranty of payment and
performance. [t shall be enforccable against Guarantos. its successors and assigns. without the
necessity for any suit or proceedings by Landlord against Tenant, its successors and assigns, and
without the necessity of any notice of non-payment, non-performance or non-observance or any
notice of acceptiance of this Guaranly or any other notice or demind to which Guaranlor might
otherwise be entitled. all of which Guarantor hereby expressly waives. Guarantor agrees that the
validity of this Guaranly and Lhe obligations of Guarantor shall in no way be terminated. affected
or impaired by reason of the assertion or the failure or delay to assert by Landlord against
Tenant. or Tenant’s successors and assigns. any of the rights or remedies reserved to Landlord
pursuant to the provisions of the Lease. The single or partial exercise of any right, power or
privilege under this Guaranty shali not preciude any other or the further exercise thereof or the
exercise of any other right, power or privilege by Landlord.

THIS GUARANT'Y shall nol be afTected and the liability of the undersigned shali not be
extinguished or diminished by Landlord’s receipt, application or release of security given for the
performance and observation of the covenants and conditions in the Lease to be performed or
observed by Tenant, its successors and assigns; by the cessation from any cause whatsocver of
the liability of Tenant. its successors and assigns: by reason of sums paid or pavable to Landlord
from the procceds of any insurance policy or condemnation award; by any non-liability of
Tenant under the Lease for any reason. including any defect or defense which may now or
herealter exist in favor of Tenant; or by any extensions. rencwals, amendments, indulgences.,
modifications, transfers or assignments in whole or in part of the Lease by Landlord, whether or
nol notice thereol is given to Guarantor. This Guaranty is of payment and not of collection: it is
one of active performance and not one of surctyship for damages or otherwise, This Guaranty
extends to any and all liability which Tenant has or may have to Landlord by reason of matters
occurring before the execution of the Lease or the commencemnent of the Term of the Leasc,
or by matters occurting after the expiration of the Term of the Lease. Guarantor agrees that il
shall have no rights of indemnilication or subrogation against Tenant and agrees that Guarantor
shall subordinate its rights of recourse against Tenant by reason of any indebtedness or sums due
te Guarantor, unless and uontil the Lease is performed to the satisfaction of Landlord.
Guarantor agrees that it shall not assert any claim which it has or may have against Tenant.
including any claims under this Guaranty. until the obligations of Tenant under the Lease are
fully satisfied and discharged. The Hability of Guarantor is co-extensive with that of Tenant and
also joint and severai.
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LANDLORD'S ACCEPTANCE of a notc or addhional collateral of Tenant or of
Guarantor shall not be the full cash pavment or the active and primary performance required
hercin. This Guaranty is given in addition 1o all other guarantics which may pertain to Tenant’s
indebtedness and is not subordinate to any other guaranties. Landlord's rights under all
guarantics, including this Guaranty, shall be cumulalive and independently enforceable.
i shall not be a condition to the enforcement of this Guaranty that any other guaranties he
resorted to by Landiord. Should Landlord be abligated by any bankrupicy or other law to repay
1o Tenan? or 1o Guarantor or to any trustee, receiver or other representative or gither of them. any
amounts previously paid to Landlord. its successors and assigns, this Guaraniy shali be reinstaled
in the amount ol such repayments.

GUARANTOR AGREES that it will. at any time and from time to time, within ten {10)
business days following written request by Landlord, exccute, acknowledge and deliver to
Landlord a statement certifying that this Guaranty is unmodified and in full force and effect
{or if there have been modifications, that the same is in full force and efleci as modified and
stating such modifications) and making such additional statements with respect to this Guaranty
and Guarantor’s obligations hercunder as Landlord shall reasonably request. Guarantor agrees
that such certificatc may be relied on by anyone holding or proposing 1o acquire any interest in
the Shopping Center from or through Landlord or by any mortgagee or lessor or prospective
mortgagec or lessor of the Shopping Center or of any intercst therein.

GUARANTOR REPRESENTS and warrants that:

{a} It is not insolvent, and that there are no limitations or prohibitions 10 the
enforcement of this Guaranty,;

(b} 1L is immediately benefited by the indebtedness;

{c) 1t shall not transfer any of Tenant’s slock wilhout obtaining Landlord’s prior
written consent, and if such consent is given, Guarantor shall immediately obtain
guaranties in this form running from all of the transferces to Landlord; and

{dy  The corporate term of Tenant is and shall remain perpetual.

GUARANTOR AGREES that all shares of stock and rights 1o shares of stock of Tenant
which Guarantor may own, and all debts, rights and other claims which may be or become duc 1o
Guarantor from Tenant. shall be subordinate to this Guaranty and to all other guaranties which
may be given by Guarantor to Landlord from time 1o time. Specifically. and not by way of
limitation of the foregoing, Guarantor agrees that;

{a) It shall notl collect sums due under any such stock, debts, rights or claims or
commence any proceedings to collect such sums unless and umtil all of Tenant’s
indebtedness is paid in full;

{b} It shall not cause or allow any new shares of Tenant’s stock to be issued or allow
any delivery of such shares: and

{c)  Ttshall enter into further subordinations as Landlord may require.

GUARANTOR waives any claim, right or remedy which Guarantor may now have or
hereafter acquire against Tenant or any person primarily or contingently liable for the guaranteed
ohligations or that arise from the existence or performance of Guarantor’s obligations hercunder,
including, withew limiiation, any claim, remedy or righl of subrogation, reimbursement,
exoneration, contribution, indemnification or participation in any claim. right or remedy of
Landlord against Tenanl or any collatcral security Landlord now has or herzafter acquires
regardiess of how such claim. remedy or right arises.

AS A FURTHER inducement to Landlord to make and enter into the Lease and in
consideration thereof, Landlord and Guarantor covenant and agree that in any action or
proceeding brought on. under or by virtue of this Guaranty, Landlord and Guaramor shall and do
hereby waive trial by jury. Without regard to principles of conflicts of laws. the validity.

31
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interpretation, performance and cnforcement of this Guaranty shall be govemed by and
construed in accordance with the internal laws of the state in which the Shopping Center is
located.

IF ANY PORTION or application of this Guaranty is invalid, unenforceable or illegal
for any reason, the partics agree that such invalid, unenforceable or illegal portion or application
shall not be deemed to alTect the remainder of this Guaranty.

GUARANTOR'S OBLIGATIONS and liabilitics under this Guaranty arc absolute,
independent of and regardless of any defenses, counterclaims. set-offs, cross-claims or other
claims which Guarantor may sow have or at any time hereafier have against Tenani or Landlord
or any other persen, firm, corporation for any reason whatsoever. Guarantor further agrees that
any such defenses. counterclaims, set-offs, cross-claims or other claims which Guarantor may
have now, or at any time hereafter have, shall not be enforceable in any independent action
which would interfere with or in any way reduce the obligations owed by Guarantor under this
Guaraniy.

IF TENANT HOLDS OVER beyond the tesm of the Lease, Guaranior's obligations
hereunder shall extend and apply with respect to the [ull and faithful performance and
observance of ali of the covenants, terms, and conditions of the Lease and of any such
modilication thereof.

THE PROVISTONS of the Lease may be changed, amended or modificd by agreement
between Landlord, or its successors, assigns and transferees, and Tenant, or its successors,
assigns and transferces. at any time in writing.

IN THE EVENT of the rejection or disaffirmance of the Lease by Tenant or Tenant's
Trustee i Bankruptey pursuant (0 applicable bankruptcy law or any other Law affecting
creditors’ rights, Guarantor will and docs hereby (without the necessity of any further agreement
or act) assume all obligations and liabilities of Tenant under the Lease as if (a) Guarantor were
originally named Tenant under said Lease and (b) there has been no rejection or disaffirmance,
Guarantor will confirm such assumption in writing at the request of Landlord upon or afier such
rejection or disalfirmance, and Guarantor shall upon such assumption (to the extent permitied by
Law) have all the rights of Tenant under the Lease.

IN THE EYENT of any legal action or proceeding brought by Landlord against
Guarantor or Tenant arising out of the Lease or this Guaramy, Landlord shall be entitled to
reccover its reasonable atlorneys® fees and costs incurred in such action. Such amount shall be
included in any judgment rendered in any action or proceeding,

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Guaranior has affixed its corporate scal to this Guaranty,

which has been properly executed by its officers this day of . 2012,
GUARANTOR
U.S. RENAL CARE.INC,,a
ATTEST: corporation
By: By:
Its: Its:
52
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ATTACHMENT 3

OPERATING IDENTITY/LICENSEE CERTIFICATE OF
GOOD STANDING

22301050-2
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File Number 0393055-6

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

I, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do
hereby certify that

USRC LEMONT, LLC, HAVING ORGANIZED IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS ON MAY 16,
2012, APPEARS TO HAVE COMPLIED WITH ALL PROVISIONS OF THE LIMITED
LIABILITY COMPANY ACT OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE IS IN GOOD

STANDING AS A DOMESTIC LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY IN THE STATE OF
ILLINOIS. '

In Testimony Whereof, I hereto set

my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 11TH

day of JUNE AD. 2012

Authentication #: 1216302068 ‘M/

Authenticate at: hitp:/www.cybardrivellinois com

SECRETARY OF STATE
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85




ATTACHMENT 3

PERSONS WITH 5% OR MORE OWNERSHIP INTEREST IN

OPERATING ENTITY
Member Direct/Indirect OQwnership Ownership Percentage
Naila 1. Ahmed, M.D. Indirect 8%
Aaron Gurfinchel, M.D. Indirect 8%
Teresa Kravets, M.D. Indirect 8%
Sandeep Mehta, M.D. Indirect 8%
Preeti R. Nagarkatte, M.D. Indirect 8%

2230150-2
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ATTACHMENT 4

ORGANIZATIONAL RELATIONSHIPS -
ORGANIZATIONAL CHART

U.S. Renal Care, Inc.

r

USRC Alliance, LLC

USRC Lemont, LLC

r

U.S. Renal Care
Lemont Dialysis

2230150-2
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ATTACHMENT 5

FLOOD PLAIN REQUIREMENTS
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ATTACHMENT 6

[ILLINOIS HISTORIC PRESERVATION AGENCY LETTER
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Ilinois Historic
Preservation Agency

L1 _ ]
..' FAX (217) 782-8ls1

_A 1 Old State Capito) Plaza » Springfietd, lllinois 62701-1512 + www.illinois-history.gov

Cook County

Lemont
CON - Lease to Establish a Dialysis Facility
1096 5. sStats St.
IHPA Log #015051612

May 31, 2012

Shawn Mcon

Ungaretti. and Harris ;
Three First National Plaza
70 W. Madison - Suite 3500
Chicage, IL 60602-4224

Dear Mr. Moon:

This letter is to inform you that we have reviewed the information provided
concerning the referenced project.

Our review of the records indicates that no historie, architectural or
archaeoclogical sites exist within the project area.

Please retain this letter in your files as evidence of compliance with Section 4 of
the Illinois State Agency Historic Resources Preservation Act (20 ILCS 3420/1 et.
g8eg.). This clearance remainsg in effect for two years from date of issuance. It
does not pertain to any discovery during construction, nor is it a clearance for
purposes of the Illincis Human Skeletal Remains Protection Act (20 ILCS 3440).

If you have any further guestions, please contact me at 217/785-5027.
Sinderely, . .
Anne E. Haaker

Deputy State Historic
Preservation Officer

A teletypewritgr for the speechihearing impaired is aveilable at 217-524-7128. It is not a voice or fax liRgschment 6 10t




ATTACHMENT 7

PROJECT COST/SOURCE OF FUNDS

ITEMIZATION OF COSTS NOT OTHERWISE IDENTIFIED IN THE

PROJECT COST/SOURCE OF FUNDS TABLE

Cost Line Item Amount
Architect Fees $£55,000
Computers & Wiring $48,913
Dialysis Chairs / Scales $20.497
Dialysis Machines $188,166
Building Lease $£1,547.650
l.caschold Improvement $715,000
Leasehold improvement Allowance $(450.000)
Medical / Biomed Equipment $13.145
Misc $9,582
Office Furniture / Equipment $109.437
Water Treatment $80,960

2230150-2
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ATTACHMENT §

OBLIGATION

Obligation will occur after permit issuance

2230150-2
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ATTACHMENT 9

COST SPACE REQUIREMENTS

Gross Square | Amount of Proposed Total Gross Square
Feet Fcet That Is:
_ New . Vacated
Dept. / Area Cost Exlstmgﬁ’roposed Const. odernized] Asls Space
REVIEWABLE
In-Center 16368350 0| 6,500 6,500
Hemodialysis
Total Clinical | $2,368,350 0 6,500 6,500
NON
REVIEWABLE
Total Non-
clinical
TOTAL $2,368.,350 0 6,500 6,500
2230150-2
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ATTACHMENT 11

BACKGROUND OF THE APPLICANT

Please find the attached list of facilities conmdcrcd ‘owned or operated” by the Applicant and
certification from the Applicant.
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DCA of Adel, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Adel Dialysis

203 Robinson St

Adel GA 31620

(220) 896-4529

EIN: 36-2335380

License No, ESRD0O01228

Medicare No. 112733

IDCA of Ashland, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Ashland Dialysis

113 N Washington St

Ashland VA 23005

(804) 752-3444

EIN: 27-009484|

License No. N/A

Medicarc No. 492622

DCA of Barnwell, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Barnwell Dialysis

10708 Marlboro Ave

Barnwell SC 29812

(803) 541-7225

EIN: 20-2131118

License No. ERD-0179

Medicare No. 422615

DCA of Calhoun, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Calhoun Dialysis

105 Professional Pl

Calhoun GA 30701

(706) 624-4497

EIN: 20-4119620

License No. ESRD00G1266

Medicare No. 112770

DCA of Camp Hill, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Camp Hill Dialysis

158 S 32™ St Suite 19

Camp Hill PA 17011

(717) 731-0506

EIN: 26-1554083

License No. N/A

Medicare No. 392750

DCA of Carlisle, Inc. d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Carlisle Dialysis

101 Noble Blvd Suite 103

Carlisle PA 17013

(717) 258-3099

EIN: 23-2869880

License No. N/A

Medicare No. 392627

DCA of Central Valdosta, L.LLC d/b/a 1.S.
Renal Care Central Valdosta Dialysis

506 N. Patterson St

Valdosta GA 31601

(229) 219-0099

EIN: 58-2617394

License No. ESRD001193

Medicare No. 112699

DCA of Chambersburg, Inc. d/b/a U.S.
Renal Care Chambersburg Dialysis

765 54" Ave, Park 5 Ave Professional
Center Suite A

Chambersburg PA 17201

(717) 263-9300EIN: 25-1810333
License No. N/A

Medicare No. 392648

DCA of Chesapeake. LI.C d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Chesapeake Dialysis

305 College Parkway

Armold MD 21012

(410)431-5106

EIN: 20-4373428

License No. E2619

Medicare No. 112619

DCA of Chevy Chase, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Chevy Chase Dialysis

3 Bethesda Metro Center Suite B-003
Bethesda, MD 20814

(301) 652-3434

EIN: 75-2978031

License No. E2033

Medicare No. 21.2633
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DCA of Cincinnati, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Mt Healthy Dialysis

7600 Affinity Pl

Mt Healthy OH 45231

(513)931-7900

EIN: 31-1810465

License No. 0684DC

Medicare No. 362655

DCA of Columbus, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Columbus Dialysis

2360 Citygate Dr

Columbus OH 43219

(614) 428-4001

EIN: 20-8388926

License No. 0880DC

Medicare No. 362662

DCA of Delaware County, LLC d/b/a U.S.

Renal Care Delaware County Dialysis
1788 Columbus Pike

Delawarc OH 43015

(740) 369-4870

EIN: 20-5799636

License No. 0871DC

Medicare No. 362713

DCA of Eastgate, LLC d/b/a 1J.S. Renal
Care Eastgate Dialysis

4600 Beechwood Rd Suite 900
Cincinnati OH 45244

(513) 528-3222

EIN: 26-4578574

License No. 0968DC

Medicare No. 362762

DCA of Edgefield, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Edgeficld Dialysts

306 Main St

Edgefield SC 29824

(803) 637-3225

EIN: 20-2131213

License No. ERD-0149

Medicare No. 422602

2230150-2

DCA of Fitzgerald, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Fitzgerald Dialysis

402 § Grant St

Fitzgerald GA 31750

(229) 409-2221

EIN: 58-2596232

License No. ESRD001 191

Medicare No. 112698

DCA of Hawkinsville, LLC d/b/a U.S.
Renal Care Hawkinsville Dialysis

292 Industrial BLvd Suite 100
Hawkinsville GA 31036

{478} 892-8008

EIN: 20-8548207

License No. ESRDO0Q[ 199

Medicare No. 112707

DCA of Hyattsville, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Hyattsville Dialysis

4920 LaSalle Road

Hyattsville, MD 20782

(301) 277-0490

EiIN: 26-3674421

License No. E2620

Medicare No. 212620

DCA of Kenwood, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Kenwood Dialysis

5150 E Galbraith Rd

Cincinnati OH 45236

(513) 791-2698

EIN: 26-4578451

License No. 0936DC

Medicare No. 362759

DCA of Mechanicsburg. LL.C d/b/a U.S.
Renal Care Mechanicsburg Dialysis

120 South Filbert St

Mechanicsburg PA 17055

(717) 790-6080

EIN: 23-3078802

License No. N/A

Medicare No. 3926%9]
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DCA of North Baltimore, LLC d/b/a U.S.
Renal Care North Baltimore Dialysis
2700 N Charles St Suite 102

Baltimore MD 21218

(410} 243-4193

EIN: 20-4373297

License No. E2577

Medicare No. 212577

DCA of Norwood, LLC dfb/a U.S. Renal
Care Norwood Dialysis

1721 Tennessec Ave

Cincinnati OH 45229

(513) 242-6733

EIN: 86-1117490

License No. 0773DC

Medicare No. 362681

DCA of Pottstown, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Pottstown Dialysis

5 § Sunnybrook Rod Suite 500
Pottstown PA 19464

(610) 718-1127

EIN: 47-09246560

License No. N/A

Medicare No. 392707

DCA of Rockville, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Rockville Dialysis

11800 Nebel St

Rockville MD 20852

(301) 468-3221

EIN: 06-1707727

License No. E264 1

Medicare No. 212641

DCA of Royston, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Royston Dialysis

611 Cook St

Royston GA 30662

(706) 2345-0817

EIN: 20-0546217

License No. ESRD001105

Medicare No. 112719

2230150-2

DCA of SO GA, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
South Georgia Dialysis

3564 N Crossing Cir

Valdosta GA 31602

(229) 249-3222

ETN: 22-3715287

License No. ESRD001180

Medicare No. 112688

DCA of South Aiken, LLC dft/a 1i.S. Renal
Care South Aiken Dialysis

169 Crepe Myrtle Dr

Aiken SC 29803

EIN: 20-2130991

License No, ERD-0156

Medicare No. 422604

DCA of Toledo, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Bowling Green Dialysis

1037 Conncaut Ave Suite 10|

Bowling Green OH 43402

(419) 353-1080

EIN: 34-1933418

License No, 0631DC

Medicare No. 362630

DCA of Vineland, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Vincland Dialysis

1450 East Chestnut Ave Bldg 2 Suite C
Vineland NJ 08361

(856) 692-9060

EIN: 52-2180919

License No. 22278

Medicare No. 312551

DCA of Warsaw, LLC d/bfa U.S. Renal
Care Warsaw Dialysis

4709 Richmond Rd

Warsaw VA 22572

(804) 333-4444

EIN: 13-4226110

License No. N/A

Medicare No. 492627
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DCA of Wellsboro, Inc. d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Wellsboro Dialysis

223 Tioga St

Wellsboro PA 16901

(570) 724-3188

EIN: 25-1762601

License No. N/A

Medicare No. 392602

DCA of West Baltimore, LLC dfb/a U.S.
Renal Care West Baltimore Dialysis

22 S Athol St

Baltimore MD 21229

(410) 947-3227

EIN: 75-3170570

License No. 20647

Medicare No. 112647

DCA of York, LL.C d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
York Dialysis

1975 Kenneth Rd

York PA 174808

(717) 764-8322

EIN: 76-0792137

License No. N/A

Medicare No. 392731

Keystone Kidney Care, Inc d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Bedford Dialysis

141 Memorial Dr

Everett PA 15537

(814) 623-2977

EIN: 25-1663054

License No. N/A

Medicare No. 392612

Keystone Kidney Care, Inc d/bfa U.S. Renal
Carc Huntingdon Dialysis

820 Bryan St Suitc 4

Huntingdon PA 16652

(814) 643-3600

EIN: 25-1663054

license No. N/A

Medicare No. 392656

2230150-2

Pine Bluff Dialysis, Inc. d/b/a Kidney
Center of McGehee

610 Holly St

Mc Gehee, AR 71654-2109

(870) 222-6700

EIN: 71-0855258

License No. N/A

Medicare No. 04-2563

Pine Biuff Dialysis, Inc. d/b/a Pine Bluff -
U.S. Renal Care

2800 W 28" Street

Pine Bluff, AR 71603

(870) 534-7400

EIN: 71-0855258

License No. N/A

Medicare No. 04-2564

U.S. Renal Care Boerne, LLC d/b/a U.S.
Renal Care Boerne Dialysis

1595 South Main Suite 107

Boerne, TX 78006

(830) 816-3030

EIN: 43-2099925

License No. 008371

Medicare No. 67-2563

U.S. Renal Care Home Therapies, LLL.C
1313 La Concha Ln

Houston, TX 77054-1809

(713) 668-2744

EIN: 32-0223510

License No. 008644

Medicare No. 45-2840

U.S. Renal Care of Northeast Arkansas LL.C
d/b/a Paragould - U.S. Renal Carc

901 W Kingshighway

Paragould, AR 72450

(870) 215-0187

EIN: 62-1826477

License No. N/A

Medicare No. 04-2562
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USRC Advanced Home Therapics, LLC
396 Remington Blvd Suite 140
Bolingbrook 11. 60440-4311

(630) 495-9356

EIN: 45-1627715

License No. N/A

Medicare No. Pending

USRC Altoona, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Altoona Dialysis

118 E Chestnut Ave

Altoona PA 16601

(814) 942-2569

EIN: 27-3164836

License No. N/A

Medicare No. 39-2786

USRC Atascosa County Dialysis, LLC d/b/a
U.S. Renal Carc Atascosa County Dialysis
1320 W Qaklawn Rd

SUITE G&H

Pleasanton, TX 78064-4304

(830) 569-3052

EIN: 26-1394783

License No. 008674

Medicare No., 672631

USRC Azle, LP d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Tarrant Dialysis Azle

605 Northwest Parkway Suite |

Azle TX 76020

(817) 406-4331

EIN: 26-4113763

License No. 110026

Medicare No. 672652

USRC Bellaire Dialysis, LL.C d/b/a U.S.
Renal Care Bellaire Dialysis

7243 Bissonnet Dr Suite A

Houston TX 77074

(713) 988.7200

EIN: 26-1527679

License No. 110013

Medicare No. 67-2657

2230150-2

USRC Canton, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Canton Dialysis

400 Highway 243 Suite 14

Canton TX 75103

(903) 567-2250

EIN: 26-2409182

License No. 008728

Medicare No. 672607

USRC Cheektowaga, Inc. d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Cheektowaga Dialysis

2875 Union Rd Suite 13 C/D

Cheetowaga NY 14225

(716) 684-0276

EIN: 27-0789903

Medicare No. 33-2686

USRC Cleburne, LP d/bfa U.S. Renal Care
Tarrant Dialysis Cleburne

1206 W Henderson Suitc A

Cleburne TX 76033

(817) 641-5530

EIN: 26-3465019

License No. 110025

Medicare No. 672650

USRC College Parinership, LP d/b/a Baylor
College of Medicine - Scott Street Dialysis
6120 Scott Street Ste F

Houston TX 77021

(713) 741-7059

EIN: 20-8317462

License No. 008624

Medicare No. 672605

USRC Dalton, LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Dalton Dialysis

1009 Professional Blvd

Dalton GA 30720-2506

(706) 278-1070

EIN: 27-3966564

License No. ESRD001109

Medicare No. 11-2524
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USRC Delta, LP d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Delta Dialysis

400 East Edinburg Blvd

Elsa, TX 78543

(956) 581-8489

EIN: 56-2584922

Liicense No. 008419

Mcdicare No. 67-2557

USRC Downtown San Antonio, LLC d/b/a
U.S. Renal Care Downtown San Antonio
Dialysis

343 W Housten St Ste 209

San Antonio TX 78205

(210) 251-2824

EIN:26-3721871

License No. 110024

Medicare No, 67-2672

USRC Eagle Pass, LI.C d/bfa U.S. Renal
Carc Maverick County Dialysis

3420 Amy Street

Eagle Pass, TX 78852

(830) 773-8878

EIN: 56-2533704

License No. 008305

Medicare No. 67-2534

USRC East Ft Worth LP d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Tarrant Dialysis East Fort Worth
6450 Brentwood Stair Rd

Fort Worth Texas 76112

(817) 888-3015

EIN: 27-3360902

License No. 110078

Medicare No. Pending

USRC Edinburg. LP d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Edinburg Dialysis

206 Conquest

Edinburg, TX 78539

(956) 383-8488

EIN: 41-2166757

License No. 008539

Medicare No. 45-2890

2230150-2

USRC Friendswood Dialysis, LLC d/b/a
U.S. Renal Care Friendswood Dialysis
3324 EFM 528

Friendswood TX 77546

(281) 993-5067

EIN: 26-1527903

License No. 008692

Medicare No. 672624

USRC Gateway Dialysis, LLC d/b/a U.S.
Renal Care Gateway Dialysis

7171 New Hwy 90 West Suite [0}

San Antonio, TX 78227

(210) 673-9200

EIN: 26-2064040

License No. 008664

Medicare No. 45-2851

USRC Grove, LLC d/b/a U.S, Renal Care
Grove Dialysis

1200 NEO Loop Suite B&C

Grove OK 74344

(918) 787-2900

EiIN: 27-2194282

Licensec No. N/A

Medicare No. 37-2583

USRC Harlingen, LLP d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Harlingen Dialysis

4302 E. Sesame Drive

Harlingen, TX 78550

(956) 365-4103

EIN: 41-2166755

License No. 008196

Medicare No. 45-2817

USRC Kingwood, LP d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Kingwood Dialysis

24006 Hwy 59 North

Kingwood TX 77339

(713) 741-7059

EIN: 20-8996067

License No. 008603

Medicarc No. 672604
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USRC Laredo South LP d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Larcdo South Dialysis

4602 Ben Cha Road

Larcdo, TX 78041

(956) 668-8484

EiN: 20-5786850

License No. 008497

Medicare No. 67-2566

USRC Laredo, L.P d/b/a 1J.5. Renal Care
Laredo Dialysis

6801 McPherson Road Suite 107
Larcdo, TX 78041

(956) 725-1202

EIN: 41-2166761

License No. 008197

Medicare No. 45-2823

USRC McAllen, LP d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
McAllen Dialysis

1301 East Ridge Road Suite C

MeAllen, TX 78503

(956) 668-8484

EIN: 41-2166763

License No. 008198

Medicare No. 45-2820

USRC Medina County Dialysis, LLC d/b/a
U.S. Renal Care Medina County Dialysis
3202 Avenue G

Hondo, TX 78861

(830) 426-3843

EIN: 26-2175292

License No. 007311

Medicare No. 45-2765

USRC Mid Valley Weslaco LP d/b/a U.S,
Renal Care Mid Valley Weslaco Dialysis
1005 South Airport Drive

Weslaco, TX 78596

(956) 581-8489

EIN: 41-2166767

License No. 008429

Medicare No. 45-2870

2230150-2

USRC Mineral Wells, LP d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Tarrant Dialysis Mineral Wells

2611 Highway 180 West

Mineral Wells TX 76067

(940) 468-2704

EIN: 26-4113811

License No. 110043

Medicare No. 67-2660

USRC Mission, LP d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Mission Dialysis

1300 S Bryan Rd Suite 107

Mission, TX 78572-6626

(956) 581-8489

EIN: 41-2166764

License No. 110005

Medicare No, 67-2502

USRC Murray County, LL.C d/b/a U.S.
Renal Care Murray County Dialysis
108 Hospital Dr

Chatsworth GA 30705-2058

(706) 517-4818

EiN: 27-3989608

License No. ESRDOOI178

Medicare No, 11-2685

USRC N Richland Hills LP d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Tarrant Dialysis North Richland Hills
6455 Hilltop Drive Suite 112

North Richland Hills, TX 76180-6039

(817) 877-3934

EIN: 16-1774637

License No. 008430

Medicare No, 67-2554

USRC Rio Grande LLP d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Rio Grande Dialysis

2787 Pharmacy Road

Rio Grande City, TX 78582

EIN: 41-2166762

(956) 487-2929

EIN: 41-2166762

License No. 008668

Medicare No. 45-2664
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USRC SA Bandera Road LLC d/b/a U.S.
Renal Care Bandara Road Dialysis

7180 Bandera Road

San Antonio, TX 78238

(210) 403-9493

ETN: 90-0185327

License No. 008087

Medicare No. 45-2895

LUSRC SA Houston Street, LLC d/b/a U S.
Renat Care Houston Street Dialysis

2011 East Houston Street Suite 102d

San Antonio, TX 78202

(210) 225-0004

EIN: 34-2011633

License No. 008134

Medicare No. 67-2506

USRC SA Pleasanton Road, LLC d/b/a U.S.
Renal Care Plcasanton Road Dialysis

1515 Pleasanton Road

San Antonio, TX 78221

(210) 922-6255

EIN: 20-8968868

License No. 008588

Medicare No. 67-2510

USRC SA Tri County LLC d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Trt County Dialysis

14832 Main Street

Lytle, TX 78052

(830) 772-5784

EIN: 42-1639878

License No, 008135

Medicare No. 67-2507

USRC San Benito Dialysis Ltd d/b/fa U.S.
Renal Care San Benito Dialysis

295 North Sam Houston

San Benito, TX 78586

(956) 608-8484

EIN: 41-2166758

License No. 008215

Medicare No. 67-2514

2230150-2

USRC SW Ft Worth LP d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Tarrant Dialysis Southwest Fort Worth
5127 Old Granbury Road

Fort Worth, TX 76133-2017

(817) 877-3934

EIN: 16-1774638

License No. 008443

Medicare No. 67-2559

USRC Tarrant LP d/bfa U.S. Renal Care
Tarrant Dialysis Central Fort Worth
42071 East Berry Street Suite 8

Fort Worth, TX 76105

(817) 531-0326

EIN: 87-0746621

License No. 008457

Medicare No. 45-2799

USRC Tarrant LP d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Tarrant Dialysis Fort Worth

501 College, Suite 100

Fort Worth, TX 76104

(817) 877-5907

EIN: 87-0746621

License No. 008467

Medicare No. 45-2579

USRC Tarrant LP d/b/a 1J.5. Renal Care
Tarrant Dialysis Grand Prairie

1006 North Carrier Parkway

Grand Prairie, TX 75050

(972) 263-7202

EIN: 87-074662 |

License No. 008468

Medicare No. 45-2853

USRC Tarrant LP d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Tarrant Dialysis Mansficld

1800 Hwy 157 North Suite 10}
Mansfield, TX 76063-3930

(682) 518-0126

IEIN: 87-0746621

License No. 008464

Medicare No. 45-2896
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USRC Tarrant LP d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Tarrant Dialysis North Fort Worth

1978 Ephriham Avenue

Fort Worth, TX 76106-6670

(817) 624-781i ]

EIN: 8§7-0746621

License No. 008454

Medicarc No. 45-2838

USRC Tarrant LP d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Tarrant Dialysis South Fort Worth
12201 Bear Plaza

Burleson, TX 76028

(817) 293-1978

ETN: 87-0746621

License No. 110071

Mcdicare No. 45-2637

USRC Tarrant, LP d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Tarrant Dialysis Arlington

203 West Rando! Mill Road

Arlington, TX 76011

(817) 275-7787

EIN: 87-0746621

License No. 008463

Medicare No. 45-2580

USRC Tarrant, L.P d/b/a U.S. Renal Care
Tarrant Dialysis Tarrant County

501 College, Suite 200

Fort Worth, TX 76104

(817) 877-1515

EIN: 87-074662|

License No. 008466

Medicare No. 45-2656

USRC Tonawanda, Inc. d/b/a U.S, Renal
Care Tonawanda Dialysis

3161 Eggert Rd

Tonawanda NY 14150

(716) 832-0159

EIN: 27-0789780

Medicare No. 33-2685

2230150-2

USRC Valley McAllen LP d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Valiey McAllen Dialysis

2000 S. Cynthia

McAllen, TX 78503

(956) 994-3374

EIN: 41-2166760

License No. 008199

Medicare No, 45-2872

USRC Weatherford LP d/b/a U.S. Renal
Care Tarrant Dialysis Weatherford

504 Santa Fe Drive

Weatherford, TX 76086-6503

(817) 594-2832

License No. 008567

Medicare No. 67-2543

UUSRC West Fort Worth Dialysis LP d/b/a
U.S. Renal Care Tarrant Dialysis West Fort
Worth

1704 S Cherry Lane Suite 200

White Settlement, TX 76108-3629

(817) 367-0822

EIN: 26-1527980

License No. 008649

Medicare No. 672637

USRC Westover Hills, LLC d/b/a U.S.
Renal Care Westover Hills Dialysis
11212 Statc Highway Building Two Suite
100

San Antonio TX 78216

(210) 521-5923

EIN: 27-3170218

License No. 110073

Medicare No. Pending

USRC Williamsville, Inc. d/bfa U.S. Renal
Care Williamsville Dialysis

7964 Transit Rd Suite 8-A

Williamsville NY [422]

(716) 634-1841

EIN: 27-0789979

Medicare No. Pending
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ATTACHMENT 11

BACKGROUND OF THE APPLICANT

USRC Lemont, LL.C

As required by 77 1ll. Admin. Code § 1110.230; T certify that no adverse actions have been
taken against USRC Lemont, LLC, or any facility owned or operated by the Applicant, by
Medicare, Medicaid, or any State or Federal regulatory authority during the 3 years prior to the

filing of this Certificate of Need application; and

As required by 77 1ll. Admin. Code § 1110.230; I authorize the Illinois Health Facilities and
Services Review Board and Illinois Department of Public Health to access information in order
to verify any documentation or information submitted in response to the requirements of this
subsection or to obtain any documentation or information related to this Certificate of Need

application.

*

s S

Signature -/

Thomas L. Weinberg

Printed Name
Manager

Title

Subseribed and sworn to before me this 12th _day of June 2012

Signature of Notary “\ EWAR{ "y,
PO

.

$‘

FVES K
Seal ::“ :-'-c"..’ .

z 3 @{? i

N

-
%1, W\
T

2200280-)
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ATTACHMENT 12

PURPOSE OF THE PROJECT

The purpose of this project is to kecp dialysis services accessible to a growing ESRD population
in Suburban Cook County (HSA 7} and to alleviate the current need for the provision of dialysis
services within HSA 7. As identified in the Revised Needs Determinations for ESRD Stations
dated May 17, 2012, HSA 7 currently has an unmet need for 92 additional stations. 1.S. Renal
Care Lemont Dialysis will help alleviate this need by making 13 additional stations available 1o
ESRD patients. The market area that U.S. Renal Care Lemont Dialysis will serve is primarily a
five mile radius around the facility. This facility is needed to accommodate the 80 ESRD
patients that Applicant has identified from this area who will require dialysis services in the 24
months following project completion (40 pattents annually).

In addition, this increase in ESRD patients is based upon current patient populations and does not
include future patients that present with diagnoses of CKD4 or CKD5. As such, additional
dialysis stations are required to meet the needs of these patients. The goal of U.S. Renal Care
Lemont Dialysis is to kcep dialysis access available 10 this patient population as we continue (o
monitor the growth and provide responsible health care planning for this area,

2230150-2
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ATTACHMENT 13

ALTERNATIVES

The alternatives to the Project are limited. The Siate's Revised Needs Determinations for ESRD
Stations dated May 17, 2012, shows a need for 92 ESRD stations in HSA 7. This Project will
cstablish 13 ESRD stations to meet the ESRD needs projected for HSA 7.

Alternative Options
1. A project of greater or lesser scope and cost

Projects of greater and lesser scope were considered in the planning stages of this project. The
alternative of a project of lesser scope would not sufficiently meet the ESRD station necds of
HSA 7. Asindicated in the Purpose of the Project section, Applicant has identified 80 pre-ESRD
patients that are anticipated to require dialysis services in the 24 months following project
completion (40 patients annually}, This increase in ESRD patients is based upon current patient
populations and does not include future patienis that may present with diagnoses of CKD4 or
CKD5. As such, additional dialysis stations are required to meet the necds of these patients.

2. Pursuing an alternative joint venture or similar arrangement with one or more
providers or entities to meet all or a portion of the project's intcnded purposes; developing
alternative scttings to meet all or a portion of the project's intended purposes

The operating model for this project is consistent with the standard that U.S. Renal Care has
implemented in various states. This model atlows U.S. Renal Care to provide the quality patient
care scrvices required by its patients while controlling costs. Pursuing an alternate arrangement
for the provision of thesc services may negate this proven operating model or otherwise dilute
the benefits realized by patients of U.S. Renal Care.

3. Utilizing other health care resources that are available to serve all or a portion of the
population the Project proposes to serve

Patients who require dialysis treatment are limited in their options to utilize other health care
resources. Due to the high frequency of required treatment (3 treatments per week) and length of
trcatment, patients must be able to access convenicntly located and effective facilitics. For
example, an incremental increase in drive time of 10 minutes would result an annual drive time
increasc of 52 hours.

Documentation shall consist of a comparison of the project to alternative options. The
comparison shall address issues of cost, paticnt access, quality and financial bencefits in
both the short term (within one to three years after project completion) and long term.
This may vary by project or situation. (See Attached Comparison Chart)

2230150-2
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Comparison of Project to Alternative Options

Proposed Project

Alternative

Cost

Patient Access

Quality

Financial Benefits

Establish U.S.
Renal Care
Lemont Dialysis

Project of Lesser Scope /
No Project

Cost: $0
Alternative Option
presents less cost to
Applicant but may
resull in additional
costs to patients in

the Torm of travel

time and lack of
access to the desired
provider of dialysis

Services,

Alternative Option
results in reduction in
patient access as
ESRD patient
population growth
exceeds Station
growth,

Alternative Option
results in reduction in
quality as ESRD
patient population
growth exceeds Station
growth.

Alternative Option does
not result in greater
financial benefit to any
stakeholders (patients,
the state, Applicant).

Establish U.S.
Renal Care
Lemont Dialysis

Alternative Joint Venture
or other Arrangement

Cost: = $2,368,350
Alternative Option
would result in the
same or similar total
cost as the proposed
project but distribute
such ¢osts among
different parties.

Alternative Option
would result in the
same increased patient
access as the proposed
project.

Alternative Option
would likely result in
decreased quality as
the provision of care
through such an
arrangement would
represent a deviation
from the proven model
for the delivery of care
established by
Applicant.

Alternative Option does
not result in greater
financial benefit to any
stakeholders {patients.
the state, Applicant).

Establish U.S.
Renal Care
Lemont Dialysis

Usc Existing Resources

Cost: $0
Alternative Option
presents less cost to
Applicant but may
result in additional
¢osts to patients in

the form of travel
time and lack of
access to the desired
provider of dialysis
services.

Alternative Option
results in reduction in
patient access as
ESRD patient
population growth
exceeds Station
growth.

Alternative Option
results in reduction in
quality as ESRD
patient population
growth excecds Station
growth.

Alternative Option does
not result in greater
financial benefit to any
stakeholders (patients,
the state, Applicant).

Attachment 13 118




The applicant shall provide empirical cvidence, including quantified outcome data, that
verifies improved quality of care, as available.

Applicant maintains high levels of clinical quality for dialysis patients, on a corporate level U.S.
Renal Care has accomplished a three month average patient outcomes of 95% of patients with a
URR >65% and 97% of patients with Kt/V > 1.2 for the period ending March 31, 2012.
Applicant anticipates similar paticnt outcomes for the proposed project.
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ATTACHMENT 14

SIZE OF THE PROJECT
Size of Project
Department/Service Proposed State Difference Met
BGSF/DGSF Standard Standard?
In-Center Hemodialysis 500 360-520 -20 Yes
dgsf/Station dgsf/Station | dgsf/Station

The amount of physical space for the proposed project is necessary, and not excessive, for the

provision of hemodialysis services.

within the state standard.

2230150-2

The 500 dgsf/station of the proposed project falls well
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ATTACHMENT 15

PROJECT SERVICES UTILIZATION

Utilization
Historical Proiceted
Depl/Service Ukilization/Patient roJecis State Standard Met Standard?
Utilization
Days clc.
In Center 30 patients / 0
Year | Hemodialysis N/A 38% 80% NO
In Center 63 patients / .
Year 2 Hemodialysis N/A 1% 80% YES

Applicant has identifted 631 current patients with diagnoses of CKD3, CKD4 or CKD5. Of
these patients, Applicant estimates that approximately 80 patients will require dialysis services in

the 24 months following project completion (40 patients annually).

Based on Applicant's

experience, 10% of CKD 3, 50% of CKD 4 and 80% of CKD 5 will require dialysis services
within 3 years. When this project is completed, most all of the patients Applicant has identificd

will require dialysis services within 2 years following project completion.

2230150-2
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ATTACHMENT 26

PLANNING AREA NEED

As identified in the most-recently avatlable IDPH Revised Needs Determinations for ESRD
Stations dated May 17, 2012, HSA 7 currently has an unmet need for 92 ESRD stations. U.S.
Renal Care Lemont Dialysis will help alleviate this need by making 13 additional stations
available 10 ESRD patients.

2230550-2
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ATTACHMENT 26

PLANNING AREA NEED - SERVICE TO PLANNING
AREA RESIDENTS

USRC Lemont, LLC proposes to establish a thirteen (13) station in-center hemodialysis and
peritoneal dialysis facility at 1096 South State Street, Lemont, Illinois 60439. The facility will
utilize leased spacc to be built out by Applicant. The facility will provide both in-center
hemodialysis and peritoneal dialysis for patients with End Stage Renal Disease to provide
necessary health care to the residents of Suburban Cook County and HSA 7, where the proposed
project will be physically located. The market arca that U.S. Renal Care lLemont Dialysis will
serve is primarily a five mile radius around the facility.
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ATTACHMENT 26

PLANNING AREA NEED — SERVICE DEMAND -
ESTABLISHMENT OF CATEGORY OF SERVICE

Projected Referrals — Attached in Appendix | is a physician referral letter attesting to the
physicians’ total number of patients who have received care at existing facilities located in the
arca: the number of new patients located in the area that the physicians referred for in-center
hemadialysis for the most recent year; and an estimated number of patients that the physicians
will refer annually to the applicant's facility within a 24-month period after project completion,
based upon the physicians' practice experience.

223010 50-2
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ATTACHMENT 26

PLANNING AREA NEED — SERVICE ACCESSIBILITY

The planning arca for the proposed facility possesses several factors which coniribute 1o service
restrictions for patients in the arca.

Planning Area Need

As identified in the most-recently available IDPH Revised Needs Determinations for ESRD
Stations dated May 17, 2012, HSA 7 currently has an unmet need for 92 ESRD stations. U.S.
Renal Care Lemont Dialysis will help alleviate this nced by making 13 additional stations
avaifable to ESRD patients.

Observed ESRD Prevalence Rates in Certain Populations

ESRD differentially affects certain populations at rates higher than other populations. For
example, ESRD prevalence rates are considerably higher among African-American and
Hispanic demographic segments than among non-Hispanic white demographic segments. The
African-American ESRI rate has been reported to be 3.6 times that among whites in the
United States' at 5,205 per million population? Similarly, peer revicwed academic articles
demonstrate that ESRD prevalence among the Hispanic population, documented at a rate of
2,458 per million population, is materially higher than that of non-Hispanics.> The clinical
literature has noted:

a particularly rapid concomitant incrcase in the incidence and prevalence of end-
stage renal disease (ESRD) in Hispanics observed in the United States during the
last 2 decades. Compared with non-Hispanic whites, the incidence of ESRD in
Hispanics is nearly 2-fold higher. Because of the high frequency of risk factors
for ESRD in US Hispanics (eg, diabetes mellitus), it is anticipated that the
Hispanic ESRD population will continue to undergo substantial growth.

Michael J. Fischer et al., CKD in Hispanics: Baseline Characteristics From the CRIC (Chronic
Renal Insufficiency Cohort) and Hispanic-CRIC Studies, 58(2) Am. J. Kidney Dis. 214, at 214
(201 1).

Obviously, if the 2-fold factor for incidence in this study is accurate, it contributes to the need
determination issue, described below, in not taking into account any increased prevalence for
Hispanics when the Hispanic population percentage grows. As a result, communities that
demonstrate a growth in both the absolute number and percentage make-up of populattons at
higher risk for ESRD will experience a greater need for ESRD services.

"'1J.5. Renal Data Service. 2010 Annual Data Report: Volume 2 Atlas of End Stage Renal Disease, at 255.

*id. at 259,

*11.S. Renal Data Serviee, 2010 Anmaual Data Report: Yolume 2 Atlas of End Stage Renal Discasc, at 255-259; Claudia M. Lora
et al., Chronic Kidney Disease in United Stales Hispanics; A Growing Public Health Problem, 19 Ethnicity & Discase 466, at 466
(2009); Michael 1. Fischer et al., CKI) in Hispanics: Baseling Characieristics From the CRIC {Chronic Renal Insufficiency
Cohort) and Hispanic-CRIC Studies, 38(2) Am. §. Kidney Dis. 214, at 214 (2031).

2230450-2
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In addition to ethnic prevalence rates, aging populations have also been associated with higher
prevalence of ESRD. In 2008; populations aged 65 years and over cxperienced ESRD
prevalence rates that were greater than 3.0 times the overall population.! Specifically, the
ESRD prevalence rate for populations aged 65 to 74 years was 5,940.9 per million population
as compared to an overall ESRD prevalence rate of 1,698.6 per million population. Similarly,
the ESRD prevalence rate for populations aged 75 years and greater was 5.266.4 per million
population.5

These differential rates of ESRD prevalence related to both cthnicity and age result in greater
need for ESRD services when populations are composed of greater numbers of individuals who
experience higher rates of ESRD prevalence, as is demonstrated below for HSA 7.

Demographic Profile of HSA 7

The change in the demographic proftle of HSA 7 requires additional stations to ensurc that
dialysis services are available to area residents. The Need Determination does not sufficiently
take into account the demographic mix of the HSA population and may understate the need for
ESRD stations in the relevant HSA.

Ethnic Profile

The changing ethnic profilc of HSA 7 increases the need for ESRD services in this area. As
described above, the prevalence of ESRD differs between various ethnic groups which will affect
a population’s overall ESRD rate as the ethnic mix of the pepulation changes. The communities
comprising HSA 7 have undergone significant changes in the ethnic mix between the years 2000
and 2010. As demonstrated in Table 1 below, HSA 7 has seen a dramatic increase in both the
"Hispanic or Latino" and "Black or African American alone" populations as tabulated using
Census 2000 and 2010 data. Between 2000 and 2010, the "Hispanic or Latino"” and "Black or
African American alone” populations grew by over 187,000 individuals and 70,000 individuals,
or by 47.0% and 20.3%, respectively. As a result of this explosive diversification of HSA 7, the
ethnic profile of this HSA has changed dramatically. In particular, the "Hispanic and Latino"
segment of the total population has been significant, expanding from 11.8% to 17.2% in HSA 7.
As the populations above suffer from a higher prevalence of ESRD, the increase in such
populations and resulting changing ethnic profile of HSA 7 increases the need for ESRD services
in this area.

Table ]
HSA 7 Population by Race {2} Census Data)
Cook County | City of Chicago | Suburban Cook | PluPage County | Total Papulation
County?®
Hispanic or Latine 1,071,740 753,644 318.096 81,366 399,462
Black or African American alone 1.405.361 1,065,009 340,352 27,600 367,952
Total Population 5,376,741 2,896,014 2.480,727 und, 161 3,384 888

1

HSA 7 Population by Race (2010 Census Data)

* See 1).8. Renal Data Service, 2010 Annual Data Report: Volume 2 Atlas of End Stage Renal Discase, at 258,
5
“1U.S. Renal Data Service. 2010 Annual Data Report: Volume 2 Adas of End Stage Renal Discase. Figure 2,12 available ar

www.usrds.org/201 0/cxe/v2_02.zip.
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Cook County | City of Chicago | Suburban Ceok | DuPage County | Total Population
County™

Hispanic or Latinn 1,244,762 778,862 465,900 121,506 587.406
Black or Alrican American alone 1.287.767 887.608 400,159 42,346 442,505
Total Papulation 5,194,675 2,695,598 2,499,077 516,924 3,416,001
HSA 7 Population by Race (2600-2010 Change)

2000 Total 2010 Total

Population % Total Population % Total % Change
Hispanic or Latino 399.462 11.8% 587.406 17.2% 5.4%
Black or African Americar alone 367,952 10.9% 442 505 13.0% 3.1%
Total Population 3,384.888 3.416,00t

*Cook County excluding City of Chicago

Age Profile

The changing age profile of HSA 7 also increases the need for ESRD services in this arca. As
discusscd above, individuals 65 years of age and over expericnce prevalence of ESRD at a
greater rate than those under 65 years of age. [n HSA 7, this population has grown between 2000
and 2010 and now comprises a greater proportion of the overall population, as demonstrated in
the Table 2 below. In HSA 7, the population 65 years of age and over has grown by 28,539
individuals, representing a growth of 6.8%. The growth in these populations represents a
significant aging of thcse communities and will result in greater need for ESRD services.

Table 2
HSA 7 Population by Age Group (2000 Census Data)
. Suburban
Age Group Cook County (Sh] “ of Cook DuPage Towl. % Total
icago County* County Popuiation
64 and under 4,746,476 2,597,211 2.149.265 815,367 2,964,632 87.6%
Between 65 and 74 328,628 159,915 168,713 45,55% 214,271 6.3%
75 and over 301,637 138,888 162,749 43,236 205,985 6.1%
Total Population 5,376,741 2,896,014 2,480,727 904,161 3,384,888 100.0%
HSA 7 Population by Age Group (2010 Census Data)
. Suburban .
Age Group Cook County ((’:hlty of Cook DuPage I‘olal. % Total
icage - County Papulation
County?*
64 and under 4,574.346 2,417,666 2,156,680 810,520 2,967,206 86.9%
Between 65 and 74 324,521 151,095 173,426 57,640 231,066 6.8%
75 and over 295.808 126,837 168,571 48.758 217.729 6.4%
Total Population 5,194,675 2.693.598 2,499,077 916,924 3,416.001 1006.0%

*Cook County excluding City of Chicago

Need Determination for the In-Center Hemodialysis Category of Service

The increased ESRD prevalence rate for certain populations and the demographic shift that has
occurred within HSA 7 results in an increased demand for ESRD stations above and beyond the
number of stations calculated by the Need Determination for the In-Center Hemodialysis
Category of Service (the "Need Determination”). The Need Determination, as currently
formulated in 77 1ll. Admin. Code §1100.630, is based on the assumption that at the baseline
time the existing rate of paticnts experiencing dialysis should determine future need. As such, if
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the population of the HSA increases, the need for stations increases proportionately (increased by
a factor of 1.33 in the five year Need Detcrmination). This approach may be reasonable if the
demographic mix at the baseline time and predicted time are identical. But if the demographic
mix changes and prevalence is not identical across population subgroups, it will not account for
the change in mix. As such, variations in the demographic mix may result in increased station
need.

An illustrative example of the effect of demographic mix changes can be provided through an
cxamination of ESRD station need for incremental populations. As indicated in the following
graphics, if a population increases by 100,000 individuals and the ESRD prevalence rate is
assumed to be 1,699 per million population (representing the Overall Prevalence of ESRD as
reported by the U.S. Renal Data Service), then the resulting station need to accommodate this
population is 28 stations. If, however, the ESRD prevalence rate is adjusted to 4,718 per million
population to account for populations with higher prevalence of ESRD (representing a mixed
average of ESRD prevalence in high risk populations as reported by the U.S. Renal Data
Service) then the resulting station need required to accommodate this incremental 100,000
individuals is 79 stations.

As a result, the failure of the Need Determination to take into account future variations in the
demographic mix and the increased ESRD prevalence rate for certain populations renders the
Need Determination insufficient to determine future need of ESRD stations.
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CHRONIC KIDNEY DISEASE IN UNITED STATES HispaNICS: A GROWING PUBLIC

HEALTH PROBLEM

Hispanics are the fastest growing minority
group in the United States. The incidence of
end-stage renal disease (ESRD) in Hispanics is
higher than non-Hispanic Whites and Hispan-
ics with chronic kidney disease (CKD} are at
increased risk for kidney failure. Likely con-
tributing factors to this burden of disease
inclutle diabntes and metabolic syndrome,
bath are common among Hispanics. Access
to health care, quality of care, and barriers due
to language, health literacy and acculturation
may also play a role, Despite the importance of
this public health problem, only limited data
oxist about Mispanics with CKI3. We review
the epidemiclogy of CKID in US Hispanics,
identify the: factors that may be responsible for
this growing health problem, and suggest gaps
in our understanding which are suitable for
future investigation. (Lthn Dis. 2009;19:466-
472)

Key Words: Chronic Kidney Oisease, His-
panics, Health Care Cisparities
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INTRODUCTION

Berween 2004 and 2005, the num-
ber of Hispanic in the United States
grew by 3.6 percent to reach a roml of
42.7 million (representing ncarly 15%
of the toral US papulation), making this
the fastest growing segment of the
population in the country.' A large
increase has also occurred in the
Hispanic end stage renal disease
(ESRD) population. According to Unir-
ed States Renal Data System (USRDS),
in 2005, there were 12,000 new cases of
ESRD treared with dialysis or transplant
in Hispanics, representing an increase of
(3% since 1996. Hispanics have an
incidence rate of ESRI} which is 1.5
times greater than for non-Hispanics
Whites.? This increase in ESRD cases
not only translates into an increased
burden ro our health care system, but
also emphasizes the importance of better
understanding risk factors for chronic
kidney disease (CKD) in Hispanics. In
this review, we examine the epidemiol-
ogy of CKI in US Hispanics, explore
potential reasons for this growing public
health problem, and highlight potencial
areas for future rescarch.

METHODS

We performed a qualitative review
of the hirerarure uiilizing a PubMed
search for the following keywords:
chronic kidney disease, Hispanics, Lati-
nos, end stage renal disease, diaberes,
dialysis, ransplantation, and health care
disparities. In addition, we reviewed
daca from the USRDS™® and the Organ
Procurement and Transplantation Net-
work.® For the purpose of this review,
the term Hispanic echnicity refers to all
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Hispanics have an incidence
rate of ESRD which is 1.5
times greater than for non-

Hispanics Whizes.”

persons of Latin American origin living
in the United States, unless indicated
atherwise. Hispanics are culturally,
socioeconomically, and genetically het-
eragencous and represent a wide variety
of national origins and social chasses.” In
terms of ancesiry, US Hispanics origi-
nate from three populations: European
settlers, Native Americans, and West
Africans. The hreakdown for the US
Hispanic pepulation is as follows: 64%
Mexican, 9% Puerto Rican, 3.5%
Satvadoran and 2.7% Deminican.’
The remainder is of Central American,
South American or other Hispanic or

Larina arigin.

EPIDEMIOLOGY OF CKD
IN HISPANICS

Glomerular filiration rate (GFR)
estimating equations have been used 1o
determine the prevalence of CKD in the
United States. The abbreviated Modifi-
cation of Dier in Renal Disease
{MDRD) equation has been considered
to be the most accurate available
estimating equation for GFR and has
been used widely in the literature and by
a growing number of clinical laborato-
fies.® Though the cquation has been
demonstrated to have validicy across a
spectrum of different subgroups,7 there
are no dam regarding its validity in

Attachment 26

129




Hispanics, This is a rclevant concern
because the serum creatinine concentra-
tion, which is used in the MDRD
equation to caleulate estimated GFR
(eGER), has been demonstrated 1o differ
by racial/ethnic groups. In an analysis of
serum creatinine levels in the Nacional
Health and Nutrition Examination Sur-
vey {(NHANES} IIT, Mexican Americans
had lower mean serum creatinine levels
than non-Hispanic Whites or non-His-
panic Blacks® The reasons for these
differences are unknown. Similarly, a
recent NHANES analysis of serum
cystaiin C, a potentially more sensirive
marker of carly kidney dysfunction than
serum creatinine, reported lower levels of
cystatin C in Mexican Americans com-
pared with other racialfethnic groups
studied.® These differences in the distti-
bution of serum creatinine and cystatin
C levels in Hispanics reinforce the
imporrance of rigorously evaluaring the
accuracy of GFR estimating equarions in
Hispanics."

INCIDENCE AND
PREVALENCE OF CKD
IN HISPANICS

Mild to Moderate CKD
Informatien regarding earlier stages
of CKD in Hispanics is limired. Several
investigators have reported a higher
prevalence of microalbuminuria in His-
panics compared with non-Hispanic
Whites.''"* Tn contrast o these find-
ings, a recent analysis of NHANES ili
data suggests thar the prevalence of
CKD may be lower in Mexican Amer-
icans than in non-Hispanic Whites or
non-Flispanic Blacks. In an analysis of
NHANES 11, moderately decrcased
kidney function (eGFR 30-59 mL/min-
ute/1.73 m?) was most prevalent among
non-Hispanic Whites (4.8%) and non-
Hispanic Blacks {3.1%) and least prev-
alent in Mexican Americans (1.0%).""
Berween NHANES 1988 o 1994 and
1994 to 2004, the prevalence of CKD

rose among Mexican Americans bul
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continued to be lower than that ob-
served in non-Hispanic Whites and
Blacks.'”

These data are not consistent with
the higher prevalence rates of ESRD in
Hispanics. One porenrial explanation is
that Hispanies have a higher risk of
ESRIY hecause of more rapid progres-
sion of CKD after its onsct, rather than
simply a larger pool of individuals with
CKD. The findings could also be
related to methodological issues related
to the sample size or sampling bias.
Furthermore, as discussed carlier, the
validity of the MDRD equaticn has not
been established in Hispanics and
utilizing the equarion in Hispanics
could bz an important porenrial source
of errar. Lastly, NHANES includes only
Mexican Americans and chese findings
may not be generalizable to other
Hispanic subgroups.

End Stage Renal Disease (ESRD}

It is well esrablished that Hispanics
have a higher prevalence of ESRD than
non-Hispanic Whites. The increased
prevalence of rreated ESRD in Hispan-
ies was first recognized in the 1980s.
Using data frem the state of Texas,
Mexican Americans were found to have
an excess of ESRI) compared with non-
Hispanic Whites with an incidence ratio
of 3.'% ¥or diabetic ESRD, Mexican
Americans had an incidence ratio of 6
compared with non-Hispanic Whites.
The first study at a national level
analyzed male Mispanics identified in
Medicare ESRD program dara Files.
Using commen Spanish surnames to
identify cases, it was found that His-
panics developed ESRID ar & younger
age than non-Hispanic Whites; and
berween 1980 and 1990, ESRD inci-
dence rates increased more for Hispan-
ies.'” In 1995, the USRDS began 10
acquire dara regarding Hispanic ethnic-
iry. In 2000, the adjusted incidence rate
for ESRIY in Hispanics was 1.5 times
higher than for non-Hispanic Whires.?
Furthermore, benween 1996 and 2005,
the incidence rate for Hispanics in-
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Table 1. leading causes of ESRD
requiring dialysis in Hispanics and
non-Hispanic Whites in 2000°

Non-
Primary Hispanic
disease Hispanics ~ Whiles
Diabetes 58.8% 38.8%
Hypentensionflarge
vossel disoase 16.2% 23.7%
Glomerulenephritis 2.1% 2.9%
Etivlogy uncertain 3.5% 4.0%
Other 12.4% 23.6%

creased by 63%.% In contrast, Burrows
et al examined trends in age-adjusted
ESRD rates and reported that the age-
adjusted ESRD rate in Hispanics de-
creased by approximately 15%, from
2000 to 2005 (530.2 vs 448.9)."°
However, there was an overall increase
in the age-adjusted incidence rates in
Hispanics in 2005 as compared with
1995 {448.9 vs 395.0). It is apparent
that a longer period of follow-up time is
needed to betrer characterize trends.
The leading causes of ESRD requiring
dialysis in Hispanics and non-Hispanic
Whires are described in Table L. Dia-
betes accounts far 59% of prevalent
cases of ESRD in Hispanic compared
with 39% of cases in non-Hispanic
Whites.” Unfortunately, data regarding
causes of ESRD by Hispanic subgroup
are not available.

The incidence and severity of diabe-
tes are important facrors in the excessive
incidence of diaberic ESRD observed in
Hispanics. ‘T'he prevalence of diaberes in
Hispanics has been estimated to be
approximately 1.5 to 3 rimes rhat seen
in the non-Hispanic White population
and its incidence is rising.]9 Morcover,
Hispanics have been found to have
lower rates of glucose self-menitoring
and poorer glycemic control compared
with non-Hispanic Whites.”® Hispanics
with dizbetes may be at increased risk o
devclop diabetic nephropathy. Mexican
American diabetics in San Anrtonio,
Texas had a higher prevalence of
proteinuriz than non-Hispanic Whitc
diabetics from Wisconsin.2! However,
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oo such difference was observed in the
San Luis Valley.”* The importance of
non-diabetic CKD in Hispanics 15 not
campletely understaod. Though hyper-
tension is less prevalent in Hispanics,
Mexican Americans had the highese rate
of uncontrolled hypertension in
NHANES I11.% Data from Texas and
the USRDS demonstrate a higher
incidence of ESRIY due 1o hypertension
in Hispanies than in non-Hispanic
Whites.'®%

Progression of CKD
in Hispanics

Only limited information is avail-
able regarding progression rates and risk
factors for CKD in Hispanies. In a
mulrivariable rerrospective analysis of 2
cohort of 263 type 2 diabetic ESRD
patienes, Mexican ethnicity and fernale
sex were found 10 hasten the decline of
renal function.”” A post hac analysis of
the Reduction of Endpoints in
NIDDM with the Angiotensin 1T An-
tagonist Losartan Study (RENAAL)
found that Hispanies had the highest
risk for ESRD compared with Blacks
and Whites.*® However, the majority of
Hispanics in this study were from Lacin
American countries and therefore, the
findings may not be applicable o US
Hispanics. A recent analysis of patients
enrolled in Kaiser Permancnte of
Nerthern California, a large incegrated
healthcare delivery system, has clarified
the risk of ESRD in US Hispanics with
CKD.” In 39,550 paticnts with stage 3
to 4 CKD, Hispanic cthnicity was
associated with almost a two-fold in-
creased risk for ESRD when compared
with non-Hispanic Whirtes. This in-
creased risk was artenuared o 33% after
adjustment for diabetes, medication use,
and other characreristics. Thus, the risk
for progression wo ESRD in Hispanics is
only partially explained by dizberes.

Even less is known about progres-
sion rates and risk facrors for non-
diabetic CKD in Hispanics. Some
reports suggest that certain glomerular
discases may be more severe and

468

progress more often in Hispanics than
in non-Hispanic Whites. 2% in 2
recent examination of rares of progres-
sion in 128 patients with proliferative
lupus nephritis, Barr et al. found thar
Hispanic ethnicity was independendy
associated with progression of CKD.*
Another study examining patients with
lupus found cthat Texan-Hispanic eth-
nicity was more likely to be associared
with nephritis than Puerto Rican eth-
nicity.? This suggests that outcomes
can vary by Hispanic subgroup.

US Hispanics have been poorly
represented in large prospective CTKD
studies. The angoing NIDDK-spon-
sored Hispanic Chronic Renal Insuffi-
ciency Cohert Study (HCRIC) is inves-
tigating risk factors for CKD and
cardiovascular disease {CVD) progres-
sion in a cohort of 326 Hispanics with
CKD. This study is based at the
Universiry of Ilinois ar Chicago and is
an ancillary study to the NIDDK-
sponsored CRIC Study.*

Metabolic Syndrome and CKD
Recent analyses of NHANES 111
data found thar metabolic syndrome
affects over 47 million Amcricans and
thar the problem is more pronounced in
Hispanics.ﬂ’311 Mexican Americans have
the highest age-adjusied prevalence of
metabolic syndrome (31.9%) compared
with non-Hispanic Whites (23.8%) and
Blacks (21.6%).>* There is now emerg-
ing evidence supporting a relationship
between merabolic syndrome and
CKD % In a prospective cohorr
study of Native Americans withous
diabetes, merabolic syndrome was asso-
ciated with an increased risk for devel-
oping CKD.* In non-diabetic subjects
with normal kidney function enrolled in
the Atherosclerosis Risk in Communi-
ties Study (ARIC), investigators found
an adjusted odds ratio of developing
CKD in participants with merabolic
syndrome of 1.43 compared with par-
ticipants who did not have the syn-
drome.® These data suggest that met-
abolic syndrome could be an imporrant

factor in the Hispanic CKD population.
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DISPARITIES IN HEALTH
CAREAND PREVALENCE AND
PROGRESSION OF CKD

The importance of healthcare dis-
parities in CKD has reccived increased
rt:(:ognition.'m but litcle is known re-
garding the impact of healthcare dispar-
itics on health outcomes in Hispanics
with CKD. It is well substantiated that
there are considerable disparities in
health care for Hispanics.”” According
o a report by the Commonwealth
Fund, ncarly two-thirds (65%} of
working-age Hispanics with low in-
comes were uninsured for all or part of
the year in 2000.*' Using NHANES [1I
data, Harris evaloated healthcare access
and utilization, and health sratus and
outcomes for patients with rype 2
diabetes.”® Mexican Americans below
age G5 years had lower rates of health
insurance coverage than non-Hispanic
Whites and Blacks {66% vs 91% and
89%, respectively), Furthermore, Mex-
ican Americans with private insurance
or a high school education or more were
more likely to have normoalbumi-
nuria,”® The quality of care received
by Hispanics may also play a role in the
progression of kidney disease. Hispanics
with diabetes are less likely to report
having had a foot cxam or glycosylated
hemoglobin testing.*> As nored earlier,
Mexican American in NHANES Iil had
the highest rate of uncontrolled hyper-
tension.”? Lasdy, Ifudu et al reported
that non-Whites, including Fispanics,
are more likely to receive a late referral
to a nephrologist for CKD manage-
ment.® This scudy was limited by the
low number of Hispanics in the analy-
sis. These findings suggest char quality
of care may play a role in the high
prevalence of ESRD in this population.

Patient-centered factors may play a
particularly impertant role for Hispan-
ics include language, health care literacy,
acculturation, social support, and trust
in healthcare providers. Hispanics who
are regent immigrants face a number of
potential barriers to health care, includ-
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ing lack of familiarity with the health-
carc system and language barriers.
Spanish-speaking Hispanics are less
likely to be insured, have access to care
and use preventive health services, ! 44
Trust in the healthcare system is another
imporranr factor because it has been
found to be significantly related to
adherence.4* Doescher et al found that
Hispanics reported significantly less
trust in their physician than non-
Hispanic Whites.* Finally, social sup-
port, defined as resources provided by a
nerwork of individuals or social groups,
has heen found to have direct effects on
healch status and health service utiliza-
tion.” There have been no published
studies to date focusing on partient-
centered facrors in Hispanics with
CKID. However, it seems reasonable to
speculate that these factors amplify
CKD and associated CVID) risk.

CARDIOVASCULAR DISEASE
IN HisPANICS WITH ESRD
AND EARLIER STAGES
or CKD

Several smudies have found thar
Hispanics may have lower all-cause
and CV mortality rates than non-
Hispanic Whites.**™° The term, His-
paric paradox, has been used to describe
the lower than expected mortality rates
despite the increased incidence of dia-
betes and obesity, lower socioeconomic
status, and harriers to health care.®! A
number of explanations have heen
praposed, including socio-cultural fac-
tors, cthnic misclassification, incom-
plete ascertainment of deaths, and the
healthy migrant effect. % In the
ESRD populatien, Hispanics, Blacks,
and Asians have a lower risk of death
than non-Hispanic Whites, regardless of
diabetes sratus. 273"
analysis of a national, random sample
of hemadialysis patients, Hispanics had
an adjusted 12-menth mormlicy risk
that was 25% lower than non-Hispanic
Whites.”® The reasons for the lower

5 In a recent
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ESRI) mortaliry rates are nor complete-
Iy understaed, but differences in surviv-
al have been nowed among Hispanic
subgroups with Mexican-Americans,
Cuban Americans and Mispanic-other
having an increased survival advantage
compared with Puerto Rican Ameri-
cans.”® These findings suggest that
sociocultural or generic differences may
play a role in these lower ESRD
mortality rates and demonstrating the
importance of examining health om-
comes in subgroups of Hispanics.

Less is known regarding CVD risk
and disease in Hispanics with carlier
stages of CKD. An analysis of mortality
rates of adults with CKT} in NHANES
found ne difference in CVD or all-cause
mortality in Mexican Americans com-
pared with non-Hispanic whites.”” In
contrast, Hispanic vererans with diabetic
CKD experienced a lower 18-menth
mortality rate than non-Hispanic
Whites.* Though Hispanies in Kaiser
Permanenre of Northern California had
an increased rate of ESRD, Hispanic
ethnicity was associated with 29% lower
adjusted morwlity rate and 19% lower
adjusted rate of CVD events as compared
with non-Hispanic Whites, even afrer
accounting for major cardiovascular risk
factors, comorbiditics and use of preven-
aative therapies.”” Again, the reasons for
these differences are not known.

END-STATE RENAL DISEASE
CARE IN US HisPaNICS

Dialysis

Analysis of USRDS data reveals that
Hispanics are 1.47 times more likely
than non-Hispanic Whites 10 have late
initiation of dialysis.”? Ac the start of
dialysis, Hispanics tend 10 have slighdy
lower hemarocrir levels and are 13% less
likely to be on erythopocisis stimulating
agents compared with non-Hispanic
Whires.? An analysis of a randem
sample of Medicare eligible adulis on
hemodialysis in 1997 revealed that,
compared with non-Hispanic Whites,
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Hispanics on hemedialysis are more
fikely to be female, younger, and have
diabetes.®’ Hispanics tend to have
higher albumin levels and similar he-
matocrit levels compared to non-His-
panic Whires. 6162

Litele is known about ESRD care in
the Unired State for unauthorized
immigrants. Of the 11.8 million unpu-
thorized immigrants in the Unired
Srates, more than 8.46 millien are
Hispanic.® Fhe incidence rate for
ESRD for this population is unknown.
Many of these undocumented aliens do
not receive systemaric care before initi-
ation of dialysis. The quality and
availability of pre-ESRD care for unsu-
thorized immigrants has not been
systematically studied. A small study of
undocumented ESRD patients initiat-
ing dialysis in New Yark City found
that these paticnts had higher serum
creatinine concentration and lower
eGI‘R, higher syswolic blood pressure,
and greater costs for the hospitalization
associared with the initiation of dialy-
sis. %% However, a limitation of this study
was that it only included 33 Hispanics.
An important issue regarding che dial-
ysis of unauthorized immigrams is the
compensation for dialysis, which varies
by individual stare and may limit the
availability of long-term dialysis for
undocumented aliens who arc then
forced to receive dialysis on an emergent
basis only.%® The cost of care for
undocumented ESRD patients receiving
dialysis on an emergent basis is 3.7
times higher than for thase unautho-
rized immigrants receiving long-rerm
maintenance dialysis.66 End-stage renal
disease in unauthorized immigrants is of
grear public health and economic con-
cern and warrants fucure research and
re-evaluation of currenr policies.

Transplantation

Limited dara cxist that suggest that
Hispanics are cqually likely to be
referred for renal transplantation bu
are less likely to progress beyond the
early stages of the transplant evaluaton
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with some of the reasons including
financial concerns, fear of the surgery,
and preference for dialysis.” Perhaps
for this reason, Hispanics are underrep-
resented on kidney waiting lists relative
to the prevalence of CKD in this
Once placed on the
ransplant wair list, Hispanies have a

. hH
population.

longer unadjusted median time to
transplant than non-Hispanic Whites.”
Factors that potentially contribute to
the longer time on the wait list include
lower rates of argan domations in
Hispanics reladive to Whites,"™"® less
knowledge and more fear-related barri-
cts to living organ donation,” and
ethnic differences in the frequency of
HLA alleles coupled with currenc allo-
cation policies.?2 Data regarding graft
survival in Hispanics have not been
uniform, with some srudies suggesting
that Hispanics and non-Hispanic
Whites have similar rates of graft
survival,”>7™* while other studies have
demonstrated poorer rates of graft
survival in I-Iis[:;::lrﬁr_vz,75 More recently,
Gordon er al found berter parient and
graft survival in Hispanics compared
with non-Hispanics.% Further scudies
are nceded to clarify whether Hispanic
ethaicity influences post-transplant out-
comes. In addition, pelicies are needed
o address specific barriers within the
transplant evatuation process for His-
panics [0 ¢chsure :lppropriatc ACCEesS 10
this important therapy.

Compared with non-
Hispanics Whites, Hispanics
have an increased incidence of
ESRD that appears
independent of known clinical

risk factors.
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CONCLUSION

Chronic kidney disease is a growing
and under-recognized health problem
for US Hispanics. Compared with non-
Hispanics Whites, Hispanics have an
increased incidence of ESRD char
appears independent of known clinical
risk factors. Furthermore, among pa-
tients starring at the same level of CKD,
Hispanics are at increased risk for
progression to ESRD. Interestingly,
data from NHANES suggest thac the
prevalence of CKD with decreased
eGFER, ar least in Mexican Americans,
is lower than in non-Hispanic Whites.
The reason for this discrepancy is
unclear but could be related to more
rapid progression of CKD. Many
questions remain unanswered including:
factors influencing CKD' progression
and CVD ourcomes; the validicy of
current GFR estimating equations; in-
sights into differences in outcomes
among Hispanic subgroups; and the
itnpact of heulth care disparities on
CKD. For these reasons, future research
is needed 1o better understand the
epidemiology and complications of
CKD in US Hispanics. Furthermore,
it is cssential that adequate numbers of
US Hispanics are included in fucure
interventional trials to provide the
necessary evidence base o guide pre-
vention and therapeutic strategies for
CKD and ESRD.
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CKD in Hispanics: Baseline Characteristics From the CRIC
(Chronic Renal Insufficiency Cohort) and Hispanic-CRIC Studies

Michael J. Fischer, MD, MSPH,"Z Alan 8. Go, MD,%* Claudia M. Lora, MD,’

Lynn Ackerson, PhD,? Janet Cohan, MS,! John W. Kusek, PhD,® Alejandro Mercado, MS,’
Akinlolu Qjo, MD.,® Ana C. Ricardo, MD, MPH,” Leigh K. Rosen, MUEPR,”
Kaixiang Tao, PhD,” Dawei Xie, PhD,” Harold I. Feldman, MD,”® and James P. Lash, MD,’
on behaif of the CRIC and H-CRIC Stucly Groups™

Background: Littla is known regarding chronic kidney disease (CKD) in Hispanics. We compared baseline
charactenstics of Hispanic participants in the Chronic Renal Insufficiency Cehort {CRIC) and Hispanic-CRIC
{H-CRIC) Studies with non-Hispanic CRIC participants.

Study Design: Cross-sectional analysis.

Setting & Participants: Participants were aged 21-74 years with CKD using age-based estimated
glomerular filtration rate (eGFR) at enroliment into the CRIC/H-CRIC Studies. H-CRIC included Hispanics
recruited at the University of lllinois in 2005-2008, whereas CRIC included Hispanics and non-Hispanics
recruited at 7 clinical ceniers in 2003-2007.

Factor: Racefethnicity.

Outcomes: Blood pressure, angigtensin-cenverting enzyme {ACE)-inhibitorfangiotensin receptor blocker
{ARB) use, and CKD-associated complications.

Measurements: Demographic characteristics, laboratory data, blood pressure, and medications were
assessed using standard technigues and protocols.

Results: Of H-CRIC/CRIC participants, 497 were Hispanic, 1,650 were non-Hispanic black, and 1,638 were
non-Hispanic white. Low income and educational attainment were neary twice as pravalent in Hispanics comparad with
non-Hispanics (P < £.01}. Hispanics had setf-reported dizbetes (67%) more frequently than non-Hispanic blacks (51%)
and whites (40%; P < 0.01). Bicod pressure >130/80 mm Hg was mere commen i Hispanics (62%) than blacks (57%)
and whites (35%; P < 0.05), and abnormalities in hematologic, metabofic, and bone metabolism parameters were more
prevalent in Hispanics (P < 0.05), even after stratifving by entry eGFR. Hispanics had the lowest use of ACE
inhibitors/ARBs among the high-risk subgroups, including parficipants with diabetes, proteinuria, and blood pressure
> 130/80 mm Hg. Mean eGFR was lower in Hispanics (39.6 mUmin/1.73 m?) than in blacks (43.7 mL/min/1.73 m?} and
whites (46 2 mUmin/1 73 m?), whereas median proteinuria was higher in Hispanics (protein excretion, 0.72 g/d) than in
blacks {024 g/d) and whites {0.12 ¢/d; P < 0.01).

Limitations: Generalizability;, observed associations limited by residual bias and confounding.

Conclusions: Hispanics with CKD in the CRIC/H-CRIC Studies are disproportionately burdened with lower
socioeconomic status, more frequent diabates mellitus, less ACE-inhibitorfARB use, worse blood pressure
control, and more severe CKD and associated complications than their non-Hispanic counterparts.

Am J Kidnay Dis. 58(2):214-227. Published by Elseviar Inc. on behalf of the National Kidney Foundation, Inc.

This is a US Government Work. There are no restrictions on its use.
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Hispanics are now the largest minority group in
the Uniled States.' OF interest, there also has
been a particufarly rapid concomitant increase in the
incidence and prevalence of end-stage renal discase
(ESRD) in Hispanics observed in the United States
during the last 2 decades.? Compared with non-

Hispanic whites. the incidence of ESRD in Hispanics
is nearly 2-fold hig,her.2 Because of the high fre-
quency of risk factors for ESRD in US Hispanics (eg,
diabetes mellitus), it is anticipated that the Hispanic
ESRD population will continue to undergo substantizl
growth,>*
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Despite the magnitude of this public health prob-
lem, little is known regarding carlier stages of chronic
kidney discase (CKD) in Hispanics.® A few prior
rcports have noted that although the prevalence of
estimated glomerular filtration rate (¢GFR) <60 mL/
min/i.73 m? is similar in Hispanics and non-Hispan-
ics, Hispanic ethnicity is associated with higher levels
of microatbuminuria and proteinuria and an almost
2-fold higher risk of ESRD in comparison with non-
Hispanic whites and blacks.®'® Hispanics have not
been well represented in most large prospective
studics and clinical trials of CKD; therefore, our
understanding of the risk factors, complications,
and ouicomes associated with CKD in Hispanics is
limited."**'® One exception was a post hoc analysis of
the RENAAL (Reduction in End Points in Non-Insulin-
Dependent Diabetes With the Angiotensin [T Anlago-
nist Losartan) trial, which focused on the role of cthnic-
1y and found that although baseline proteinuria and risk
of ESRI> were higher in Hispanics compared with non-
Hispanic whiles and blacks, all ethnic groups achieved
renoprotection from losartan therapy afier baseline differ-
ences in albuminuria were taken into account.’

The Hispanic Chronic Renal [nsufficiency Cohort
(H-CRIC) Swudy, an ancillary study o the multicenter
National Institute of Diabetes and Digestive and Kid-
ney Discascs—sponsored Chronic Renal Insufficiency
Cohort (CRIC) Study, is the first prospective longitu-
dinal study cxamining risk factors for the progression
of CKD» and cardiovascular disease in a sizable cohort
of US Hispanics with a broad range of kidney dysfunc-
tion."”!® The H-CRIC Study was initiated because of
less-than-anticipated recruitment of Hispanics in the
CRIC Study and was conducied at the University of
1llinois at Chicago because of disproportionately suc-
cessful Hispanic recruitment into the CRIC Study at
this clinical site.'® In this article, we compare bascline
characteristics between Hispanic and non-Hispanic
participants in the CRIC and H-CRIC Studies, ¢spe-
cially as they pertain to risk factors, complications.
and management of CKD.

METHODS
Study Sample and Design

We conducted o cross-sectional comparative analysis of His-
panic and non-Hispanic participams at enrotlment into the CRIC
and H-CRIC Siudies. CRIC is a prospective mullicenier cohort
study of adulis with CKD. Details of the design and methods of (he
CRIC Study have been published previously.'™'* Major eligibility
criteria for the CRIC Study included adutis aged 21-74 years with
mild to moderate CKD using age-hased eGFR. Exclusion criteria
mncluded inzbility to consent, New York Heart Association class I11
or IV heart failure, cirrhosis, human immunodeficiency virus
(HIVYAIDS. polycystic kidney disease, prior dialysis therapy or
transplant, immunosuppressive therapy within 6 months, or chemo-
therapy for cancer within 2 years. The H-CRIC Study adopted
eligibility and exclusion criteria identical to the parent CRIC

Am J Kidney Dis. 2011,58(2):214-227
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Study. However, whereas CRIC included 169 Hispanics and 3,289
non-Hispanics recruited at 7 clinical centers from May 2003
through March 2007, H-CRIC included 327 Hispanics recruited at
the University of 1lincis at Chicago and Chicago metropolitan
area from October 2005 through June 2008. Recrvitment sites
included universily-hased, community-based, and private health
clinics. Both studies were approved by (he institutional review
boards of the participating centers, and the research was conducted
in accordance with the principles of the Declaration of Helsinki.
All study participants provided written informed consenl.

Variables and Data Sources

H-CRIC Study purticipants underwenl the same evaluation and
test strategy as CRIC Swdy participams, which have been fully
described previously,'”™'® as well as additional evaluations {for
only H-CRIC participants) focusing on primary language.’® So-
ctodemopraphic characlenstics (eg, age, sex, racefethnicily, educa-
tien, annual household income. smoking. and health insurance)
were self-reporicd and recorded at the baseline visit. Medical
conditions {eg, hyperension, high cholesierol level, chronic heart
failure, peripheral arterial disease, diabetes, myocardial infarction,
or coronary revascularization) also were self-reported at baseline.
Anthropomerric measures (height, weight, body mass index, and
waist circumference) were measured by trained study personnel
and recorded. Current medications were reviewed and docu-
mented. As poled, blood pressure measurements and ankle-
brachial indexes were obtained using standard and validated proto-
cols.!™¥ For each participant al baseline, urine creatinine and
protein excretion were determined from a 24-hour urine cellection,
and eGIFR was calculated using the CKD-EP] (CKD Epidemiol-
ogy Collaboration} estimating equation, using a locally measured
serum creatinine level! calibrated 10 the Roche enzymatic method
(Roche Diagnostics, Inc, www.roche-diagnastics.us/).” GFR was
assessed using renal clearance of 125-iodine iothalamate {mea-
sured GFR) in a seleet subeohart,!”18

Statistical Analysis

Baseline participant characteristics were summarized using
meaz * standard devialion or median and 25th-75th percentile fer
continuous variables and frequency distribution with percentage
for cateporical variables. Missing values occurred very infre-
quently and generally under the following circumstances: (1) a
participant failed 1o answer a question on a reporting form, (2) a
physical measure was not obtained, and (3} a Jaboratory test was
not performed. The only variables with >3% missing values were
primary language spoken (17% [percentage missing in Hispanics
because language was assessed in only this group]), health insur-
ance {12%). and urine siwdies (6%}, Analyscs for each variable
included only observed values. Baseline participant characieris-
tics were compared between groups using £ tesls, y° tests, or
analysis of variance, as appropriate. A 2-sided P < (.05 was
considered statistically significant. All statistical analyses were
conducted using SAS, version 9.1 {SAS, www.sas.com).

RESULTS

Baseline Demographicand Clinical Characteristics

H-CRIC and Hispanic CRIC Participants

Of 497 H-CRIC and CRIC Hispanic parlicipants,
69% were Mexican American, 16% were Pucrlo
Rican. and 25% had other Latin American ancestry
(Table 1). Proporiions of participants with low
annual household income (<<$20,000/y), low educa-
tional attainmemnt (less than high school diploma},
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Table 1. Baseline Damographic and Clinical Characteristics of the H-CRIC and Hispanic CRIC Participants

P
|
Mexican Puerto Rican Mexican
Overall American American Other vs Poerto Mexican
Variable (N = 497} {n =341} (n=2an {n=75) Rican  ws Other Owverall
Age (y) 563117 560> 11.5 558 > 13.4 58.1 =10.9 09 02 0.4
Men 208 (58} 194 (57} 50 (63) 44 {59) 0.4 08 07
Annual income <0.1 <0001  <0.001
=520,000 313(83) 234 (89) 42 (52) 37 (49)
$20,001-550,000 92 (19) 55 (16) 20 (25) 17 {23)
$50,001-$100,000 24 {5} 8(2) 5{8) 11 {15}
>$100,000 12(2) 4(1) 4(5) 4 {5)
No response 56{11) 40 (12) 10(12) 6(B)
Education =000 <0001 <0001
< T7th grade 183{37) 160 (47) 10 {13) 13{17)
7ih-12th grade 110 (22) 75 {22} 26 (32} 912)
High scheol diplema 71 (14) 45 {13} 13 {16} 13{17)
Vocalional degree 1(2) 9{3) 1{1) 1Y)
Some college 67 {13) 29(9) 20 (25) 18 {24)
College graduate 35(7) 17 {5} 5(8) 13{17)
Graduate degrea 20 {4y 6{2) 6{7) 811
Health insurance <0.001 001 <000
None 113{23) 92 (27) 7{3) 14 (19)
Medicalid/public aid 80(186) 61{18) 10 (12) a9{13)
Any Medicare 119 {24) B0 {23) 24 (30) 15 (200
VA/military/Champus 2 (2) {0 6(7) 2(3)
Prvatefcommerclal 67 {13) 40 {12) 8{10) 19 {25)
Unknownfincomplete 47 (5} 28 {8) 12 (15} 79
Missing 62 (13) 29 (11) 14 {17} a9(12)
Primary language spoken <0001 <00 <D.OM
English 86{17) 56 (16) 21 (26) 9[12)
Spanish 327 (66) 260 (76) 33(41) 34 (45)
Missing 84 {17) 25(7) 27(33) 32 {43)
Tobacco use
Current smoker 29(6) 19 (6) 9{11) i) 0.07 01 0.03
=100 cigarettes 218 (44) 147 (43) 38(47) 33 {44) 0.5 09 08
Mecfical histary
Hypertansion 443 (89) 309 (31) 72 (89) 62 {83} a6 0.04 a1
Diabetes 333(67) 240 (70) 52 (54) 42 [56) 0.3 002 004
Mifprior revascularization 90 {18} 55 (18) 17 (21} 18 (24) 0.3 0.1 0.2
Heart failure 377 21(6) 10(12) 6{8) 0.0 0.6 0.1
PVD 35(7) 30(9) 2¢2) 3(4) 0.05 0.2 0.07
SBP {mm Hg) 136.0 + 23.7 1386 £ 24.4 1305+ 18.7 1304 £ 236 [ERA] .01 o.M
DBP (mm Hg) 726+128 73z2+128 7232126 702 x126 0.6 0.07 02
MAP {mm Hg) 937 =143 550 + 146 Mrxz129 90.3 2 13.8 on? am 0.02
BP =130/80 mm Hg 307 (62) 223 (66) 47 (59) 37 (48) 03 0.01 0.02
Weighi (kg} 847 = 20.1 B46+ 199 8665 = 238 B29 = 166 0.4 05 05
BMI {kg/m®} HNGE66 MNOBxES 31474 W62 58 0.5 01 0.3
BMI catagory 0.5 0% 0.4
<25 kgl 58 (12) 37 (41) 12 {15) 912
25-29.9 ky/m? 170 (34} 116 {34) 29 (36) 25 (33)
=30 kg/m? 268 (54) 187 (55) 40 {49) 41 {55)
Waisl circumference {om) 1027 146 10332145 1021+ 165 1008126 05 o2 04
Low ankle-brachial index® 72 (15 46 (14} 15 (1§} 11 {15) 03 0.9 0.5
Kidney function measures
SCr {imgfdL) 1.88 * 0583 1.95 = 065 178 = (058 1.66 = 0.54 .03 =000 =000
eGFR {mL/minf1,73 m?) 356+ 149 374 =13.2 433175 45.6 » 16.9 <0.001 <0.001 <0.001
oGFR category 0.03 <0.0M  <0.00
<30 miminH 73 m? 135 (27} 105 (31) 19({23) 11 (15)
30-<45 mUmin/t.73 m? 205 (41} 149 {44) 29 {38) 27 (36)
45260 mUmin/1.73 m? 114 (23 67 (20) 22(27) 25 (33)
=60 mUmin/ .73 m? 43(9) 20 (6) 11 (14) 12 [16)
fContinued}
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Table 1 (Cont'd). Baseline Demographic and Clinical Characteristics of the H-CRIC and Hispanic CRIC Paricipants

P
[ ]
Mexican Puerto Rican Mexlcan
Overall American American Othar vs Puerto Mexican

Variable (M = 497) (n = 341} {n =281} {h=75) Rican  vs Other Overall

SCysC (mglL) 16(13,2.1) 1.7{1.4,2.1) 1.5(1.2,1.9) 13(1.2.1.7) <000 <0001 <0.001
Paricipants with mGFR 214 (43) 145 (43} 35 (43) 3 (45) 0.9 07 0.e

lothalamate GFR 410+ 188 3712150 463+ 220 522+ 24,4 0.004 <000 <0.001

Urine studies
24-h urina greatinine (gfd) 1.1 (08, 1.4) 1.1(0.8,1.4) 1.1{09,1.4) 11{0.8, 1.3} 08 0.5 oA
24-h urine proteln {g/d) 0.72(0.12, 3.25) 0.98 {0.19, 3.76) 0.39 (0.1%, 1.90) 0.19{0.07, 2.13) 0.06 0.08 0.05
Diabetics 1.10{0.22, 4.32) 1.67 {0.26, 4.62) 0.67 (0.18, 2.18) 0.70(0.13,3.86) 0.2 0.8 0.4
Nondiahetics 0.26 (007, 1.17) 0.67(0.10,1.73} 012 (0.06, 8.41) G 11{0.05,0.17) o1 0.1 0.07
UACR {mg/g)° 4135(29.8,25034) 659.9(47.9,2,8358) 220.6(246,1.519.1) 73.6(12.5 1,692.3) 0 0.1 0.3
Diabetics B30.0 (70.1, 3,377.5) 1137.5(77.2,3.613.7) 363.7 (62.1, 2,300.0) 498 6 (64.0, 2,825.3) 0.2 0.4 0.3
Nondiabetics 85.7 {10.6, B26.8) 262.2(21.2,977.7) 431 (5.5, 423.7) 16.7 (8.8, 79,1} 07 0.4 07
Lipoproteins

Total cholesters! {mgfdL) 188.5 £ 53.7 180.6 + 53.9 186.8 + 50.0 1872+ 47.0 0.6 08 08
LDL cholestergl (mg/dL) 103.7 = 40.0 103.6 = 40.9 103.6 + 40.1 104.1 = 36.2 09 09 69
HDL cholesteral {mg/il) 43.1 2129 423+ 1286 44.9 = 15.1 445*113 o1 0.2 0.2

Triglycerides {mg/dL) 158.0 {120.0, 229.0) 167.0{124.0,231.0}) 136.0(108.0, 201 0} 154.0(115.0, 217.0) 0.05 01 0.08
Hemoglobin A, [%) 7017 TO=16 7.2+20 6817 2.3 0.3 0.3
Hemaglobin {g/dL) 121 1% 119+19 124216 126 %18 0.02 0002 0.002
Bone metabolism

parameters

Calcium (mgfdL) g0=05 B9 x=0D5 91 +£06 81058 Q.02 000t 0.001

Phosphate [mg/dt) 4007 41207 37=07 ag*07 <0001 <0001 <0.001

PTH {pg/mi} 62.0 (41.0,102.0) 67.2 {46.0, 105.1) 54,0 (35.0, 89.0) 54.4 {35.0, 91.00 o1 0008 002

Note: Continuous variables are represented by mean = standard deviation or median (25th, 75th percentile}, categorical variables
are givan as frequency {percentage). Conversion {actors for units: SCrin mg/dL to mmolfL, x88.4; total/L DL/HOL cholesterol in mg/dL
to mmol/L, x0.02586; hemoglobin in g/dL to g/L, % 10; calcium in mg/dt to mmolt, X0.2495; phosphate in mg/dL to mmoliL, x0.3229;
no conversion necessary for PTH in pg/mL and ng/L.

Abbreviations; BMI, bedy mass index; BP, blood pressure; CRIC, Chronic Renal Insufliciency Cohort; DBP, diastolic blood pressure,
eGFR, estimaled glomerutar filtration rate; GFR, glomerular filtration rate; H-GRIC, Hispanic Chronic Renal Insufficiency Cobhort; HDL,
high-density lipoprotein; LDL, low-density lipoprotein; MAP, mean anterial pressure; mGFR, measured glomerular filtration rate; ML,
myocardial infarction; PTH, parathyroid hormone; PVD, peripheral vascular disease; SBP, systolic blood pressure; SCr, serum
creatining; SCysC, serum cystatin C; UACR, wine albumin-creatinine ratio; VA, Veterans Administration.

*Ankle-brachial index <0.9.
®Eight percent of values are missing.

and Jack of health insurance were significantly
higher for Mexican Amcricans than Puerto Rican
Americans and other Latin Americans (P << 0.02).
Mexican Americans more oflen spoke primarily
Spanish (76%) relative to other Hispanic groups
(~43%; P < 0.001}). Compared with other Hispanic
subgroups, prevalences of diabeles and blood pres-
surc >130/80 mm Hg were morg frequent in Mexi-
can Americans. Mean cGFR was significantly lower
in Mcxican Americans (37.4 mL/min/1.73 m®) com-
parcd with Pucrto Rican Americans (43.3 mL/min/
1.73 m?) and other Latin Americans (45.6 mL/min/
1.73 m?;, P < 0.001), and mcasured GFR results for
scleet participants were consistent with these find-
mgs. Median 24-hour urine protein and spot urine
atbumin-creatinine ratios were substantially higher
in Mcxican Americans compared with Puerto Rican
Americans and other Latin Americans, and these
trends persisted in both the diabetic and nondia-

Am J Kidney Dis. 2011,58(2):214-227

betic subgroups. Compared with other Hispanic
subgroups. Mexican Americans had significanily
lower serum: hemoglobin and caleium and higher
serum phosphorus and (otal parathyroid hormone
valucs (P < 0.05).

Comparison With Non-Hispanic White and

Black CRIC Participants

Mean age was ~2 years younger in the 497 His-
panic H-CRIC/CRIC participants than in the 1,638
non-Hispanic white and 1,650 non-Hispanic black
CRIC participants {Table 2). Compared with non-
Hispanic whites and blacks, Hispanics more often had
low annual household income, jow educational attain-
ment, lack of health insurance. and less current and
former 1obacco use (P < 0.05). The prevalence of
diabeies was highest for Hispanics (67%), whercas
self-reported history of myocardial infarction/prior
revascularizaiion was feast prevalent for Hispanics
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Table 2. Baseline Demograpbic and Clinical Characteristics of the H-CRICHispanic CRIC Participants Compared With
Non-Higpanic White and Black CRIC Participants®

]

Hispanic Hon-Hispanic White Non-Hispanic Black Hispanic Hispanic
Variable {n = 497) {n = 1,638} (n = 1,650) vs White vs Black
Age {y) 56.3+11.7 589 11.0 58.1 =106 «<0.001 0.0M1
Men ) 288 (58) 982 (60) 806 (49) 04 <0.01
Annual income <0.001 <0.01
=$20,000 N3 (BN 254 (16) 645 (39)
$20,001-350,000 52 (19) 416 (29) 417 (25)
$50,001-$100,000 24 {5} 455 (28) 215{13)
>$100,000 12(2) 295 {18) 62 (4)
N response 56 (11) 218{13) 310(19)
Education <0.001 <0.001
<7th grade 183 (37} 70 20(1)
7th-12th grade 110 {22) 83(5 417 (25)
High scheol diploma 71 {14} 291 (18) 366 {22)
WYocational degree 11({2) 73 (4} 102 (6)
Some college 67 (13) 394 {24) 465 (28)
College graduate BT 429 {26) 180 (11}
Graduate degree 20(4) 361 {22) 100 {6)
Health insurance <0.001 <0.001
None 113 (23} 48 (3 35 (6}
Medicaid/public aid 80 (16) g5 (6} 317 {19)
Any Medicare 119 {24) 561 (34) 488 (30)
VA/military/Champus 9(2) 73 (4} 10 (7
Privatefcommercial 67 (13) 290 {18) 180 {12}
Unknownfincomplete 47 (9) 423 (26) 216 (13}
Missing 62 {13) 148 (9) 234 (14)
Primary language spoken <0.001 <0.001
English 86(17)
Spanish 327 {66)
Missing 8417y 1,638 (100) 1,650 (160)
Tobaceo use
Current smoker 29 (6) 155 (9) 320 (19} 0.01 <0.001
>100 cigarsttes 218 (44) 920 (56} 955 (58) <0.001 <0.001
Medical history
Hypertension 443 {89) 1,293(79) 1,533 {93) <0.001 0.006
Diabetes 334 (67) 649 (40) 848 (51) <0.001 <0.001
Mifpricr revascularization a0 (18) 376 {23) 361 {22) 0.02 0.07
Heart failure A7 (N 117 (7} 217(13) 0.8 <0.001
PVD 35(7) 105 (6) 17 (7) 0.6 0.9
SBP {mm Hg) 1360 « 23.7 121.8 > 18.6 1329 = 231 <0.0M 0.009
DBP {mm Hg) 726128 69.0 =114 738138 «<0.001 0.08
MAP {mm Hg} 937+ 143 86.6 = 11.8 935147 < 0.001 0.8
BP =>130/80 mmHg 307 (62) 573 (35) 942 (57) <{(.001 0.05
Waight (kg) 84.7 £ 201 90,5 = 22,7 958 = 243 «<0.001 <0.001
BMI (kg/m?) 31.6 +B6 312276 334x83 0.2 <0.001
BMI category <0.001% <{.001
<25 kg/m? 58 (i2) 31019} 217 (13)
25-29.9 kg/m? 170 {34) 517 (32) 378 (23)
=30 kg/m? 268 (54) 809 (49) 1048 (64)
Waist circumterence {cm) 102.7 = 146 1054 =176 108.0 + 18.2 0.003 <0.01
Low ankle-brachial index™ 72 (15) 206 {13) 33320 0.2 0.007
{Continued)
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Table 2 (Cont’d). Baseline Demographic and Clinical Characteristics of the H-CRIC/Hispanic CRIC Participants Compared With
Non-Hispanic White and Black CRIC Participants®

]

Hispanic Non-Hispanic White tHon-Hispanic Black Hispanic Hispanic
Variable {n = 497} (n = 1,638) {n = 1,650) vs White vs Black
Kidney function measures
SCr (mg/fdL}) 1.88 + 0.63 1.59 > .46 1.87 = 0.63 <0.001 08
eGFR {mL/min/1.73 m?) 396149 46.2 + 14.7 437+ 149 <0.001 <{.001
eGFR category <0.001 <{.001
<30 mUmin/1,73 m? 135 {27) 245 (15) 322 (20)
30-<45 mUminf1.73 m? 205 {41) 570 (35} 607 (37)
45-<60 mL/min/1.73 m? 114 (23) 532 (32) 495 (30}
=60 mL/min/1.73 m? 43 (9 291 (18) 2z26(14)
S5CysC {mg/L) 1.6{1.3,2.1) 1.3(1.1,1.7) 1.4(1.1,1.9) <0.0N 0,001
Participants with mGFR 214 {43) 585 (38) 525 (32) 0.003 <0.001
lothalamate GFR 41.0+ 18.8 509+ 20.3 47.1 = 193 <0.001 <0.001
Urine studies
24-h urine creatinine (g/d) 1.1{0.8,1.4) 1.3{1.0,1.7) 1.3(0.9,1.7) <0.001 < (.001
24-h urine protein (g/d) 0.72{0.12, 3.25) 0.12 (0.07, 0.5%) (.24 (0.08,1.07) <0.001 <{.001
Diabetics 110 (0.22, 4.32) 0.21 {0.08, 0.90) .42 (0.10,1.63) =0.001 <0.001
Nondiabetics 0.26 {0.07,1.17} 0.09 (0.06, 0.28) 0.14 (0.07,0.63) <0.001 <0.001
UACR (mg/g)® 413.5 (29 8, 2,503.4) 24.5 (6.1, 208.1) 76.5(11.4,518.9) «<0.001 <0.001
Diabelics 830.0(70.1,3,377.5) 68.1{14.4, 454.2) 174.9 (20.4, 975.2) <0.001 <(.001
Nondiabetics 85.7 (104, 826.8) 13.2(5.0,98.2) 32.5(7.7, 237.5) <0.001 <0.01
Lipoproteins
Total cholestercl {mg/dL) 1885+ 537 1801 =419 185.6 = 45.7 <0.001 a1
LDL cholestaral {mg/dl) 103.7 = 40.0 99.4 = 321 106.1 = 37.2 0.01 0.2
HDL cholesierol (mg/dL) 431+ 129 47.1 £ 15.2 493 x 161 <0.001 <(0.001
Triglycerides (mg/dL) 158.0 (120.0, 229.0) 133.0{91.5, 193.0) 112.0 (83.0, 160.0} <0.001 <0.01
Hemeoglobin A, . (%) 70217 8313 5917 <{.001 0.3
Hemeoglobin (g/dL) 12119 13217 122217 <{.001 0.2
Bone metabolism
paramaters
Calcium {mg/dL) 93.0+05 92%05 9205 <0.001 <0.001
Phosphate (mg/dL) 40x07 3608 3.8=07 <0.001 <0.00
PTH (pg/mL} 62.0(41.0,102.0) 43.0 (30.4, 68.6) 67.2 (41.2,114.8) <(.001 0.01

Note: Continuous variables are represented by mean = standard deviation or median (25th, 75th percentile); categorical variables
are given as fraquency (percentage). Conversion factors for units: SCrin mg/dL to mmol/L, X 88.4; total/LDL/HDL chofesterol in mg/dL
to mmolL, X0.02586; hemoglobin in g/dL to g/L, X 10; calcium in mg/dL to mmolfL, x0.2495; phosphate in mg/dL to mmolil., x0.3229;
no conversion necessary for PTH in pg/mL and ng/L.

Abbreviations: BMI, body mass index; BP, blocd pressure; CRIC, Chronic Renal Insufficiency Cohort; DBP, diastolic blood pressure;
eGFR, astimated glomerutar filtration rate; GFR, glomerular filtration rate; H-CRIC, Hispanic Chronic Renal Insufficiency Cohort; HDL,
high-density lipoprotein; LDL, low-density lipoprotein; MAP, mean anerial pressure; mGFR, measured glomerular filteation rate; MI,
myocardial infarction; PTH, parathyroid hormoene; PVD, peripheral vascular disease; SBP, systolic blood pressurg; SCr, serum
creatining; SCysC, serum cystatin C; UACR, urine albumin-creatinine ratio; VA, Veterans Administration.

2Ankie-brachial index <0.9.
"Four percent missing values.

{18%). The prevalence of self-reported hypertension
for Hispanics (89%) was bciween that for non-
Hispanic whites (79%) and blacks (93%), whereas
blood pressure 2> 130/80 mm Hg at cohort cntry was
more common for Hispanics (62%) than non-His-
panic whites (35%) and non-Hispanic blacks (57%:
P < 0.05). Mcan glycosylated hemoglobin level in
Hispanics (7.0%) was significantly higher than in
non-Hispanic whites (6.3%; P < (1.05) and similar to
that in non-Hispanic blacks (6.9%; P > 0.05). Mean

Am J Kidney Dis. 2011;58(2):214-227

eGFR was significantly lower in Hispanics (39.6
mlL/min/1.73 m?) compared with non-Hispanic whites
{46.2 mL/min/1.73 m®) and blacks (43.7 mL/min/1.73
mZ P < 0.001), and measured GFR results for select
participants were consistent with these findings. Me-
dian 24-hour urine protein and spot urine albumin-
crealinine ratios were substantially higher in Hispan-
ics compared with non-Hispanic whites and blacks,
and these trends persisted in both the diabelic and
nondiabelic subgroups (P < 0.001). Lipoprotcin lcv-
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Table 3. Baseline Frequency of ACEVARB Use in H-CRIC/Hispanic CRIC Parlicipants Compared With Non-Hispanic White and
Black CRIC Participants

P
|
Hispanic Non-Hispanic White Mon-Hispanic Black Hispanle Hispanic
variable {n =497} {n = 1,638) (n = 1,650) vs White vs Black Dverall
Ovarall 67V% {332/493) 67% (1,088/1,627) 1% (1,164/1,638) 08 0.1 0.03
Control of BP
>130/80 mm Hg 62% (189/305) 70% (397/567) 70% (650/234) 0.02 0.1 (.03
=130/80 mm Hg 76% (140/184) 65% (689/1,057) 73% (507/696) 0.004 0.4 <0.001
Presence of diabetes
Yes 72% (238/331) 81% {524/645) 80% (678/843) =0.001 0.001 0.0
No 58% (94/162) 57% (564/982) 61% (486/795) 0.9 0.5 03
Degree of proteinuria
=03 gid 67% (172/258) 78% {384/493) 73% (510/701) <{.001 0.07 0.003
=0.3 g/id 71% (110/154) 62% (671/1,087) 70% (574/822} .02 07 <0.001
aGFR level
<30 ml/min/1.73 m? 60% (81/135) 75% (183/244) 67% {215/322) 0.002 0.2 0.009
30-<45 mifminf1.73 m? 74% (149/202) 73% (412/587) 74% (447/505) 08 09 0.9
45.<60 mL/min/1.73 m? 72% (81113) 88% (358/526) 75% {367/489) 0.5 0.5 Q.05
=60 mLU/min/1.73 m? 49% (21/43) 47% (135/290) 61% {135/222) 0.8 0.1 0.01

Note: Statisticat comparisons made within ¢linical subgroup strata (eg, eGFR level) across race/ethnicity.
Abbreviations: ACEI, angiotensin-converting enzyme inhibitor; ARB, angiotensin receptor blocker; BP, blood pressure; CRIC,
Chronic Renal Insufficiency Cohort; eGFR, estimated glomerular filtration rate; H-CRIC, Hispanic Chronic Renal Insufficiency Cohort,

cls, hemoglobin concentrations, and bone metabolism
parameters were less favorable in Hispanics com-
pared with non-Hispanic whites and similar to those
in non-Hispanic blacks.

Baseline Frequency of ACE-I/ARS Use

Overall, use of angiotensin-converting enzyme
(ACE)-inhibitor or angiotensin receptor blocker (ARB)
medications was not significantly different among
H-CRIC/CRIC participants (Table 3). However, for
important subgroups, including those with blood pres-
sure >130/80 mm Hg, diabetcs, or urine protein
excretion >>0.3 g/d, Hispanics consistently had the
lowest receipt of ACE-inhibitor/ARB therapy com-
pared with non-Hispanic whiles and blacks (P <
0.05).

Bleod Pressure by eGFR and Albuminuria Strata

Across all ¢GFR catcgories and albuminuria strata,
the proportion of participanis with blood pressure
> 130/80 mm Hg was significantly higher for Hispan-
ics compared with non-Hispanic white participants
(7 < 0.05; Table 4). Howcever, only in ¢GFR <30
mil/min/1.73 m? strata was the percentage of Hispan-
ics with blood pressure > 130/80 num Hg significantly
higher than that of non-Hispanic blacks (P < 0.05),
whereas this percentage was not significantly differ-
ent between these 2 groups for all other ¢GFR strala.
No significant differences were found between propor-
tions of Hispanic and non-Hispanic blacks with blood
pressure 2> 130/80 mm Hg across atbuminuria strata.

220

Laboratory Parameters by eGFR and
Albuminuria Strata

Across all eGFR categorics and albuminuria sirata,
Hispanic panicipants had significantly fower serum so-
dium and bicarbonate levels than non-Hispanic whites
and blacks (P << 0.05), whereas less pronounced differ-
ences existed for serum potassium levels among thesc
groups (Table 5). There were no significant differences
in hemoglobin levels between Hispanics and non-
Hispanic blacks, but levels were significantly lower in
Hispanics comparcd with non-Hispanic whites across
¢GFR and albuminuria values (P < 0.03). Calcium
levels were lower and serum phosphorus levels were
higher in Hispanics versus non-Hispanics with eGFR
<45 mL/min/i.73 m? or albumin-creatinine ratio =30
mg/g (P < 0.05). Total intact parathyroid hormone
levels for Hispanics generally were signiftcantly higher
than for non-Hispanic whites, but lower than for non-
Hispanic blacks across eGFR and albuminuria levels.
Serum albumin level consistently was the lowest in
Hispanics compared with non-Hispanics rcgardless of
¢GFR or albuminuria group.

DISCUSSION

We found that in participants with CKI} in the CRIC
and H-CRIC Studies, Hispanics were disproportionatcly
burdened with lower sociocconomic status, more fre-
quent dizbetes mellitus, worse blood pressure control,
lower receipt of ACE-inhibitor/ARB medications, and
more severe CKD compared with non-Hispanic whites

Am J Kidney Dis. 2011:58(2):214-227
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Table 4. BP in H-CRICMHispanic CRIC Participants Compared With Non-Hispanic White and Black CRIC Participants

P
i }
Hispanic Mon-Hispanic White Non-Hispanic Black Hispanic Hispanic
Varlabsle (n = 497) {n = 1,638) (n = 1,650) v& White vs Black
eliFR Strata
oGFR <30 {n = 702}
SBP (mm Hg) 1423 + 230 1234 =204 135.0 = 25.1 <0.001 0.004
DBP (mm Hag) 731x£127 66.4 = 12.0 71.6 =140 <{.001 03
MAP {mm Hg} 96.2 + 141 854 - 127 92.7 £ 15.3 <(.001 0.03
BP > 130/80 mm Hg 98 (73) 84 (35} 181 {(60) <{.001 0.006
aGFR 30-<45 (n = 1,382)
SBP (mm Hg) 137.1 £ 243 1238 £ 181 1347+ 238 {3,001 02
D8P (mm Hg) 72.0+129 68.1 > 11.1 731 =137 <(.001 0.4
MAP {mm Hg) 937145 866116 93.7 x 151 <0.001 09
BP >130/80 mm Hg 126 (82) 216 (38) 349 (58} <{.001 03
eGFR 45-<60 (n = 1,141)
SBP (mm Hg) 130.8 = 229 1216 =184 131.7 * 21.0 <0.001 0.7
DBP (mm Hg) 7231 *133 702=114 74.0 > 13.2 o1 02
MAP {mm Hg) 91.7 2344 874 #12.0 932136 <0.001 0.3
BP >=130/80 mm Hg B2 (55) 192 (36) 281 (59) ={(.001 04
eGFR =60 (n = 560)
SBP (mm Hg) 1255 = 188 1169 £ 154 127.8 =220 0.001 05
DBP {mm Hg) AT =114 706 x 11.1 782+ 142 .02 01
MAP (mm Hg) 916129 86.0 =109 94.8x 155 D.002 0.2
BP >130/80 mm Hg 2149} 81{28) 111 (50} {.005 09
Albuminuria Strata
UACR <30 mg/g (n = 1,564)
SBP {mm Hg) 122.0 £ 206 1180+ 16.3 1241 =154 0.02 03
DBP {mm Hg} 67.3 121 67.8 = 10.7 707 £12.5 0.7 0.009
MAP (mm Hg) 85.5 + 132 8452 10.7 88.5 130 0.3 0.03
BP =>130/80 mm Hg 44 (38) 228 (27) 255 (42) 0.01 05
UACR 30-<300 mg/g (n = 955)
SBP {mm Hy) 133.2 = 200 1229185 1326222 <20.001 0.8
DBP {mm Hg) 696119 68.3= 114 736 = 14.0 0.3 o.M
MAP {mm Hg) 908 =126 8852 116 932+ 146 0.001 o1
BP = 130/80 mm Hg 51 (54} 148 (36) 247 (56) 0.001 07
UACR =300 mg/g (n = 1,11{)
SBP {mm Hg) 14322229 12908+ 21.2 143.2 = 231 <0.001 0.9
DBP {mm Hg} 760123 725z 122 772+ 139 <0.001 0.3
MAP {mm Hg) 98.4 + 131 g1.6=129 982 +14.2 <0.001 a5
BP >130/80 mm Hg 186 {76) 183 (53} 395 {76) <0.01 0.8

Notg: Continuous variables are represented by mean

{percentage). eGFR given in mUmind1.73 m?.

Abbreviations: BP, blood pressure; CRIC, Chronic Renal Insufficiency Cohert; DBP, diastolic blood pressure; eGFR, estimated
glomerular filtration rate; H-CRIC, Hispanic Chronic Renal Insufficiency Cohort; MAP, mean arterial pressure; SBP, systolic blood
pressure; UACR, urine albumin-creatinine ratio.

+ standard deviation; categorical variables are given as frequency

and blacks. In particular, in the selting of CKD, Mexican
Americans had especially unfavorable sociedemo-
graphic and clinical parameters relative to Puerto Rican
Americans and other Latin Americans. Even when level
of eGFR was taken into account, Hispanics with CKD
more often had uncontrolled blood pressure, lower se-
rum hemoglobin levels, and worse metabolic and bone
melabolism parameiers than non-Hispanic whites and
blacks,

Am J Kidney Dis. 2011;58(2):214-227

In contrast to prior reports and studies that focused
chicfly on populations with ESRD,* this work is one
of the few sysiematic evaluations of CKD in Hispan-
ics, who constilute a growing high-risk population
well known 1o be affecicd by health disparities.?'**’
The CRIC and H-CRIC Siudics were designed to
cxamine prospectively risk factors for CKD progres-
ston and cardiovascular disease incidence and progres-
sion in a large diverse representative cohort of indi-
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Table 5. Laboratory Parameters in H-CRIC/Hispanic CRIC Participants Compared With Non-Hispanic White and Black

CRIC Participants

Hispanic Non-Hispanic White Non-Hispanic Black Hispanic Hispanic
Variable {n =497) {n = 1,638) {n =1,650) vs White vs Black
eGFR Strata
eGFR <30 (n = 702)
Sodium (mmolfL) 1381+ 29 1398+ 29 139.8 = 3.4 <0.001 <0.001
Potassium (mmol/L) 46+ 046 4605 4506 0.5 0.004
CO, {mmol/L) 217x35 230+ 33 227234 <0.001 0.003
Hemoglobin {g/dL} 11518 12316 11518 <0.001 07
Calcium (mg/dL} 8806 92+05 91206 <0.001 <0.001
Phosphate {mg/dL) 4407 4008 4207 <(.001 0.09
Total PFTH {pg/mL) 102.7 (73.1,.171.3) 79.9 (50.6, 126.4} 133.6 (81.3, 212.6) 0.006 =0.001
Serum albumin (g/dL) 3605 40+0.4 38=05 <(.001 <0.001
6GFR 30-<45 (n = 1,382)
Sodium {mmol/L} 137.9 £ 3.0 139129 140.0 £ 3.2 «{.001 <0.001
Potassium (mmalfL) 4405 45=05 4305 0.2 0.04
O, (mmoliL) 22828 243+28 245> 32 <0.001 <0.001
Hemaoglobin (g/dL) 18217 13.0x1.7 119218 <{.00 0.2
Catcium {mg/dL) 8805 92=05 92=05 <0.001 <0.001
Phosphate (mg/dl) 4.0x07 3706 3806 <(2.001 <0.001
Total PTH (pg/mL) 59.5 {44.0, 95.0) 48.0(32.0, 76.0) 75.3(48.9,118.5) 0.09 <(.001
Serum albumin {g/dL} 3605 40+04 3905 <(0.001 <0.001
eGFR 45-<60 {n = 1,141}
Sodium {mmol/L}) 1383+ 31 1393 =30 139.5 = 3.1 0.002 <0.001
Potassium {(mmol/L) 43+05 43+05 4105 0.4 0.002
CO, (mmoliL) 240x29 25128 25730 <(.001 <0.0M1
Hemoglobin {g/dL) 128+ 241 13418 125+ 1.6 <{0.01 0.08
Catcium (mg/dL}) 9105 93x04 92>05 G.01 0.08
Phosphate (mg/dL) 3606 356=*05 36206 0.08 0.8
Total PTH (pgfmL) 51.0(37.0,66.0) 39.0(28.6,54.0) 522(360,77.9) <{.001 0.05
Serum albumin {g/dL} 382046 4104 4004 <(.001 0.008
aGFR =60 (n = 560)
Sodium {mmol/) 1377+ 25 1387+ 3.0 139.3+ 26 0.04 <0.001
Potassium (mmolfL) 42105 4204 41+04 03 0.3
CO, {mmol/L) 248+34 25530 25628 0.1 0.1
Hemoglobin {g/dL.} 13.0*+1.6 137+ 16 1312186 0.003 08
Calcium {mo/dL) 9105 9104 9304 0.4 0.004
Phosphate {mg/dL) 37058 34=x05 3506 <0.001 0.09
Total PTH {pg/mL) 409 {27.0,49.7) 35.0(26.0,45.0) 38.0(28.5,55.6) 0.3 0.4
Serum albumin {g/dL) 3906 40+ 04 4.0+04 0.02 0.02
Albuminuria Strata
UACR <30 mgy/g (n = 1,564)
Sodium {mmolA.} 138329 139.1 % 3.0 139.8 33 0.005 <0.001
Potassium {mmot/L) 4305 43=>05 42*05 0.5 0.03
CO, (mmoil) 23933 251229 254 + 3.1 <0.001 <0.001
Hemoglobin (g/dL} 124 £ 15 134 =15 124> 16 <0.001 0.7
Cafcium {mgfdL) 9304 9305 92305 0.7 0z
Phosphate {mg/dL) 3705 35%06 37206 3.004 09
Total PTH {pg/mi.} 48.0 {35.0, 63.0) 38.0(27.1,54.1) 52.0{35.0,77.8) 0.1 0.03
Serum albumin (g/dL) 40+04 4104 41 =04 0.04 0.4
UACR 30-<300 mg/g (n = 955)
Sedium {mmol/L} 138327 138.3 = 341 1398 =30 0.005 <0.001
Potassium {mmol/L) 44 =06 4405 43=05 0.4 0.06
GO, (mmaliL} 23132 241 = 3.0 244+ 3.4 £.003 <{.001
{Continued}
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Table 5 {Cont'd). Laboratory Parameters in H-CRIC/Hispanic CRIC Participants Compared With Non-Hispanic White and Black
CRIC Participanis

P
I 1
Hispanic Non-Hispanic White Non-Hispanic Black Hispanic Hispanic
Variable {n = 497) {n = 1,638) {n = 1,650) ve White ve Black
Hemoglobin (g/dL) 122=20 131 217 12318 <0.0M 0.7
Calcium {mg/dL) 9105 9205 92x05 o.M 0.008
Phosphate {mg/fdL} 3907 3607 37x06 <0.001 0.02
Tatal PTH (pgfmL} 57.7 {34.0, 80.0) 49.3(32.0,74.3) 60.4 (43.1,125.0) 0.04 0.005
Serum albumin {g/dL) 39*+0D4 41x04 4004 <0.001 0.02
UACR 2300 mg/g (n = 1,110)
Sodium (mmoi/L} 1379 = 31 1392+ 28 1395 3.0 <0.001 <<0.001
Potassium {mmoi/L) 4506 45+05 43*+05 0.09 0.001
GO, {(mmol/L) 25+32 240 = 3.1 240+ 34 <0.001 <{1.001
Hemoglobin (g/dL) 118x20 127+18 11.9*1.7 <0.001 0.8
Calcium {mg/dL) 88 =05 9105 9005 <0.01 <<0.001
Phosphate (mg/dL) 4208 38x06 40x07 <0.001 <00
Total PTH {pg/mL) 81.2 (505, 117.0) 60.1(36.9, 98.4) 92.0(55.7,157.0) 0.06 <{.0M
Serumn albumin (g/dL) 35205 38+05 3705 <0.001 <{.001

Nole: Continuous variables are represented by mean = standard deviation or median (25th, 75th percentile). eGFR given in
mi/minft.73 m®. Canversion factors for units; hemoglobin in g/dL to g/L, %10; calcium in mg/dL to mmol/l., X 0.2495; phosphate in
mg/dL to mmol/L, X 0.3229; albumin in g/dL to ¢/l, X10; ne conversion necessary for PTHin pg/mL and ng/L.

Abbreviations: CO,, carbon dioxide; CRIC, Chronic Renal Insufficiency Cohort; eGFR, estimated glomerular fittration rate; H-CRIC,
Hispanic Chronic Renal Insufficiency Cohert; PTH, parathyroid hormone; UACR, urine albumin-creatinine ratio.

viduals with CKD.'"!® By capturing a wide array of
data for a broad range of demographic (actors and
clinical exposurcs, the H-CRIC and CRIC Studics
will further elucidate reasons for healih disparities in
Hispanics with CKD and inform clinical trials of
therapeutic interventions that potentially may lead 10
improvements in clinical outcomes.?®

A few prior studics examined differences in the
burden of CKD between Hispanics and non-Hispan-
ics. Although analyses from NHANES (National
Health and Nutrition Examination Survey) have found
the prevalence of eGFR <60 mL/min/1.73 m? 1o be
similar in Mexican Amecricans and non-Hispanic
whites, they generally have noted « higher prevalence
of micro- and macroalbuminuria.**'? fn a large co-
hort of adults with stages 3-4 CKD from Kaiser
Permanente of Northern California, higher levels of
proteinuria also werg abserved in Hispanics compared
with non-Hispanic whites, which is consistent with
our observations in thec H-CRIC/CRIC Studies.” Less
is known about complications of CKT). Similar to our
findings, a rccent analysis from NHANES found that
several metabolic abnormalitics, including those in-
volving hemoglobin, phosphorus, potassium, and bi-
carbonate, were more common in Hispanic than white
adults with ¢GFR <60 mL/min/1.73 m>.*° Differ-
ences in socioeconomic status may explain some of
these observed differences. For example, 2 recent
studies found that low sociocconomic status was
assoctated strongly with higher serum phesphorus
levels in adults with CKD regardless of racc/cthnic-

Am J Kidney Dis. 2011;58(2):214-227

ity.?®* The impact of these complications on health
outcomes will be assessed in {uture longitedinal anal-
yscs.

Optimal control of blood pressure and use of reno-
protective medications also were found to be inferior
in Hispanics compared with non-Hispanic whites in
H-CRIC/CRIC despite evidence supporting these mea-
sures to attenuale CKD progression.’® Similar pat-
terns of greater uncontrolled blood pressure in Hispan-
ics with and without CKD also have becn observed in
samples from NHANES*?2 and MESA (Multi-
Ethnic Study of Atherosclerosis),”® which appear due
in part to socioeconomic differences. Only one prior
study has examined the rclationship belwcen race/
cthnicity and ACE-inhibitor/ARB use in individuals
at high risk of progressive CKD. Of atmost 40.000
diabetic adults in the Kaiser Permaneme of Northern
California Diabetes Registry, 59% of Latinos received
an ACE inhibitor/ARB, including 54% with albumin-
uria, and this proportion was not significantty differ-
eat from that observed for whites.” Although we ob-
served a similar proportion of Hispanics receiving ACE
inhibitors’ARBs in H-CRIC/CRIC overall, we found
that Hispanics had significantly lower reccipt of these
medications in high-risk groups (eg, diabeles, protein-
uria, and blood pressure >>130/80 mm Hg) compared
with non-Hispanic whites and blacks. In addition te local
clinical practice pattemns, the lower prevalence of health
insurance in Hispanics in H-CRIC/CRIC likely contrib-
utes to thesc observed differcnces. Although not specifi-
cally evalvated in regard to categories of race and cthnic-
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ity, lack of health insurance has been associated with
decreased access to regular care, worse control of hyper-
tension, and less receipt of ACE inhibitors/ARBs in
adults with diabeies and CKD.*+*® Because of its robust
data collection, future H-CRIC/CRIC analyses will delin-
cale the relationships between race/ethnicity, sociocco-
nomic status {cg, income, hcalh insurance, and access to
health care), risk factors for CKD, and CKD progres-
sion.

There is notable heterogeneity among Hispanics in
the Uniled States with regard o race, country of
origin, language, health belicfs, and social customs.*’
The H-CRIC and CRIC Siudies also afford an initial
examination of differences among subgroups of His-
panics with CKD, finding that Mexican Americans
had more severe CKD (ie, lower eGFRs and higher
proteinuria}, a disproportionate burden of unfavorable
CKD risk factors, and a higher prevalence of CKD-
related metabolic complications compared with Puerto
Rican Americans and other Latin Americans. Only a
few prior studics have investigated differences in
CKD parameters and outcomes among Hispanic sub-
groups. In a prospective observational study of nearly
5,000 Hispanics receiving long-terim dialysis therapy,
Mexican Americans were found to have significantly
lower mortality than their Puerto Rican American
counterparis over 2 years.”® Analysis of NHANES
data showed that Cuban Americans were more likely
10 have an estimaled creatinine clearance <60 mL/min/
1.73 m* compared with Mexican Americans or Puerto
Ricans.*® Recently, findings from MESA showed that
although Puerte Ricans had levels of albuminuria
similar to non-Hispanic whites, Mexicans and Domini-
cans had much higher albuminuria than whites, which
appearcd 10 be related to the heterogencity in genetic
admixture between European, African, and Native
American ancestry in these groups.*® Further analyses
are needed to better understand the diversity among
Hispanic subgroups in the United States and delincate
the clinical implications of these baseline findings.

The causes of racial and cthnic inequities among
individuals with CKD arc speculated 10 be of diverse
origing, including patient- (¢g, biological, sociecco-
nomic, and envirownental), provider- (eg, bias and
communication), and health care system-—rclated (cg,
access to services) factors.?®?* Reasons for these
reported disparitics in Hispanics have been examined
infrequently. Some have argued that differences in
sociodemographic and recognized clinical factors ac-
count for much of observed disparities in health
outcomes.”” Others have contended that intrinsic bio-
logical and genctic predispesitions toward CKD and
its complications, zlong with differential responses to
treatment, may contribute substantially to these dispari-
ties for Hispanics.” Moreover, few studies have incor-

224

porated detailed data for socigcconomic status, health
insurance, and access to care.>® Of thosc that did, the
observed disparities in regard to higher rates of ESRD
in Hispanics appear (o be explained only partially by
these factors.” By virtue of their prospective longitudi-
nal design and detailed collection of patient-level
data, the H-CRIC and CRIC Studies arc poised to
identify additional genetic, biological, and sociocul-
tural factors that contribute to racial/cthnic differ-
ences in CKD-related outcomes.

As in other observational analyses, inferences re-
garding causality arc limited by residual bias and
confounding. However, method strategics have been
adopted to minimize these concerns.'”'® Another po-
tential limitation pertains to the generalizability of
findings from CRIC and H-CRIC participanis. As
previously described,'™'® the CRIC cohort over-
sampled certain subgroups (ic, African Americans)
and recruited participants from select geographic sites
and thercfore ts not a population-based sample like
the NHANES CKD cohort. Similarly, most Hispanic
participants in CRIC/H-CRIC were Mexican Ameri-
cans (69%) and were recruited from the Chicago
metropolitan area (85%). Although many character-
istics of our Hispanic cohort, including country of
origin. education, income, and primary language,
arc similar to represeniative samples, such as those
in NHANES, 242 it is important 1o recognize that
our Hispanic cohort does not include robust repre-
scntation from all Hispanic subgroups and geo-
araphic regions of the United States, Therefore,
lindings reported here may not fully generalize Lo
all US Hispanics with CKD, Last, although a recent
study has indicated 1hat the CKD-EPI cquation for
eGFR is rclatively accurate for Hispanics,* this
equation has not been validated in large diverse
samples of Hispanics. Hence, eGFR findings re-
ported herc across racial/fethnic groups may be
subject to bias.

In conclusion, Hispanics with CKD in the CRIC/H-
CRIC Studies are disproportionately burdened with
lower sociceconomic status, more frequent diabetes
mellitus, worse blood pressurce control, lower receipt
of ACE-inhibitor/ARB medications, and more severe
CKD with disproportionatc associated metabolic com-
plications than their non-Hispanic white and black
counterparts. The consequences of these observed
differences across racial and ethnic groups are less
clear. Although multiple studics have found an in-
creased burden of adverse sociodemographic charac-
teristics. clinical nsk factors, and ESRD in Hispanics
compared with whites,2*¢1%2? 3 decreased risk of
cardiovascular events and death in Hispanics with
CKD and ESRD has been obscrved,”?*%” which
is consistent with a phenomenen observed clsewhere

Am J Kid Dis. 2011:68{2):214-227
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called the Hispanic paradox.* Thercfore, longitudinal
analyses arc critically neceded to fully examine the
impact of these baseline health disparities as potential
mediators of racial/ethnic variation in CKD-related
clinical outcomes. Improving our understanding of
the causes and consequences of health disparitics in
Hispanics with CKD has the potential to allow us to
more effectively identify and address barriers 1o health
care and improve outcomes for this population.?*#
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U.S. Census Bureau

AMERICAN

FactFlnder

DP-1 Profile of Genera! Demagraphic Characteristics: 2000

Census 2000 Summary File 1 (SF 1) 100-Percent Data

NOTE: For information on confidentiality protection, nonsampling error, definitions, and count corrections see

hitp:fifactfinder.census.govihome/en/datanctes/expsf1u.hirn.

Subject Lemont ;rilla—gla. llinois ‘:
Nuntl-lst;;mr_f ’ Percent .
Tolal papulalion ,‘ 13098 | 1000
"SEX AND AGE T B
. Male ; 6,208 ! 47.4
Female T 6,890 - 526
Undersyears ~ T T e 73
“SlioOyears _ . 1103 ) B'G
10to 14 years : 1088 ¢ 8.1__?‘
1510 19 years 763 5.8
2010 24 years ' 554 T ’ 4.2
[ 2510 34 years N T w0t
" 3510 44 years ot oTTTT T 2,51;1. T 19.2
4510 54 yers - i T e ]
I' 551050 years ) | 830 [ 5.2
! 601064 yesrs - 487 Y 2
| 6510 74 years T | _na 55
" "75'to 84 yoars i 650 IIIII T T s0 ]
. "85 years and over i a3 | 3? .
I_ Median age (years) .. ..33 , (?‘)_.J
18 years and over 9472 723
o Mate - 4,363 333
Femate 5,108 80
[ 721 years and over 909‘_1 i 69‘4J
' 62 years and over 2,110 16.1
65 years and over - 1,852 14.1
T Male T 616 4.7
[Fomale % | 4]
RACE
" Oné ra race T 13,094 ; 994 |
. White ) 2757 | 974 |
Black or African American 40 0.3
TAmerican Indian and Alaska Native 19 o]
T Hsian '_ " T o 08
Asian Indian t 31 0:2__j
"Chinese T ” ’]_ T T T B 02
Filipino : 26 7T g
B 'Japanose o T j “Too
. Korean B o ;-r"___ 19 _‘i 0;1
" Vietnamese 3 0.0
i . e
Other Asian [1] 6 o0
" Native Hawaiian and Other Pacn' C Islander ) 4 0.0 h
Native Hawaiian o ' b, 0.0
o El.f_maman Er_. Chamorro L ) o 1 0.0
- bl S —— S
Cther Pacific Isialdfz_r_ [g] o 2 c.0

10f3

_}
- _ - -
T - . '!.‘.
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i Subject " Lemont village, Minols |
g _ Number Percent o
Some other race T 7 ..L,m - o1 J
_Two or more races i B4 | 0.6
Race alone or in combination with one or more;th’é?_ M ! 1
races [3]_ __ - o
White T N 12834 98.0
Black or African American | 58 | 0.4 1
American Indian and Alaska Native _;_ j ag T03
Asian o T 129 1.0 |
Native Hawatian and Giher Pacific Islander T D : U.{J;i
 Someciherrace T 126 T 10 I
FISPANIC OR LATING AND RACE o T -
Total population o : R 13,098 | 1_199_2
Hlspamc_il._atmo (of any race) . 393 , 30 N
Mexican , 276 2.1
Puerto Rican L ! B 03
Cu_bir] o I ; _ 13-1,—__—— LA '
Giher Hispanic or Latino . 66 0.5 -
Not Hispanic or Latlno _ - 12,705 _i o 97.0
"= White along 12,469 [95.2
RELATIONSHIP ) '_'T )
[ Total population T 13,008 100.0
[ In"housenolds 12,597 | 96.2
' Householder ) T i 4,420 337
Spouse - 2977 | 227
Child ' 4,509 | 344
" Gwn child Under 15 years 3477 | 26.5
Other relatives 427 3.3
“ Under 18 years ) 116 | 0.9 W
L}nr&!atives s : = " 264 ~r 20 =
Unmarned parlner \ 134 1.0 _]
__ln group quariers T .L 501 38 1
Instilutionahized population 285 2.2
Noninslilutionalized poputation i 216 16 -
HOUSEHOLDS BY TYPE : L
Total households : 4420 100.0
|~ Family households (families) | 3409 77.1
With own children under 18 years I 1,722 39.0
Married-couple family T YT 67.4
With own children under 18 years T T 20 M4 |
Ferale householder, no husband pres;ént 1— o 325 74
With own children under 18 years ; 150 ! 34 _.;
| Nonfamily househoids_ | 1,011 ! 29
Householder iving alone s TTB6T 19.6 !
Householder 65 years and over i 452 | 10.2 _J
" Households with individuate undeﬁa years ) G 00 :iﬁ_l?_ y
" Households with individuals 65 years and over’ : 1,085 248 |
Average household size T T s
" Average family size’ ) i :'F:H:“ o qji__ - 332 I (X) 1
HOUSING OCCUPANCY ~ o R i
[ Total housmg unils | 4,553 100.0
" Cccupied housmg FUnits Tt/ T I 4420 g7.1 !
""Vacant housing units T [ 133 29 ]
" For seasonal recreational, of otcasional Use e i i1 he T 0_.1_
Homeowner vacancy rate (percenl) | T - 0.9 {X)
""Rental vacancy rate (percent) T [ 37 o)
LHOTSING TENRE T T T ’ N
mﬁd Ebuslng units . T !—_ 4,420 o 100.0
“Bumer-occupied housing units T 3.660 82.8
Renter-cccupied housing units - . 760 172,
Average household size of owner-occupied unit } 306 ' [)_(_)_J

2 of3
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Subject

z
8|
=
-1
L=}
]
=
=]
=
7]
o
=
2,
=1
@,
)
o,
=]
=
=
@ -
gi
=
iy}
&
[}
lg
=
1]
[=N
=
3
=
[ —

Len]ontvl!lagez Illinois- :
Number _i __f_ercent___
o] T

[1] Other Asian alone, or two of more Asian categories.

{X) Not applicable.

[2] Other Pacific Islander alone, or two or rmore Nalive Hawaiian and Other Pacific Islander calegories.

[3] In combination with one or mere cther races lisled. The six numbers may add to maore than the total population and the six percentages may add to
more than 100 percent because individuals may reporl more than one race.

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Census 2000 Summary File 1, Matrices P1, B3, P4, P8, P9, P12, P13, P17, P18, P19, P20, P23, P27, P28, P33,
PCTS, PCT8, PCT11, PCT15, M1, H3, H4, K5, H11, and H12.
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U.S. Census Bureau L

AMERICAN o T ; _ s e
FactFlnder O | A

DP-1 Profile of Generat Population and Housing Characteristics: 2010

2010 Demographic Profite Data

NOTE: For more information on confidentiality protection, nonsampling error, and definilions, see http:/fiwww.census.gov/prodicen2010/docidps!.pdf.

Geography: Lemont village, lilinois

e Subject | _ Number . Percent_
SEX AND AGE T
Total populalion T 16000 | 1000 ]
} UnderSyears - 804 I 50
Sto9years T E (KEER 69
. 101014 years o 1.331 J?”_‘_- 83,
M5 19years ’ o 1,186 ‘_ 7.4
50 24 years | 750 47 |
f 25 o 29 years _'T T Bag 4.0
30 io 34 years _T 655 a1
351039 years. - 911 | — 57 1
40 to 44 years l 1,264 7.9
45{c 40 years ST o - 1,486 .93
50 1o 54 years — : 1,439 | 90 _:
FE61559years o i 7,111 ‘ 6.9":}
60 1o 64 years ! 897 56
[ S5wedyears T ] ) 692___ 43 !
| 701074 years o . E 528 33
7510 79 years 347 A .22
80 fo 84 years " 330 21
85 years and cver T 611 32 .
~ Médian age (yoars) Rl 426 T (x)
16 years and over o 12477 © B0 ¢
18 years and over 11,847 74.7
" 21years and over """'_._ ’ 11,435 | 715 |
62 years and over 2,938 18.4
65 years and over . j 2,408 151
Male population T 7.736 . _ 8.4 -1
|~ Under § years . T Ta0 1T 28
510 9 years 554 - 35 .
ot T T T T T s
1510 1_9}_e_ars ) o _ E{LBTL o ‘3,8_‘
© 20to 24 years o 38{1 X _M__Iﬁ_'
2510 20 years ’ 33 | 2.1
T30 to 34 years l T 430 ;h 25
" 3510 W years C ' T 4% 27 |
30 10 44 years T 598 B
dBloagyears ) 728 46
T 501054 years S TTeer T 44
55t 60years ee T 36 |
""" 60 to 64 years e ’ o _-‘ 452 78
_ 65t069years o 315 20 ;
70 1o 74 years 251 1.8
756 19 yéars R - T I
TeGlos4years ' ' m_ 06 |
85 years and over - TM - 1?_5_‘__1‘_* _U.é 1
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Subject Number Porcent
| Median age (years) T sz | (%)
16 years and over T T ] T se24 | 37.0
" I8yeassandover Bger %4 ]
21 years and over 5402 338
| S2yearsandaver ., __ | _ 1208 ] 751
65 years and aver 939 59
Female population 8,264 517
| Under 5 years i 'M “am [T a4
5109 years - il N 35
10to 14 years - T _T_ " eaz ! _ 'Zd
“TEto 19 years . T e "581 - 36
" %010 24 years ’ 370 2.L
2510 28 years = Y T
30 1o 34 years 325 20
| 3510 3§year§ C T ) W_ T 4B I """ Y
40 1o 44 years 666 | 42 |
4510 49 years ) c R 758 | AT
" 5010 54 years ’ 742 46
F 55 (0 59 years T T " 529 33
" 60 to 64 years J-_ o 445 T 28
(Sstogyears — TR T T am b 24 )
70 to 74 years 277 17
| 7310 79years e e oM M2
8010 84 years 229 1.4
JBoyearsAndover e e a3 24
Median age (years) | 43.7 (X))
16 years and over L ) 6553 _;__“_ _410
*“1—8_ytaars: andover . r 6.280 | 30.3
L 21years and over ~ M"__ o ..._“ L 6,033 | 817 ?
62 years and over i 1,735 10.8
fe5yearsandaver L R T T 1
RACE R e
Total population T i 16,000 | 100.0
One Race T 1.5:8_25 T QB.BHI
S e ahi e N a5
Black or African American 58 0.4
American indian and Alaska Native ' 14 04
Asian 260 16
= Asian Indian ) 98 | 08
Chinese 48 0.3
T Fipmo - - 701 0.4
Japanese 0 0.0
[~ Korean o I 21 01_]
" Vietnamese ' 4 0.0
"Other Asian {1] T E T S A
™" "Native Hawaiian and Oiher Pacific Islander T T T e
lt‘ Nativé__?iawaiian '__ N - 0 00 |
. G_u:ii_nr_mni?n Er ChamoTrE_ - ‘ — I,. 0 — 0.0
! Samoan ! oo
F~ Gttver Sadific Islander (2] el — Y
. Some Ofher Race T 149 05
Two or More Races ! 177 . 1.1 |
White; American Indian and Alaska Native [3) ) 39 N 02
White; Asian [3) J‘ 44 0.3
e Back o Aean Amerean 01— | T 267 _ 702
White; Some Cther Race [3] ' 53 03
Race alone or in combinalion with one or mare other ‘| Tt o T
races: [41 __ e ]
White ' 15,511 96.9
| Black or Afrcan Americen " T T 0 T T T T fOLd
L American Indian and AagkaNative |~ T 89y 04|
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e .. Subject | _ Number | P":'c?.“.t__...,
L Asian | 314 | _ .20 |
" Native Hawaiian and Other Pacific Istander 3 0.0
""Some Other Race R TTT2107 13
HISPANIC OR LATING - .
E\Total population ~ o ) 16,000 - 100
Hispanic or Latino (of any race) §22 51
I Mexican Y D 44 ]
Puerto Rican ’ T 52 0.3
Cuban A T 24 02
Other Hispanic or Latino [5] 85 s
NotHipanicorLaino 1 15178 o490
HISPANIC OR LATINOCANDRACE T )

- Total population M ) T 16,000 1000
Hispanic or Latine o B2 51
|~ While alone =TT T T 621 | T a0
“Black of Affican Amengan alone 0 0.0

Amercan Indian and Alaska Native alone ' 5 T00
Asian alone o | 2 0.0
| Naiive Hawailan and Other Pacific Islander alone : 0 Y |

Some Other Race alone | 145 09 |
. Two or More Races ; 48 T 03 _'!
Not Hispanic or Latine | 15,178 ! 949
While alone ‘ 34718 T 020 |
Black or African American alone 58 0.4
American Indian and Alaska Native alone T 9 | .01 ]
Asian alone ST 258 i BEY:
| Native Hawaiian and Other Pacific Islander alone | T 2, .. _ oo 5
Some Other Race along 4 | c.0
| Two or More Races A -
REUATIONSHIP o - ‘1“
Eotal population _ o ] 16,000 | . 100.0 |
| In households 15,818 989
Householder L L stz [T 358
Spouse [6) 757 23.5
T 5450 | 341 |
" Own child under 18 years T 3,885 23
Other refatives T 524 i 3.3
Under 18 years i 140 0.9
65 years and over T 182 | 11
Nonrelatives T T “‘ 366 2.3
Under 18 years 1 18 0.1
_ﬁﬁéa_rs and over T [ 48 T 03
Unmarried partner " ; ..I _' 199 |~ 12 ]
[mooupauarers e T ]
Institutionalized population 145 HO.Q
]' T Male ’ e 34 02
Female "1 b7
Noninstitutionalized population | ; __'36- T 02,
7 Male - ‘ 0 0.0 ]
T Femais N ' 36 02!
ROUSEROLBS BYTVPE 7~ " ™ , I
Total households ) M§,723M 100.0_ _J
Famity households {famiiies) [7] . 4329 787
With own children under 18 years | 2034 355 '
Husband-wife family 3757 i 65.7
|~ "with own children under 18 years . 1,?52 T ’ -306_ -‘
Male householder, no wife present T N 164 B 29
With own children under 18 years :l T Ty T ._:M e
Female householder, no husband present .403 ) ) 741
"7 With own children under 18 years N ’ 201 _ 35
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o Subject i Numbcr " Porcent
Nonfamily households (7] e 1 393 - 243 |
Householder living alone ; IR T 20 B
"~ Male " T ~ 457 80
65years and over - 132 | 23
CFemale T T T T e T 29
65 years and over . 466 , 85
- Households with individuals under 18 years 2,126 37.2
" Households with |nd|wduais 65 years and ov:zr - __,[_.,..._. " 1 52_8 1—. - 285 )
E_A—verage household 5|ze H 276 (X}
Average family size [?] o N H-ES+ . (;(}__:
HOUSING OCCU PANCY )
Total housing units T T T T T .6‘102 — 100.0
Wmdhousmg gunits 5722 93.8
Vacant housing anits - ' 3-80*“ E—ZWW
For rent - 107 1.8
I Rented, not occupied 6 0.1
For sale only 145 2.4
Sold, nol occupied 26 (1]
For seasonal, recreational, or occasienal use ] 39 0.6
Adl glher vacants 57 0.9 :
Homeowner vacancy rate (percent) (8]~~~ T~ T "Tag9 Ty )
[ Rental vacancy rate (percent] ) ____Tu__" w2 T T T (X)) 1
HOUSING TENURE ) ' i
Oocupled ‘housing units | T sm 7 —156”,
F Owneroccup!ed housing units B 4,782 B3.6
Populatlon in owner{pcwpled housmg Units T 14019 ( X ) -1
¢ Average household size of owner-occupied unils 293 . (X}
%Renler-oocupied housing unils | 940 16.4 |
" Population n rerter-ccdapied housing urits 18001 (X),
; Average household size of renter-occupied units T 1.91 I (X) i

X Not applicable.

[1) Other Asian alone, or two or more Asian categories,

12} Other Pacific islander atone, or two or more Native Hawaiian and Other Paclfic Islander categories.
{31 One of the four most commanly reported multiple-race combinations naticnwide in Census 2000.

[4] in combination with one or more of the pther races listed. The six numbers may add to maore than lhe tolal population, and the six percentages may
add to more than 100 percent because individuals may report more than one race.

{5] This category is composed of people whose origins are from the Dominican Republic, Spain, and Spanish-speaking Central or South American
countries. It also includes general onigin respenses such as "Laling”™ or "Hispanic.”

[6] "Spouse” represents spouse of the householder. It does not reflect all spouses in a household. Responses of "same-sex spouse” were edited
during processing to "unmarried partner.”

[7] "Family households” consist of a householder and cne or more olher people relaied 1o the householder by birth, marriage, or adoption. They do not
include same-sex married couples even if the marriage was performed in 3 state issuing marriage certfficates for same-sex couples. Same-sex couple
households are included in the family households category if there is at least one additional person related to the householder by hirth or adoption.
Same-sex couple households with no relatives of the householder presant are tabulated in nonfamily households. *Nonfamily households” consist of
people living alone and households which do not have any members related to the householder,

[8] The homeowner vacancy rate is the praportion of the homeowner inventory that is vacant "for sale.” It is computed by dividing the 1otal number of
vacant unils “for sale only” by the sum of owner-occupied units, vacant units that are “for sale only," and vacan units that have been sold but not yet
occupied; and then mulliplying by 100.

[9] The rentat vacancy rate is the propertion of the rental inventory that is vacant "for rent,” ILis computed by dividing the total number of vacant units
"for rent” by the sum of the renter-occupied unils, vacant units that are “for rent," and vacant unils thal have been rented but not yet occupied; and
then multiplying by 100,

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, 2010 Census.
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NEED DETERMINA FION—PREVALENCE RATES

5 P —

: OVERALL PREVALENCE F , SRD " ;gi 6991pe pzmgllu
Prevalence for Patients 65-74 years 5,941 per million population
Prevalence for Patients 75 years and over 5,266 per million population
Prevalence for African American Population 5,205 per million population
Prevalence for Hispanic Population 2,458 per million population
Average High Risk Prevalence {Mixed Average) 4,718 per million population

(Source: U.S. Renal Data Service, 2010 Annual Data Report: Volume 2 Atlas of End Stage Renal Disease, at 259)

APPLICATION OF ADJUSTED PREVALENCE

Incremental | Prevalence ! . i Stations

Population ; Rate ‘ Patients : Required
Overall Prevalence 100,000 0.1699% 170 28
Average High Risk Prevalence 100,000 0.4718% 472 79
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APPLICATION OF ADJUSTED PREVALENCE
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The attached tables show the following information:

*

ATTACHMENT 26

UNNECESSARY DUPLICATION OF SERVICES

A list of zip code arcas that are located, in total or in part, within 30 minutes normal

travel time of the project’s site; and

The total population of the identified zip code areas (based upon the 2010 population
numbers available for the State of Illinois population}.

. Total
Zip Code Population
60421 3,968
60442 9,924
60503 16,717
60404 17,395
60586 46,251
60431 22,577
60544 25,959
60436 18,315
60435 48,899
60403 17,529
60446 39,807
60585 22,311
60564 41312
60504 37.9i9
60555 13,538
60563 35,922
60540 42,910
60490 20,463
60565 40,524
60440 52,911
60532 27,066
60433 {7,160
60432 21,403
60441 36,869
60451 34,063
60491 22,743
60517 32,038
60515 27,503
60516 29,084
60559 24.852
60439 22919
60561 23,115
60527 27,486
60514 9,708

. Total
Zip Code Population

60521 17,597
60558 12,960
60190 10,663
60189 30,472
60187 29.0i6
60139 34,321

60137 37,805
60148 51,468
60101 39,119
60523 9,890

60181 28,836
60126 46,371
60162 8,111

60163 5,209

60423 30,423
60448 24,423
60487 26,928
60467 26,046
60462 38,723
60477 38,161
60443 21,145
60452 27,969
60463 14,671
60445 26,057
60464 9.620

60480 5.246

60465 17,495
60457 14,049
60455 16,446
60525 31,168
60526 13,576
60458 14,428
60501 11,626
60513 19,047
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. Total
Zip Code Population

60655 28,550
60652 40,959
60632 91,326
60154 16,773
60155 7,927
60104 19,038
60153 24,106
60141 224
60546 15,668
60130 14,167
60804 84,573
60623 92,108

) Total
Zip Code Population

60534 10,649
60482 11,063
60415 14,139
60459 28,929
60803 22,285
60453 56,855
60456 4,349

60638 55,026
60402 63,443
60429 15,630
60428 12,203
60472 5,390

60406 25,460

2230150-2
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ATTACHMENT 26

UNNECESSARY DUPLICATION OF SERVICES

The names and locations of all existing or approved health care facilities located within 30
minutes normal travel from the site that provide the dialysis services that are proposed by the
project. This table indicates both facilitics within an unadjusted 30 minute drive time and the
1.15 factor adjusted 30 minute drive time. Utilization data for thesc facilities is taken from the
fourth quarter 2011 ESRD utilization .

Mapquest maps of driving times and distances are included in Appendix 2 in the order they
appear in the facility table.

Afttachment 26 161




U.S. RENAL CARE LEMONT DIALYSIS UTILIZATION ANALYSIS
FACILITIES WITHIN A 30 MINUTE DRIVE TIME RADIUS (1.15 ADJUSTED)

Adjusted Included
T . Zip . . N Drive Drive in e .
Name Map Address City Code County HSA | Stations | Patients Time Time Utilization Utilization
{(1.15X) Analysis
Sun Health 2121 Oneida Street Joliet 60435 Wil 9 17 55 27 311 N 53.5%
Fresenius Medical Care 2451 South , . o
Naperbrook Washingion Strecl Naperviile 60365 Will 9 16 0 2] 24.2 Y 0.0%
USRC Bolingbrack 396 Remington Bolingbrook | 60440 will 9 13 0 13 15.0 Y 0.0%
Dialysis Boulevard
FMC Bolingbrook 329 Remingion | Bolingbrook | 60440 will 9 24 121 13 15.0 Y 84.0%
FMC - Napervitle 100 Spalding Drive |  Naperville 60566 S“gsgtl’(a“ 7 15 0 24 27.6 Y 0.0%
Frescnius Mf:dlcal Carc 721 East Jackson Toliet 60432 Wwill 9 16 0 20 230 y 0.0%
Joliet Street
Silver Cross Renal Center | 500 Silver Cross 1y i1 enox 60451 will 9 (9 80 13 15.0 Y 70.2%
Boulevard
USRC Oak Brook 1213 Butterfield |y ors Grove | 60515 DuPage 7 13 0 22 253 Y 0.0%
Dialvsis Road =
FMC - Downers Grove | 3823 Highland | ry oo Grove | 60515 | DuPage 7 19 100 23 26.5 Y 87.7%
Dialysis Center Avenue
FMC Dialysis Services of 6300 Kingery Willowbrook | 603527 DuPage 7 16 91 1S 17.3 Y 94.8%
Willowbrook Highway
. . . Suburban A o
FMC - Westchester 2400 Wolf Road Westchesier 60154 Cook 7 20 8 26 299 Y 69.2%
Fresenius Medical Care 1940 Springer Lombard 60148 | DuPage 7 12 21 23 26,5 Y 20.2%
Lombard Drive
RCG Villa Park York Road & Elmhurst 60126 DuPage 7 24 123 31 35.7 N 85.4%
Roosevelt Road
Palos Park Dialysis 13155 %ol;zcra“ge Orland Park | 60462 Cook 7 12 0 15 17.3 Y 0.0%
EMC - Orland Park 15890 Parkhill Dr | Orland Park | 60462 | S | g 18 84 21 242 y 77.8%
FMC - Crestwood 4861 Cal Sag Road |  Crestwood 60445 S”é’;‘;?{a" 7 32 131 24 27.6 Y 68.2%
. . 12250 South . - Suburban . o
FMC - Alsip Cicore Alsip 60803 ool 7 16 75 26 29.9 Y 78.1%
UTILIZATION CALCULATION FOR FACILITIES W/IN 30 MIN DRIVE TIME | 302 964 17 53 2%
UTILIZATION CALCULATION FOR FACILITIES W/IN ADJUSTED 30 MIN DRIVE TIME | 261 786 15 50.2%
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ATTACHMENT 26

MALDISTRIBUTION

This Project will not result in maldistribution, because there is not an excess of stations in HSA
7. On the contrary, this area has a need for 92 additional stations, as published in the IDPH
Revised Needs Determinations for ESRD Stations dated May 17, 2012.

A ratio of stations to population that exceeds onc and one-half times the State average:

The ratio of stations to population within a 30 minute drive time of the proposed facility does
not exceed one and a half times the State average. The State average, calculated from the most-
recently available IDPH Revised Needs Determinations for ESRD Stations dated May 17, 2012
and 2010 census population statistics, results in a state station to population ratio of | station per
3,346 persons. The calculated station to population ratio within the 30 minute drive time of the
proposed facility i1s 1 station per 8,215 persons. Thus the station to population ratio within the
30 minute drive time of the proposed facility does not exceed one and onc-half times the State
average, in fact it is less than 1/2 the State average demonstrating that there is not a
maldistribution of stations in the 30 minute drive time of the proposed facility.

The associated calculation of station to population ratios is included in this attachment. The
calculation for the state station to population ratio utilizes 2010 Census data for the State of
llinois and the totat station count as found on the IDPH Revised Needs Determinations for
ESRD Stations dated May 17, 2012, The calculation of the station to population ratio for
facilities within a 30 minute drive time is calculated using all facilities and zip codes identified
in the Unnecessary Duplication of Services attachment.

1096 South State Street. Lemont, [llinois 60439

Total Number of Stations for Facilitics within a 30 Minute Drive Time 302
Total Population for Zip Codes within a 30 Minute Drive Time 2,481,150
Ratio of Stations to Population 8215

State of lllinois

Total Number of Stations in the State of {llinois 3,834
Total Population in the State of Illinois 12,830,632
Ratio of Stations to Population 3,346
2230150-2
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ATTACHMENT 26

IMPACT OF PROJECT ON OTHER AREA PROVIDERS

The addition of 13 ESRD stations at the U.S. Renal Care Lemont Dialysis Facility would only
account for 4.3% of the total shift capacity in the unadjusted 30-minute drive time area and
1.2% of the total shifi capacity in HSA 7. Assuming 80% utilization (9,734 shifis per year) was
achieved immediately; the facility would only make a 3.4% difference in the 30 minute drive
time occupancy levels and less than a 0.9% difference in the total shift capacity of HSA 7. This
increase in stations is fractional compared to the number of licensed stations in the area, thus it
is unlikely that the addition of these stations will lower the utilization of other area providers,
both those who are operating above 80% and those operating below 80%.

Additionally, the HSA 7 has a station need of 92 stations, as published in the IDPH Revised
Needs Determinations for ESRD Stations dated May 17, 2012.

*This calculation is based on the HSA 7 approved stations of 1,127 as calculated on the IDPH
Revised Needs Determinations for ESRD Stations dated May 17, 2012 and the 30 minute drive
time facilities as identified in Attachment 26 Unnecessary Duplication of Services. Shift
capacity of each station is calculated as 3 shifts per day, 6 days a week, 52 wecks a year.

2230130-2
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ATTACHMENT 26

STAFFING AVAILABILITY

Medical Director
The curriculum vitae of the facility's Medical Director is included in this attachment.

Staff Recruitment

U.S. Renal Care, Inc. recruits facility personnel through the use of various job posting websites
as well as a recruitment tool maintained on the corporate website (available at
http://www.usrcnalcare.com/us_renal_care_careers.htm).

Training

Applicant maintains rigorous orientation and training requirements for all staff of dialysis
facilitics. Clinical staff arc subject to a comprehensive orientation regimen providing training
for such personnel in multiple areas (policies related to orientation and competencies are
included in this attachment). Such staff is also required to comply with any federal or state
traiming requirements nccessary for certification in their respective fields. In addition, U.S.
Renal maintains both corporate and facility level training requircments for facility staff. For
example, all staff are subject to corporate requirements for annual competency assessments and
quarterly assignments provided through U.S. Renat Carc's training tool, Health Streams (a copy
of the schedule of assignments, email reminder and completion report are included in this
attachment). Furthermore, dialysis staff is also required to comply with any facility required
training programs as implemented by the governing body of the dialysis facility (see attached
policy# EO-8002).

Staffing Plan

Applicant maintains staffing ratios in compliance with state requirements for the state in which
Applicant maintains a dialysis facility. Included in this attachment is the U.S. Renal Care policy
regarding staffing ratios which demonstrates the requirement for on duty RNs when the patients
are present and maintenance of direct paticnt care providers in compliance with state
regulations. In the case of Illinois, Applicant will maintain a ratio of onc direct patient carc
provider to every four paticnis.

2230150-2
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PREETI RAOC NAGARKATTE
Northeast Nephrology Consultants
815 North Larkin
Joliet, lllinois 60435

ERUCATION:
Board Certified in Nephrology
Certified 11/07/2001, Certificate valid through 12/31/201%
Certified 10/18/2011, Certificate valid through 12/31/2021

Board Certified in Internal Medicine
Certified 08/24/1999, Certificate valid through 12/31/2009
Certified 10/15/2009, Certificate valid thraugh 12/31/2019

Fellow, Nephrology
Pritzker School of Medicine

University of Chicago Hospitals (2001)
Chicago, Ilinois

Residency, Internal Medicine,
Rush Preshyterian St. Luke’s Medical Center [1999)
Chicaga, lllinois

M.D., University of Cincinnati College of Medicine {1996)
Cincinnati, Ohio

B.S., Biochemistry, University of Cincinnati (1992)

University Honors Scholars Program
Cincinnati, Ohic

HONORS:

. Phi Beta Kappa

- Magna cum laude

. Departmental Honors in Biochemistry

- The Student Affiliates of the American Chemical Society Award

*  Albert B, Vaorheis Scholarship (full} - University of Cincinnati

. The Ohio Board of Regents Scholarship (undergraduate and medical school)
. Dean's List

. Goiden Key National Honor Society

. Alpha Lambda Delta Freshman Honaor Society

RESEARCH AND PUBLICATIONS:

“Utility of [18F}2-Fluoro-2-Deoxyglucose-PET in Sporadic and Tuberous Sclerosis-
Associated Lymphangicleiomyornatosis”, Lisa R. Young; David N. Franz; Preeti
Nagarkatte; Christopher D. M. Fletcher; Kathryn A. Wikenheiser-Brokamp; Matthew D.
Galsky; Thomas C. Corbridge; Anna P. Lam; Michael J. Gelfand; Francis X. McCormack ,
Chest, {Volume 136, #3, September 2009)

“Analgesic Nephropathy”, MD Vista, {September 2000)

Tl Preeti Rao Nagarkatte
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University of Chicago, Department of Nephrology

Involved with following research projects:

= Conducted research associated with understanding Vitamin D receptor up-
regulation and the effects of the diuretic chlorthalidone on the receptor in patients
with idiopathic hypercalciuria.

¢ Studied the effect of h5al-ab (an anti-human antibody) on proteinuria and the
progression of renal insufficiency in patients with membranous nephropathy.

« Conducted a meta-analysis of the efficacy of sterpid withdrawal in kidney transplant
patients.

EXPERIENCE:

Northeast Nephrology Consultants, loliet, lllinois, 2001 {o Present
= On staff at:
Silver Cross Hospital, Joliet, 1L;
Provena 5t. Joseph Hospital, loliet IL;
Morris Hospital, Morris, IL; and,
Michael Reese Hospital {taught Internal Medicine Residents), Chicago, IL.

» Vpted Best Female Physician of the Year, 2006, Silver Cross Hospital, Joliet, IL.

Silver Cross Hospital, Joliet, Hlinois, 2001 to Present

Leadership Roles

» Chairwoman of Department of Medicine (2007 - 2009}

»  Chairwoman, Department of Nephrology (2005 - 2007)

»  Director, Silver Cross Hospital Dialysis Units, [2009 — Present}
»  Member, Credentials Committee (2009 to Present)

+  Member, Pharmacy and Therapeutics {2007 to Present)

University of Cincinnati, Research Assistant, Summer 1993
University of Cincinnati Stroke Team, Department of Neuralogy, Cincinnati, Ohio

Responsible for the study of patients with intracerebral hemorrhages.

University of Cincinnati, Biochemisty Tutor, Winter 1993
Department of Biochemistry, Cincinnati, Qhio

Responsibla for teaching medical biochemistry for first-year students.

University of Cincinnati, Research Assistant, 1990

Department of Cardiology, Cincinnati, Ohio

Responsible for analyzing data for retrospective study on cardiac {ransplant patient
rehabilitation.

University of Cincinnati, Research Assistant, 1989
Department of Cardiology, Cincinnati, Chic
Responsible for biochemistry project analyzing urine metabolites in cardiac patients.

AFFILIATIONS:
Member — ASN, NKF
mMember of Education Coordination Committee {1994-1996)
Co-chair of Medical Students Association, University of Cincinnati {1993-1594)
President of Medical Class, University of Cincinnati (1992-1993)
Honors Students Association, University of Cincinnati (1989-1992)
Member of University Task Force, University of Cincinnati (1989-1990}
Member of University of Cincinnati Student Government Programming Committee

2 I Preeti Rao Nagarkatte
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US.IRENAL CARE

CONTINUING EDUCATION & IN-SERVICE EFFECTIVE DATE:

PROGRAMS 0172011

POLICY # EOQO-8002 PAGE1OF1 REVISION DATE:
01/2012

CONTINUING EDUCATION & IN-SERVICE PROGRAMS-
SEE STATE SPECIFIC ALSO

PURPOSE: To provide guidelines on continuing education

POLICY:

All employees must have the opponunity for continuing education and related
development activities. Continuing education and in-service programs are
encouraged for all staff in the facilily to continuously tmprove the quality of
patient care by increasing staff knowledge.

PROCEDURE:

The governing body or designated persons are responsible for developing
regularly scheduled monthly in-service programs that will meet the needs of the
staff and the center.

Docummentation of attendance at coatinuing education activities will be kept in

the personnel file for each staff member. Continuing education activities may
consist of, but are not limited to; seminars, lectures, and educational workshops

for one-on-one training.
The Facility Administrator will maintain minutes of all such meetings, including

attendance records. Out of center continuing education programs will be at the
guidance of the Facitity Administrator.
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ualmznm. CARE

Hemodialysis Charge Nurse Skills Checklist EFFECTIVE DATE:
01/2011

POLICY # EOQ-1002 REVISION DATE:
04/2011

Employee:

Title:

Facility;

Date of flire;

PA, VA, NY, GA a LPN maybe a charge nurse as long as dialysis RN 15 available in the building. The LPN may not supervise a RN

Charge Nurse, Adminisirator, or qualificd designee may perform skills verification as preceptor
Objectives: To easure proper oientation to the charge nurse pasition.
To provide a smooth transition from the chinical floor setting 10 the charge position

Expeciations: The Charge Murse will demonsiaie ability 1o complete a1l charge nurse dutics as per all facihily protocols and procedures scoording to job descnption

COrientation Requirements

Date Completed

" Preceptor Signature

Received a copy of the Federal/Siate Regulations and become familiar with the rule
and regutations of the practicing siate,

LIndersiands and accepts expectations of job description

Knows the facility's floor plan ior emergency purposes and location of the
equipment and supplies

Demonstraie knowledge of palicies and procedures:

a. Patienls’ Rights and Responsibilities a.

b. Patienl's Grievance Procedure b

<. Patient/Staff disaster plan, emergency evacuation and use of c
emergency supplies

d. Process for transferring patient to hospitats and other health care d

facilities

e. Paticnt Admissions and Discharges

e
f. Processing of the transient patient f.
£

g Administration of medications and {count of narcotics) if required per
facilily procedure.

[N B

h. Administration of btood products (if provided) as per facility protocol |[h

emonstates knowledge of the Electronic Medical Record(i2MR)

Pass a written comprehensive exam on Renal A&P, ESRD, and Hemodsalysis with a
score of 80% or better.

Pass & writien medication 125t as relmed to dialysis and other conditions relaied 1o renal
failure

Attend formai charge nurse educalion class contact educalor.

Iaily Responsibilities

Date Completed

Preceptor Signature

Water Chechs

Verifiex Water testing is performed per policy;

a_AM opening - Check all waler parameters, a

Pressure gauges, Softner and Carbon Tanks

b. Checks Carbon tanks prior to stant of each shifi b.

¢. End of the day checks - Sofiner 1ank £

d. Ensures all Jogs are properly completed d

Clinical Checks

Krows the Jocation of the emergency cart, AED and suction equipment

Ensures all equipment is functional and ready lor use

Verilics all daily checks are done, i.¢.; glucomeier, AED, crash cant, oxygen, suction
supplies

Assures drug comis are performed and aceurate at starl and end of day and documents on
loys

Verifies temperatures on medication and Jab refiidgerators are within esiablished limils
and documents on Joys,

Makes daily staff nssignments based an palient needs

Ensures statTing ratios do not exceed 4: 1/PCT and 12:3/license nurse oF as per stale regs
FA is nobfied if not met

Ensures staff maintains inlegnty of patient schedule, FA notified if not met.

Provides immediale supervision of patienl care.

Pyovides aversight and direction to 1’CTs and LYNs/LPNs

Inlervenes 1o changes in patient’s condition

Recommends changes in treatment based on patient’s current needs

Ensures patients are in view of stafT during hemodialysis wreatmenis.
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LIS._|_RENAL CARE

Hemadialysls Charge Nurse Skills Checklist

EFFECTIVE DATE:
01/2011

POLICY # EO-1002

REVISION DATE:
04/2011

Ensures vigulaization of the patients, their access site, and their bloodling connections
during the dialysis trealment

Enforces staff compliance to personnel policies reparding breaks, lunch periods, etc.

Efficienily manages siall hours and ovenime - incleding sending staff home as needed
when eensus is fow.

Ensures compliance with state and federal regulaions - FA notified if not mei

References the Policy and Procedure manual to ncrease persenal knowledge of P&P

Practices according to company policies and procedures

Verifies and corrects others to follow company P&P

Follows proper infection control practices

Monitorsfeorrects infection control praciices for staff, patients and visitors - FA notified if
not met

Ensures biohazard wast is disposed of and stored properly

Oversees 1he clinical foor is kepl ¢lean of debrisispills

Ensures an unobsiructed path to patient slations is maintained

Ensures emergency exits are nol obstrueted

Oversees that emergency procedures are followed

Transcribes orders comeetly onto Kardex, computer system, andfor methods as per facility
protocol

Verifies stail is transcritung/earrying oul orders cormeetly

Hospitalization of a patient: notifics physician, sends correct paperwork, proper
docurrentation in progress notes.

Proper documentation on return of hospitalized patient

Conducis nssessment of a patienl when indicated by & question relating to a change in the
panent’s stalus, extended or frequent hospitalizations, or at the patient’s requesl.

Facilitales comimunicatin between the patient, patient's family or significant other

Initiates and provide patient cdncation and follow up as needed

Participates in the interdisciplinary team review of a patient's progress

Prepares for and assisis with CIPA nnd POC completion as assigned

Proper medicalion ad alion, intluding use of protocols for:

2 Epogen

b, Yitamin D Analogs: Caleyex, Hectorol, Zemplar

¢ lren: Venfor, Ferrlecit

d. Ovygen

¢. Hepititis vaccine

[, TB Tuberculin Testing

EIGIENE

¢ Hepann

=

h, Lidocaine

i. Urokinase { Activase)

i. Antbiotics

k. Normal Saline

?r“-"“-_:rrr-u:" alr ="

Manages complications during hemodialysis

a. Hypolznsion

b Hypertension

¢. Cramps

d. Headaches

¢, Pruntis

f. Nausea, vomiling

g Fever, chills

h. Pyrogenic reaction

FE[EP ==

i. Chest pain

J- Seizures

==

k Hypogiycemia

). Hyperglycemia
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US|RENAL CARE

Hemadialysis Charge Nurse Skills Checklist

EFFECTIVE DATE:
012011

POLICY #EQ-1002

REVISION DATE:
0472011

Ohversees use and gement of Reuse chemicals where applicable

a. Approve sterilam

b Sipns and symptoms ol reaclion/exposure

Proper use ol incident reports

Yerifics all ordered lab is drawn, processed, packaged and sent out

Verifies staff perform pHiconductivity checks before tre

Recognizes machine problems, correcily handles machine problems, communicales with
technical

Communicales wilh physician, dictician, and social worker icgnrding patient needs

Ensurcs charts are closed out prior 1o leaving and all paperwork communicated 10
business office as required {billing logs, eic.)

Secures the building at the end of the day:

. mnkes sure all patients have lefl the facility

b. checks that water and acid valves have been turned ofT

c. checks thar answering service has bee activaled

d. mnkes swe all doars have heen locked

i b =

aln o

Weekly /Monthly /Quarierty Responsihilities

Date Completed

Preceptor Signaiure

Checks crash gart for adequacy of supplies, kind of supplics, and expiration dates, i.c.;
meds, ainway, lab 1ubes, misc,

Checks to sec what weekly labs need to be dravn

Review of lab resulis and reporis any crilical abnermal resulis 1o the Physician

Adjust patient iresiment according to fab results following protocol

Manthly Diabetic Foot Checks done

Quarterly review of patient's home medication

Treatment Initiation Responsiblities

Date Completed

Preceptor Signature

Conducts nursing rounds once all patienrs are undergoing treatment and

& foviews pabent pre-treatment assessments and venifies accuracy and

1
C p Ness

b verifies all | ters are se¢l Lo prescribed order,

¢, verifies pre-reatments machine checks have been performed and
documenied

d. verifies ireatmenl is initiated 3-5 minctes after heparin bolus is given
according 10 documentalion

Intradialytic Responsibilities

Date Completed _

Preceptor Signatore

Delegates ndministration of medications to licensed staff

Verifies medications are prepared and labeled appropnately

Adjusts medication doses based on lab per eslablished protocol

Reviews "routine” charling by nursesfPCT's

Reviews "special situalion” chariing {acute problems, drug reactions, chesl pain, fever,
bloed loss, eic.)

Monilors machine alarms are answered in 8 1imely manner

Ensures 112 ol all patient care s1afT arg present on the chinical Noor al all times.

Turn-Around Resy ibilities

D¥ate Completed

Preceptor Sinnanture

Orchestrates o smooth wrnover by remaining on the dialysis floor during tumaover,
re-assigning stalf ax needed and troubleshooting problems

Maonitors sharps are disposed of properly

Monilors irash is disposed of properly

Ensures stalf does not 1ake breaks during tumover

Ersuores no personal phone calls are taken during tumover

Physician Rounding Responsibilities

Date Compleled

Preceplor Signature

Rounds with physicians and review labs, medications and nther study resulis with M2,
Updates M o any new patient developments

Receives new orders, ranscribes themm accurately, and carry them out in a time manner,
B ) Emerpency Procedures

Date Completed

" Preceptor Signature

Demonsimtes Knowledge of Emergency Procedures

a Fire evacualion

b. Loss of power

¢. Loss of water supply

d Natura! disaster procedures

Eanhquake

Tornada

Hurricane
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15| RENAL CARE

Hemodialysis Charge Nurse Skills Checklist EFFECTIVE DATE:
0472011

POLICY # EO-1002 REVISION DATE:
04/2011

, has successfuily completed the USRC Charge
MNurse Skills Checklist to include successful return demonsirations and is competent to perform the clinical
duties included on this checklist.

Employee Signature: Date;
Reviewer Signature: Date:
Medical Direclor Signature; Date:
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US._[RENAL CARE,

POLICY: RN/LPN/LVN ORIENTATION EFFECTIVE DATE:
01/2011
POLICY # EO-1001 PAGE 1 OF 1 REVISION DATE:

RN/ LPN/LVN ORIENTATION

SCHEDULE FOR RN/LPN/LVN ORIENTATION AFTER ALL STEPS OF
HEMODIALYSIS ORIENTATION ARE MET

(Ex. RN/LPIN/LVN may only need 4 weeks to achieve Hemodialysis Orientation and then
RN/LPN oricntation can start)

Week 1

Week 11

Paperwork

Medication Administration and [Documentation

Dressing Changes

IV Pump

Review of PD concepts- schedule with PD Nurse. Ulira Bag Competency and
instillation of medications in PD bag.

Rounds with the physician

Transcribing orders

Evaluation

Charge Nurse Competency

Day I: Shadow the Charge Nurse

Day H-V: Charge Nurse role with Preceptor
Medication Test

Evaluation

Reference: Core Curriculum for Nephrology Nursing
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US.lRENAL CARE

POLICY : PATIENT CARE TECHNICIAN
CERTIFICATION

EFFECTIVE DATE:
01/2011

POLICY #: EO - 0012

PAGE 1 OF 1

REVISION DATE:

POLICY:

-

All Patient Care Technicians (PCT’s) shall be certified under a state or a nationally approved
certificalion program as follows:

1. For newly employed patient carc technicians, within 18 months of being hircd as a
dialysis patient care technician or

2. For patient Care technicians employed on October 14, 2008, within 18 months after this
daie (on or before April 14, 2010).

3. For current employees who transfer in to the patient care technician role from other jobs
(reuse or water treatment technicians) certification will be obtained in 18 months from
the date he/she started in the new PCT position

Ultimately US Renal Care (USRC) recognizes that certification of the PCT is an individual
responsibility and a condition of continued employment in the dialysis industry. USRC will:

1. Offer review classes for voluntary aticndance.

2. Offer copies of the “Amgen Care Curriculum for the Dialysis Technician™ as a study

guide.

3. Assist the employee with the application process to ensure completion and thorcughness

of each application.

4. Pay initially for the first exam.

5. Reimburse for a sccond testing attempt once preof of a passing score is provided.

6. Encourage cach PCT employed on October 14, 2008 to sit for the certification exam no
later than the end of January 2010 to ensure adequate time to reschedule and retake the
¢xam by the April deadline if necessary.

US Renal Care. Inc. proprietary and confidential information. All Righttaftwnoni-28
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US.IRENAL CARE

POLICY : NEW CLINICAL STAFF GUIDE EFFECTIVE DATE:
01/2011
POLICY #: EO - 0002 PAGE1OF 5 REVISION DATE: 1/2012

HEMODIALYSIS ORIENTATION FOR NEW CLINICAL STAFF
Also see State Specific
USRC definition of ‘with experience’ —employee has provided 6 months hands on dialysis
patient care within the last 18 months.

The orientation period is approximately 6 — 8 weeks in length for non dialysis experienced staff.
In order to mect the objective of the Orientation Checklist, and to allow for sufficient clinical
practice, the following schedule is presented as a guide. Mastery of both theory and clinical
skills is the responsibility of the student and no student may practice independently without
demonstration and documentation of required skills. Until the individual has satisfied the
training and competency requirements, the individual during the process of completing training
shall be identified as a trainee when present in any patient area of the facility.

Prior to providing dialysis care, all nursing staff shall demonstrate satisfactory completion of
cither the training program or educational equivalency and the competency skills assessment
checklist as required for the dialysis technicians.

Any registercd nurse or licensed practical nurse who is employed without previous experience in
the dialysts process, and who has not vet successfully completed the skills competency checklist,
shall be directly supervised when engaged in dialysis treatment activities with patients by a staff
member who has demonstrated skills competency for dialysis treatment as required by the
State/Federal Regulations.

In addition to the Amgen and Nephrology Core Curriculums, the Employee Orientation Program
Workbook is a good resource tool. Delivery of training material will be accomplished through a
combination of lecture, video presentations and independent study.

WEEK 1:

Day 1: Facility tour and orientation

Overview of the services provided by the facility

Meet preceptor :

Meet the staff and physician

Review of Employee Handbook and Job Description

Staff Roles and Responsibilities

Overview of US Renal Care Philosophy

Overview of P & P Manual

Introduction of dialysis machine and dialysis prescription

Reference Amgen Core Curriculum

Read/review Module I and 11 (Today’s Dialysis Environment/The Person with Kidney
Failure)

Universal Precautions/OSHA Education

HIPAA training

Fire and Electrical Safety

Professional education

View state specific training videos
US Renal Care, Inc. proprictary and confidential information. Al Righilewneni-28
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us.ln&ma. CARE

POLICY : NEW CLINICAL STAFF GUIDE EFFECTIVE DATE:
0172011
POLICY #: EO - 0002 PAGE 2 OF 5 REVISION DATE: 1/2012

Day 2:

Day 3:

Day 4:

Day 5:

Testing: OSHA (TB, Blood borne pathogens, Universal Precautions, Hepatitis)

Scavenger Hunt

Practice set up of dialysis machine with preceptor and removal of lines
Observation of Hemodialysis procedure and orientation to clinic routines
Proper cleaning of chairs, machines, clamps, and blood pressure cuffs
Basic chemistry of body fluids and electrolytes

History of Dialysis

Legal and Ethical Issucs

Hygtene and Grooming

Mobility and Positioning

Read/review Module [l (Principles of Dialysis)

Practice set up of dialysis machine with preceptor

Introduction to screen of dialysis machine and machine components
Reference Braun Operators Manual

Vital signs

Overview of the continuous quality improvement program
Read/review Module IV (Hemodialysis Devices)

Role of the dialysis technician in a dialysis setting: iegal and ethical considerations and
concepts of delegating.

Communication and Team work Skills

Pre and Post weights

Machine testing PH/conductivity/temperatures

Machine operation and introduction to problem solving with preceptor
Trouble shooting equipment — machine alarms

Practices set up of the dialysis machinc

Policies and Procedures on Patients rights including Patient Bill of Rights
Delivery of an adequate dialysis treatment and factors which may result in inadequate
treatment

Complications of dialysis and interventions

Aseptic tcchnique

Education on the proper use of Safety Needles

Education on accidental needle sticks (Issues and Prevention Strategies for
HealthcarcWorkers

Preparation and use of dialysate baths

Practices set up of the dialysis machine

Elder Abuse in the dialysis machine

Testing: Module I (Today’s Dialysis Environment)
Identify altergies, patient chart (electronic medical record)
Identify goal, treatment time, UFR, TMP

Evaluation: Week 1

US Renal Care, Ing, proprictary and conlidential information. All Rightlefunest2g
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US.‘[RENAL CARE

POLICY : NEW CLINICAL STAFF GUIDE

EFFECTIVE DATE:
01/2011

POLICY #: EO - 00062 PAGE3OF 5

REVISION DATE: 1/2012

WEEK 2:
Continue practice set up and use of diaiysis machine
Residual testing for presence of bleach

Introduction and education on access placement and taping access

Review location and use of cmergency equipment:

{Oxygen, suction, crash cart, EKG, AED, Emergency box, fire drili & cvacuation)

Introduction to patient monitoring during treatment

Introduction and education on documentation procedures and the HII system
Theory and practice of conventional, high efficiency, and high flux dialysis

Interpersonal Communication

Read/rcview Module H and 111 (The Person with Kidney Failure/Principles of Dialysis)

Evaluation: Week 2

WEEK 3:
Emergency Plans and Procedures
Introduction to dialysis termination procedures

Review and practice pre and post treatment procedures, paticnt monitoring

Revicw clinic specific responsibilitics and documentation

Education on Transplants

Review complication recognition and treatment
Continue practice with machine set up and operation
Read/review: Module V (Vascular Access)

Testing: Module 1V (Hemodialysis Devices)
Evaluation: Week 3

WEEK 4:

Introduetion to initiation of dialysis with catheters (as appropriate to job description)
Review and educate on commonly used dialysis medications

Medication Administration

Continue supervised practice of dialysis termination
Review P & P Manual

Normal and abnormal lab values

Pre and post dialysis blood draws

Lab processing duties

Orientation and competency for blood glucose monitoring equipment
Supervised practice to incorporate pre and post dialysis procedures and patient

Monitoring with machine operation, and documentation

Introduction to initiation of dialysis by cannulation

introduction of materials used to create grafts, needle placement for access in a grafi, and
prevention of complications: and identification of signs and symptoms of complications

when cannulating access
Education on PD
Renal Dietitian: Nutritional Considerations

Read/review Module VI (Hemodialysis Procedures and Complications)

Evaluation: Week 4
WEEK 5:

US Renal Care. Inc. proprictary and conlidential information. All Righttarvnest &g
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U S.lRENAL CARE

POLICY : NEW CLINICAL STAFF GUIDE

EFFECTIVE DATE:
01/2011

POLICY #: EO - 0002 PAGE 4 OF 5

REVISION DATE: 1/2012

Cannulation of a paticnt with fistula needles

The orientee will incorporate trouble shooting and patient complications with all

previously learned and practiced experience

Continue supervised practice of dialysis initiation via catheter, dialysis termination,

and treatment procedures and monitoring

Incorporate machine problem solving and recognition and treatment of complications

Into practice

Education on monitoring of arterial and venous pressures

Renal Social Worker: Psychosocial issues

Read/review Module VI and VIII (Dialyzer Reprocessing/Water Treatment)

Testing: Module V (Vascular Access)
Evatuation: Week S

WEEK 6:

Continuc supervised practice of hemodialysis procedures

Competently complete a 1 — 2 patient assignment
Education on the management of adequacy outcomes

Technical Specialist; Water system, risks to patients of unsafe water, water checks,
machine maintenance, trouble shooting machines and cleaning of machines

Evaluation: Week 6 (Preceptor/Oricntece/Administrator)

WEEK 7 & 8:
Competently complete asstgned patient assignment

Testing: Module VII and VIIT (Dialyzer reprocessing/Water Treatment)

This orientation program is bascd on the assumption that the orientec has no previous
experience. Alterations/Adjustments in the orientation program will be made based on previous
experience and proven clinical skills. During orientation the orientee will also receive theory

traiming provided by the Clinical Services Department.

REFERENCES TO BE REVIEWED DURING ORIENTATION:

Core Curriculum for Dialysis Technicians
State Specific Educational Videos
Dialysis Training Manual

Dialysis Machinc Manual

Dialysis Machine Trouble Shooting Guide

EVALUATION:

US Renal Care, Inc. proprictary and confidertial information. All Righitafunert-2f
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POLICY : NEW CLINICAL STAFF GUIDE EFFECTIVE DATE:
0172011
POLICY #: EO - 0002 PAGE 5 OF 5 REVISION DATE: 172012

All tests in the Employce Education Manual are to be passed with a score of 80% including the
‘Knowledge Assessment Test’. Passing of the “Knowledge Assessment Test’ includes
experience and non-experienced staff. 1f an experienced Care Giver does not pass the
‘Knowledge Assessment Test’ the first time ~ the employce needs to attend a theory class and
retake the exam.

All employees (experience and non-experienced) may take the ‘Knowledge Assessment Test’ a
maximum of three times. After third failure, the employee will be terminated.

Weekly cvaluations with the orientation checklist will be filled out throughout the orientation
process by the orientee, preceptor, and educator. The Administrator will evaluate all checklists
weekly.

If at any time there are difficulties with the learning of the didactic material or inability to
complete modules in the specified time period the Facility Administrator will be notified
immediately. 1f at any time there are difficultics with the dialysis machine set-up, treatment
monitoring, or termination of the treatment the Administrator will be notified. The Preceptor and
Administrator will assess the training schedule orientee’s progress and if needed will make
changes in the orientation program.

US Renal Care, Inc. proprictary and confidential information. All Righttageneptad
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US.lRENAL CARE

POLICY : STAFFING POLICY EFFECTIVE DATE:
01/2011

POLICY #: C-AD-0140 PAGE 1 OF 1 REVISION DATE:
09/2011

Staffing requirement for the ESRD facility include the coordination of personnel by the
facility administrator to adequately staff for safe and effective provision of patient care.

The foliowing guideiines will direct the staffing of each facility.

1.

A fulltime supervising nurse shall be employed to manage the provision of patient
care.

A nurse or nurses functioning in the charge role shall be on site and available to
the treatment area to provide patient care during all dialysis treatments.

A registered nurse shall be in the facility when patients are present in the facility
— if applicable.

Licensed nurse to patient ratio shall meet the required state regulations which
govern the facility. ¥f there are no state specific regulations, then the minimum
requirement is to have one licensed nurse to every 12 patients.

Sufficient direct care staff shall be on-site to meet the needs of the patients. The
ratio of direct care staff shall be one 1o four patients per shift, unless specified by
state specific regulations. The staffing level shall not exceed that which is
required by state specific regulations which govern the facility. See below for
state specific staffing requirements.

State Specific Staffing Requirements

State Licensed Staff to Direct Care Staff to
Patient Ratio Patient Ratio
Georgia 1to 10 1to4
Maryland 1t0 9 1t03
New Jersey 1t09 1103
Chio None None
South Carolina 11010 1to 4
Texas 1t0 12 1to 4
Pennsylvania None None
Arkansas None None
Oklahoma None None
New York None None
lltinois None None

1JS Renal Care, Inc. proprietary and confidential information. All Righttapemer &8
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LIS.-[RENAL CARE

Clinical Annual Competency

EFFECTIVE DATE:
0172011

POLICY # EO-2003

REVISION DATE:

Employee:

Title:

Date of Hire:

NOTE: Not All Skills May Be Required

Universal Precautions/Exposure Conlrol

Date Completed

Preceptor Signature

Sterile Technigue

Aseptic Technigue

Machine Setup/Initiativn of Treatment

Date Completed

Preceptor Signature

Hemodialysis Maching Set-Lp

Comect Bath

Gather all Supplics

Turn on Water

Alarm Testing

Line Plagement/Connect Concendrate

Peracetic Acid or or other Residual Sterflant Testing (when applicable)

Sccures the Correel Dialvzer for (he Patient

Verification of Dialvzer

Conduciivity/pH Procedure

Treatment Settings

Treatment Procedure

Diate Completed

Preceptor Signature

Initiation of Treatmegnt

Calculating Fluid Removal

Setting UFR/Programs/Na Modeling/Coef

Calculating Fluid Replacement

Adjusts Blood Flow Rate (o Patienl's Prescriplion

Ultrafiltrate Only

Heparin Administralion

Patient Monitoring

Vilal Signs

Fluid Replacement

Complication Assessment and Treatment

Reports unesual Findings 10 CN

Oxypen Adntinistration (if applicable)

Verifies the Ordered Flow Ratwe from the CN

Sets up Equipment Comectly

Connects Tubing Correctly 10 Equipment and 1o Patient

Complication Intervention

Date Completed

Preceptor Signature

Hypotension

Hypertension

Nausea/V omiting

Cramping

Chest Pain

SOB

Seizures

Cardiac/Respiraiory Ames|

Informs CN of any Unusual Findings
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Chinical Annual Competency

EFFECTIVE DATE:

01/2011

POLICY # 1(-2003

REVISION DATE:

Medication Adminisiration

Date Completed

Preceplor Signature

from vials and aniplules

Aseptic technigue is used when preparing and administering infravenous medications

P.O.

[.M.

1Y, Push

1. V. Drip

Sub Q)

Labels Syringes Correctly

Licocaine Administration (if applicable)

Checks Patient's Prescription

Identifics the Correct Vial of Medication

Prepares Dosage Correctly

Administers the Dose Correctly

Qbserves for and Understands Possible Complications

Heparin Administration (if applicable}

Deseribes Basics of Anticoagulation Therapy

Assess Patient for and Reporis Evidence of Active Bleeding

Checks Patient’s Prescription

ldentifies the Correct Vial of Mcdication

Prepares Dosage Correctly

Administers the Dose Correctly

Ohserves for and Understands Possible Complications

Monitors Appropriateness of Anticoagulation Throughoul Treatmeni

Normal Saling Administration (if applicable)

Understand Facility Protocol

Checks Patient’s Prescription

Recognizes Signs of Hypatension

Notifies RN Appropriately

Administers Normmal Saline Comrectly

Treatment Termination

Date Completed

Preceptor Signature

Rinseback Procedure

Removal of ¥istula Necdles

Treatment of Post Treatment Bleeding

Care of Catheters Post Treatment (if applicable}

Discarding Suppties

Reports Unusual Findings to CN

Sanitizing equipment and treatmenl area

Catheters (As Pcr State Reps)

BDate Completed

Precepluor Signatore

Assessment

Pretreatment Preparation

Iniliation of Dialysis

Aceessing Lhe Bloodsiream

Correcting Opcerational Problems:

Poor Anerial Flow

Poor VYenous Flow

Cletting in Catheter

Elevated Arterial/Venous Pressures

Site Infections/Cullurcs

Take OF Preparation

Rinsgback Procedure

Post Treatmem Care of Catheter

Dressing Change
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Clinical Annual Competency

EFFECTIVE DATE:

041/2011

POLICY # EO-9003

REVISION DATE:

Fistula's/Grafts

Date Completed

Preceptor Signuture

Assessment of Brait and Thrill

Pretreatment Preparation

Cannulation

Inspects the Access lor Palency

Prepares the Skin Using Aseptic Technique at all Times

Calls for Assisstance Appropriately

Places Needles Correctly

Replaces Needles Appropriately

Secures Needles

Accessing the Bloodstream

Qperational Problems and Corrections:

Responds Appropriately to Machine Alarms

Infliltration with Cannulation

Infiltration During Treatnient

Arterial/Venous Spasms

Antgrial/Yenous Pressurg Problems

localized Bleeding

Dislodged Needle

Clotted Needle/Dialyzer

Blood Leak into Dialysate

Bloed Leak Qutside of Bloodpath

Pocumentation

date Completed

Preceptor Signature

Clinical Information Svstem use

Flowsheet

Dialyzer and Patiemt Verification

Machine Checks

Vital Signs

Medication Administration

Pre and Post Asscssmenis

Treatment Complications

Monthly Nursing Charting

Admissions Charting

Discharge Chanting

Patient Occurrence Charting

Patient Assessment/Plan of Care

Diapnostic Laboratory Testing

Date Completed

" Preceptor Signafure

Menthly and Other Labwork

Blood/Wound Cullures

Bloed Glucase Testing

Able to Describe Appropriate Response to Patient Emergencies

Date Completed

Preceptor Signature

Air Emholism

Cardiac/Respiralory Amest

Unsiable Anging

Seizures

Shock

“New Dialvzer Reaction”

Hemoylysis

Pyrogenic Reaclion

Chiorine in Dialysate

Other
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Clinical Annual Competency

EFFECTIVE DATE:
0172011

POLICY # EO-2003

REVISION DATE:

Equipment and Building Emergencies

Date Completed

Preceplor Signature

Dialyzer Blood Leak

Clotted Dialyzer and or .ines

Loss of Electrical Power

Hand Crank Take-Off Procedure

Fire or Flood

limergency Evacuation of Building

Tomado/Hurricane/Blizzard Plans

Knows Correct Procedure for Machine Failure

Use of Emergency Equipment

Date Completed

Preceptor Signature”

Oxypen

Ambu Bag/Oml Ainvay

Crasgh Cart

Ponahle Suction

Pt. Evacoation During an Emergency

Educution

Date Completed

Preceptor Signuture

Fire Safety

Back Safety

Hazard Communication

Elecirical Safety

US Renal Care Standards of Conduet & Compliance Program

Prevention of Slips, Trips nnd Fails

Emergency Preparedness

Prevention of Needlesticks

assessment

Additional competencies s required by state specific regulation, job role or needs

Training Manual Section %)

Complete Apnual Competency Checklist - Clinical Employee {Fechnical

, has successfully completed the USRC Clinical

Annual Training Program to include successful return demonstrations and is competent to perform the

clinical duties included on this checklist.

Emplovee Signature:

Preceptor Signature:

Medical Director Signature:

Dhate:
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ATTACHMENT 26

STAFFING AVAILABILITY

USRC Lemont, LL.C

As required by 77 I1l. Admin. Code § 1110.1430(e)(5), Applicant certifies that U.S. Renal Care
Lemont Dialysis will maintain an open medical staff. Any board licensed nephrologist may

apply for privileges at this facility.

P

Signature ’

Thomas L. Weinberg
Printed Name

Manager

Title

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 12th day of June 2012

oot

Signature of Notary

aii ey,
¢\ ‘\\_ ) EWA;; " n,

'P"" %,
% xvi‘ . %
. ’
Z

Seal

20715
J""""*“mm i
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ATTACHMENT 26

SUPPORT SERVICES

USRC Lemont, LL.C

In accordance with 77 Ill. Admin. Code § 1110.1430(f) and with respect to the U.S. Renal Care
Lemont Dialysis facility, Applicant certifies that:

1. Applicant certifies that it will utilize the Health Informatics International system for the
provision of care to its patients;

2. Applicant certifies that support services consisting of clinical laboratory service, blood
bank, nutrition, rehabilitation, psychiatric and social services will be available to its

patients; and

3. Applicant certifies that provision of training for self-care dialysis, self-care instruction,
home and home-assisted dialysis, and home training will be provided at the U.S. Renal

Care Oak Brook Dialysis facility.

M

Signature 7

Thomas L. Weinberg

Printed Name

Manager

Title

Subscribed and sworn to before me this _June day of 12th , 2012

oM

Signature of Notary

Seal

‘‘‘‘‘
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ATTACHMENT 26

MINIMUM NUMBER OF STATIONS

The proposed U.S. Renal Care Lemont Dialysis facility contemplates the establishment of 13
ESRD stations which meets the minimum station requirements for a metropolitan statistical
arca.

2230150-2
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ATTACHMENT 26

CONTINUITY OF CARE
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HOSPITAL TRANSFER AGREEMENT

THIS HOSPITAL TRANSFER AGREEMENT ("Agreement”) is entcred into
effective the 14th day of June, 2012 (the “Effective Date”) by and between the USRC Lemont,
LLC, an Illinois limited liability company (the “Center’’), and Provena Saint Joseph Medical
Center, an operating unit of Provena Hospitals, an Illinois not-for-profit corporation
("Hospital”). (Center and Hospital may each be referred to herein as a "Party” and collectively
as the "Parties™).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the Center intends to submit to the Illinois Health Facilities Services and
Review Board an application for a certificate of need permit to establish a free-standing renal
dialysis center for treatment of patients with end-stage renal disease, which will be located in
Lemont, Illinois; and

WHEREAS, patients of Center ("Patients") may require transfer to a hospital for acute-
inpatient or other emergency health care services; and

WHEREAS, Hospital owns and operates a licensed and Medicare certified acute care
hospital in reasonable proximity to Center, which has a twenty-four (24) hour emergency room
and provides emergency health care services; and

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to establish a transfer arrangement to ensure continuity of
care for Paticnts and to specify the procedure for ensuring the timely transfer of patients to
Hospital.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, and the terms, conditions,
covenanis, agreements and obligations set forth herein, the Parties hereto agree as follows:

ARTICLEI
TRANSFER OF PATIENTS

Upon recommendation of an aticnding physician and pursvant to the provisions of this
Agreement, in the event that any Patient needs acute inpatient or emergency care and has either
requested to be taken to Hospital, or is unable to communicate a preference for hospital services
at a different hospital, and a timely transfer to Hospital would best serve the immediate medical
needs of Patient, a designated staff member of Center shall contact the admitting office or
emergency department of Hospital (the "Emergency Department™) to facilitate admission.
Hospital shall accept, and as appropriate, admit a Patient as promptly as possible in accordance
with applicable fedcral and state laws and regulations, the standards of The Joint Commission
("TJC") and any other applicable accrediting bodies, and reasonable policies and procedures of
Hospital, and Hospital has the capacity to treat the Patient. After receiving a transfer request,
Hospital shall give prompt confirmation of whether it can provide health care appropriate to the
Patient’s medical needs. Hospital's responsibility for patient care shall begin when Patient is
admitted to Hospital.
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ARTICLE 11
RESPONSIBILITIES OF CENTER

Center shall be responsible for performing or ensuring the performance of the following:
(a) Arranging, at no cost to Hospital, for ambulance service to Hospital;

(b) Designating a person who has authority to represent Center and coordinate
the transfer of Patient to Hospital (“Transfer Coordinator”). The Center will notify
Hospital and keep it apprised of the name and contact information of the Transfer
Coordinator;

(c) Notifying Hospital's designated representative prior to transfer to alert him
or her of the impending arrival of Patient and provide information on Patient to the extent
allowed pursuant to Article IV, Such notice shall be as far in advance as possible and in
any event prior to the Patient leaving the Center for transport, to allow thc Hospital to
determine whether it can provide the necessary Patient care;

(d) Notifying Hospital of the estimated time of arrival of the Patient;

(e) Recognizing and complying with the requirements of any federal and state
law and regulations or local ordinances that apply to the care and transfer of individuals
to Hospitals for emergency care;

H The Patient’s medical record shall contain a physician’s order to transfer
the Patient. The attending physician recommending the transfer shall communicate
directly with Hospital's paticnt admissions, or, in the case of an emecrgency services
patient who has been screened and stabilized for transfer, with the Hospital’s Emergency
Department.

(8 In addition to a Patient’s medical records and the physician’s order to
transfer, Center shall provide Hospital with all information regarding a Patient’s
medications, and clear direction as to who may makc medical decisions on behalf of the
Patient, with copies of any power of attorney for medical decision making or, in the
absence of such document, a list of next of kin, if feasible, to assist the Hospital in
determining appropriate medical decision makers in the event a Patient is or becomes
unable to do so on his or her own behalf.

(h) Personal effects of any transferred Patient shall be delivered to the transfer
team or admissions department of the Hospital. Personal effects include, but are not
limited to moncy, jewelry, personal papers and articles for personal hygiene.
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ARTICLE IIX
RESPONSIBILITIES OF HOSPITAL

Hospital shall be responsible for performing or ensuring performance of the following:

(a) Designating a person who has authority to represent and coordinate the
transfer and receipt of Patients into the Emergency Department; and

{b)  Timely admission of Patient to Hospital when transfer of Patient is
medically appropriate as determined by Hospital attending physician subject to hospital
capacity and patient census issues provided, that all usual conditions of admission to
Hospital are met; and

{c) Recognizing and complying with the requirements of any fedcral and state
law and regulations or local ordinances that apply to Patienis who present at Emergency
Departments.

ARTICLEIV
PATIENT INFORMATION

In order to meet the needs of Patients with respect to timely access to emergency care,
Center shall provide information on Patients to Hospital, to the extent approved in advance or
authorized by law and to the extent Center has such information available. Such information
shall include: Paticnt Name, Social Security Number, Date of Birth, insurance coverage and/or
Medicare beneficiary information (if applicable), current medical findings, diagnoses, known
allergies or medical conditions, treating physician, contact person in case of emergency and any
other relevant information Patient has provided Center in advance. The Center shall send a copy
of all Patient medical records and information set forth in Section II{(g) that are available at the
time of transfer to the Hospital. Other records shall be sent as soon as practicable after the
transfer. The Patient's medical record shall contain evidence that the Patient was transferred
promptly, safely and in accordance with all applicable laws and regulations. Each Party shall and
shall cause its employees and agents to protect the confidentiality of all Patient information
(including, but not limited to, medical records, electronic data, radiology films, laboratory blocks,
slides and billing information), and comply with all applicable state and federal laws and
regulations protecting the confidentiality of Patients’ records, including the Health Insurance
Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the corresponding Standards for Privacy of
Individually Identifiable Health Information regulations, each as amended from time to time
(collectively, “HIPAA™).
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ARTICLE Y
NON EXCLUSIVITY

This Agreement shall in no way give Hospital an exclusive right of transfer of Patients of
Center. Center may enter into similar agreements with other acute-care hospitals, and Patients
will continue to have complete autonomy with respect to choice of hospital service providers, as
further described in Article VI

ARTICLE VI
FREEDOM OF CHOICE

In entering into this Agrecment, Center in no way is acting to endorse or promote the
services of Hospital. Raiher, Center intends to coordinate the timely transfer of Patients for
medical care. Patients are in no way restricted in their choice of hospitals or medical care
providers.

ARTICLE VII
BILLING AND COLLECTIONS

Each Party shall be responsible for billing the appropriate payer for the services it
provides. Hospital shall be responsible for the billing and collection of all charges for
profecssional services rendered at Hospital. Center shall in no way share in the revenue generated
by professional scrvices delivered to Patients at Hospital.

ARTICLE VIHI
INDEPENDENT RELATIONSHIP

Sectron &7 In performing services pursuant to this Agreement, Hospital and all
employees, agents or representatives of Hospital are, at all times, acting and performing as
independent contractors and nothing in this Agreement is intended and nothing shall be
construed to create an employer/femployee, principal/agent, partnership or joint venture
relationship. Center shall neither have nor exercise any direction or control over the methods,
techniques or procedures by which Hospital or its employees, agents or representatives perform
their professional responsibilities and functions. The sole interest of Center is to coordinate the
timely transfer of Patients to Hospital for medical care.

Secrion 87  Each Party shall be solely responsible for the payment of compensation
and benefits to its personnel and for compliance with any and all payments of all taxes, social
sccurity, unemployment compensation and worker's compensation.

Section 87 Notwithstanding the terms of this Agreement, in no event shall Hospital or
any Hospital personnel be responsible for the acts or omissions of non-Hospital personnel.
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ARTICLE IX
INSURANCE

Both Parties shall maintain, at no cost to the other Party, professtonal liability insurance
in an amount customary for its busincss practices. Each Party shall provide evidence of the
coverage required herein to the other Party on an annual basis upon request. Each Party shall
notify the other Party at least thirty (30) days prior to termination, lapsc or loss of adequate
insurance coverage as provided herein. In the event the form of insurance held by a Party is
claims made, such Party represents and warrants that it will purchase appropriate tail coverage
for claims, demands, or actions reported in future years for acts of omissions during the Term of
this Agreement. In the event of insufficient coverage as defined in this Article IX, or lapse of
coverage, the non-breaching Party reserves the right to immediately and unilaterally terminate
this Agreement. Each Party shall notify the other in writing, by certified mail, of any action or
suit filed and shall give prompt notice of any claim made against cither by any person or entity
that may result in litigation related in any way to this Agreement,

ARTICLE X
INDEMNIFICATION

Each Party shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the other Party together with its
officers, directors, agents, employees, affiliates, successors and assigns from and against any and
all liability, loss, claim, lawsuit, injury, cost, damage or expense whatsoever (including
reasonable attorneys' fees and court costs), imposed by a third party and arising out of, incident to
or in any manner occasioned by the performance or nonperformance of any duty or responsibility
under this Agreement by such indemnifying Party, or any of its employees, agents, contractors or
subcontractors. Provided, however, neither Party shall indemnify, defend or hold harmless the
other Party from claims arising from the other Party’s, or its officers, directors, agents,
employces, affiliates, successors and assigns, gross negligence or willful misconduct.

ARTICLE XI
TERM AND TERMINATION

Secrion /Z7./ Term. The initial term of this Agreement shall commence on the
Effective Date and shall continue in effect for a period of one (1} year (the "Initial Term").
Thereafter, this Agrecment shall automatically renew for successive one (1) year terms unless
terminated pursuant to this Section. The Initial term and all renewal terms shall collectively be
the “Term” of this Agrecment.

Secrion /1.2 Events of Termination. Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Agrecment
may be terminated vpon the occurrence of any one (1) of the following events:

(a)  Either Party may terminate this Agreement at any time upon sixty (60)
days prior written notice to the other Party.

{b)  If either Party shall apply for or consent to the appointment of a rcceiver,
trustee or liquidator of itself or of all or a substantial part of its assets, file a voluntary

-5-
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petition in bankruptcy, or admit in writing its inability to pay its debts as they become
due, make a general assignment for the benefit of creditors, file a petition or an answer
secking reorganization or arrangement with creditors or take advantage of any insolvency
law, or if an order, judgment, or decree shall be entered by a court of competent
jurisdiction or an application of a creditor, adjudicating such Party to be bankrupt or
insolvent, or approving a petition seeking reorganization of such Party or appointing a
receiver, trustee or liguidator of such Party or of all or a substantial part of its assets, and
such order, judgment, or decree shall continue in effect and unstayed for a period of thirty
(30) consecutive calendar days, then the other Party may terminate this Agreement upon
ten (10) business days' prior written notice to such Party.

Section /7.7 Immediate Termination. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary
herein, this Agrecement will be terminated immediately upon the following events: (a) the
suspension or revocation of a Party’s license, certificate or other legal credential necessary to
render patient care services and meet the terms and conditions of this Agreement; (b) termination
of a Party’s participation in or excluston from any federal or state health care program for any
reason; {c) the cancellation or termination of a Party’s insurance required under Article IX of this
Agreement without replacement coverage having been obtained; and (d) a Party determines that
the continuation of this Agreement would endanger Patient care.

Section /7.4 Termination Due to Change in or Violation of Law, The Hospital shall
have the unilateral right to terminate or amend this Agreement, without liability, to the extent
necessary to comply with any legal order issued to the Hospital by a federal or state department,
agency or commission, or TIC or any such accreditation organization by which the Hospital is
then accredited, or if it is reasonably determined that continued participation in this Agreement
would jeopardize the Hospital's status as a Medicare or Medicaid participant or would be
inconsistent with its status as an organization described in Section 3Q1(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. Prior to termination of this Agreement pursuant to this
Scction, Hospital shall first reasonably attempt to amend this Agreement in a manner that will
achieve the business purposes hereof. I Hospital proposes an amendment to this Agreement
pursuant to in order to comply with applicable law or accreditation standards, and such
amendment is unacceptable to Center, either Party may choose to terminate this Agreement
immediately upon notice at any time thereafter.

ARTICLE XII
MISCELLANEQOUS PROVISIONS

Section /2.7 Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding
between the Parties with respect to the subject matter hereof. This Agreement supersedes any
and all other prior agreements cither written or oral, between the Parties with respect (o the
subject matter hereof.

Sectron /2.2 Counterparts. This Agrcement may be executed in two or more
counterparts, each of which shall be dcemed an original, but all such coonterparts together shall
constitute onc and the same instrument.
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Secrion /2.7 Waiver. Any waiver of any terms and conditions hercof must be in
writing, and signed by the Parties. A waiver of any of the terms and conditions hereof shall not
be construcd as a waiver of any other terms and conditions hereof.

Section /24 Severability. The provisions of this Agreement shall be deemed
severable, and, if any portion shall be held invalid, illegal or unenforceable for any reason, the
remainder of this Agrecment shall be effective and binding upon the Parties.

Section 725 Headings. All headings herein are inserted only for convenience and ease
of reference and are not to be considered in the construction or interpretation of any provision of
this Agreement.

Secrion /2.6 Assignment. This Agreement, being intended to secure the services of
Hospital, shall not be assigned, delegated or subcontracted by Hospital without prior written
consent of Center.

Section 72,7 Governing Law. This Agreement shall be construed under the laws of the
state of Illinois, without giving affect to choice of law provisions.

Section 728 Notices. Any notice herein required or permitted to be given shall be in
writing and shall be deemed to be duly given on the date of service if served personally on the
other Party, or on the fourth (4th) day after mailing, if mailed to the other Party by certified mail,
rcturn receipt requested, postage pre-paid, and addressed to the Partics as follows:

To Center To Hospital
USRC Lemont, LLC Provena Saint Joseph Medical Center
333 North Madison Street
Joliet, IL. 60435
Atn: CEO

Copy to:
Presence Heaith

7435 West Talcott Ave., Suite 461
Chicago, IL 60631

Attention: Chief Legal Officer and
General Counsel

or such other place or places as either Party may designate by written notice to the other.

Section /29 Amendment. This Agreement may be amended upon mutual, written
agreement of the Parties.

Section /2 70 Regulatory Compliance. The Parties agree that nothing contained in this
Agreement shall require Center to refer patients to Hospital for emergency care services or to

-7-
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purchasc goods and services. Notwithstanding any unanticipated effect of any provision of this
Agreement, neither Party will knowingly and intentionally conduct its behavior in such a manner
as to violate the prohibition against fraud and abuse in connection with the Medicare and
Medicaid programs.

Section /2. // Access to Books and Records. If applicable, upon written request of the
Secretary of Health and Human Services or the Comptroller General of the United States, or any
of their duly authorized representatives, Hospital shall make avaiiable to the Secretary or to the
Comptroller General those contracts, books, documents and records necessary to verify the
nature and exient of the costs of providing its services under this Agreement. Such inspection
shall be available for up to four (4) years after the rendering of such service. This Section is
included pursuant to and is govermned by the requirements of Public Law 96-499 and Regulations
promulgated thereunder. The Parties agree that any attorney-client, accountant-client or other
legal privileges shall not be deemed waived by virtue of this Agreement.

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be executed by
their duly authorized officers hereto setting their hands to be effective as of the Effective Date.

CENTER HOSPITAL
USRC Lemont, LLC Provena Saint Joseph Medical Center,

an operating unit of Provena Hospitals
===
s

Moyl tores T
Signature: { Si gnalurcc:ﬁ T NS
Printed Name: M? 1= Printed Name: __ Beth Hughes

Title: QO\T{Y\Q.\K Title: President/CEQ
Date: 6 :b Y / [2- Date: Jbﬁ 4/’;‘
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ATTACHMENT 28

ASSURANCES
USRC Lemont, LL.C

In accordance with 77 1ll. Admin. Code § 1110.1430(j), and with respect to the U.S. Renal Care
Lemont Dialysis facility, Applicant certifies the following:

1. By the second year of operation after the project completion, the Applicant will achieve
and maintain the 80% utilization standards as specified in 77 Ill. Adm. Code § 1100; and

2. That Applicant will achieve and maintain compliance with the following adequacy of
hemodialysis outcome measures for the latest 12-month period for which data are
available:

> 85% of hemodialysis patient population achieves area reduction ratio (URR) >

65% and > 85% of hemodialysis patient population achieves Kt/V Daugirdas II
1.2,

=z

Signature

Thomas L. Weinberg

Printed Name

Manager
Title

Subscribed and swom to before me this 12th day of June 2012

%M ey,

Signature of Notary \*}:}.\- o1 W4¢9 Y,

f
Seal - ,-' '; Z
ESR] P
RN

%, g &

By

KTty
2200280-1
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ATTACHMENT 39

AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS

Applicant documents that financial resources shall be avatlable and be equal to or excced the
estimated total project cost plus any related project costs. Applicant will fund the project
through capital contributions from ifs members. In the event that such contributions are
insufficient to cover the costs associated with this project, U.S. Renal Care, Inc. will provide
funding to Applicant through USRC Alliance, LL.C by way of a revolving promissory note. As
cvidence of U.S. Renal Care, Inc.'s financial viability, we have included audited financials for
2009-2011. In addition, included in Attachment 42 is a certification from U.S. Renal Care, Inc.
attesting to the reasonablencss of the financing arrangement. Lastly, the master casce for dialysis
equipment is also included in this attachment. The lessee contemplated by the master lease is a
wholly owned subsidiary of U.S. Renal Care. Inc. and the equipment will be subsequently
leased to USRC Lemont, LLC.

2230130-2
Aftachment 39
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2011 and 2010
(With Independent Auditors’ Report Thereon)
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Suite 3100
717 North Harwood Street
Dallas, TX 75201-8585

Independent Auditors’ Report

The Board of Directors
U.S. Renal Care, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of U.8. Renal Care, Inc. and subsidiaries
(the Company) as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, and the related consolidated statements of operations,
changes in equity, and cash flows for the years then ended. These consolidated financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company's management, Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit o obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of
internal conirol over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of U.S. Renal Care, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2011 and
2010, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with
U.8. generally accepted accounting principles.

KPMe P

Dallas, Texas
Aprii 6, 2012

g

G LLP i a Delswars reed hebiey parnership,
U.5, mamber fem of KPWG Imemabonal Cooperathe
(CKPMG Iniarmnationary, a Swiss snthy,

g
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11.5. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Balance Sheets
December 31, 2011 and 2010

Assets 2011 20140

Cash and cash equivalents $ 28,171,825 9,537,107
Accounts receivable, net of allowances of $11,410,941 and $13,458,4%94 48,222,030 48,449,631
Inventories 10,507,508 3,100,193
Other receivables 11,034,880 9,994,938
Deferred tax asset 3,613,197 6,215,457
Other current assets 3,166,263 2,636,244

Total current assets 104,715,703 79,933,570
Property and equipment, net 45,902,288 46,781,941
Amortizable intangibles, net 21,617,610 27,349,714
Trade names 859,000 859,000
Goodwill 195,501,363 195,575,023
Other long-term asscts 706,982 470,902

Total assets $ 369,392,946 350,970,150

Liabilities and Equity

Accounts payable $ 13,818,397 9,045,119
Accrued expenses 23,353,925 23,443,871
Current portion of long-term debt and capital lease obligations 3,805,921 2,924,662
Current porticon of related-party notes payable — 125,000

Total current liabilities 40,978,243 35,538,652
Long-term debt and capital lease obligations, net of current portion 317,654,880 181,723,922
Other long-term liabilities 1,394,929 1,245,591
Deferred tax lability 2,449,302 11,198,031
Preferred stock accrued dividends — 19,831,208

Totaj liabilities 362,477,354 249,537,404

Commitments and contingencies

U.S. Renal Care, Inc. equity:
Preferred stock A ($0.01 par value, Authorized shares 12,825,000;

issued and outstanding 12,725,000 and 12,350,000 shares) 127,250 123,500
Preferred stock B and B-1($0.01 par value, Authorized shares
1,600,000, issued and outstanding £,43 1,666 shares) 14,317 14,317
Preferred stock C ($0.01 par value. Authorized shares 25,000,000,
issued and cutstanding 24,500,962 shares) 245,010 245,010
Preferred stock 1D ($0.01 par value. Authorized shares 8,333,333,
issued and outstanding 8,333,333 shares) 83,333 83,333
Common stock (30.01 par value. Authorized shares 57,237,646 and
56,910,159; issued and outstanding 7,736,754 and 7,074,324 shares) 77,368 70,744
Additional paid-in capital (50,804,776) 38,667,471
Retained earnings — 8,624,492
Total U.S. Renal Care, Inc. stockholders’ equity (50,257,498} 47,828,867
Noncontrolling interests (including redeemable interests with redemption
values of $46,149,160 and $40,999,428) 57,173,090 53,603,879
Total equity 6,915,592 101,432,746
Total liabilities and equity § 369,392946 350,970,150

See accompanying noles to consolidated financial siatements.
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U.S5. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consaolidated Statements of Operations
Years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

Net operating revenues $

Operating expenses:;
Patient care costs
General and administrative
Provision for doubtful accounts
Legal cost/settlement
Transaction costs
Depreciation and amortization
Loss on disposal of fixed assets
Gain on acquisition of controlling interest

Total operating expenses

QOperating income

Interest expense, net
Loss on early retirement of debt

Income before income taxes

Income tax provision

Net income

Less net income attributable to noncontrolling interests

Net income attributable to U.5. Renal Care, Inc. g

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

2011 2010
309,643,779 237,606,328
186,090,458 154,284,195

25,301,516 20,165,850
9,117,119 6,898,682
77,943 (352,334)
3,131,507 9,076,731
18,451,254 14,655,411
406,832 41,711
— (5,050,261)
242,576,629 169,719,985
67,067,150 37,886,343
22,251,250 10,192,698
4,801,472 —
40,014,388 27,693,645
8,389,946 7,543,219
31,624,442 20,150,426
17,113,167 13,023,628
14,511,275 7,126,798
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

2011 2010

Cash flows from operating activitics:
Net income $ 31,624,442 20,150,426

Adjustmentis to reconcile net income to cash provided by
operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 18,822,835 14,655,411
Noncash dispute settlement — 450,000
Lease agreement intangible amortization included in rent (9.936) 31,337
Pravision for doubtful accounts 5,117,11% 6,898,682
Deferred income taxes 855,742 4,646,303
Equity investment income — (805,801}
Stock compensation expense 136,340 102,652
Lass on disposal of fixed assets 406,832 41,7111
Gain on acquisition of controlling interest — (5,050,261}
Loss on early retirement of debt 4,801,472 —
Loss on derivatives 434,083 —
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of effect of acquisitions
and divestitures:
Accounts receivable (8,889,518) (11,223,175)
Inventories (7,407,314) 1,065,325
Other receivables (1,039,942) (2,773,018)
Other current assets {530,021} (326,422)
Other long-term assets (236,080} {1,049,343)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 5,663,597 585,137
Other noncurrent liabilities 320,512 331,317
Net cash provided by operating activities 54,070,213 27,730,281
Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired (1,275,000) {116,523,175)
Sale of property and equipment 2,579,801 3,i72324
Additions of property and equipment, net (15,377,075) (18,394,835)
Purchase of noncontroiling interests (465,001) (18,991,500)
Investment in affiliate — 101,335
Net cash used in investing activilies (14,537,275) (150,635,851}
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from fong-term debt borrowings 278,827,090 181,952,491
Payments on long-term debt and related-party notes payable (144,767,068) (73,000,188)
Deferred financing costs (5.149,293) (7,938,537)
Proceeds from capital ieases 3,696,968 3,260,343
Capital lease payments (2,070,576) (1,243,894)
Net proceeds from issuance of preferred stock 375,000 ¢ 25,015,999
Praoceeds from issuance of common stock 318,073 43 648
Repurchase of preferred stock - —
Contributions from nencontrolling interests 1,439,500 695,750
Distributions to noncontrolling interests 16,067,923y (11,668,292)
Dividends paid to shareholders {137,500,000) —
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (20,898,220) 117,117,320
Net increase/decrease in cash and cash equivalents 18,634,718 (5,788,250}
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 9,337,107 15,325,357
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 28,171,825 9,537,107
5 (Continued)
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1.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

2011 2014
Supplemental cash flow information:
Cash paid for interest £ 20,292,064 8,474,494
Cash paid for taxes 9,295,414 4,814,265
Supplemental disclosures of noncash investing and financing activities:
Cumulative preferred dividends $ 2,601,976 5,094,782
Capital lease financing 398,676 99,126

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2011 and 2010

{1) Organization and Significant Accounting Policies

(a)

&)

(c)

(d)

(e

Organization and Business

U.S. Renal Care, Inc. (the Company) was formed in June 2000 and provides dialysis services to
patients who suffer from chronic kidney faijlure, also known as end stage renal disease (ESRD).
ESRD is the stage of advanced kidney impairment that requires continual dialysis treatments, or a
kidney transplant, to sustain life. Patients suffering from ESRD generally require dialysis three times
per week for the rest of their lives. The Company primarily provides these services through the
operation of outpatient kidney dialysis clinics. As of December 31, 2011, the Company operated
86 outpatient dialysis clinics in Texas, Arkansas, Georgia, Maryland, New Jersey, Ohio,
Pennsylvania, Virginia, South Carolina, New York, Oklahoma and Illinois. In addition to its
outpatient dialysis center operations, as of December 31, 2011, the Company provides acute dialysis
services through contractual relationships with hospitals and dialysis to patients in their homes.

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its
wholly owned and majority-owned subsidiaries. All significant intercompany accounts and
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) requires management to make estimates and assumplions. These
estimates and assumptions affect the reportcd amounts of assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of
contingent assets and labilities, at the date of the consolidated financial statements, as well as the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.

Although actual results in subsequent periods will differ from these estimates, such estimates are
developed based upon the best information available to management and management’s best
judgments at the time made. The most significant estimates and assumptions involve revenue
Tecognition, provisions for uncollectible accounts, determination of the fair value of assets and
liabilities acquired, impairments and valuation adjustments, and accounting for income taxcs.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash includes cash and highly liquid investments with a maturity of ninety days or less at date of
purchase. Cash and cash equivalents at times may exceed the FDIC limits. The Company believes no
significant concentration of credit risk exists with respect to these cash investments.

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Substantially all of the Company's accounts receivable are related to providing healtheare services to
its patients and are duc from the Medicare program, state Medicaid programs, managed care health
plans, commercial insurance companies and individual patients. The estimated provision for doubtful
accounts is recorded to the extent it is probable that a portion or all of a patient balance will not be
collected. The Company considers a number of factors in evaluating the coliectibility of accounts

7 {Continued)

Aftachment 39

T 206




(@

)

&

U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consaolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2011 and 2010

receivable including the age of the accounts, collection patterns and any ongoing disputes with
payors.

Amounts Due from Third-Party Payors

The amount due from third-party payors, which is included in other receivables, represents balances
owed to the Company by the Medicare program for reimbursable bad debts related to Medicare
beneficiaries. These rcimbursements are part of the Company’s annual cost report filings and as
such, the actual payments may be delayed or subsequently adjusted pending review and audit by the
Medicare program fiscal intermediaries.

Amounts Due from Drug Rebates

The amount due from drug rebates, which is included in other receivables, represents balances owed
to the Company by various pharmaceutical vendors for Epogen (EPO), vitamin D and iron. During
2011 and 2010, the Company had incentive contracts that reduced the invoice price based upon
volume purchased. This incentive was payable to the Company on a quarterly basis. In addition,
there was an additional annual incentive based on volume that was payable to the Company
annually.

Inventories

Inventories consist primarily of pharmaceuticals and dialysis-related supplies and are stated at the
lower of cost or market. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out method. Market is determined
on the basis of estimated realizable values.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation. Property under capital lease
agreements is stated at the present value of minimum lease payments less accumulated depreciation.
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets
or the term of the lease as appropriate. The general range of useful lives is as follows:

Buildings 39 years
Leaschold improvements Life of lease
Fumiture and equipment 5 years
Computers 3 years

Capital lease assets are amortized over the shorler of the lease term or the estimated useful life of the
improvement. Property and equipment acquired in acquisitions is recorded at fair value. The cost of
improvements that extend asset lives is capitalized. Other repairs and maintenance charges are
expensed as incurred.

Fully depreciated assets are retained in property and depreciation accounts until they are removed
from service. When sold or otherwise disposed of, assets and refated depreciation are removed from
the accounts and the net amounts, less proceeds from disposal, are included in income.

8 (Continued)
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2011 and 2010

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company’s primary concentration of credit risk exists within accounts receivable, which consist
of amounts owed by varicus governmentai agencies, insurance companies, and private patients.
Receivables from the Medicare program and various state Medicaid programs were approximately
56% and 57% of gross accounts receivable at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.
Concentration of credit risk refating to remaining accounts receivable is limited to some extent by the
diversity of the number of patients and payors.

Amortizable Intangible Assets

Amortizable intangible assets and liabilities include noncompetition and similar agreements, lease
agreements, and deferred debt issuance costs. Noncompetition and similar agreements are amortized
over the terms (five to ten years) of the agreements using the straight-line method. Lease apreement
intangibles for favorable and unfavorabie leases are amortized on a straight-line basis over the term
of the lease.

Deferred debt issuance costs are amortized using the effective interest method as an adjustment to
interest expense over the term of the related debt. In the case of debt repayments prior to the end of
the term, the Company adjusts the amount of deferred financing costs at the date of repayment,
which is included in interest expense.

Goadwill

Goodwill is recorded when the consideration paid for an acquisition exceeds the fair value of net
tangible assets and identifiable intangible assets acquired. Goodwill and other indefinite-lived
intangible assets are not amortized, but are instead tested for impairment at least annually. The
annual evaluation for 2011 and 2010 resulted in no impairment charges.

Impairment of Long-Lived and Indefinite-Lived Assets

The Company evaluates long lived-assets and identifiable intangibles for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that an asset’s camrying amount may not be recoverable
or the vseful life has changed. When undiscounted future cash flows are not expected to be sefficient
to recover an asset’s carrying amount, a Joss is recognized and the asset is written down to its fair
value,

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

U.8. GAAP describes a fair value hierarchy based on three levels of inputs, of which the first two are
considered observable and the last unobservable, that may be used to measure fair value. The three
levels of inputs are as follows:

. Level 1 - Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilitics.

. Level 2 — Inputs other than Level | that are observable, either directly or indirectly, such as
quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are not active; or
other inputs that arc observable or can be corroborated by observable market data for
substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities.

9 {Continued)
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2011 and 2010

. Level 3 — Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and are
significant to the fair value of the assets or liabilities,

The Company’s interest rate swap is remeasured to fair value on a recurring basis, At December 31,
2011 and 2010, the fair value of the interest rate swap was an unfavorable $434,083 and 30,
respectively. The fair value of the interest rate swap is determined using quoted market prices for
similar swap agreements and is considered to be Level 2 measurement. The fair value of the interest
rate swap is included as a component of other long-term liabilities at fair value.

At December 31, 2011 and 2010, the carrying amount of the senior secured credit facility was
$314.5 million and $178.9 million as compared to fair values of $323.3 million and $189.6 million,
respectively. The estitates of the fair value of the Company’s senior secured credit facility are based
upon a discounted present value analysis of future cash flows and are considered to be Level 3
financial measures. Due to the existing uncertainty in the capital and credit markets, the actual rateg
that would be obtained to borrow under similar conditions could materially differ from the estimates
the Company has used.

For the Company’s other financial instruments, including the Company’s cash and cash equivalents,
accounts receivable, accounts payable, and accrued expenses the Company estimates the carrying
amounts approximate fair value due to their short-term maturity.

Net Operating Revenues and Accounis Receivable

Net operating revenue is recognized in the period services are provided. Revenue consists primarily
of reimbursements from Medicare, Medicaid and commercial health plans for dialysis services
provided to patients. A usual and customary fee schedule is maintained for the Company’s dialysis
reatment and other patient services. However, actual collected revenue is normaily at a discount to
this fee schedule. Contractual adjustments represent the differences between amounts billed for
services and amounts paid by third-party payors.

The Company's dialysis facilities are certified to participate in the Medicare program. Revenues
reimbursed by the Medicare program are recognized primarily on a prospective payment system for
dialysis services (ESRD Program). Prior to January 2011, dialysis providers operating under the
Medicare ESRD program received a composite payment rate to cover routine dialysis treatments and
certain supplies. There was a separate payment for laboratory testing and pharmaceuticals such as
EPOQ, vitamin D and iron supplements that were not included in the composite rate. However,
beginning January 2011, Medicare implemented a new payment system in which all ESRD payments
are now made under a single bundled payment rate that provides for an annual inflation adjustment
based upon a market basket index, less a productivity improvement factor. The bundled payment rate
provides a fixed rate to encompass goods and services provided during the dialysis ireatment,
including pharmaceuticals that were historically separately reimbursed to the dialysis providers.
Most lab services that were previously paid directly to laboratories are also included in the new
payment bundle. Now, as a result of the bundled payment system, the dialysis providers are at risk of
variations in pharmaceutical utilization since reimbursement is set at a fixed average reimbursement
rate.
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As of November 1, 2010, dialysis providers were required to make an election as to which clinics
would be fully reimbursed as of January 1, 2011 under the new bundled payment system or phased
into the new system over a four year period. The Company elected to have approximately 72% of its
clinics be reimbursed fully under the new bundled reimbursement system beginning Januvary 1, 2011,
Once this clection was made, it could not be revoked. All clinics that receive Medicare certification
subsequent to November 1, 2010 will be reimbursed under the new bundled reimbursement system.

The initial 2011 bundled payment rate includes reductions to conform to the provisions of the
Medicare Improvements for Patients and Providers Act (MIPPA) and to establish budget neutrality,
Further, there is a 5.94% reduction tied to an expanded list of case mix adjustors which can be
earned back upon the presence of these certain patient characteristics and co-morbidities at the time
of treatment. Historically, dialysis providers have not had to track certain of the case-mix adjustors
and these adjustors may be difficult to capture initially, There are also other provisions which may
impact reimbursement including an outlier adjustment and a low volume facility adjustment.

On April 1, 2011, CMS released an interim final rule correcting the 3.1% transition adjustment factor
to properly update the number of ESRD facilities that elected to opt fully into the new Prospective
Payment System (PPS). This new rule was prospective and as a result, effective April 1, 2011 the
Company began recognizing revenues in accordance with the new rule, which resulted in an increase
in Medicare revenue per treatment of approximately 3.1% in comparison to levels recorded in the
first quarter of 2011,

On November 1, 2011, CMS issued the final ESRD PPS rule for 2012. The base rate for 2012
increased by 2.1%, representing a market basket increase of 3.0% less a productivity adjustment of
0.9%.

Also, beginming in 2012, the rule provides for up to a 2% annual payment withhold that can be
earned back by the facilities that meet certain defined clinical performance standards under a quality
incentive program built into the bundled system, Thus, the quality incentive program could result in
decreased payments if a dialysis facility fails to meet the standards.

Medicare presently pays 80% of the established payment rates for dialysis treatment furnished to
patients. The remaining 20% may be paid by Medicaid if the patient is eligible, from private
insurance funds, or from the patient’s personal funds. If there is no sccondary payor to cover the
remaining 20%, and if the Company demonstrates prescribed collection efforts, Medicare may
reimburse the Company for part of that balance as part of the Company’s annual cost report filings
subject to individual center Medicare economics. As a resuli, billing and collection of Medicare bad
debt claims are often delayed significantly, and final payments are subject to audit.

Medicaid programs are administered by state governments and are partially funded by the federal
government. In addition to providing primary coverage for patients whose income and assets fall
below state defined levels and are otherwise insured, Medicaid serves as a supplemental insurance
program for the co-insurance portion not paid by Medicare. Medicaid reimbursement varies by state
but is typically reimbursed pursuant to a prospective payment system for dialysis services rendered,

Revenues associated with commercial health plans arc estimated based upon patient-specific
contractual terms between the Company and health plans for the patients with which the Company
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has formal agreements, upon commercial health plan coverage terms if known, or otherwise upon
historical collection experience adjusted for refund and payment adjustment trends. Commercial
revenue recognition involves substantial judgment. With several commercial insurers, the Company
has multiple contracts with varying payment arrangements, and these contracts may include only a
subset of the Company’s dialysis centers. In addition, for services provided by noncontracted
centers, final collection may require specific negotiation of a payment amount. Generally, payments
for a dialysis treatment from commercial payors are greater than the corresponding amounts received
from Medicare and Medicaid.

Share-Based Compensation

The Company recognizes compensation expense, for all share-based awards, including stock option
granis to employees, using a fair-value measurement method. Under the fair-value methed, the
estimated fair value of awards that are expected to vest is recognized over the requisite service
period, which is generally the vesting period.

Prior to 2006, the Company accounted for its equity compensation using the intrinsic value-based
method of accounting. The Company did not recognize compensation expense before 2006 because
the exercise price of stock optiens granted was not less than the estimated value of the underlying
stock on the date of grant, The Company continues to account for equity compensation based shares
granted prior to 2006 using the intrinsic value method until such time as shares are modified,
canceled, or repurchased.

The Company estimates {he fair value of awards on the date of grant, using the Black-Scholes option
pricing model. The weighted averape fair value of options granted during the years ended
December 31, 2011 and 2010 are calculated based on the following assumptions: expected volatility
of 30% and 22%, respectively, expected dividend yield of 0%, expected life of 3.75 years, and
risk-free interest rates of 0.69% to 1.97%. Expected volatility was derived using data drawn from
public dialysis company comparables. The expected life was computed utilizing the simplified
method as permitted by the Securities and Exchange Commission’s Staff Accounting Bulletin, Share
Based Payment. The expected forfeiture rate is 20% based upon a review of the Company’s recent
history and expectations as segregated between the Company’s board of directors, senior officers,
and other grantees. The risk-free interest rate is based on the approximate average yield on three and
five year United States Treasury Bonds as of thce date of grant. There were 146,987 and
352,000 options granted during the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively (see
note 10).

Noncontrolling Interest

In December 2007, the FASBissued an accounting standard, Noncomtrolling Interests in
Consolidated Financial Statements (ASC 810), which gives guidance on the presentation and
disclosure of noncontrolling interests (previously known as minority intcrests) of consolidated
subsidiaries. This statement requires the noncontrolling interest to be included in the equity section
of the balance sheet, requires disclosure on the face of the consolidated statement of operations of the
amounts of consolidated net income attributable to the consolidated parent and the noncontrolling
interest, and expands disclosures.
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Consolidated income (loss) is reduced (increased) by the proportionate amount of income or loss
aceruing to noncontrolling interests, Noncontrolling interest represents the equity interest of
third-party owners in consolidated entities that are not wholly owned.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to the differences between the
financial statement carrying amount of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases
and operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using
enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years which those temporary differences
are expected 1o be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in
tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the cnactment date. A valuation
allowance is cstablished when it is more likely than not that the deferred tax assets will not be
realized.

The Company recognizes the financial statement benefit of a tax position only afier determining that
the relevant tax authority would more likely than not sustain the position following an audit. For tax
positions meeting the more-likely than-not threshold, the amount recognized in the financial
statements is the largest benefit that has a preater than 50% likelihood of being realized upon
ultimate settlement with the relevant tax authority. The amount of unrecognized tax benefits as of
December 31, 2011 and 2010 was $0.

The Company is subject to income taxes in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and various states. Tax
regulations within each jurisdiction are subject to the interpretation of the related tax laws and
regulations and require significant judgment to apply. The Company is no longer subject to
U.S. federal or state or local income tax examinations by tax authorities for the years before 2006. In
2011, the Internal Revenue Service finalized its examination of the Company’s 2007 1J.S. income tax
returns. The resolution of this examination resulted in no additional tax payment.

The Company recognizes interest accrued related to unrecognized tax benefits in interest expense
and penalties in operating expenses for all periods presented.

The Company’s consolidated LLC and L.P. subsidiaries do not incur federal income taxes. Instead,
their eamings and losses are included in the retums of, and taxed directly to, the members and
partners of these subsidiaries.

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

The Company has entered into interesl rate swap and cap agreements as a means of hedging its
exposure to and volatility from variable-based interest rate change. These agreements are designed as
cash flow hedges and are not held for trading or speculative purposes. The swap agreement has the
economic effect of converting portions of the Company’s variable rate debt to fixed rates.

In 2011, the Company adopted the provisions of FASB Statement No. 161, Disclosures about
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities (included in FASB ASC Tapic 815, Derivatives and
Hedging), which amends the disclosure requirements for derivative instruments and hedging
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activitics. The amended disclosure require entities to provide information to enable users of the
financial statements to understand how and why an entity uses derivative instruments, how
derivative instruments and related hedged items are accounted for, and how degvative instruments
are related hedged items affect an entity’s financial position, financial performance, and cash flows
{sce note 6).

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In July 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-07, Health Care Entities-Presentation and Disclosure
of Patient Service Revenue, Provision for Bad Debts, and the Allowance for Doubtful Accounts. This
standard amends the current presentation and disclosure requirements for health care entities that
recognize significant amounts of patient service revenue at the time the services are rendered even
though they do not assess the patient’s ability to pay. This standard requires health care entities to
reclassify the provision for bad debts from an operating expense to a deduction from patient service
revenues in certain circumstances. Additionally, this standard requires enhanced disclosures on the
policies for recognizing revenue, assessing bad debts, as well as quantitative and qualitative
information regarding changes in the allowance for bad debts. This standard is applied
retrospectively to all prior periods presented and is effective for the first annual period ending after
December 15, 2012 with early adoption permitted. The adoption of this standard will not have a
material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In September 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011408, Intangibles-Goodwill and Other. This
standard simplifies the goodwill impairment assessment by aliowing a company to first review
qualitative factors to determine whether it is more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting
unit is less than its camrying amount to determine if the two-step impairment test is necessary, If it is
determined that certain events and circumstances prove that it is more likely than not that the fair
value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount then an entity is required to proceed to step
one of the two-step goodwill impairment test. This standard is effective for the first annual period
ending after December 15,2011 with early adoption permitted. The adoption of this standard will not
have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statcments.

Reclossifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2010 consolidated financial statement balances to
conform with the 2011 presentation. Such reclassificattons have no effect on eamnings or
stockholders’ equity.

Correction of Immaterial Error

In 2011, the Company identified an error in recording the purchase of an additional interest in a
facility in 2010, that resulted in the Company gaining control of the facility that was previously
accounted for as an equity method investment. The effect of this change increased goodwill and
income before income taxes by $5.1 miilion, increased income tax expense and deferred tax
liabilities by $1.8 million and increased net income by $3.3 million. The allocation of the purchase
price including this gain follows, The Company has included this adjustment in the 2010 financial
statements as a correction of an immaterial error (see note 3(b)).
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Fixed Assets

At December 31,2011 and 2010, property and equipment consists of the following:

2011 2010

Facility equipment, furniture, and information systems % 46,577,947 42,891,347
Land and buildings 3,745,050 6,747,940
Leasehold improvements 30,638,531 21,493,319
New center construction in progress 863,043 778,865
81,824,571 71,911,414
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (35,922,283)  (25,129,530)
$ 45,902 288 46,781,941

Year ended December 31
2011 2010

Depreciation and amortization expense on property
and equipment $ 12,880,752 9,304,459

Net book value of equipment under capital leases at December 31 was as follows:

2011 2019
Equipment h 14,073,859 10,671,572
Less accumulated depreciation (8,361,068) . (6,099,837
$ 5,712,791 4,571,735

Acquisitions/Disposition

The Company has acquired various dialysis businesses, as described further below. The assets and
liabilities for all acquisitions were recorded at their estimated fair values as of the effective acquisition date
based upon the best available information,

Amortizable intangible assets consist primarily of noncompete agreements. Goodwill is recorded when the
consideration paid for an acquisition exceeds the fair value of identifiable net tangible assets and
identifiable intangible assets acquired.

The results of operations for the acquired companies are included in the Company’s financial statemenis
beginning on the effective acquisition date,

{a) Dialysis Corporation of America, Inc, Acquisition

On June 3, 2010, the Company acquired all the outstanding common shares of Dialysis Corporation
of America, Inc, (DCA) for $11.25 per share, DCA provides outpatient dialysis, in-home dialysis and
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acute services in Georgia, Maryland, New Jersey, Ohio, Pennsylvania, Virginia and South Carclina.
The results of operations for DCA are included in the Company’s financial statements beginning
June 1, 2010.

The DCA acquisition cost of approximately $110 million and costs related thereto were funded from
the proceeds of the Company's senior secured and subordinated loan agreements (see note 6) and the
issuance of Series D Preferred Stock (see note 8).

The estimated fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date are as

follows:;

San Amtonio

Assets:
Cash $ 1,294,958
Net accounts receivable 17,072,334
Inventory 2,684,480
Other receivables 1,280,382
Other current assets 2,257,895
Total current assets 24,590,049
Property and equipment, net 20,526,500
Amortizable intangibles, net 12,957,381
Goodwill 113,828,342
Other long-term assets 863,600
Total assets $ 172,765,872
Liabilities:
Accounts payable 5 4,958,871
Accrued expenses 6,177,187
Total current liabilities 11,136,058
Long-term debt 9,586,971
Other long-term liabilities (326,883)
Deferred tax lability 3,808,826
Total liabilities $ 24204972
Equity:
Minority interest $ 38,310,900
Total equity $ 38,310,900

On July 1, 2010, the Company purchased an additional 40% interest in one of its joint venture
entities which it previously had a 40% noncontrolling ownership intercst for $7.2 million. The
acquisition was funded by borrowing under the Company’s revolving credit facility (see note 6) and
cash on hand. The consclidated results of operation for this facility are included in the Company’s
financial statements beginning July 1, 2010. Previously, the Company’s investment was recorded
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using the equity method of accounting. The investment balance at June 30, 2010 was approximately
$922,000.

Subsequent 1o the issuance of the Decemnber 31, 2010 financial statements, the Company concluded
that the purchase of an additional 40% interest in the San Antonio joint venture on July 1, 2010,
should have resulted in a gain to be included in the December 31, 2010 financial statements. At the
date of the transaction, the Company did not remeasure the previously held noncontrolling interest of
40% at fair value and recognize the resulting gain or loss. As a result of this adjustment, a gain on
acquisition of controlling interest of $5.1 million is included in the December 31, 2010 financial
statements. The effect of this change increased goodwill and income before income taxes by
$5.1 million, increased income tax expense and deferred tax liabilities by $1.8 million and increased
net income by $3.3 million. The allocation of the purchase price including this gain follows. The
Company has included this adjustment in the 2010 financial statements as a correction of an
immaterial ervor.

Assets:
Cash 3 671,969
Net accounts receivable 1,151,930
Inventory 22726
Other receivables 1,724
Other current assets 24,742
Total current assets 1,879,091
Property and equipment, net 974,832
Goodwill 13,476,227
Total assets $ 16,330,150

Liabitities:

Accounts payable $ 25,983
Accrued expenses . 145,888
Total liabilities $ 171,871

Equity:
Minority interest 3 2,986,200
' Total equity $ 2,986,200

December Acquisition

On December 1, 2010, the Company acquired two outpatient dialysis clinics, an acute program and a
home program (December Acquisition). This transaction included purchasing a 51% majority
interest in the assets of one of the clinics and a 100% interest in the assets of the other clinic. The
results of operations for these services are included in the Company’s financial statements beginning
December 1, 2010. The December Acquisition cost of approximately $1 million was funded from
operating cash flow.
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The estimated fair values of the assets acquired at the acquisition date are as follows:

Assets:
Inventory $ 80,114
Other current assets 26,017
Fixed assets 416,000
Goodwill 869,546

Total assets 3 1,400,677
Liabilities:
Accrued expenscs
Total liabilities

o

357,713
357,713

o3

(d} Medicore Disposition

On November 30, 2010, the Company sold 100% of the net assets of its medical products business
that was acquired in the DCA acquisition. The Company sold, assigned and transferred certain assets
for approximately $535,000 resulting in no gain or loss.

(e) Advanced Home Therapies Acquisition

On May 16, 2011, the Company acquired home dialysis programs providing services at two
locations in Illinois. The transaction included purchasing a 51% majority interest in the assets. The
results of operations for these services are included in the Company’s financial statements beginning
May 16, 2011, The Advanced Home Therapies Acquisition cost of approximately $1.2 million was
funded from operating cash flow,

The estimated fair value of the assets acquired at the acquisition date are as follows:

Assets:
Fixed assets $ 9,320
Goodwill 2,452,430
Amortizable intangibles, net 38,250
Total assets $ 2,500,000
Equity: '
Minority interest $ 1,225,000
Total equity $ 1,225,000

(4) Noacontrolling Interests

The Company engages in the purchase and sale of equity interests with respect to its consolidated
subsidiaries that do not result in a change of control. These transactions are accounted for as equity
transactions, as they are undertaken among the Company, its consolidated subsidiaries, and noncontrolling
interests, and their cash flow effect is classified within financing activities.
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As of December 31, 2011, the Company was the majority owner in 66 joint ventures. Of the noncontrolling
interests in those 66 joint ventures, 23 have put rights generally at fair value as defined in the agreement
that are either currently exercisable or become exercisable at various future dates. The carrying amount of
these redeemable noncontrolling interests totzled $9.1 million and $7.3 million as compared to redemption
values of $46.1 million and $41.0 miltion at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The redemption
value is calculated at the current value of the put payment that would be required to redeem the interest if
the put is exercised regardiess of whether such interest is currently exercisabie. As of December 31, 2011,
$7.4 million of put rights arc currently cxercisable and the remaining $38.7 million generally become
exercisable over the next three to five years,

Intangible Assets
At December 31, 2011 and 2310, amortizable intangible assets consisted of the following;

2011 2010

Noncompetition agreements $ 31,858,689 31,836,273
Lease agreements 580,106 580,106
Deferred debt issuance costs 7,168,556 7,939,537
Licenses 359,000 359,000
40,566,351 40,714,916

Less accumulated amortization (18,948,741) (13,365,202)
Net amortizable intangible assets $ 21617610 27,349,714

Amortizable intangible liabilities, which arc included in other long-term liabilities, consisted of lease
agreements as follows:

2011 2010
Lease agreements $ 1,894,040 1,894,040
Less accumulated amortization (933,193) (648,449)
Net amortizable intangible liabilities b3 960,847 1,245,591

Amortization of intangible assets and liabilities over the next five years is as follows:

Deferred debt Lease

Noncompetition issuance agreements,

__agreements costs net Licenses
2012 $ 4,508,985 1,267,449 {114,102) 71,800
2013 4,421,133 1,263,680 (66,168) 71,800
2¢14 4,324 487 1,263,680 (95,728) 71,800
2015 1,288,439 1,263,680 (106,751) 29,917
2016 164,805 1,150,451 (98,458) —
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Changes in the value of goodwill were as follows:

2011 2010
Balance at January ! $ 195,575,023 67,922,354
Goodwill adjustments (2,436,090) (521,626)
Goodwill acquired 2,452430 128,174,295
Balance at December 31 $ 195,591,363 195,575,023

The fair value of the identifiable intangibles acquired and the amount of goodwill recorded as a result of
acquisitions are determined based upon independent third-party valuations and the Company’s estimates.
Amortization expense for the Company’s intangible assets relates to the value associated with the
noncompete and lease agreements. The noncompete intangible assets are amortized over the term of the
noncompete agreements executed in connection with the acquisition transactions or the medical
agreements entered into with certain physicians and the lease agreement intangibles are amortized over the
term of the lease.

The Company recorded $2.4 million to goodwill related to deferred tax adjustments in relation to the
acquistion of DCA (see note 3(a)).

Long-Term Debt

On June 9, 2011, the Company entered into an Amendment Agreement to amend and restate the
Company's senior credit agreement entered into on May 24, 2010 (as amended, the Amended Agreement),
The Amended Agreement consists of: (a) a $215 million senior secured term loan (Term Loan) and (b) a
$40 million senior secured revolving credit facility (Revelver). Also on June 9, 2011, the Company entered
into an Amendment Agreement to amend and restate the senior subordinated loan agreement entered into
on May 24, 2010 to allow the Company to borrow an additional $60 million (Additional Subordinated
Loan), for an aggregate principle amount of $100 million (Subordinated Loan). The additional procecds
obtained under the Term Loan and the Additional Subordinated Loan along with available cash on hand
were utilized to (a) to fund a one time dividend payment to the Company’s shareholders in the amount of
$137.5 millien (see note 9}, and (b) pay expenses and fees 2ssociated with the amended senior secured and
subordinated loan agreements.

Borrowings under the Term Loan and Revolver {collectively Senior Secured Loans) bear interest based
upon a spread in excess of LIBOR (floor of 1.50%) or the U.S. prime rate, as the benchmark, as adjusted,
in the case of the interest rate applicable to the Revolver, based upon the Company’s leverage ratio. The
Amended Agreement also provides for an annual unused commitment fee of $.75% based upon the
average revolving credit commitment less outstanding borrowings on the Revolver and letters of credit, as
adjusted based upon the Company’s leverage ratio. As of December 31, 2011, borrowings under the Senior
Secured Loans bore interest at 5.50%. The Subordinated Loan accrues interest at 13.25% with 11.25% paid
in cash per annum. The remaining 2% of interest on the Subordinated Loan (PIK Interest) will be
capitalized and accrued for until it becomes due upon the maturity of the loan.
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The Term Loan requires quarterly principal payments of $537,500 in each year from 2011 through 2016
with the balance of $204,787,500 due in 2016. The Subordinated Loan requires a one-time payment of
$100 million principal balance due in 2017, in addition to outstanding PIK Interest.

The Revolver, Term Loan, and Subordinated Loan mature on June 9, 2016, December 9, 2016, and June 2,
2017, respectively. The subordinated loan agreement provides for prepayment penalties if it is repaid
within the first three years subsequent to June 2, 2011,

Commencing with the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011, the Company is required to prepay its
outstanding Senior Secured Loan balances with 50% of excess cash flow as defined in the credit
agreement. The Company is also required to prepay senior secured loan balances with: (a) 100% of the
proceeds of asset sales or the proceeds received from casualty event settlements that are not reinvested or
permitted pursuant to the terms of the credit agreement, and (b) 100% of the proceeds of indebtedness that
is incurred and not permitted pursuant to the credit agreement. Following satisfaction of any prepayment
under the Senior Secured Loans, the Company is required to prepay the Subordinated Loan balances with
100% of the proceeds of asset sales or the proceeds received from a casualty event settlement that are not
reinvested or permitted pursuant to the terms of the credit agreement.

The Senior Secured Loans and the Subordinated Loan are guaranteed, on a joint and several basis, by each
of the Company’s subsidiaries, subject to certain exceptions, Borrowings under the credit agreements are
collateralized by substantially all of the Company’s and its subsidiaries’ assets, including accounts
reccivable, inventory, and fixed assets not subject to permitted capital leases. The Subordinated Loan is
subordinated to the repayment of the Senior Secured Loans. The Senior Secured and Subordinated Loan
agreements include various events of default and contain certain restrictions on the operations of the
business, including restrictions on certain cash payments, including capital expenditures, investments and
the payment of dividends. These loan agreements also include covenants pertaining to interest coverage
and total debt leverage, as well as other customary covenants and events of defaults.

The Company believes it is in compliance with all covenants under the Senior Sccurcd.Loan and
Subordinated Loan agreements and has met atl debt payment obligations. At December 31, 2011,
approximately $40 million of commitments were unused and available under the Revolver,

At December 31, 2011 and 2010, long-term debt and capital lease obligations consisted of the following:

2011 2010
Senior secured credit facility:

Term loan $ 213,387,500 131,506,250
Revolver — 7,000,000
Subordinated loan 101,137,105 40,410,549
Other notes payable — 23,305
Capital lease obligations 6,936,196 5,708,480
321,460,801 184,648,584

Less current portion (3,805,921) (2,924,662)
$ 317,654,880 181,723,922
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Scheduled maturities of fong-term debt and capital lease obligations at December 31, 2011 were as
follows:

Long-term Capital lease

debt obligations

2012 $ 2,150,000 2,130,273
2013 2,150,000 1,890,004
2014 2,150,000 1,669,552
2015 . 2,150,000 1,296,580
2016 204,787,500 426,856
Thereafter 101,137,105 799,864
3 314,524,605 8,213,129

T —
Less interest portion at 5.040% — 8.561% (1,276,933)
Total $__ 6936196

Due to the Amended Agreement, the Company recognized a loss on early retirement of debt of
$4.8 million primarily related to a write-ofT of previously existing deferred finance costs.

According to the senior secured loan agreement dated as of May 24, 2019, the Company was required to
enter into an imterest rate hedging agreement, no later than 90 days following the closing date. The
Company entered into a three year Hedge Agreement on September 1, 2010 which consists of an interest
rate cap on the LIBOR floating rate of the senior secured loans at 1.75% until August3l, 2011,
Additionally the Company entered into a swap from September 1, 2011 to Septernber 1, 2013 effectively
fixing the base rate at 2.32%. The notional amount of the swap is $46.375 million, which is equivalent to
22% of the Term Loan amount borrowed. The fair value of the interest rate swap is $434,083 at
December 31, 2011 and is included as a component of other Jong-term liabilities. The swap is not being
accounted for as an effective hedge and all adjustments to fair value arc recorded to the statement of
operations as interest expense. Interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2011 includes $434,083
of net losses, representing the adjustment of the interest rate swap to fair value.

Income Taxes

Income tax expense (benefit} consisted of the following:

2011 2010
Current:
Federal $ 4,726,167 1,652,164
State 2,812,966 1,244,752
Deferred:
Federal 1,437,172 4,803,175
State {586,359) {156,872)
h 8,389,946 7,543,219
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The difference between the expected tax expense based on the federal statutory rate of 34% is primarily
Texas gross margin tax, which is not based on pre-tax income and income tax attributable to

noncontrolling interest.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arising from temporary differences were as follows:

211 2010
Deferred tax assets:
Accrued expenses and other liabilities for financial
accounting purposes not currently deductible 3 6,486,955 5,776,527
Net operating loss carryforwards and contribution lirnitation 1,194,622 858,471
Flow through entities 9,852,665 4,328,310
Property plant and equipment - — 197,679
Other 1,737,710 151,589
Total deferred tax assets 19,267,952 11,312,576
Deferred tax liabilities:
Property and equipment and intangibles, principaily due to
differences in depreciation and amortization (2,234,567 {(3,546,732)
Goodwill (11,328,149) (11,031,330)
Other (4,541,341) (1,717,088)
* Total deferred tax liabilities  (18,104,057) (16,295,150)
Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) 5 1,163,895 ~ (4,982,574)

The Company fully utilized all net operating loss carryforwards at December 31, 2010 of approximately
$1,285,316. The Company has not recorded a valuation allowance for any of ifs deferred tax assets at
December 31, 2011 as it expects to generate future taxable income sufficient to realize such deferred tax

assets.

Preferred Stock

Under the Company’s Fifth Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as amended, 105,995,979
total shares are authorized to issue, comprised of 57,237,646 shares of common stock and
48,758,333 shares of preferred stock. Preferred stock is issuable in series under terms and cenditions

determined by the Company’s Board of Directors.

(a}  Series A Preferred Stock

During 2011, upon the exercise of warrants by cerfain warrant holders, 375,000 shares of Scries A
Preferred stock were issued at a price of $1 per share for total net proceeds of approximately
$375,000. As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, there were 12,725,000 and 12,350,000 shares,

respectively, of Series A Preferred stock outstanding.

(B}  Series B Preferred Stock

As of December3i, 2011 and 2010, there were 545,000 shares of Series B Preferred stock

outstanding.
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Series B-1 Preferred Stock

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, there were 886,666 shares of Series B-1 Preferred stock
outstanding,

Series C Preferred Stock

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, there were 24,500,962 shares of Series C Preferred stock
outstanding.

Series D Preferred Stock

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, there were 8,333,333 shares of Series D Preferred stock
outstanding.

Dividends

Following the payment by the Company of a cash dividend on June 9, 2011 (the 2011 Dividend) (sce
note 9), Series I Preferred stockholders are entitled to receive cash dividends at the rate of 8% per
annum calculated on the base price per share of $0.95, which are curnulative from June 9, 2011, but
shall be paid only (a) upon a liquidation event; {(b) upon a redemption of the Series D Preferred
stock; or (c) if declared by the Board of Directors of the Company. Accumulations of dividends on
shares of Series I Preferred stock do not bear interest. Series A, Series B, Series B-1 and Series C
Preferred stockholders and common stockholders are entitled to receive dividends, when and if
declared by the Board of Directors out of the Company’s assets legally available. If Series A,
Series C and Series D Preferred shares are outstanding, no dividend may be declared with respect to
Series B or Series B-1 Preferred stock or common stock unless all declared Series A and Series C
Preferred dividends and cumulative Series D Preferred dividends have been paid and a similar
dividend is declared on Series A, Series C and Series D Preferred stock. Cumulative dividends with
respect to all outstanding shares of Preferred Stock were $359,305 and $19,831,208 at December 31,
2011 and 2010, respectively.

Redemption

Each share of Series A, Series C, and Series D Preferred stock is redeemable beginning on
September 1, 2020, if approved by at least 60% of the then-cutstanding shareholders of Series A,
Series C, and Series D Preferred, voting as a single class. Series B and Series B-1 Preferred stock is
redeemable, beginning on September 1, 2012 only subject to and after redemption of the Series A,
Series C, and Series D Preferred Stock, or if approved by at least 60% of the then-outstanding sharcs
of Series A, Series C, and Series D Preferred, voting as a single class, and if also approved by at least
60% of the then-outstanding shares of Series B and Series B-1 Preferred, voting as a single class.

Any such redemption would be payable in three equal annual instailments and the redemption price
per share would be calculated using the sum of the original issue price ($1 per share for Series A and
Series B Prefesred, $1.50 for Series C and Series B-1 Preferrcd, and $3 per share for SeriesD
Preferred) plus all related accrued and unpaid dividends, minus, in the case of Series A, Series C and
Series D Preferred shares only, the amount of the 2011 Dividend paid in respect of such share (but
not less than $0).
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(h) Conversion Rights

(i)

@

Each share of Series A, Series B, Series B-1, Series C and Series D Preferred stock is currently
convertible at any time, at the option of the holder, into the same number of shares of common stock.
Each share of Series A, Series B, Series B-1, Series C, and Series D converts automatically upon
(i) the approval of at least 60% of the sharcs of Scries A, Series B and Series D Preferred stock,
voting as a single class, or (ii} a qualified public offering. Upon such automatic conversion, any
related declared and unpaid dividend becomes due.

Liguidation Preference

Upoen liguidation or dissolution, and after payment or provision for payment of all debts and
liabilities, stockholders of the Company will receive proceeds, to the extent available, as follows:
(a) first, to the holders of Series A, Series C and Series D Preferred stock, amounts per share equal to
(i) the original issue price, plus (i) accrued and unpaid dividends, minus (iii} the amount of the 2011
Dividend paid in respect of such share (but not less than $0); (b) second, to the holders of Series B
and Series B-1 Preferred stock, amounts per share equal to (i) the original issue price, plus
(i1) accrued and unpaid dividends, (c) third, ratably to the holders of commen stock, and Series A,
Series B, Series B-1, Series C, and Series D Preferred stock on an as-if<onverted to common stock
basis until (i) the holders of Series A and Series C Preferred stock shall have received, in total
including the payment under (a) above, an amount per share equal to three (3) times the difference
between (A) the original issue price less (B) any amount by which the amount of the 2011 Dividend
received in respect of such share exceeded the sum of the original issue price plus accrued and
unpaid dividends, and (ii} the holders of Series D Preferred Stock shall have received, in total
including the payment under (a) above, an amount per share equal to two (2) times the difference
between (A) the original issue price less (B) any amount by which the amount of the 2011 Dividend
received in respect of such share exceeded the sum of the original issue price plus accrued and
unpaid dividends; and {d} fourth, to the holders of common stock, any remaining available amounts.

Vofting Righits

Each share of Series A, Series C and Series D Preferred stock issued and outstanding is entitled to
the number of votes equal to the number of shares of common stock inte which it is convertible, For
various defined events, Series A, Series C and Series D Preferred stockholders vote together as a
separate class, In those circumstances, 60% or more of the outstanding Series A, Series C and
Series D Preferred stockholders must approve the event.

Each share of common stock is entitied to onc vote. As long as Series A, Series C and Series D
Preferred stock is outstanding, and except for various defined events, Series A, Series C and Series D
Preferred stockholders vote together with common stockholders as a single ¢lass on an
as-if-converted to common stock basis.

The Series B and Series B-1 Preferred stockholders have no voting rights and their consent is not
required to take any corporate action.

The number of authorized shares outstanding can only be changed upon the affirmative vote of (i) a
majority of the Company’s stockholders, voting together on an as-if-converted to common stock
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basis, and (ii) at least 60% of the Series A, Series C and Series D Preferred stock, voting both as
separate classes and together as a single class.

(k) Other Terms

All stockholders are obligated {o participate in a sale of the Company approved by at least 60% of
the Series A, Series C and Series D Preferred stockholders, voting together as a single class, and the
board of directors.

Series A, Series C and Series D Preferred stockholders have the right to purchase any new securities
on a praportionate basis, and also have the right of over-allotment if any other Series A, Series C or
Series D Preferred shareholder fails to purchase a full proportionate share of the any new securities.
Sertes B Preferred, Series B-1 Preferred, and common stockholders do not have preemptive rights.

The Company and the Series A, Series B, Scries C and Seres D Preferred stockholders have the
right 1o purchase shares from Series B Preferred, Series B-1 Preferred and common stockholders
who wish to transfer their shares to a nonpermitted transferee.

Shareholder Dividend

On June 9, 2011, the Company’s Board of Directors authorized the payment of the 2011 Dividend in the
amount of $137.5 million to all common and preferred stockholders. The 2011 Dividend was paid using
proceeds from the Company’s Term Loan and Additional Subordinated Loan (sec note 6). The Company’s
preferred shares are convertible and the 2011 Dividend was paid ratably to all outstanding shares on an
as-if-converted basis. Of the total 2011 Dividend, $117.4 million and $20.1 million were paid to preferred
and common stockholders, respectively. As of the date of the 2011 Dividend, there were $22.4 millicn of
cumulative dividends related to the Company’s Series A, Series C and Series D Preferred stockholders.
The 2011 Dividend constituted the payment of 21! such cumulative dividends to these stockholders. The
remainder of the 2011 Dividend reduced retained earnings by $11.9 million and additional paid-in capital
by $103.2 million. 1t is the Company’s policy to reduce retained eamings subsequent to the dividend
payment up to the amount of the current deficit in additional paid-in capital.

Stack Compensation Plans

The Company’s 2005 Stock Incentive Pian (the 2005 SIPF) provides stock options and restricted stock
grants, and other share-based incentives, primarily to employees and directors. In March 2009, the
Company authorized an additional 500,000 shares available for grant. In May 2010, the Company
authorized an additional 600,000 shares available for grant. In 2011, the Company authorized an additional
327,487 shares for grant. There were 6,327,487 and 6,000,000 shares available for grant as of
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively, under the amended 2005 SIP.

fa) Stock Option Plan

Awards granted under the 2005 SIP are for incentive stock options with a five year term, an exercise
price at least equal to the market value on the date of grant, and which vest 25% after one year of
service and then monthly in equal amounts over the next three years of service. Income for the years
ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 included $(2,131) and $70,744 respectively, of pretax
compensation costs related to stock options granted. As of December 31, 2011, there was $14,806 of
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total unrecognized compensation costs related to stock options. These costs are expected to be
recognized over a period of approximately four years. At December 31, 2011, the weighted average

remaining contractual life of outstanding options was 2.82 years.

The table below summarizes activity in the Company’s stock option plan:

Year ended December 31

2011 2010
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise exercise
Awards price Awards ~ price
Qutstanding at beginning of
year 1,076,594 § 0.18 1,016,066 § 0.14
Granted 146,987 1.70 352,000 0.26
Exercised (662,430) 0.48 (291,472) 0.15
Canceled (128,250) 0.17 — —
Outstanding at end of year 432,901 0.25 1,076,594 0.18
Awards exercisable at
year-end 78,068 0.21 380,742 0.14

Restricted Stock

The Company issued restricted stock to certain employees in 2010 and in prior years. Restricted
stock awards vest 25% afler one year of service and then monthly in equal amounts over the next
three years of service, subject to continued employment and other plan terms and conditions. Holders
of restricted stock are not atlowed to sell, transfer, pledge, or otherwise encumber their restricted
shares, but such holders are allowed to vote and their shares accrue dividends when and if declared.
The Company may, but is not obligated to, repurchasc vested restricted stock from employees at fair

market value upon termination of the recipient’s employment.

Expense for restricted stock is recognized over the vesting period. The noncash compensation
expense associated with restricted stock awards was $138,471 in 2011 and $31,908 in 2010. The

following table summarizes restricted stock award activity:

2011 2010
QOutstanding balance at beginning of year $ 3,961,558 3,401,558
Granted - 560,000
Exercised — _
Forfeited - ""'
Repurchased — —
Balance at December 31, 2011 3 3,961,558 3,961,558
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The following table summarizes the nonvested restricted stock activity:

2011 2010
Quistanding balance at beginning of year $ 712,753 641,122
Granted — 560,000
Vested (339,420} (488,369)
Forfeited — —
Repurchased — —
Balance at December 31, 2011 $ 373,333 712,753

At December 31, 2011, 3,588,225 of the outstanding restricted shares were vested. As of
December 31, 2011, there was approximately $217,000 of total unrecognized compensation costs
related to restricted stock awards. These costs are expected to be recognized over a remaining
vesting period of approximately four years.

{11) Related-Party Transactions

Participation in the Medicare ESRD program requircs that treatment at a dialysis center be under the
general supervision of a director who is a physician. The Company has cngaged physicians or groups of
physicians to serve as medical directors for each of its centers. The Company has contracts with
approximately 59 individual physicians and physician groups to provide medical director services. The
compensation ol medical directors is negotiated individually and depends in general on local factors such
as competition, the professional qualifications of the physician, their experience and their tasks as well as
the workload at the clinic.

An ESRD patient generally seeks treatment at a dialysis center near his or her home and at which his or her
treating nephrologist has practice privileges. Additionally, many physicians prefer to have their patients
treated at dialysis centers where they or other members of their practice supervise the overall care provided
as medical directors to the centers. As a result, and as is typical in the dialysis industry, the primary referral
source for most of the Company's centers is often the physician or physician group providing medical
director services to the center.

The Company’s medical director agreements generaily include covenants not to compete. Also, when the
Company acquires a center frfom one or more physicians, or where one or more physicians owns interests
in centers as co-owners with the Company, these physicians have agreed to refrain from owning interests
in competing centers within a defined geographic area for various time periods. These apreements not to
compete restrict the physicians from owning or providing medical director services to other dialysis
centers. Most of these agreements not to compete continue for a period of time beyond expiration of the
corresponding medical director agreements.

The Company leases space for 35 of its centers in which physicians and/or employees hold ownership
interests, and subleases space to referring physicians and/or employees at 16 centers. Future minimum
lease payments payabie under these lcases is approximately $23 million at December 31, 2011, exclusive
of maintenance and other costs, and is subject to escalation, For 2011 and 2019, total lease payments under
these leases were approximately $3.9 million and $2.9 million, respectively. On June 21, 2010, the
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Company entered into a ten year corporate office lease agreement with an entity owned by two of its
employees. The lease commenced on August 1, 2011, The future fease payments payable under this lease
are approximately $1.1 million. For 2011, total lease payments under this lease were approximately
$49,678.

The Company's York, Pennsylvania dialysis center is leased from a limited liability partnership in which
the Company has a 60% owncrship interest with the remaining 40% owned by two doctors one of whom
serves as the medical director for that facility. These doctors are also affiliated with the entity that owns a
40% minority ownership in the subsidiary that operates the facility.

Some medical directors and other referring physicians own Series B, Series B-1, Series C and Series D
Preferred stock, which they purchased from the Company. Some of the Company’s medical directors also
own equity interests in entities that operate the Company’s dialysis centers.

The Company believes that the leases and equity purchases are no less favorable to the Company and no
more faveorable to such physicians than would have been obtained in arm's-length bargaining between
independent partics.

The Company has one promissory note obligation owed a noncontrolling interest holder in one of its
subsidiaries. The note obligation was in an original amount of $750,000, of which $0 and $125,000 was
outstanding at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. At December 31, 2011 and 2010, $0 and
$125,000 of the amount outstanding was classified in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet as a
current liability. The note bore interest at 7% and principal was due in six annual installments from May 1,
2006 through May 1, 2011.

During the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Company paid a related party affiliated through
common ownership $461,342 and $461,011, respectively, for the usage of an airplane.

A member of the Company’s board of directors provides consulting services primarily related to regulatory
and reimbursement matters. The total expenses incurred by the Company related to these services were
approximately $100,000 in 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Legislation, Regulations, and Market Conditions

The Company's dialysis operations are subject to cxtensive federal, state, and local govemnment
regulations. These regulations require the Company to meet various standards relating to, among other
things, the operation of dialysis clinics, the provision of quality healthcare for patiems, maintenance of
proper ownership and records, quality assurance programs, and occupational, health, safety and
environmental standards, and the provision of accurate reporting and billing to government and private
payment programs. These laws are extremely complex, and in many instances, providers do not have the
benefit of significant regulatory or judicial interpretation as to how to interpret and apply these laws and
regulations in the normal course of conducting their business. Healthcare providers that do not comply
with these laws and regulations may be subject to civil or criminal penalties, the loss of their licenses, or
restriction in their ability to participate in various federal and state healthcare programs. The Company
endeavors to conduct its business in compliance with applicable laws and regulations.
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The Company's dialysis centers are certified (or are pending certification) by the Centers for Medicare and
Medicaid Services, as is required for the receipt of Medicare payments, and are licensed and permitted by
state authorities.

The Medicarc and Medicaid Fraud and Abuse Amendments of 1977, as amended, generally referred to as
the “anti-kickback statute,” imposes sanctions on these who, among other things, offer, solicit, make or
receive payments in retumn for referral of a Medicare or Medicaid patient for treatment. The federal False
Claims Act imposes penalties on those who, among other things, knowingly present a false or fraudulent
claim for payment 10 the federal govement. Another federal law, commonly referred to as the “Stark
Law,” prohibits physicians, with certain exceptions, from referring Medicare patients to entities with which
the physician has a financial relationship, states have analogous statues. The Health Insurance Portability
and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA), among ather things, includes provisions relating to the privacy
of medical information and prohibits inducements to patients to select a particular healthcare provider.
Congress, states and regulatory agencies continue to consider modifications to federal and state healthcare
laws. The Company’s dialysis centers are also subject to various state hazardous waste and nonhazardous
medical waste disposal laws. !

Sanctions for violations of these statutes could result in the imposition of significant fines and penalties,
repayments for patient services previously billed, expulsion from government healthcare programs, and
other civil or criminal penaltics. Management believes that the Company is in material compliance with
applicable government laws and regulations.

Profit-Sharing Plan

The Company has a savings plan for employees who meet certain criteria that have been established
pursuant to the provisions of Section 401(k) of the Inlernal Revenue Code. The plan allows employees to
contribute a defined portion of their compensation on a tax-deferred basis. Since January 1, 2005, the plan
allows for defined matching Company contributions for eligible employees. The plan was amended
effective January 1, 2006 to allow vesting credit for prior years of service for employees of certain
acquired businesses. For the years ending December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively, the Company made
matching contributions to the plan of $674,250 and $386,328.

The Company may also make discretionary profit-sharing contributions to the plan if approved by the
board of directors. No such contributions were made in 2011 or 2010.

Commitments and Contingencies

The Company may be subject to claims and suits in the ordinary course of business, including contractual
disputes and professional and general liability claims.

On February 15, 2007, the previous owners of the acquired San Antonio facilities brought suit against the
Company. In the lawsuit, the plaintiffs alleged that the Company had failed to pay amounts due to the
sellers of Rencare Ltd. (Rencare) concerning accounts receivable that arose prior to the close of the
Rencare acquisition. A trial was held in November 2008 and judgment was entered in favor of the plaintiff
scller. Both sides appealed, and the Company prevailed in the appeal. The Texas Court of Appeals held
that the plaintiff should receive nothing and directed entry of judgment in the Company’s favor, In
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January of 2012, the Texas Supreme Court declined review, and the judgment in favor of the Company is
now final. The Company incurred legal and other professional fees related to this litigation. These
expenses aggregated $62,791 and $27,208 in 2011 and 2010, respectively. In 2010, the Company reversed
a $1.1 million reserve related to this litigation that it recorded in 2008.

" In February, 2010, and prior to the Company’s acquisition, DCA received a subpoena from the Office of

(15)

Inspector General of the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (OIG) with respect to an
investigation relating to EPQ utilization at certain DCA clinics. The Company has been fully cooperating
with the inquiry and has produced the requested documents to date, While there is no indication of such at
this time, any ncgative findings could result in: (a) substantial monetary penalties; (b} excluding certain
facilities from participation in the Medlcare and Medicaid programs; and (c) the Company incurring legal
expenses and management time, any or all of which could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s
revenues, earnings and cash flows. The Company incurmred legal fees related to this investigation of
$271,377 and $389,741 in 2011 and 2010, respectively, subsequent to its acquisition of DCA.In
December 2010, the Company received a Civil Investigative Demand (CID) from the U.S. Attorney for the
District of New Jersey requesting documents relating to laboratory tests performed on patients of the
Company at two of its North Texas clinics. The Company gathered and produced the required documents
and performed its own review of such documents. While the Company believes that it is not the subject of
the government’s investigation, the outcome of this matter is uncertain and the Company has dsk of an
adverse outcome that could result in substantial monetary penalties.

The Company has obligations to purchase the third-party interests in several of its joint ventures. These
obligations are in the form of put provisions in joint venture apreements, and are exercisable at the
third-party owners’ discretion with some timing limitations, If these put provisions are exercised, the
Company would be required to purchase the third-party owners’ interests at fair market value (see note 4).

The Company rents office space, medical facilities, and medical equipment under lease agreements that are
classified as operating leases for financial reporting purposes. At December 31, 2011, the future minimum
rental payments under noncancelable operating leases with terms of one year or more consist of the
following:

2012 b 10,318,246
2013 9,531,848
2014 8,200,747
2015 7,153,231
2016 6,812,937
Thereafter 10,753,819

Rent expense was $10,976,315 and $8,129,164 for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010,
respectively,

Subsequent Events

The Company evaluated events subsequent to December 31, 2011 and through April 6, 2012, the date on
which the financial staterents were issued.
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KPMG LLP

Suite 3100

717 North Harwood Street
Dallas, TX 75201-6585

Independent Auditors’ Report

The Board of Directors
U.S. Renal Care, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of U.S. Renal Care, Inc. and subsidiaries
({the Company) as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, and the related consolidated statements of operations,
changes in equity, and cash flows for the yecars then ended. These consolidated financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express.an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of
internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal contro] over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
cvaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of U.S. Renal Care, Inc. and subsidiari¢s as of December 31, 2010 and
2009, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles,

KPMe LLP

Datlas, Texas
April 27,2011
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Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable, net of allowances of $13,458,494 and $8,460,232
Inventories

Other receivables

Deferred tax asset

QOther current assets

Total current assets

Property and equipment, net
Amortizable intangibles, net
Trade names

Investment in affiliate
Goodwill

COther long-term assets
Deferred laxes

Total assets
Liabilities and Equity

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Current portion of long-term debt and capital lease obligations
Current portion of related-party notes payable

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt and capital lease obligations, net of current portion
Related-party notes payable

Other long-term liabitities

Deferred tax liability

Preferred stock accrued dividends

Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencics

U.S. Renal Care, Inc. eguity:

Preferred stock A ($0.01 par value. Authorized shares 20,325,000,
issued and putstanding 12,350,000 and 12,350,000 shares)

Preferred stock B and B-1{$0.01 par value. Authorized shares
1,600,000; issued and outstanding 1,431,666 and 1,415,666 shares)

Preferred stock C ($0.01 par value, Authorized shares 25,000,000;
issued and outstanding 24,500,962 and 24,500,962 shares}

Preferred stock D ($0.01 par value. Authorized shares 8,333,333;
issued and outstanding 8,333,333 and 0 shares)

Common stock ($0.01 par value. Authorized shares 53,525,000 and
52,525,000; issued and outstanding 7,074,324 and 7,074,324 shares)

Additional paid-in capital

Retained eamings

Total U.S. Renal Care, Inc. stockholders’ equity

Noncontrolling interests (including redeemable interests with redemption
values of $40,999,428 and $23,600,000)

Total equity
Tolal liabilities and equity

See accompanying notes to consolidated financiat statements.

2010 2009

9,537,107 15,325,357
438,449,631 25,900,874
3,100,193 1,369,198
9,964 938 4,863,513
6,215,457 504,600
2,636,244 1,429,165
79,933,570 49,792,707
46,781,941 19,251,600
27,349,714 12,241,011
859,000 —

—_ 217,610
180,524,762 67,922,354
470,502 238,961

— 906,459
345,919,889 150,570,762
9,045,119 5,675,616
24,248,618 16,485,807
2,924,662 1,447,595
125,000 125,000
36,343,399 23,734,018
181,723,922 62,010,592
— 125,000

440,844 532,282
9,480,942 —_
19,831,208 14,736,426
247, 820,315 101,139,018
123,5¢0 123,500
14,317 14,157
245,010 245,010
83,333 —
70,744 62,229
38,667,471 36,454,222
5,291,320 1,497 694
44,495,695 38,396,812
53,603,879 11,034,932
98,099,574 49,431,744
345,919,889 150,570,762
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Operations
Years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009

2010 2009
Net operating revenues § 237,006,328 153,164,637
QOperating cxpenses:
Patient care costs 154,284,195 08,842,829
General and administrative 20,207,561 15,601,927
Provision for doubtful accounts 6,898,082 4,585,251
Legal cost/scttlement (352,334) 286,647
Transaction costs 9,076,731 460,465
Depreciation and amortization 14,655,411 7,957,301
Total operating expenses 204,770,246 127,734,420
Operating income 32,836,082 25,430,217
Interest expense, net (0,192,698 2,923,456
Income before income taxes 22,643,384 22,506,761
Income tax provision (benefit) 5,826,130 (3,191,190}
Net income 16,817,254 25,607,951
Less net income attributable to noncontrolling interests 13,023,628 10,103,151
Net income attributable to U.S. Renal Care, Inc. $ 3,793,626 15,594,800

See accompanying notes to conselidated financial statements.
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net income

$

Adjustments to reconcile net income te cash provided by
operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Noncash dispute settlernent
Lease agreement intanpible amortization included in rent
Provision for doubtful accounts
Deferred income taxes
Equity investment income
Stock compensation expense
Loss on disposal of fixed assets
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of effect of
acquisitions and divestitures:
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Other receivables
Other current assets
Other long-term assets
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Other noncurrent liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisitions, nct of cash acquired
Sale of property and equipment
Additions of property and equipment, net
Purchase of noncontrolling interests
Investment in affiliate

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from long-term debt borrowings
Payments or long-term debt and related-party notes payable
Deferred financing costs
Proceeds from capital leases
Capilal lease payments
Net proceeds from issuance of preferred stock
Proceeds from issuance of common stock
Repurchase of preferred stock
Contributions from noncontrolling interests
Distributions to noncontrolling interests

Net cash provided by (used in} financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in ¢ash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

2010 2009
16,817,254 25,697,951
14,655,411 7,957,301

450,000 —

31,337 (83,399)
6,898,682 4,585,251
2,929,214 (4,794,034)

(805,801) (17,646)

102,652 55,006
41,711 —
(11,223,175) (9,500,021)
1,065,325 1,046,906
(2,773,018) (529,248)

(326,422) (93,041
(1,049,343) 7,176

585,137 (5.143,239)

331,317 (12,936)
27,730,281 19,176,117

(116,523,175) (386,762)
3,172,324 —
(18,394,835) (7,431,804)
(18,991,500) —
101,335 (200,024)
(150,635,851) (8,018,590)
181,952,491 8,750,000
(73,000,188) (600,224)
(7,938,537) (7,424)
3,260,343 336,118
(1,243,894) (799,901)
25,015,999 316,000
43,648 29,823
— (75,000)
695,750 267,750
(11,668,292) (9,463,932)
117,117,320 (1,246,790)
(5,788,250) 9,910,737
15,325,357 5,414,620
9,537,107 15,325,357

{Continued)
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009

Supplemental cash flow information:
Cash paid for interest 3
Cash paid for taxes

Supplemental disclosures of noncash investing and financing activities:
Accrual of cumulative preferred dividends $
Capita! lease financing

See accompanying notes {o consolidated financial statements,

2010 2009
8,474,494 2,780,464
4,814,265 t,260,000
5,094,782 3,924,249

99,126 463,783
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Pecember 31, 2010 and 2009

(1} Organization and Significant Accounting Policies

(@)

%

fc)

(@

fe)

Organization and Business

1).S. Renal Care, Inc. (the Company) was formed in June 2000 and provides dialysis services to
patients who suffer from chronic kidney failure, also known as end stage renal disease (ESRD).
ESRD is the stage of advanced kidney impairment that requires continual dialysis treatments, or a
kidney transplant, to sustain life. Patients suffering from ESRD generally require dialysis three times
per week for the rest of their lives, The Company primarily provides these services through the
operation of outpatient kidney dialysis clinics. As of December 31, 2010, the Company operated
84 outpatient dialysis clinics in Texas, Arkansas, Georgia, Maryland, New Jersey, Ohio,
Pennsylvania, Virginia and South Carolina. In addition to its outpatient dialysis center operations, as
of December 31, 2010, the Company provides acufe dialysis services through contractual
relationships with 21 hospitals and dialysis to patients in their homes.

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its
wholly owned and majority-owned subsidiaries. All significant intercompany accounts and
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) requires management to make estimates and assumptions. These
estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of
contingent asscts and liabilitics, at the date of the consolidated financial statements, as well as the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.

Although actual results in subsequent periods will differ from these estimates, such estimates are
developed based upon the best information available to management and management’s best
judgments at the time made. The most significant estimates and assumptions involve revenue
recognition, provisions for uncollectible accounts, determination of the fair value of assets and
liabilities acquired, impairments and valuation adjustments, and accounting for income taxes.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash includes cash and highly liquid investments with a maturity of ninety days or less at date of
purchasc. Cash and cash equivalents at times may exceed the FDIC [imits. The Company believes no
significant concentration of credit risk exists with respect to these cash investments.

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Substantially all of the Company’s accounts receivable are related to providing healthcare services to
its patients and are due from the Medicare program, state Medicaid programs, managed care health
plans, commercial insurance companies and individual patients. The estimated provision for doubtful

7 {Continued}
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009

accounts is recorded to the extent it is probable that a portion or all of a patient balance will not be
collected. The Company considers a number of factors in evaluating the collectibility of accounts
receivable including the age of the accounts, collection patterns and any ongoing disputes with
payors.

Amounts Due from Third-Party Payors

The amount due from third-party payors, which is included in other receivabies, represents balances
owed to the Company by the Medicare program for rcimbursable bad debts related to Medicare
beneficiaries. These reimbursements are part of the Company’s annual cost report filings and as
such, the actual payments may be delayed or subsequently adjusted pending review and audit by the
Medicare program fiscal intermedianes.

Amounts Due from Drug Rebates

The amount due from drug rebates, which is included in other receivables, represents balances owed
to the Company by various pharmaceutical vendors for Epogen (EPO), vitamin D and iron. During
2010 and 2009, the Company had incentive contracts that reduced the invoice price based upon
volume purchased. This.incentive was payable to the Company on a quarterly basis. In addition,
there was an additional annual incentive based on volume that was payable to the Company
annually.

Inventories

Inventories consist primarily of pharmaceunticals and dialysis-related supplics and are stated at the
lower of cost or market. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out method. Market is determined
on the basis of estimated realizable values.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation. Property under capital lease
agreements is stated at the present value of minimum lease payments less accumulated depreciation.
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets
or the term of the leasc as appropriate. The general range of useful lives is as follows:

Buildings 39 years
Leasehold improvements Life of lcase
Fumiture and equipment 5 years
Computers 3 years

Capital lease assets are amortized over the shorter of the lease term or the estimated useful life of the
improvement. Property and equipment acquired in acquisitions is recorded at fair value. The cost of
improvements that extend asset lives is capitalized. Other repairs and maintenance charges arc
expensed as incurred. '

2 (Continued)
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSYDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009

Fully depreciated assets are retained in property and depreciation accounts until they are removed
from service. When sold or otherwise disposed of, assets and related depreciation are removed from
the accounts and the net amounts, less proceeds from disposal, are included in income.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company’s primary concentration of credit risk exists within accounts receivable, which consist
of amounts owed by various govemmental agencies, insurance compantes, and private paticnts.
Receivables from the Medicare program and various state Medicaid programs were approximately
57% and 55% of gross accounts receivable at December31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
Concentration of credit risk relating to remaining accounts receivable is limited to some extent by the
diversity of the number of patients and payors.

Amortizable Intangible Assets

Amortizable intangible assets and liabilities include noncompetition and similar agreements, lease
agrecments, and deferred debt issuance costs. Noncompetition and similar agreements are amortized
over the terms'(five to ten years) of the agreements using the straight-line method. Lease agreement
intangibles for favorable and unfavorable leases are amortized on a straight-line basis over the term

of the lease.

Deferred debt issuance costs are amortized using the effective interest method as an adjustment to
interest expense over the term of the related debt. In the case of debt repayments prior to the end of
the term, the Company adjusts the amount of deferred financing costs at the date of repayment,
which is included in interest expense.

Goodwill

Goodwill is recorded when the consideration paid for an acquisition exceeds the fair value of net
tangible assets and identifiable intangible assets acquired. Goodwill and other indefinite-lived
intangible assets are not amortized, but are instead tested for impairment at least annually. The
annual evaluation for 2010 and 2009 resulted in no impairment charges.

Impairment of Long-Lived and Indefinite-Lived Assets

The Company evaluates long lived-assets and identifiable intangibles for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that an asset’s carrying amount may not be recoverable
or the useful life has changed. When undiscounted future cash flows are not expected to be sufficient
to recover an asset’s carrying amount, a loss is recognized and the asset is written down to its fair

value,

9 {Continued)
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statecments
December 31, 2010 and 2009

Falr Value of Financial Instruments

The following table details the Company’s financial instruments where the carrying value and fair
value differ (amounts in millions):

Fair valuc at reporting date vsing

Quoted
prices
in active Significant Significant
Carrying markets for other other
value as of identical observable unobservable
December 31, items inputs inputs
Financial insirument 2010 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Senior secured credit
facility 5 178,917 — — 189,632

The estimates of the fair value of the Company’s senior secured credit facility are based upon a
discounted present value analysis of future cash flows. Due to the existing uncertainty in the capital
and credit markets, the actual rates that would be obtained 1o borrow under similar conditions could
materially differ from the estimates the Company has used.

The fair value of the interest rate swaps are determined using quoted market prices for similar swap
agreements and were nominal at December 31, 2010.

U.S. GAAP describes a fair value hierarchy based on three levels of inputs, of which the first two are
considered observable and the last unobservable, that may be used to measure fair value. The three
levels of inputs are as follows:

. Level 1 — Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.

) Level 2 — Inputs other than Level 1 that are observable, either directly or indirectly, such as
quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are not active; or
other inputs that arc observable or can be corroborated by observable market data for
substantially the full term of the assets or liabilitics.

. Level 3 — Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and are

significant to the fair value of the assets or liabilities,

For the Company’s other financial instruments, including the Company's cash and cash equivalents,
accounts receivable, accounts payable, and accrued expenses the Company estimatesthe carrying
amounts approximale fair value due to their shori-term maturity.

0 (Continued)
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009

Net Operating Revenues and Accounts Receivable

Net operating revenue is recognized in the period services are provided. Revenue consists primarily
of reimbursements from Medicare, Medicaid and commercial health plans for dialysis services
provided to patients. A usual and customary fee schedule is maintained for the Company's dialysis
treatment and other patient services. However, actual collected revenue is normally at a discount to
this fee schedule. Contractual adjustments rcpresent the differences between amounts billed for
services and amounts paid by third-party payors.

The Company’s dialysis facilities are certified to participate in the Medicare program. Revenues
reimbursed by the Medicare program are recognized primarily on a prospective payment system for
dialysis services (ESRD Program). Prior to January 2011, dialysis providers operating under the
Medicare ESRD program received a composite payment rate to cover routine dialysis treatments and
certain supplies. There was a separate payment for laboratory testing and phannmaceuticals such as
EPQO, vitamin D and iron supplements that were not included in the composite rate. However,
beginning Janvary 2011, Medicare implemented a new payment system in which all ESRD payments
are now made under a single bundled payment rate that provides for an annual inflation adjustment
based upon a market basket index, less a productivity improvement factor. The bundied payment rate
provides a fixed rate to encompass all goods and services provided during the dialysis treatment,
including pharmaceuticals that were historically separately reimbursed to the dialysis providers.
Most lab services that were previously paid directly fo laboratories are also included in the new
payment bundle. Now, as a result of the bundled payment system, the dialysis providers are at risk of
variations in pharmaceutical utilization since reimbursement is sei at a fixed average reimbursement
rate.

The initial 2011 bundled payment rate includes reductions of 2% and 0.8%, respectively, to conform
to the provisions of MIPPA and to establish budget neutrality. Further, there is a 5.94% reduction
tied to an expanded list of case mix adjustors which can be camed back upon the presence of these
certain patient characteristics and co-morbidities at the time of treatment. Historically, dialysis
providers have not had to track certain of the case-mix adjustors and this may be difficult to capture
initially. There are also other provisions which may impact reimbursement including an outlier
adjustment and a low volume facility adjustment.

As of November 1, 2010, dialysis providers were required to make an election as to which clinics
would be fully reimbursed as of January t, 2011 under the new bundled payment system or phased
into the new system over a four year period. The Company elected to have approximately 72% of its
clinics be reimbursed fully under the new bundled reimbursement system beginning January 1, 2011,
Once this election was made, it may not be revoked. All clinics that receive Medicare centification
subsequent to November I, 2010 will be reimbursed under the new bundled reimbursement system.
Beginning in 2012, dialysis providers will also be subject to a 2% annual Medicare payment
withholding that can be earned back by facilities that meet certain defined clinical performance
standards,

11 (Continued)
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009

Medicare presently pays 80% of the established payment rates for dialysis treatment fumished to
patients. The remaining 20% may be paid by Medicaid if the patient is eligible, from private
insurance funds, or from the patient’s personal funds. If there is no secondary payor to cover the
remaining 20%, and if the Company demonstrates prescribed collection efforts, Medicare may
reimburse the Company for part of that balance as part of the Company’s annual cost report filings
subject 10 individual center profitability. As a result, billing and collection of Medicarc bad debt
claims are often delayed significantly, and final payment is subject to audit.

Medicaid programs are administered by state govemments and are partially funded by the federal
government. In addition to providing primary coverage for patients whose income and assets fall
below state defined levels and are otherwise insured, Medicaid serves as a supplemental insurance
program for the co-insurance portion not paid by Medicare. Medicaid reimbursement varies by state
but is typically reimbursed pursuant to a prospective payment system for dialysis services rendered.

Revenues associated with commercial health plans are estimated based upon patient-specific
contractual terms between the Company and health plans for the patients with which the Company
has formal agrcements, upon commercial health plan coverage terms if known or otherwise upon
historical collection experience adjusted for refund and payment adjustment trends. Commercial
revenue recognition involves substantial judgment. With several commercial insurers, the Company
has multiple contracts with varying payment arrangements, and these contracts may include only a
subset of the Company’s dialysis centers. In addition, for services provided by noncontracted
centers, final collection may require specific negotiation of a payment amount. Generally, payments
for a dialysis treatment from commercial payors are greater than the corresponding amounts received
from Medicare and Medicaid.

Share-Based Compensation

The Company recognizes compensation expense, for all share-based awards, including stock option
grants to employees, using a fair-value measurement method. Under the fair-value method, the
estimated fair value of awards that are expected to vest is recognized over the requisite service
period, which is generally the vesting period.

Prior to 2006, the Company accounted for its equity compensation using the intrinsic value-based
method of accounting. The Company did not recognize compensation expense before 2006 because
the exercise price of stock options granted was not less than the estimated value of the underlying
stock on the date of grant. The Company continues to account for equity compensation based shares
granted prior to 2006 using the intrinsic value method until such time as shares are modified,
canceled, or repurchased.

12 (Continued)
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T.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Conseclidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009

The Company estimates the fair value of awards on the date of grant, using the Black-Scholes eption
pricing model. The weighted average fair value of options granted during the ycars cnded
December 31, 2010 and 2009 are calculated based on the following assumptions: expected volatility
of 22%, expected dividend yield of 0%, expected life of 3.75 years, and risk-free interest rates of
1.08% to 1.97%. Expected volatility was derived using data drawn from two public dialysis
companies. The expected life was computed utilizing the simplified method as permitted by the
Securities and Exchange Commission’s Stafl’ Accounting Bulletin, Share Based Payment. The
expected forfeiture rate is 20% based upon a review of the Company’s recent history and
expectations as segregated between the Company’s board of directors, senior officers, and other
grantees. The risk-free interest rate is based on the approximate average yield on five year United
States Treasury Bonds as of the date of grant. There were 352,000 and 195,000 options granted
during the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively (see note 9).

Noncontrolling Interest

In December2007, the FASB issued an accounting standard, Noncontrolling Interests in
Consolidated Financial Statements (ASC 810), which gives guidance on the presentation and
disclosure of noncontrelling interests (previously known as minority interests) of consclidated
subsidiaries. This statement requires the noncontrolling interest to be included in the equity scetion
of the balance sheet, requires disclosure on the face of the consolidated statement of operations of the
amounts of consolidated net income attributable to the consolidated parent and the noncontrolling
interest, and expands disclosures.

Consolidated income (loss) is reduced (increased) by the proportionate amount of income or loss
accruing tc noncontrolling interests. Noncontrolling interest represents the equity interest of
third-party owners in consolidated entities that are not wholly owned.

Income Taxes

Income faxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to the differences between the
financial statement carrying amount of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases
and operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and labilities are measured using
enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years which those temporary differences
are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and labilities of a change in
tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date. A valuation
allowance is established when it is more likely than not that the deferred tax assets will not be
realized,

i3 {Continued)
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2010 and 2009

The Company adopted the accounting standard update ASC 740, Accounting for Uncertainty in
Income Taxes, on January 1, 2009, Previously, the Company had accounted for tax contingencies
under ASC 450, Accounting for Contingencies. As required by ASC 740, the Company recognizes
the financial statement benefit of a tax position only after determining that the relevant tax authority
would more likely than not sustain the position following an audit. For tax positions meeting the
more-likely than-not threshold, the amount recognized in the financial statements is the largest
benefit that has a greater than 50% likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement with the
relevant tax authority. At the adoption date, the Company applied ASC 740 to all tax positions for
which the statue of limitations remained open. As a result of the implementation of ASC 740, the
Company did not recognize an increase in the liability for unrecognized tax benefits. The amount of
unrecognized tax benefits as of December 31, 2010 and 2009 was $0.

The Company is subject to income taxes in the U.S, federal jurisdiction and various states, Tax
regulations within each jurisdiction are subject to the interpretation of the related tax laws and
regulations and require significant judgment to apply. The Company is no longer subject to
U.S. federal or state or local income tax examinations by tax authorities for the years before 2006.In
2010,th e Internal Revenue Service finalized its examination of the Company’s 2007 U.S. income tax
returns. The resolution of this examination resulted in no additional tax payment.

The Company recognizes interest accrued related to unrecognized tax benefits in interest cxpense
and penalties in operaling expenses for all periods presented.

The Company’s consolidated LLC and L.P. subsidiaries do not incur federal income taxes. Instead,
their eamnings and losses are included in the returns of, and taxed directly to, the members and
partners of these subsidiaries.

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

The Company has entered into an interest rate swap agreement as a means of hedging its exposure to

and volatility from variable-based interest rate change. These agreements are designed as cash flow
hedges and are not held for trading or speculative purposes. The swap agreement has the economic
effect of converting portions of the Company’s variable rate debt to fixed rates.

In 2010, the Company adopted the provisions of FASB Statement No. 161, Disclosures about
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Aciivities (included in FASB ASC Topic 815, Derivatives and
Hedgingj, which amends the disclosure requirements for derivative instruments and hedging
activities. The amended disclosure require entities to provide information to enable users of the
financial statements to understand how and why an entity uses derivative instruments, how
derivative instruments and related hedged items are accounted for, and how derivative instruments
are related hedged items affect an entity’s financial position, financial performance, and cash flows
{see note 6).
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U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009

Recently Issued Accounting Proncuncements

Effective January 1, 2009, the Company adopted the provisions of FASB ASC 820 relating to fair
value measurements and disclosures with respect to nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities
that are not permitted or required to be measured at fair value on a recurring basis. The adoption had
no impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

Although the adoption of FASB ASC 820 had no direct impact on the Company’s consclidated
financial statements, additional disclosures are required under FASB ASC 820 indicating the fair
value hierarchy of the valuation techniques utilized to determine fair value measures. The Company
has included appropniate disclosures herein,

Effective December 31, 2009, the Company adopted FASB ASC 8535, Subsequent Events, which
establishes principles and requirements for subsequent events and applies to accounting for and
disclosure of subsequent evenis not addressed in other applicable generally accepted accounting
principles. The Company evaluated events subsequent to December 31, 2010 and through April 27,
2011, the date on which the financial statements were issued.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2009 consolidated financial statement balances to
conform with the 2010 presentation. Such reclassifications have no effect on eamings or
stockholders’ equity.

Fixed Assets
At December 31, 2010 and 2009, property and equipment consists of the following:

2010 2009

Facility equipment, furniture, and information systems $ 42,891,347 22,202,152
Land and buildings 6,747,940 —_
Leasehold improvements 21,493,319 9,731,329
New center construction in progress 778,865 2,829,967
71,911,471 34,763,448

[.ess accumulated depreciation and amortization (25,129,530) (15,511,848)
$ 46,781,941 19,251,600

Year ended December 31

2010 2009
Depreciation and amortization expense on property
and equipment $ 9,304,459 5,355,638
15 {Continued)
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Net book value of equipment under capital leases at December 31 was as follows:

2010 2009
Equipment $ 10,671,572 7,312,321
Less accumulated depreciation {6,099,837) (4,092,015)
$ 4,571,735 3,220,306

(3) Acquisitions/Disposition
The Company has acquired various dialysis businesses, as described further below. The assets and
liabilities for all acquisitions were recorded at their estimated fair values as of the effective acquisition date
based upon the best available information.

Amortizable intangible assels consist primarily of noncompete agreements. Goodwill is recorded when the
consideration paid for an acquisition exceeds the fair value of identifiable net tangible assets and

identifiable intangible assets acquired.

The results of operations for the acquired companies are included in the Company’s financial statements
beginning on the effective acquisition date.

{(a) Dialysis Corporation of America, Inc.Ac quisition

On June 3, 2010, the Company acquired all the outstanding common shares of Dialysis Corporation
of America, Inc. (DCA) for $11.25 per share. DCA provides outpatient dialysis, in-home dialysis and
acute services in Georgia, Maryland, New Jersey, Chio, Pennsylvania, Virginia and South Carolina,
The results of operations for DCA are included in the Company’s financial statements beginning
June 1, 2010,

The DCA acquisition cost of approximately $110 million and costs related thereto were funded from
the proceeds of the Company’s senior sccured and subordinated loan agreements (see note 6} and the
issuance of Series D Preferred Stock (see note 8). All purchase accounting adjustments are final
except for certain deferred tax calculations primarily related to flow-through entitics.

16 (Continued)
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The estimated fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date are as

follows:

Assets:
Cash
Net accounts receivable
Inventory
Other receivables
Other current assets

Total current assets

Property and equipment, net
Amortizable intangibles, net
Goodwill

Other long-term assets

Total assets
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Total current liabilities

Long-term debt
Other long-term liabilities
Deferred tax liability

Total liabilities

Equity:

Minority interest
Total equity

17

1,294,958
17,072,334
2,684,480
1,280,382

2,257,895

24,590,049

20,526,500
12,957,381
113,828,342
863,600

172,765,872

4,958,871
6,177,187

11,136,058

9,586,971
(326,883)
3,808,826

24,204,972

38,310,500

38,310,900
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San Antonic

On July 1, 2010, the Company purchased an additional 40% interest in one of its joint venture
entities which it previously had a 40% noncontrolling ownership interest for $7.2 million. The
acquisition was funded by borrowing under the Company’s revolving credit facility (see note 6} and
cash on hand. The consolidated results of operation for this facility are included in the Company’s
financial statements beginning July 1, 2010. Previously, the Company’s investment was recorded
using the equity method of accounting. The investment balance at June 30, 2010 was approximately
$922,000.

Assets:
Cash 3 671,969
Net accounts receivable 1,151,930
Inventory 22,726
Other receivables 7,724
Other current assets 24,742
Total current assets 1,879,091
Property and equipment, net 974,832
Goodwill 8,426,146
Total assets $ 11,280,069
Liabilities:
Accounts payable b 25,983
Accrued expenses 145,888
Total liabilities $ 171,871
Equity:
Minority interest $ 2,986,200
Total equity L 2,986,200
December Acquisition

On December 1, 2010, the Company acquired two outpatient dialysis clinics, an acute program and a
home program (December Acquisition). This transaction included purchasing a 51% majority
interest in the assets of one of the clinics and a 100% interest in the assets of the other clinic. The
results of operations for these services are included in the Company's financial statements beginning
December 1, 2010. The December Acquisition cost of approximately $1 million was funded from
operating cash flow.

18 (Continued)
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The estimated fair values of the assets acquired at the acquisition date are as follows:

Assets:
Inventory $ 89,114
Other current assets 26,017
Fixed asscts 416,000
Goodwill 869,546
Total assets $ 1,400,677
Liabilities:
Accrued expenses $ 357,713

o

Total liabilities 357,713

(d) Medicore Disposition

On November 30, 2010, the Company sold 100% of the net assets of its medical products business
that was acquired in the DCA acquisition. The Company sold, assigned and transferred certain assets
for approximately $535,000 resulting in no gain or loss.

Noncontrolling Interests

The Company engages in the purchase and sale of equity interests with respect to its consolidated
subsidiaries that do not result in a change of control. These transactions are accounted for as equity
transactions, as they are undertaken among the Company, its consolidated subsidiaries, and noncontrolling
interests, and their cash flow effect is classified within financing activities.

As of December 31, 2010, the Company was the majority owner in 48 joint ventures. Of the noncontrolling
interests in those 48 joint ventures, 17 have put rights generally at fair value as defined in the agreement
that are either currently cxercisable or become exercisable at various future dates. The carrying amount of
these redeemable noncontrolling interests totaled $7.3 million and $3.8 million as compared to redemption
values of $41.0 million and $23.6 million at December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. The redemption
value is calculated at the current value of the put payment that would be required to redeem the interest if
the put is exercised regardless of whether such interest is currently exercisable. As of December 31, 2010,
$7.0 million of put rights are currently exercisable and the remaining $34.0 million become exercisable at
future dates.

During the year, there were nine time-based puts exercised in the Company’s South Texas region and one
in the San Antonio region. The Company paid $18.4 million relating to these puts. As a result of the DCA
acquisition, there was one change of contrel put that was partially exercised at one clinic for $600,000.
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(5) Intangible Assets
At December 31, 2010 and 2009, amortizable intangible assets consisted of the following:

2010 2009
Noncompetition agreements $ 31,836,273 20,132,544
Lease agreements 580,106 76,221
Deferred debt issuance costs 7,939,537 1,910,489
Licenses 359,000 —
40,714,916 22,119,254
Less accumulated amortization (13,365,202) (9,878,243)
Net amortizable intangible assets 3 27.349,714 12,241,011

Amortizable intangible liabilities, which are included in other long-term liabilities, consisted of lease
agreements as follows:

2010 2009
Lease agreements $ 1,089,293 1,089,293
Less accumulated amortization {648,449) (556,311)
Net amortizable intangible assets L 3 440,844 532,982

Amortization of intangible assets and liabilities over the next five years is as follows:

Deferred debt

Noncompetition issuance Lease

_agreements costs agreements Licenses
2011 $ 4,564,626 1,323,090 396,359 71,800
2012 4,492 939 1,323,090 307,657 71,800
2013 448,857 1,323,090 227,206 71,800
2014 4,322.211 1,323,090 183,663 71,800
2015 1,281,681 1,323,090 149,418 29917
Changes in the value of goodwill were as follows:

2010 2009
Balance at January ] $ 67,922,354 67,559,887
Goodwill adjustments (521,626) 362,467
Goodwill acquired 123,124,034 —
Balance at December 31 § 190,524,762 67,922,354
20 (Continued)
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The fair value of the identifiable intangibles acquired and the amount of goodwill recorded as a result of
acquisitions are determined based upon independent third-party valuations and the Company’s estimates.
Amortization expense for the Company’s intangible assets relates to the value associated with the
noncompete and lease agreements. The noncompete intangible assets are amortized over the term of the
noncompete agreements executed in connection with the acquisition transactions or the medical
agreements entered into with certain physicians and the lease agreement intangibles are amortized over the
term of the lease.

Long-Term Debt

On June 3, 2010, the Company entered into a new senior credit agreement that consists of: (a) a
$132.5 million senior secured term loan (Term Loan) and (b) a $40 million senior securcd revolving credit
facility (Revolver). Also on June 3, 2010, the Company entered into a $40 million senior subordinated loan
agreement (the Subordinated Loan). The proceeds of the Term Loan and the Subordinated Loan along with
available cash on hand were utilized to: (a) pay off the Company’s existing CIT Term Loan B and
Revolver (which bore interest at 4.25% at December 31, 2009), (b) pay expenses and fees associated with
the new senior secured and subordinated loan agreements, and (c) to fund the DCA acquisition (see note 3)
including cost and fees related thereto.

Borrowings under the Term Loan and Revolver (collectively Senior Secured Loans) bear interest based
upon a spread in excess of LIBOR (floor of 1.75%) or the U.S. prime rate, as the benchmark, as adjusted
based upon the Company’s lcverage ratio. The new Senior Secured Loan also provides for an annual
unused commitment fee of 0.75% based upon the average revolving credit commitment less outstanding
borrowings on the Revolver and letters of credit issued. As of December 31, 2010, borrowings under the
Senior Secured Loans bore interest at 6.25%. The Subordinated Loan accrues interest at 13.25% with
11.25% paid in cash per annum.The remain ing 2% of interest on the Subordinated Loan (PIK interest) will
be capitalized and accrued for until it becomes due upon the maturity of the loan.

The Term Loan requires quarterly principal payments of $331,250 in each year from 2011 through 2015
with the balance of $124,881,250 due in 2016. The Subordinated Loan requires a one- time payment of
$40 million principal balance due in 2017, in addition to outstanding PIK Interest.

The Revolver, Term Loan, and Subordinated Loan mature on June 2, 2015, June 2, 2016 and June 2, 2017,
respectively. The subordinated loan agreement provides for prepayment penalties if it is repaid within the
first four years subsequent to June 3, 2010.

Commencing with the fiscal year ended December3!, 2011, the Company is required to prepay its
outstanding Senior Secured Loan balances with 50% of excess cash flow as defined in the credit
agreement. The Company is also required to prepay senior secured loan balances with: {a) 50% of the net
proceeds of certain capital contributions as defined in the credit agreement, (b) 100% of the proceeds of
asset sales or the proceeds received from casunalty event settlements that are not reinvested or permitted
pursuant to the terms of the credit agreement, and (¢} 100% of the proceeds of indebtedness that is incurred
and not permitied pursuant to the credit agreement. Following satisfaction of any prepayment under the
Senior Secured Loans, the Company is required to prepay the Subordinated Loan balances with 100% of
the proceeds of asset sales or the proceeds received from a casualty event settlement that are not reinvested
or permitted pursuant to the terms of the credit agreement.
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The Senior Secured Loans and the Subordinated Loan are guaranteed, on a joint and several basis, by each
of the Company’s subsidiaries. Borrowings under the credit agreements are coilateralized by most of the
Company’s asscts, including accounts receivable, inventory, and fixed assets not subject to permitted
capital leases. The Subordinated Loan is subordinated to the repayment of the Senior Secured Loans. The
Senior Secured and Subordinated Loan agreements include various events of default and contain certain
restrictions on the operations of the business, including restrictions on certain cash payments, including
capital expenditures, investments and the payment of dividends. These loan agreements also include
covenants pertaining to fixed charge coverage, interest coverage, and total debt leverage, as well as other
customary covenants and events of defaults,

The Company believes it is in compliance with all covenants under the Senior Secured Loan and
Subordinated Loan agreements and has met all debt payment obligations, At December 31, 2010,
approximately $33.0 million was unused and available under the Revolver.

At December 31, 2010 and 2009, long-term debt and capital lease obligations consisted of the following:

2010 2009
Senior secured credit facility:
CIT term loan B h) — 34,873,000
CIT revolver — 24,968,762
Term loan 131,506,250 —_
Revolver 7,000,000 —
Subordinated loan 40,410,549 —
Other notes payable
Capital lease obligations 23,305 23,532
5,708,480 3,592,893
Less current portion 184,648,584 63,458,187
(2,924,662) (1,447,595}
$ 181,723,922 62,010,592
22 (Continued)

Attachment 39 253




[

U.S. RENAL CARE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2010 and 2009

Scheduled maturities of long-term debt and capital lease obligations at December31, 2010 were as
follows:

Long-term Capital lease
debt obligations
2011 $ 1,346,461 1,964,299
20]2 1,326,844 1,402,897
2013 1,325,000 1,208,797
2014 1,325,000 088,427
2015 8,325,000 486,895
Thereafter 165,291,799 809,975
$ 178,940,104 6,861,290
Less interest portion at 5.719% — 8.561% {1,152,810)
Total 3 5,708,430

According to the senior secured loan agreement, the Company was required to enter into an interest rate
hedging agreement, no later than 90 days following the clesing date. The Company entered into a three
year Hedge Agreement on September 1, 2010 which consists of an interest rate cap on the LIBOR floating
rate of the senior secured loans at 1.75% until August 31, 2011. Additionally the Company entered into a
swap from September 1, 2011 to September 1, 2013 effectively fixing the base rate at 2.32%. The notional
amount of the swap is $46.375 million, which is equivalent to 35% of the Term Loan amount borrowed.
The fair values of the interest rate cap and swap are insignificant at December 31, 2010 and are not being
accounted for as an effective hedge resulting in no adjustment to fair value being recorded to the statement
of operations as interest expense.

Income Taxes

Income tax expense (benefit} consisted of the following:

2010 2009
Current:
Federal $ 1,652,164 678,126
State 1,244,752 924,717
Deferred:
Federal 3,086,086 (4,783,401)
State (156,872) (10,632)
$ 5,826,130 (3,191,190)

The difference between the expected tax expense based on the federal statutory rate of 34% is primarily
Texas gross margin tax, which is not based on pre-tax income and income tax attributable lo
nonconfrelling interest.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities arising from temporary differences were as follows:

Deferred tax assets:
Accrued expenses and other liabilities for financial
accounting purposes not currently deductible
Net operating ioss carrylorwards and contribution limitation
Flow through entities
Property plant and equipment
Other

Total deferred tax assets

Deferred tax liabilities:
Property and equipment and intangibles, principally due to
differences in depreciation and amoertization
Goodwill

Total deferred tax hiabilities
Net deferred tax assets (liabilities)

The valuation allowance consisted of the following:

Balance at January 1
Increase (decrease) during the year

Balance at December 31

2010 2009
5,776,527 765,594
858,471 1,345,244
4,328,310 3,671,996
197,679 236,104
151,589 332,312
11,312,576 6,351,250
(3,546,732) (25,657)
(11,031,330) (4,514,534)
(14,578,062) (4,540,191)
(3,265,486) 1,811,059

2010 2009
— 6,149,048
— (6,149,048)

The Company had net operating loss cammyforwards of approximately $205,000 as of December 31, 2009,
which were utilized in 2010. The Company has not recorded a valuation allowance for any of its deferred
tax assets at December 31, 2010 as it expects to generate future taxable income sufficient to realize such

deferred tax assets.

Preferred Stock

Under the Company’s Third Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, 108,783,333 total shares
are authorized to issue, comprising 53,525,000 shares of common stock and 55,258,333 shares of preferred
stock. Preferred stock is issuable in series under terms and conditions determined by the Company’s board

of directors.

{a} Series A Preferred Stock

As of December 31, 2009 and 2010, there were 12,350,000 shares of Series A Preferred qutstanding.

24
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Series B Preferred Stock

The Series B redeemable convertible preferred stock (Series B Preferred) shares were sold, primarily
to related-party physicians, at an original issue price of $1 per share. During 2010 and 2009, the
Company issued 16,000 shares to a related-party physician at a price of $1.00 per share. As of
December 31, 2010 and 2009, there were 545,000 and 529,000 shares, respectively, of Serigs B
Preferred outstanding.

Series B-1 Preferred Stock
As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, there were 886,666 shares of Series B-1 Preferred outstanding.

Series C Preferred Stock
As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, there were 24,500,962 shares of Series C Preferred outstanding,

Series D Preferred Stock

During 2010, 8,333,333 shares of Preferred D Stock were issued at a price of §3 per share for total
net proceeds of approximately $25.0 million in connection with the acquisition of DCA. As of
December 31, 2010, there were 8,333,333 shares of Series D Preferred outstanding.

Dividends

Series A Preferred, Series C Preferred, and Series I) Preferred stockholders are entitled to reccive
cash dividends at the rate of 8% per annum calculated on the original issue prices. Dividends are
cumulative from the date of original issuance and accrue quarterly. Accumulations of dividends on
shares of Series A, Series C and Series D Preferred stock de not bear interest and are payable
generally at the time of a liquidating event as defined in the agreement. Series B Preferred,
Series B-1 Preferred, and common stockholders are entitled to receive dividends, when and if
declared by the board of directors out of the Company’s assets legally available therefore, so long as
all accrued dividends on then outstanding Series A, Scrics C, and Series D Preferred stock have been
paid or declared and set apart.

Redemption

Each share of Series A, Series C, and Series D Preferred stock is redeemable beginning on
September 1, 2020, if approved by 60% of the then-outstanding shareholders of Series A, Series C,
and Series D Preferred. Serics B and Series B-1 Preferred stock is redeemable, beginning on
September 1, 2012 only subject to and after redemption of the Series A, Series C, and Serics D
Preferred Stock and if approved by 60% of the then-outstanding shares of Series A, Series C, and
Series D Preferved, voting as a single class, and if also approved by 60% of the then-outstanding
shares of Series B and Series B-1 Preferred, voting as a single class.

Any such redemption would be payable in three equal annual instaliments calculated using the sum
of the original issue prices (31 per share for Series A,Seri es C, and Series I Preferred, and $1.50 for
Series C and Series B-1 Preferred) plus all related accrued and unpaid dividends.
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Conversion Rights

Each share of Series A, Series B, Series B-1, Series C and Series D Preferred stock is convertible at
any time, at the option of the holder, into the same number of shares of common stock. Each share of
Series A, Series B, Series B-1, Series C, and Series D converts automatically upon a qualified public
offering. Upon such automatic conversion, any related declared and unpaid dividend becomes due.

Liquidation Preference

Upon liquidation or dissolution, and after payment or provision for payment of all debts and
liabilities, stockholders of the Company will receive proceeds, to the extent available, as follows:
(a) first, to the holders of Series A, Series C and Series I» Preferred Stock, amounis per share equal
to their original share purchase prices, plus accrucd and unpaid dividends (as adjusted for past
dividends, combinations, splits, recapitalizations, and the like); (b) second, to the holders of Series B
and Series B-1 Preferred Stock, amounts per share equal to their original share purchase prices, plus
any accrued and unpaid dividends, (as adjusted for past dividends, combinations, splits,
recapitalizations, and the like); (c) third, ratably to the holders of Common Stock, and Series A
Preferred Stock, Series C Prefemred Stock and Serics D Preferred Stock on an as-if converted to
Common Stock basis until the holders of Series A, Series C and Serics D Preferred Stock shall have
received, in total including the payment under (a) above, an amount equal to three (3) times the
Series A and Series C and two (2) times the Series D original issue price, respectively;, and
(d) fourth, to the helders of Common Stock, any remaining available amounts.

Voting Rights

Each share of Series A, Series C and Series D Preferred stock issued and outstanding is entitled to
the number of votes equal to the number of shares of common stock into which it is convertible. For
various defined events, Series A, Series C and Series D Preferred stockholders votc together as a
separate class. In those circumstances, 60% or more of the outstanding Series A, Series C and
Series D Preferred stockholders must approve the event.

Each share of common stock is entitled one vote. As long as Scrics A, Series C and Serjes D
Preferred stock is outstanding, and except for various defined events, Series A,S eries C and Series D
Preferred stockholders vote together with common stockholders as a single class on an
as-if-converted to common stock bass.

The Series B and Series B-1 Preferred stockholders have no voting rights and their consent is not
required to take any corporate action.

A majority of the Company’s stockholders, voting together on an as-if-converted to common stock
basis, can change the number of authorized shares outstanding.
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Other Terms

If Serics A, Series C and Series D Preferred shares are outstanding, no dividend may be declared,
and no shares shall be redeemed, on Series B or Series B-1 Preferred stock unless all accrued
Series A, Series C and Series D Preferred dividends have been paid and a similar dividend is
declared on Series A,Se ries C and Series D Preferred stock.

All stockholders are obligated to participate in a sale of the Company approved by 60% of the
Series A, Series C and Serics D Preferred stockholders, voting together as a single class, and the

board of directors.

Series A, Series C and Series D Preferred stockholders have the right to purchase any new securities
on a proportionate basis, and also have the right of over-allotment if any other Series A, Sertes C or
Series D Preferred shareholder fails to purchase a full proportionate share of the any new securities.
Series B Preferred, Series B-1 Preferred,and common stockholders do not have preemptive rights.

The Company and the Series A and Series B Preferred stockholders have the right to purchase shares
from Series B Preferred, Series B-1 Preferred and common stockhelders who wish to transfer their
shares to a nonpermitted transferec.

(%) Stock Compensation Plans

The Company’s 2005 Stock Incentive Plan (the 2005 SIP) provides stock options and restricted stock
grants, and other share-based incentives, primarily to employees and directors. In March 2009, the
Company authorized an additional 500,000 shares available for grant. In May 2010, the Company
authorized an additional 600,000 shares available for grant. There were 6,000,000 and 5,400,000 shares
available for grant as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively, under the amended 2005 SIP.

(a)

Stock Option Plan

Awards granted under the 2005 SIP are for incentive stock options with a five year term, an exercise
price at least equal to the market value on the date of grant, and which vest 25% after one year of
service and then monthly in equal amounts over the next three years of service. Income for the years
ended December31, 2010 and 2009 included $70,744 and $13,27] respectively, of pretax
compensation costs related to stock options granted. As of December 31, 2010, there was $22,072 of
total unrecognized compensation costs related to stock options. These costs are expected to be
recognized over a period of approximately four years. At December 31, 2010, the weighted average
remaining contractual life of outstanding options was 2.37 years,
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The table below summarizes activity in the Company’s stock option plan:

Year ended December 31

2010 2009
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise exercise
Awards price Awards price
Outstanding at beginning of
year 1,016,066 $ 0.14 1,061,692 § 0.14
Granted 352,000 0.26 195,000 0.15
Exercised (291,472) 0.15 (208,751) 0.14
Canceled — — (31,875) 0.11
Ouistanding at end of year 1,076,594 § 0.18 1,016,066 $ 0.14
Awards exercisable at
year-end 380,742 % 0.14 412941 §% 0.14

Restricted Stock

The Company issued restricted stock to certain employees in 2010 and in prior years. Restricted
stock awards vest 25% after one year of service and then monthly in equal amounts over the next
three years of service, subject to continued employment and other plan terms and conditions, Holders
of restricted stock are not allowed to sell, transfer, pledge, or otherwise encumber their restricted
shares, but such holders are allowed to vote and their shares accrue dividends when and if declared.
The Company may, but is not obligated to, repurchase vested restricted stock from employees at fair
market value upon termination of the recipient’s employment.

Expense for restricted stock is recognized over the vesting period. The noncash compensation
expense associated with restricted stock awards was $31,908 in 2010 and $41,825 in 2009. The
foltowing table summarizes restricted stock award activity:

Qutstanding balance at beginning of year
Granted
Exercised
Forfeited
Repurchased

Balance at December 31, 2010

28

2010 2009
3,401,558 3,401,558
560,000 —
3,961,558 3,401,558
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The following table summarizes the nonvested restricted stock activity:

2010 2009
Outstanding balance at beginning of year 3 641,122 1,384,334
Granted 560,000 —
Vested (488,369) (743,212)
Forfeited — —
Repurchased — —
Balance at December 31, 2010 $ 712,753 641,122

At December 31, 2010, 3,248,805 of the outstanding restricted shares were vested. As of
December 31, 2010, there was approximately $320,471 of total unrecognized compensation costs
related to restricted stock awards. These costs are expected to be recognized over a remaining
vesting period of approximately four years.

(10) Related-Party Transactions

Participation in the Mcdicarc ESRD program requires that treatment at a dialysis center be under the
general supervision of a director who is a physician. The Company has engaged physicians or groups of
physicians to serve as medical directors for each of its centers. The Company has contracts with
approximately 59 individual physicians and physician groups to provide medical director services. The
compensation of medical directors is negotiated individually and depends in general on local factors such
as competition, the professional qualifications of the physician, their experience and their tasks as well as

the workload at the clinic.

An ESRD patient generally seeks treatment at a dialysis center near his or her home and at which his or her
treating nephrologist has practice privileges. Additionally, many physicians prefer to have their patients
treated at dialysis centers where they or other members of their practice supervise the overall care provided
as medical directors to the centers. As a result, and as is typical in the dialysis industry, the primary referral
source for most of the Company’s centers is often the physician or physician group providing medical
director services to the center,

The Company’s medical director agreements generally include covenants not to compete. Also, when the
Company acquires a center from one or more physicians, or where one or more physicians owns interests
in centers as co-owners with the Company, these physicians have agreed to refrain from owning interests
in competing centers within a defined geographic area for various time periods. These agreements not to
compete restrict the physicians from owning or providing medical director services to other dialysis
centers. Most of these agreements not to compete continue for a peried of time beyond expiration of the
corresponding medical director agreements,

The Company leases space for 44 of its centers in which physicians and/or employees hold ownership
interests, and subleases space to referring physicians and/or employees at one center, Future minimum
lease payments payable under these leases is approximately $22 million at December 31, 2010, exclusive
of maintenance and other costs, and is subject to escalation. For 2010 and 2009, total lease payments under
these leases were approximately $2.9 million and $2.4 million, respectively. On June 21, 2010, the
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Company entered into a ten year corporate office lease agreement with an entity owned by two of its
employees. The lease is expected to commence in 2011. The future leasc payments payable under this
lease are approximately $1.5 million.

The Company’s York, Pennsylvania dialysis center is leased from a limited liability partnership in which
the Company has a 60% ownership interest with the remaining 40% owned by two doctors one of whom
serves as the medical director for that facility. These doctors are also affiliated with the entity that owns a
40% minority ownership in the subsidiary that operates the facility.

Some medical directors and other referring physicians own Series B and Series B-1 Preferred stock, which
they purchased from the Company. Some of the Company’s medical directors also own equity interests in
entitics that operate the Company’s dialysis centers,

The Company believes that the leases and equity purchases are no less favorable to the Company and no
more favorable to such physicians than would have been obtained in arm’s-length bargaining between
independent parties.

The Company has one promissory note obligation owed a noncontrolling interest holder in one of its
substdiaries. The note obligation was in an original amount of $750,000, of which $125,000 and $250,000
was outstanding at December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. At December 31, 2010 and 2009, $125,000
of the amount outstanding was classified in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet as a current
liability. The note bears intcrest at 7% and principal is due in six annual installments from May 1, 2006
through May 1, 2011.

During the ycars ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Company paid a related party affiliated through
common ownership $461,011 and $293,101, respectively, for the usage of an airplane.

A member of the Company’s board of directors provides consulting services primarily related to regulatory
and reimbursement matters. The total expenses incurred by the Company related to these services were
approximately $100,000 and $108,333 in 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Legistation, Regulations, and Market Conditions

The Company’s dialysis operations are subject to extensive federal, state, and local government
regulations. These regulations require the Company (o meet various standards relating to, among other
things, the operation of dialysis clinics, the provision of quality healthcare for patients, maintenance of
proper ownership and records, quality assurance programs, and occupational, health, safety and
cnvironmental standards, and the provision of accurate reporting and billing to government and private
payment programs. These laws are extremely complex, and in many instances, providers do not have the
benefit of significant regulatory or judicial interpretation as to how to interpret and apply these laws and
regulations in the normal course of conducting their business. Healthcare providers that do not comply
with these laws and regulations may be subject to civil or criminal penalties, the loss of their licenses, or
restriction in their ability to participate in various federal and state healthcare programs. The Company
endeavors to conduct its business in compliance with applicable laws and regulations.
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The Company’s dialysis centers are certified (or are pending certification) by the Centers for Medicare and
Medicaid Services, as is required for the receipt of Medicare payments, and are licensed and permitted by
state authorities.

The Medicare and Medicaid Fraud and Abuse Amendments of 1977, as amended, generally referred to as
the “anti-kickback statute,” imposes sanctions on those who, among other things, offer, solicit, make or,
receive payments in return for referral of a Medicare or Medicaid patient for treatment, The federal False
Claims Act imposes penalties on those who, among other things, knowingly present a false or fraudulent
claim for payment to the federal govemment. Another federal law, commonly referred to as the “Stark
Law,” prohibits physicians, with certain exceptions, from referring Medicare patients to entities with which
the physician has a financial reiationship, states have analogous statues. The Health Insurance Portability
and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA), among other things, includes provisions relating to the privacy
of medical information and prohibits inducements to patients to select a particular healthcare provider.
Congress, states and regulatory agencies continue to consider modifications to federal and state healthcare
laws. The Company’s dialysis centers are also subject to various state hazardous waste and nonhazardous
medical waste disposal laws.

Sanctions for violations of these statutes could result in the imposition of significant fines and penalties,
repayments Tor patient services previously billed, expulsion from government healthcare programs, and
other civil or criminal penalties. Management believes that the Company is in material compliance with
applicable government laws and regulations.

Profit-Sharing Flan

The Company has a savings plan for employees who meet certain criteria that have been established
pursuant to the provisions of Section 401(k) of the Intemnal Revenue Code. The pian allows employees to
contribute a defined portion of their compensation on a tax-deferred basis. Since Januvary 1, 2005, the plan
allows for defined matching Company contributions for eligible employees. The plan was amended
cffective Janvary 1, 2006 to allow vesting credit for prior years of service for employees of certain
acquired businesses. For the years ending December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively, the Company made
matching contributions to the plan of $386,328 and $391,053.

The Company may also make discretionary profit-sharing contributions to the plan if approved by the
board of directors. No such contributions were made in 2010 or 2009,
Commitments and Contingencies

The Company may be subject to claims and suits in the ordinary course of business, including contraciual
disputes and professional and general liability claims.
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On February 15, 2007, the previous owners of the acquired San Antonio facilities brought suit against the
Company. In the lawsuit, the plaintiffs alleged that the Company had failed to pay amounts due to the
sellers of Rencare Ltd. (Rencare) concerning accounts receivable that arose prior to the close of the
Rencare acquisition. The Company denied plaintiff’s claims and, made counterclaims against plaintiffs and
filed a third-party cross-claim against one of the other sellers of Rencare. In the Company’s counterclaim
and cross-complaint, the Company alleged, among other things, that Sellers breached the representations
and warranties in the applicable Rencare acquisition documents by failing to disclose certain liabilities. A
trial was held in November 2008 and judgment was entered in favor of plaintiff for $750,000 plus
$300,000 in attorney fees. Both sides appealed and the Company fully prevailed in the appeal. The
appellant court moved that the plaintiff should receive nothing. Plaintiff moved for reconsideration and the
appellant court dismissed their motion. Plaintiffs are seeking further appellant review. At this time, the
Company cannot determine what will be the ultimate resolution. The Company incurred legal and other
professional fees related to this litigation. These expenses aggregated $27,208 and $286,647 in 2010 and
2009, respectively. In 2010, the Company reversed a $1.1 million reserve related to this litigation that it
recorded in 2008.

In February, 2010, and pricr to the Company’s acquisition, DCA received a subpoena from the Office of
Inspector General of the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (OIG) with respect to an
investigation relating to EPO utilization at certain DCA clinics. The Company has been fully cooperating
with the inquiry and has produced the requested documents to date. While there is no indication of such at
this time, any negative findings could result in: (a) substantial monetary penalties, (b) excluding certain
facilities from participation in the Medicare and Medicaid programs, and (c) the Company incurring legal
expenses and management time, any or all of which could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s
revenues, earnings and cash flows. The Company incurred legal fees related to this investigation of
$389,741 in 2010, subsequent to its acquisition of DCA.

In December 2010, the Company received a Civil Investigative Demand (CID) from the U.S. Atterney for
the District of New Jersey requesting documents relating to laboratery tests performed on patients of the
Company at two of its North Texas clinics. The Company is in the process of gathering the required
documents and performing its own review of such documents. While the Company believes that it is not
the subject of the government’s investigation, the outcome of this matter is uncertain and the Company has
risk of an adverse outcome that could result in substantial monetary penalties.

The Company has obligations to purchase the third-party interests in several of its joint ventures. These
obligations are in the form of put provisions in joint venture agreements, and are exercisable at the
third-party owners’ discretion with some timing limitations. If these put provisions are exercised, the
Company would be required to purchase the third-party owners’ interests at fair market value (see note 4).
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The Company rents office space, medical facilities, and medical equipment under lease agreements that are
classified as operating leases for financial reporting purposes. At December 31, 2010, the future minimum
rental payments under noncancelable operating lcases with terms of one year or more consist of the
following:

2011 3 9,210,791
2012 8,665,034
2013 7,709,826
2014 6,288,782
2015 ' 5,566,500
Thereafter 12,080,991

Rent expense was $8,129,164 and 36,290,202 for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009,
fespectively. i
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N w1 [ty vy i e Amendment fo’
_ FARGO MAC N9306-070 Master Lease

Minnoapolls, MN 55402

' Weﬂs Fargo Equipment Fmance. Inc. {Lossor) and U.S. Renal Cara Home Theraplas LLC ("Lessoe”) hereby
amend the Master Lease Number 288280 dated as of November 2, 2010 (the “Lease”) as folfows:

 {. Seclior efa)(w} is arnended by dojeting it and replacing i In s entirety wilh the following: “keap
acearale and compisla records pertaining o Bon‘uwer‘s business and fmancial condiion and submi
to Lender such quarterty and aninual reports concerning Bomowst's business and financlal condition
Lemder may from fime (o lime reasonably request”

2. . Section 15 is amended by replacing words “Lessee will promplly éxecute and deliver fo Lassor” with
“Lesseo will axecuto and deliver fo Lessor within ten (10) days of Lessor'’s roquost’

" 3. Section 17(a} is amended by inserting *within (5 five business days of* before the words ‘whan due”.
4. Saction 17(c) is smended by daleting “ten (10 calendar days"and replacing # with “20 catendar days".

5. Section 17(e) is amendod by Inserting “and,- # such petition Is involuptary, the same shall not be
dismissad within 30 calendar days of its filing*

6. New clauses {kj, (D and (m) are heroby added as addifional Events of Default in Section 17 of t.-‘)o .
- Agrsement to read as follows:

“t%} an event of dafau!f shaﬂ aceur affer ghving effect to any provided Sure perod, of Lessee under

. that cenlaln Credit Agreemeni dated as of May 24, 2010 among Lessee as Bormowar, fhe
Guarantors and Lendors identified therainBank of America, NA, as Syndication Agent, and Royal
Bank of Canads, as Administiative Agemt and as Colfateral Agent, s such Credit Agreement may
ba amonded from time lo time (the "Credit Agreement’); (I} fallure of Lessee fo maintain-al alf times
& minimum Fixed Chargs Coverage Ratio as deflnod and sat forth in the Credit Agreement; {ri}
failura to certify in writing fo Lessor within sixly (60) days of the end of aach fiscel quarter as lo
thosg matters pertaining o financial statements and Events of Default-stated In the forn for stich
carbﬁcatbn aftached hmalo as Exhibit A" .

Excepl as modﬁ‘ied herem, the terms and condilions of the Lease remain the same and confinue in full force and

efiecd. In the event of & conliict betwoen fhe terms of the Lease and this Amendmaeni, the ferms of this
Amendment shell provall.

Datet: Novemhat 2, 2010

LESSEE:

U.8. Renal Cara Home Theraples, LLC

. Révissg U5 Ronaf Cara e ment ko ML (vZ2) (2).doc
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Extribit A
To Almendment to Master Leaso daled as of November 2, 2010
To:  Welis Fargo Equipment Financo, Inc.
733 Mamquetie Avernre
Sulte 700

Minneapolis, MN 55402
Alin: Sanior Lending Manager; Healthcare

Re:. Quarterty Comptiance Cortifcation of LS. Renat Gare Home Tharapios, LLC (Lessoe’)
Thé undersigned Lessee heroby certifies t Wells Fargo Equiprient Fingnce, Inc. ('Lessor’) that {a) the

finonclal stotement of Lesses dafed as of June 30, 2010, herelofore or concurrently herewith deliverod by

Lessoe lo Lessor, is tnm and cimact, and has been prepared in accordance with generafly acceplod accounting
principals, and (b) ag of the daté hercof, there exisls no dofault or defined Evant of Defaull under any loan
agreement, promissory nota or other document In offact with respact to any credit accommodation granted by
Lessortolessen. -

Dited: November 2, 2010

" Page2of2
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NPOREY Jvans Fago Eqviamant Fuanos, Inc _ Amendment to
FARGO MAC bi306- 070 - Master Lease

Minnoapeks, MM 554002

. mamwﬁmmmmjmu.s.&wmmmmucamjnm'
v . amend the Masgler Lease Number 288280 daled as of Novembaor 2, 2010 {tho "Looss?) as follows:

1. Soction 6{a){(v]) is amanded by doleting ¥ and replacing it In ¥s enliroly with the following: keep
acourale and complota records pertaining to Bomower's business and linancial condilion and sutmit
to Lender such quarterly and ennual reparts conceming Bormowor's business and financiaf condition
Lendsy may from time to Bne-ressonably request,”

2 Section 15 Is amended by replacing mrdsimwﬂmpﬂyoxwdeanddeﬂvarrolcmr'mm
‘I.ssseo wil execule snddoivarto meﬁrsn {10} days of Lossor's roquest”

5. Soctm f:rfa;fsmndadbyhmwws)ﬁvebmuapwwmmmmmw
4. Section 17{c) Is amended by dolating “ten (10) ca!mwdsrdays'snd roplacing it with "20 calendzr days"

"5 Soclion 17(e} Is smonded by Jaserling “and, i such patiton i hvnd'unrary the same shall not be
tismissed within Sﬂcalmdardayso!f&sﬂing'

6. Now clouses (R), {JJ and {m) are hemby added &s addiional Events of Dafault in Section 17 of the
Agmanw.'moraadas fofows: .

'{k)anevaﬂofdsfauﬂsﬂaﬁocmnﬂergﬁdngaﬂadbmypwﬂadmpm of Lossoo wdor
mdcﬁaamMAgrmnmmwasdms.Mammmasﬂmmr Guaranioes
and Lenders identiffed thereln, CapilalSource -Finance LLC, as Syndicaion Agerd; and CIT
Heblthcsne H1.C, a3 Administrafive Agen! and as:issufng Bank, as such Crodit Agroamend may be
amondod froem tma to tme; (T} falture of Lesses to mainteln ot aff times e minkmuem Flxed Charge
Covorogs Ratio (as defined below} of 1.20; (m} failes to cortify in writing to Lossor wiitin sixdy (60)
days of the end of eoch flscal quarter es to those metfors periaining to financial siatemaents and
" Events of Default stated in the form for such certiicalion effeched berelo as Exhibi A, “Fixed
Charge Coverage Ralio® is dofined as sof forih i the atfached ExhibR B, withoud regard to whathor
eﬂhero(theMoagmomanrsﬁvmwmc#&bemno!&wsmtmnbmqmm'mw?ﬁw“
tm’minatad"

-Except 85 modified herein, the terms and eonditions of the Loase romaln thesameando;anmuolnfuﬂm and
effecl. lnﬂmemdawmbdmnmeramofmeteaseandmmmmm ﬂmtemsomrh
Amandmemnt shatl praval

LESSEE

U.5. Ronal Care Home Thoragies, LLC

U5 Reonal Care i sumplass for céok To MLdo?
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Weits Fargo Eqoipesent Fisence, hns. Supplement to Master Lease

Wilkios 723 Marquatis Avanus, Suls 700 Agreement of Sale
PAaboeg MAC N2OOE-071
Mnneapaly, MN 55402
Sepptamar Numbor 0258780400 detod &3 of Noverrber 2, 2010
" X
. - Master Loass Nurnber 268200 diliod a3 of Novoinber' Z, 2010
Name ang Address of Lpssee: .
US Rono Care Hame Thoraples LLE
1313 La Concha Lene

Houston, TX 17054

Notfce: Lassor rocerves tho aght o withvinnw the torms of this Suppiement and isswe » modifisd Supplement without nolice
. | to Lessea if Lessor &s not in recelpt of a Ffly exacuted orlginal or facsimile of ihis document within five () business days of

7% daty of thix Supplement. However, In that swwitt, no sich modificalions will be binding on Lessoe uniess and untll Lesses
| executes e modifod dacinost ining ¥ such modificat

This Is 8 Supplement fo the Magier Logse identifiad ebove botworn [assor and Lessoo (the “Mester Lease”). Upon the execition and

dalivery by Lossor and | asses of this Supplomont, Lassor heroby agrees (o iease i Lossee, snd Lossog horsby ogrees iy bogse fom
" Lessor, the equipment describag below upon the lenns and conditions of this Supplement and the Mastor Lease. A terms and -~

condifions of the Masiar Leasa shall mmain in fil force and effod excepl (o ihe exteat madliod By this Supploment, This Supplamend
- and the Mastor Loase g & refates io this Supploment ere horpinaftor mferred fo as the “Lease™.

Equiptrert Descripton:
The Eq fnscribad on Schedule A sttached hrereto and roade a part homsof

mmmmm Lessee suthonzos Lessor fo insert eny missing rforaiion or changa any Inaccurata information (soch
mmmmdmswwkwmamnmmmmm

Equipment Locatfon: 15313 La Concis Lans, Houston, TX 77054

SUMMARY OF PAYMENT TERMS

Inltisi Torm (Monthsy 80 . Tola Cost STOONTLIT
Payment Froquency. Moxthly Tolai Basic Rent $123,59280

.| Baske Rental Payment. $2,053.59 plus applicalie selss anduse | 4 Rent Uady Rate:  014%
ax
Mumber of Insiainents: .60 Cedoft Data: Dy beor 16, 2010
Advonce Paymenis:_Frst dus on signing Bis Loase Sagrity Doposit WA
Additional Provisions, Tolal Finance Charges: 314,100.03

. End of Terrn Agreomoent:

- 1. addiion to paying the Total Basic Rent whan and as tke uncior the Leass, Lossoe agroes v pay Lassor $1.00 on ihg expirston
tale of the Iniis! term of the Lease (e Final Furthasa Payment).

2 mwdmrwmmwmwmwwmmwnsmmmm
Lassoa &t &3 ten ocation. Upon requust by Lessee, Lessor witl dabvor a bl of sale lransfuning the Squipment ta Lessoe, Lessor
hersby warrants that 2t the time of transfer the Equipmont wil be froa of all securily inleresty ond other Fons crealod by Lessor orin
favor of persons cisiming tyough Lassor LESS0R MAKES ND OTHER WARRANTY WITH RESFECT TO THE EQUIPMENT,
EXFPRESS OR IMPLIED, AND SPECIFICALLY DISCLAIMS ANY WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY AND OF FITNESSFOR A
PARTICULAR PURPOSE AND ANY LIABUITY FOR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES ARISING OUT OF THE USE OF ORTHE

. INABILITY TOUSE THE EQUIPMENT,
THIS AGREEMENT INCLIES THE TERMS ON THE ATTACHED FAGE(S).

mmmmm u.wmmmu&
*
% T - 4
" [locsanionn 31, 2000
~Reftt Commencement Dale
Fagu 1262 KIPEALE 1 w20 oastt
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3 .Faluru iy pey the Final Purchest Paymord wizon due shalt constiida an “Evont of Defaudt” undor e Loass.
4. Lassos agroos o pay al seks and wsy kaxes sising on ecooind of the s2 of the Equipment i Lessos.

Lassar makes no representation with rospact fo the ixtomo tax consoqencas of the ransaction evidencad by ths Leasa, Lassorwil tmat
fhre loase as & sale mgandass of how the Leaso is boalod by Losson. . .

Modifieation 1o Master Lesse: To ba consiston? with this Supnkwnont the Mastor Laase & emontod 25 folows:

1. he sectnd paragraph of paragraph 2 {retating to sulomatic extensian) is hereby dalofed.

2 The thint sonience of paragraph 12 coverng casutdly ko the Equipment Is amondad 1 read as folows:
In the event sny Eam of Sguipmant shall became kst stolon, destmyod, damaged bayond epat, oF rondensd
permaneatly uniE for use for any resson, or in the event of condemnation or seizure of any fom of Equipment, Lassoe

shall promptly pey Lessor ar emoont equal 10 Lessor's Loas es diined in paragraph 18 with respect tp such #om et the
ﬁmdwmmmwmmmmdmmmmm Toiad Coct of olf Xems of

3 . The shih sentonce of paragroph 12 i armonded fo read “Any insuronce o dcondemination proceads recoived shall ba erodiiod ta
. Lassow's obigafion under this paragraph end Lasses shall be entitiod to any suplux *
Parsgragh 14 and 23 oro deftod in thebr entigly.
5 Tho thid santence of paragreph 18(c) is amandsd fo mad *Las300 Shal ba antidod o any supiss and shof romal 8ol kr ey

8 Clauze (s} of the frst sontence of paragraph 13 1 emonded # road &3 fofows: “(a) comprobednsive genara! SabEly inswrance
mﬁmwmwwmmmammqmmmmmm

Var, 1109

Pg!!dz:&l’uﬁ
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W LS Schedule A

FARGLY

. Controct Mo 2BGE200-400 cated a3 of Movembor 2, 2010
Lessoo: U5 Rowml Core Home Theraplos, LLC

Enjipment Description: Dialysts, Computer wnd Computer Soft
mamanmammmmmrwywmmmmvmms

Assel ID Dascripion Pty AriptClass D Vendor I Check # Invalcn B

10260 Red Puil Tight Lock 121509 EQUIPMENT  METROMEDICAL 7918 .?0811-6-00
{22.00} T686063-01
1948 77347401

(881.26)
8159
(261.69)

10259  EPROMforupgmde W CART 1271508 EQUIPVENT FRESENIUSUSA 179 S4485260

q0zE2 18 X72 Ad) Stet H08H0 EQUPMENY  INTERMETRGC 7800 10272242

10264 2008 K Dielysks, Machine oM CQUIPMENT  FRESENIUSUSA  TDSB BLEEIL44
10266 Morcor FBO1 RO Systam 031610 EQUIPMENT MAR COR T2 DODOISING
10297 B0 Meter KR-CT 0512510 EOUIPMENY NESA LABS B2AT B3BIEIG-AN

Equipment Originalty bocated at 1313 La Concta Lano
Houston, TX TTOS4

Dated: Noveraber 2, 2010

Lozsse: S Renal Caro Horw Thomples, LLC

Manager

Paga1oft
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ATTACHMENT 40

FINANCIAL VIABILITY WAIVER

The applicant is not required to submit financial viability ratios because all project capital
expenditures arc completely funded through internal resources.

2230150-2
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ATTACHMENT 41

VIABILITY

The applicant is not required to submit financial viability ratios because all project capital
expenditures are completely funded through internal resources as indicated in Attachment 40.

2230150-2
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ATTACHMENT 42

REASONABLENESS OF PROJECT AND RELATED COSTS

A, Reasonableness of Financing Arrangements
See Attached Certifications

B. Conditions of Debt Financing
See Attached Certifications

C. Reasonableness of Project Costs

A |B c |p g |F G H
Cost/Square | Gross Square | Gross Square

Foot Foot Foot Const. Total
Department New | Mod | New l Circ | Mod ‘ Circ |$ Mod.$ [ Cost
In-Center ¢ 6,500 $715,000 §715.000
Hemodialysis
Contingencies
Tolals $110 6,500 $715,000 $715,000

D. Projected Operating Costs

Projected Operating Costs Total Cost | Treatments Trg:f:;“ ¢
l.abor $751,412 9,246 $81.27
Medical supplies $194,787 9,246 $21.07
Medications $553,127 9.246 $59.82
Medical Director fees $60,000 9.246 $6.49
Rent $£110,500 9.246 $11.95
Management Fee $250,166 9.246 $27.06
Other $281,436 9,246 $30.44

Total Projected Operating Costs* $2,201,427 9,246 $238.10
E. Total Effect of the Project on Capital Costs
Total Effect of the Project on Capital Costs Total Treatments Cost/
Cost Treatment
Total Effect of the Project on Capital Cost $193. 966 9,246 $20.98

2230150-2
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ATTACHMENT 42

REASONABLENESS OF PROJECT AND RELATED COSTS

77 Ill. Admin. Code § 1120.140 Reasonableness of Financing Arrangements

U.S. Renal Care, Inc.

In accordance with 77 Ill. Admin. Code § 1120.140, I attest that the total estimated project costs
and related costs will be funded in total with cash and equivalents, including investment securities,
unrestricted funds, received pledge receipts and funded depreciation.

b O, o b (L

Thomas L. Weinberg Stephen M. Pirri

. Senior Vice President & General Counsel Its- President

Its

Notarization: Notarization:

Subscribed and sworn to me this 12th day Subscribed and sworn to me this 12th_day
of June , 2012 of June , 2012

o Yo . S

Signature of Notary Signature of Notary \\“‘“"*'r"w iy,
\\\\\\\““""Hf”!’ @\?\\’.Sﬂ."d‘q‘r 1,1’
S STEWae ), SN viEs,
&\63}‘.-0 l\{' P&éa..) ”/’ s ..Q,\v?\ (/o o.. /”
NG £ 55 2
g ;9 z £ : T =
= . = = s P =
E 3 = R ! =
= r = = o =
z P Z Z %Sy S F
Z \3 3 Z %, AEQRE S OF
2 2 me€ S § %, bR §
%, PR § Yy, SRBONS
Wy, RO Gttt
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ATTACHMENT 42

REASONABLENESS OF PROJECT AND RELATED COSTS

77 IIl. Admin. Code § 1120.140 Conditions of Debt Financing

U.S. Renal Care, Inec.

In accordance with 77 Ill. Admin. Code § 1120.140, I attest that the conditions of debt financing
are reasonable in that entering into a lease (borrowing) is less costly than the liquidation of existing
investments which would be required for the applicant to construct a dialysis facility. Should the
applicant be required to pay off the lease in full, its existing investments and capital retained could

be converted to cash or used to retire the outstanding lease obligations within a sixty (60) day
period.

By: et By: MVMQ“N’

o R R 1
Thomas L. Weinberg / Stephen M. Pirri
Its: Senior Vice President & General Counse! Its President
Notarization: Notarization:
Subscribed and sworn to me this 191 day Subscribed and sworn to me this 12th day
of June ,2012 of June , 2012
,%4,- &_onu" \Zr@m?w
Signature of Notary g, Signature of Notary
SCEWART awiin,
S, 7, ey,
o o .-. [ o .-.. ..... .
SS9 W 4% ST, Y
£ = i SN . Z
= w o = = & . =
= o = - s + =
= s = = % 0 & =
Z N el §F z 4 ¥ &3
R ATEW}?’"@ Z . g o‘i"‘% S OF
%fﬂ 0000‘2:2".\\\\\\\ ’I,’,, ...... -X.P.\&.o'% \Q':\k
My n, 270
l i
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ATTACHMENT 42

REASONABLENESS OF PROJECT AND RELATED COSTS

77 Ill. Admin. Code § 1120.140 Reasonableness of Financing Arrangements

USRC Alhiance, LL.C

In accordance with 77 IlIl. Admin. Code § 1120.140, I attest that the total estimated project costs
and related costs will be funded in total with cash and equivalents, including investment securities,
unrestricted funds, received pledge receipts and funded depreciation.

By: 27"’{(_“_\;” WWWQW

Thomas L. Weinberg Stephen M. Pirri
Manager President & Manager
Its; g Its: g
Notarization: Notarization:
Subscribed and swom to me this 2% day Subscribed and sworn to me this 121" day
of June 2012 of June 2012
Frcieons g, A el
...... 7 Wt
Signature of Notary SORRLE ™, Signature of NotaQA\\““ WART iy, 2
ERAS “ Z ,\9 \,. OUBLIS N %
S35 T £ S %
Y SiE sV Y %
,”/ * E*.- & R Gy T
f.-‘nmmm\\ e ”z,, 2.53'&@‘

ity
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ATTACHMENT 42

REASONABLENESS OF PROJECT AND RELATED COSTS

77 I1l. Admin. Code § 1120.140 Conditions of Debt Financing

USRC Alliance, LL.C

In accordance with 77 Ill. Admin. Code § 1120.140, | attest that the conditions of debt financing
are reasonable in that entering into a lease (borrowing) is less costly than the liquidation of existing
investments which would be required for the applicant to construct a dialysis facility. Should the
applicant be required to pay off the lease in full, its existing investments and capital retained could
be converted to cash or used to retire the outstanding lease obligations within a sixty (60) day

period.

1]

By: ?7/—‘/\7&

Thomas L. Weinberg

Its: Manager

Notanzation:

Subscribed and sworn to me this 12t day
of June 2012

scdoct

Signature of Notary “\ummuuﬂ

(P

e .‘S}\
P‘.(“
[k

[}

J
\
\\“\

Wity
M Lisa
**NGT,
.-. @ G.é
/2
0, )
‘? ..".
st

S

L3

-

-

-

)
’,Q b
’//

Y A

6:-

LT
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Step%n M. Pirri

Its: President & Manager

Notarization:

Subscribed and sworn to me this 12th day
of June 2012

Tt

Signature of Nota Wik
g I'Y \\:NP«HT h;,

S ffz
R 5"\% %
-

~ Q\}BL.‘C
P

- -.\ .,
-‘5”:%@ "._
& % ¢

3
&
=
=
=
=

=

Z

7 W)
/7 L
”'”mmuu\\““

z, oov‘. ST,ﬁTE ?\
’,’/, "ou.E-!." ﬁ\\\

My P
e

/
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ATTACHMENT 42

REASONABLENESS OF PROJECT AND RELATED COSTS

77 Ill. Admin. Code § 1120.140 Reasonableness of Financing Arrangements

USRC Lemont, L1.C

In accordance with 77 Ill. Admin. Code § 1120.140, I attest that the total estimated project costs
and related costs will be funded in total with cash and equivalents, including investment securities
unrestricted funds, received pledge receipts and funded depreciation.

By: 27/7""“—74:’

Thomas L. Weinberg 4

Its: Manager

Notarization:

Subscribed and sworn to me this 120 day

ofdune 2012

“mu Wity
% MM SXewaar
SR

%,

= % * 3
Signature of Notary Sgéé* . %
= = =
= L) m -
= X =
— - L ey
ERY 0‘(&‘-." §

”’,’/ .‘-STATEE*‘Q-@‘O{?

/,’, ’.""..'.erﬁ\\\\\

/;,” 2 \\\\\
A
2200280-(

o A [

Stephen M. Pirri

Its: President & Manager

Notarization:

Subscribed and sworn to me this 2% day
of June 2012

’9
Signature of Notary 5__“:“:?' ,§‘ . %
$TE . 2
R - H
EA) -
Z % Sl £
f;’/ .'oAﬁ?}Q:. b§
/(, -----

\
“ iy Q_'z‘\ \\\\
g
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ATTACHMENT 42

REASONABLENESS OF PROJECT AND RELATED COSTS

77 Hl. Admin. Code § 1120.140 Conditions of Debt Financing
USRC Lemont, LLC

In accordance with 77 Ill. Admin. Code § 1120.140, I attest that the conditions of debt financing
are reasonable in that entering into a lease (borrowing) is less costly than the liquidation of existing
investments which would be required for the applicant to construct a dialysis facility. Should the
applicant be required to pay off the lease in full, its existing investments and capital retained could
be converted to cash or used to retire the outstanding lease obligations within a sixty (60) day
period.

S22 o i P

Thomas L. Weinberg Steb@n M. Plrri

Its: Manager President & Manager

Its:
Notarization: Notarization:
12th . . 12th
Subscribed and sworn to me this _~_ day Subscribed and sworn to me this day

J June
of *U7° 2012 g of "Y€ _ 2012

\\ 5“ Wﬁ)?.]" ‘5‘;4,
ﬂlfcf'...

% STEWAR s,
i -3 e ?' 4 an . Ny ",
Signature’of Notar§ ¢ z Signature of Notary §'¢%\@" B, %,
: i ¢i: g T Yz
2% ome&s § z i i 2
2, " AdR § R e =
%, ebliie & ERANE . U
// [ r&\\\{\ = 4]-50;.% J £
f’fm &2 \\\\ ’3;, ".,.EXP\F: ot §
Hiaw ”r,,, s @.\ca &

*‘fmnmiun\\‘
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ATTACHMENT 43

SAFETY NET IMPACT

This project will result in a positive impact on the ability of other providers and health care
systems to cross-subsidize safety net services. The capacity of hospitals and health systems to
provide safety net and charity care services is impacted by their efficiency in discharging
inpatients and transitioning their care from an inpatient setting to an outpatient setting. As the
availability of outpatient dialysis services becomes more scarce, hospitals are sometimes forced
o delay patient discharges while attempting to procure necessary dialysis services in the
community. This delayed discharge and resulting increase in length of stay may unnecessarily
consume hospital resources that could otherwise be directed to a patient in need of such
resources. As the proposed project seeks to make additional outpatient dialysis services
available it will help facilitate more timely hospital discharges and will result in greater
opportunities for hospitals to provide additional safety net and charity care services.

With respect to the provision of dialysis services for Charity Care and Medicaid purposes, the
Applicants do not operate facilitics within llinois and, as such, have provided Charity Care and
Medicaid information at the corporate level for U.S. Renal Care, Inc. As such information is
most accurately reported at the treatment level, due to the fact that patients receive multiple
dialysis treatments which may qualify them as one or more patient types depending on their
status at the time of treatment, this information is reported at the ircatment level.

2230150-2
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2230150-2

CHARITY CARE

Charity (# of treatments) 2009 2010 2011
Inpatient N/A N/A N/A
Outpatient 1,056 1,922 2,305

Total 1,056 1,922 2,305

Charity (cost in dollars)

Inpatient N/A N/A N/A
Outpatient $281,536 $521.535 $595.473
Total $281,536 $521,535 $595,473
MEDICAID

Medicaid (# of 2011

treatments) 2009 2010
Inpatient N/A N/A N/A
Qutpatient 17,967 29,744 40,586

Total 17.967 29,744 40,586

Medicaid (revenue)

Inpatient N/A N/A N/A
Outpatient $3,956,318 $6,740,875 $9,382,740
Total $3,956,318 $6,740,875 $9.382,740
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ATTACHMENT 44

CHARITY CARE
Payor Mix Year | Year 2 Year 3
Billed Govt Patients 27 59 62
Billed Commercial Patients 3 4 4
Billed Non Govt Low Patients 0 0 0
Tatal Paticnts 30 63 66
Charity Care Information Year 1 Year 2 Year 3
Net Revenue $488,520 | $2,259,980 | $3,127,080
Bad Debt / Charity Care 15,144 £70,059 $96,939
Ratio of Bad Debt to Net Revenue 0.031 0.031 0.031

2230150-2
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APPENDIX 1
PATIENT REFERRAL LETTERS
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June 8, 2012
VIA FEDERAL EXPRESS

Mr. Dale Galassie

Illinois Health Facilities & Services Review Board
525 W. Jefferson St., 2" Floor

Springficld. 1L 62761

Dear Mr. Galassie:

On behalf of Northeast Nephrology Consultants, Ltd., comprised of Drs. Ahmed, Gurfinchel,
Kravets, Mehta, and Nagarkatte. 1 am writing this letter in support of the certificate of need
application for the proposed U.S. Renal Care Lemont Dialysis facility.

Currently. we treat patients who receive dialysis at the following facilities: Deerbrook Care
Ceunter. Fairview Care Center of Joliet, Fresenius Medical Care Lemont, Silver Cross Renal
Center — East, Silver Cross Renal Center — Morris, Silver Cross Renal Center — West or who
receive their dialysis through home modalities. Based on our records, we treated 283 ESRD
patients in 2011, 298 ESRD patients in 2010, 266 LESRD patients in 2009, and 231 patients
through first quarter of 2012, as reported to the Renal Network. Included as Appendix A is the
patient count organized by year, patient zip code, and dialysis facility for the years 2009, 2010,
2011, and first quarter 2012. We anticipate that 15% of our existing hemodialysis patients will
not require in-center hemodialysis services within 1 year due to a change in health status.

With respect to new patients referred for dialysis, in the year 2011 we referred 86 patients for
hemodialysis. Included as Appendix I3 is a patient count by facility and zip code of newly
referred patients.

Bascd upon a review of our 631 Pre-ESRD patients that currently are in Chronic Kidney Disease
(CKD} Stages 3, 4 and 5, we anticipate referring 80 patients to the proposed U.S. Renal Care
Lemont Dialysis facility for dialvsis in the two years following project completion, as
demonstrated in Appendix C. While these estimates arc based on the zip code of the patient's
residence. we will continue to respect a patient's choice in their dialysis provider.

We respectfully ask the Board to approve the U.S. Renal Care Lemont Dialysis CON application
to provide in center hemodialysis services for this growing ESRD population in DuPage County.
Thank you for your consideration.
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1 attest to the fact that to the best of our knowledge, all the information contained in this letter is
true and correcl and that the projected referrals in this document were not used to support any
other CON application.

Respectfully,

Signature: MN&M

Mame: ? h)ﬂd&;ﬁm
Title: MD }@UJ{Y\Q\K

SUBSCRIBED and SWORN TO before me
this/3 day of _ 3Suwge ,2002 ~—— .
OFFICIALSEAL

PETER VILLA
B —~= Na;k;&;um& - STATE OF LUNOIS
olary Public Z VAVAAAAAAS IO.N.E.’TI.RAE?:EWHE-
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APPENDIX A
ESRD PATIENTS BY PATIENT ZIP CODE 2009 - FIRST QUARTER 2012

Yeur

Physician

Patient Zip

e

e

Decrbrook Care
Center {Long-
Term Care
Facility)

Fairview
Care Center
of Jolist

Fresenius
Medical Care
Plzinfield

Home
Peritoneal
Dialysis

Silver
Cross
Renal
Center -
East

Silver
Cross

Renal
Center -
Morris

Silver
Cross
Renal
Center -
West

Grand
Total

| Xipuaddy

162

2009

Dr. Ahmed

60104
60403
60404
60421
60423
60431
60432
60433
60433
60436
60441
6442
60446
§0443
604350
60481
60586
60803
61301

b b2

L | — |2 (8o (oo

— | | | | |— | —

-t

—_ I e L) Ld e

RN

T N T T O, T o S (W B %)

Dr. Atined Total

71

Dr. Gurtinchel

60436
60451

Dr. Gurfinchel Tota!

b

Dr. Kravets

60403
60404
60408
60410

]




Year

Physician

Patient Zip
Codc

Deerbrook Care
Center (Long-
Term Care
Facility)

Fairview
Care Center
of Joliet

Fresenius
Medical Care
Plainficld

Home
Peritoneal
Dialwvsis

Silver

Cross

Renal
Center
East

Silver
Cross

Renal
Center -
Morris

Siiver
Cross
Renal
Center -
West

Grand
Total

| XIpuaddy

c6e

60416
60420
60421
60431
60432
60433
60434
60435
60436
60441
60442
60446
60447
60448
60450
60451
60464

60477 |

60481
60544
60586
60840
60920
G1341
61354

—_— |

L |w |t |-

P RN R N e L% - L

LA lee [ |

— |t

—_ = = |wn |—

— |w

Dr. Kravets Total

Dr. Nagarkatte

60403
60404
60406
60407

— — tad o

—_ = W RN e W = = = O R = = O Lh R — R R lh O — D — S0 W D W)




Year

Physician

Patient Zip
| Code

Deerbrook Care
Center (Long-
Term Care
Facilitv)

1__ of joliet

Fairview
Care Center

Fresenius
Medical Care
Plainfield

60408
60421
60431
60432
60433
60434
60435
60436

60440 |

60441
60442
60446
60447
60448
60451
60481
60544
60386

60628 |

60638

Home
Peritoneal
_ Dialysis

Silver
Cross
Renal
Center
East

Silver

Cross

Renal
Center -
Morris

Silver
Cross
Renal
Center -
West

Grand
Total

L2

S I o)

W=l o= |wvi |—= |= |w |—

a— | — |2

[ O]

4

b — 30 N b s —

>

e - T I R T 2 I ) ¥

_i Dr. Nagarkatte Total

t6

52

-]
Foy

2009 Total

2010

| Xipuaddy

£6¢C

Dr. Ahmed

6043

6044
60403
60404
60416
60432
60433

60435

79

24

140

266

— N |n | — b2 b2

[ S -

LY

13
15




Year

Physician

Patient Zip
Code

Deerbrook Care
Center (Long-
Term Care
Facility)

Fairview
Care Center
of Ioliet

Fresenius
Medical Care
Plainfield

Home
Pecritoneal
Dialysis

Silver
Cross
Renal
Center -
East

}

Silver

Cross

Renal
Center -
Morri_s

Sikver
Cross
Renal
Center -
West

Grand
Total

| Xipuaddy

14514

60436

60439 |

60441
60442
60446
60448
60450
60451
60490
60586
60803

i

- | — |2

Dr. Ahmed Total
Dr. Gurfinchel

—_ s = =

—_ em e e B = B — DN

£+

[P ]

37

60404
60432
60433
60435
60436
60440
60441
60451
60479

- N -

— = [ie

i 5™ BT B AV [ A g

_Dr. Gurfinchel Total __

Dr. Kravets

6043
60403

60404 |

66408
60410
60416
60420
60421

I

Ld |=— | =— |t~

-_ b (b2 (B2 (b2

th MMM R AR B — D




| xipuaddy

562

_h\:ear

Physician

Patient Zip
Code

Deerbrook Care
Center (Long-
Term Care
Facility}

Fairview
Care Center
cf Ioliet

Fresenius
Medical Care
Plainfield

Home
Peritoneal
Dialvsis

Silver

Cross

Renal
Center
East

Silver
Cross

Renal
Center -
Morris

Silver
Cross
Renal
Center -
Weat

Grand
Total

60423

60431
60432
60433
60434
60433
60436
60439
60441
60442
60446
60447
60448
60450
60451
60464
60467
6(1474
60481
60491
60544
60586
60840
60920
61341
61350
61354

2

WO a

[P

A

—_— N RO = )

B0 -~

—

—_— L)

Dr. Kraveis Total

28

56

Dr. Mehta

60403
60431

—_— |1




Year

| Physician

Patient Zip

Code |

| Xipuaddy

96¢

60433
60442
60450
60481

Deerbrook Care
Center (Long-

Term Care
Cacility)

Fairview
Care Center
of loliet

Fresenius
Medical Care
_ Painfield

Home
Peritoneal
Dialysis

Silver
Cross
Renal
Center -
East

Silver
Cross

Renal
Center -
Mortis

Silver
Cross
Renal
Center -
West

Grand
Total

Dr. Nagarkatte

Dr.Mehta Tolal

6040

6043

6049
60403
60404
60407
60416
60421
60422
60426
60431
60432
60433
60435
60436
60440
60441
60442
60446
60447
60448
60451
60481
60544
60586

fed

—_ |2 [T
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Year

Physician

| 2010 Total_

Patient Zip
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APPENDIX B

2011 IN CENTER HEMODIALYSIS REFERRALS BY DIALYSIS FACILITY, PHYSICIAN AND PATIENT ZIP CODE
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We anticipate a total of 80 patient referrals to ESRD to the U.S. Renal Carc Lemont Dialysis Facility in the two years following
project completion. We attribute thesc referrals to the following zip codes and physicians.

APPENDIX C
ANTICIPATED REFERRALS IN THE TWO YEARS FOLLOWING PROJECT COMPLETION

L Dr. Ahmed Dr. Gurfinchel Dr. Kravets Dir. Mehta Dr. Nagarkatte
60403 2 1 2 1 2
60432 i I 1 ! 1
60435 3 4 5 4 5

60439 2 1 2 2 2
60440 0 0 0 0 0
60441 5 3 ] 5 4 5
60446 2 } 2 2 2
60491 B 1 1 1 I
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MAPQUEST MAPS OF FACILITIES
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Driving Directions from 1096 State St, Lemont, Hlinois 60439 to 2121 Oncida St, Joli... Page 1 of 1
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Driving Directions from 1096 State St, Lemont, Illinois 60439 to 2451 S Washington ... Page 10of 1
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Driving Directtons from 1096 State St, Lemont, Illinois 60439 to 396 Remington Blv... Page 1 of I
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Driving Directions from 1096 State St, Lemont, Illinois 60439 to 329 Remington Blv...
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Driving Directions from 1096 State St, Lemont, Illinois 60439 to 100 Spalding Dr, Na... Page 1 of 1
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Driving Directions from 1096 State St, Lemont, [llinois 60439 to 721 E Jackson 8¢, Jo... Page 1 of |
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Driving Directions from 1096 State St, Lemont, Illinois 60439 to 1860 Silver Cross B... Page 1 of 1
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Driving Directions from 1096 State St, Lemont, Illinois 60439 to 1213 Butterfield Rd,... Page 1 of
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Driving Directions from 1096 State St, Lemont, Illinois 60439 to 3825 Highland Ave,... Page 1 of 1
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Driving Directions from 1096 State St, Lemont, Illinois 60439 to 6300 Kingery Hwy, ... Page 1 of |
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Driving Directions from 1096 State St, Lemont, IHinois 60439 to 2400 Wolf Rd, West... Page 1 of |
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Driving Directions from 1096 State St, Lemont, {llinois 60439 to 1940 Springer Dr, L.... Page 1 of ]
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Driving Directions from 1096 State St, Lemont, Tilinois 60439 to [309-317] York Rd, ... Page 1 of |
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Driving Directions from 1096 State St, Lemont, Illinois 60439 to 13155 S la Grange ... Page 1 of |
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Driving Directions from 1096 State St, Lemont, Illinois 60439 to 15890 Parkhill Dr, ... Pagc ! of |
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Driving Directions from 1096 State St, Lemont, 1llinois 60439 to 4861 Cal Sag Rd, Cr... Page 1 of ]
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Driving Directions from 1096 State St, Lemont, Illinots 60439 to 12250 S Cicero Ave... Page 1 of |
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